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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 22 JUNE 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning Mr Chaskalson,  good 

morning everybody.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Good morning Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  –  oh we have Mr Holden 

remote ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning Mr Holden.  

MR HOLDEN:   Good morning Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good.   Thank you for  avai l ing yoursel f  10 

once again.  

MR HOLDEN:   Thank you Chai r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Might  i t  be… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  had forgot ten that  I  sa id n ine o ’c lock.   

So thank you fo r  the reminder.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r  for  somebody who had 

forgot ten that  i t  was n ine o ’c lock you got  an ext raord inar i l y  

c lear.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  d id  so wi thout  breakfast .   But  i t  is 

okay.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Ja thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r  there are a few mat ters of  

housekeeping tha t  we need to begin wi th .   The f i rs t  re la tes 

to  the at tenuated Rule 3.3 process that  we had the f i rs t  t ime 
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Mr Holden test i f ied.   S ince he test i f ied severa l  persons who 

received Rule 3.3 ’s  have furn ished statements or  a f f idavi t s  

or  in  some cases le t ters in  response to the Rule 3.3 ’s  and 

Chai r  we would submi t  that  in  – in  fa i rness to  those – those 

people a l l  o f  the i r  responses where they engage 

substant ive ly  in  any way wi th  the  contents of  Mr Holden ’s  

test imony ought  rea l l y  to  be admi t ted as exhib i ts  and then 

when Mr Holden ’s s tatement  and repor t  a re made publ i c  

they can be made publ ic  a t  the same t ime as the responses 

and Chai r  we have somewhat  presumptuously inc luded a l l  o f  10 

those Rule 3.3 ’s  responses in  a new Bundle FOF20 and I  

am not  sure i f  you – you have the new bundle.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  see my Regis t rar  nods so she – she 

must  be having i t .   Would you l i ke her  to  g ive i t  to  me now? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   P lease –  p lease Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So that  I  might  ( inaudib le ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  i t  the one that  I  have?  Oh she says 

th is  i s  the one tha t  is  in  f ront  o f  me.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r  the f i rs t  o f  those responses 20 

comes f rom Dentons at to rneys and you wi l l  f ind i t  a t  page 

80 of  the bundle.   And there is  essent ia l ly  f rom pages 80 on 

to  page 88 and beyond there is  a  sequence of  responses.    

 The f i rs t  is  a  le t ter  f rom Dentons essent ia l l y  saying  

that  they – they conf i rm the contents of  the i r  mater ia ls  and 
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s ta tements that  they have made to the commission  that  in 

fact  a re at tached as annexures to  Mr Holden’s repor t .  

 Then at  page 82 there is  an aff idavi t  –  there is  a  

le t ter  f rom the a t torney of  Mr Raf iek Bagus at taching an 

aff idavi t  o f  Mr Bagus that… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink that  the people who do the 

paginat ion must  just  en la rge the page numbers  star t ing f rom 

page 82 because unl i ke the other  pages they are in  very  

smal l  f ine pr in t  unt i l  I  th ink – oh i t  is  just  maybe only th is  

le t ter  unt i l  –  unt i l  what  would be page 87.   Okay maybe i t  i s  10 

just  th is  le t ter  a lone that  has got  f ine pr in t  on my bundle.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On my bundle.   So when you say page 81 

or  82 I  –  and I  look I  do not  see anyth ing unt i l  I  come qui te  

c lose to  the page I  see that  i t  is  paginated but  in  very smal l  

pr in t .   I t  looks l ike only that  le t te r  the rest  seem to be f ine.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  w i l l  –  good Chai r.   A t  the  back of  

that  le t te r  behind  that  le t te r  what  i s  s t i l l  a  smal l  paginated 

84 there is  an aff idavi t  f rom Mr Bagus.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  me see – at  the  – Yes I  can see that  –  20 

that  i s  page 88 that  is  paginated as  page 88.   Oh tha t  is  the  

le t te r.   But  i t  is  wr i t ten re aff idav i t  o f  Mr Raf iek Bagus 6  

June 2021 but  I  th ink i t  i s  an emai l  and there is  a  ser ies of  

emai ls  I  th ink af ter  that  unt i l  there is  a  statement  at  page 

94.   I  do not  know – ja .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So there is  – so that  goes onto 

page 87.   A t  88 there  is  then a response f rom Dentons that  

a ff idavi t .  

 A t  page 91 which I  th ink is  a  l i t t le  larger  on mine 

there is  a  le t ter  f rom Mr Duarte.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  can see that  and on – on that  page 

the paginat ion is  normal .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes Chai r.   Then at  92 there 

comes a – a le t ter  f rom the at torneys of  Combined Pr ivate  

Invest igat ions fo l lowed by a statement  f rom thei r  c l ient  and 10 

that  runs a l l  the way through to page 100.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Oh sor ry Chai r  I  th ink 107 wi th  

annexures.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink the statement  goes up to  page 105 

and then i t  is  annexures af ter  that .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   A t… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then Chai r  a t  108 there is  an 

exchange of  cor respondence between the at to rneys fo r 20 

Nkonki  and the commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And that  i s  f rom what  page? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   108.  

CHAIRPERSON:   108 okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Through to 113.   A t  the end of  –  at  
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the end of  that  exchange Nkonki  e lect  not  to  go in to the  

mer i ts  of  any – of  the a l legat ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   A t  paragraph 114 there is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Page 114.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sorry page 114 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   There is  an aff idavi t  f rom Thabisa  

Faye.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   On behal f  o f  Pygma Consul t ing.   

Now Pygma Consul t ing was one of  the par t ies that  had 

objected to  the  shor t  not ice last  t ime and were not  

ment ioned.   There is  –  Ms Faye has now put  up  th is  

aff idavi t  and Ms  Holden –  sorry  Mr Holden can in  due 

course say what  he has to  say about  i t  but  I  understand 

f rom him that  hav ing read th is  aff idavi t  he accepts that  i t  i s  

possib le  – he stands by the submission that  the re levant  

payments are a lso ta in ted by state capture but  he  accepts 

that  i t  i s  possib le  that  Pygma was a v ic t im of  that  process 20 

as opposed to a par ty  to  that  process.   

 But  he can – he  can br ie f ly  speak to  that  in  due 

course.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then the last  o f  these a ff idavi ts  
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that  re la te to  – to  the Rule 3.3 processes is  an aff idavi t  on 

behal f  o f  Tsebo which is  another  par ty  that  one a t tending 

the Free State.   That  a ff idavi t  appears at  page 235 Chai r.  

 Then – so Chai r  I  would ask that  a l l  o f  those 

aff idavi t s  and cor respondence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry – I  am sorry Mr Chaskalson.   

Did you say a cer ta in  aff idavi t  appears at  235? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   255 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   255.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  is  the aff idavi t  o f  Mr Radebe.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh yes okay I  have got  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  would ask that  a l l  o f  those 

aff idavi t s  and – that  th is  bundle that  runs f rom page 80 a l l  

the way – I  should just  see where the end of  Tsebo aff idavi t  

is  because I  do  not  have a note.   I  w i l l  come back to  you or  

can we say now to the end of  Tsebo aff idavi t  and 

annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Which  is  a t  page 285 that  that  

be admi t ted as an  Exhib i t  VV10B.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Now you said sta r t ing f rom page 80 is  that  

r ight?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s  cor rect  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us see.   Some of  these are separate  

and loose emai ls  and le t te rs and so  on,  is  that  r ight?  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s… 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  are not  a t tached to any aff idav i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s  cor rect  Chai r.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then some are aff idavi ts ,  o thers are 

just  s tatements.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s  cor rect  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And they are f rom di f ferent  people.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   Would i t  make sense to 

break them up in to . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  would prefer  that  we – I  th ink af f idavi ts  10 

are few – two or  three is  that  r ight?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   There  are – there are three 

aff idavi t s  that  is  cor rect  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  would prefer  that  we break them up 

i f  we can which we can do e i ther  immediate ly  o r  as and 

when you get  to  referr ing to  them.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  have the page references in  

f ront  o f  me so why do we not  do i t  immediate ly  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Yes okay le t  us do that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then the f i rs t  le t te r  f rom Dentons 20 

appear ing at  page 80.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:  Would be VV10B.1.  

CHAIRPERSON:   VV10B.1  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   The aff idavi t  o f  Mr Bagus – the 
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le t ter  –  the le t te r  f rom Mr Bagus’ a t torney wi th  h is  aff idavi t  

a t  page 82 wi l l  be  VV10B.2.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  the le t te r  a t  82 – why do we not  do  

the le t te r  separate ly  f rom the aff idavi t?   I  th ink le t  us do i t  

that  way.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Cer ta in ly  Chai r.   Then the le t ter  

wi l l  be 2 that  is  a t  82 and the aff idavi t  a t  84 wi l l  be 3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay so the  le t ter  a t  82 is  Exhib i t  

VV10B.2 and that  goes up to  83 and then the aff idav i t  would  

be Exhib i t  VV10B.3.   Is  that  r ight?  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   3  that  i s  cor rect  Chai r  and i t  runs 

to  page – f rom 84 to 87.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   That  is  Exhib i t  VV10B.3.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  is  correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay that  is  the a ff idavi t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then the  response to that  a ff idavi t  

f rom Dentons runs – is  VV10B.4 and that  runs f rom page 

88.   The response of  Mr Duarte … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay I  am sor ry.   This one is  Exhib i t  

VV10B.4 that  is  the le t ter  a t  page 88,  i s  that  r ight?  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s  cor rect  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   R ight .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then there is  a  – a le t ter  f rom Mr 

Duarte which is  VV10B.5 and i t  is  a t  page 91.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  wi l l  be Exhib i t  VV10B.5.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s  cor rect  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  the le t te r  a t  91 yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And there is  a  le t te r  f rom the 

at torneys of  Combined Pr ivate Invest igat ions at  92 that  can 

be VV10B.6 and the aff idavi t  –  oh  i t  is  a  s tatement  not  an  

aff idavi t  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes i t  is  a  s tatement  ja .   The le t ter  a t  

page 92 wi l l  be Exhib i t  10 – Exhib i t  VV10B.6.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And – and then the statement  at  

page 94 wi l l  be 10.  – VV10B.7  that  is  the statement  f rom 10 

page 94.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes the – whose statement  is  th is  one 

again? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  th ink i t  is  Mr Roy – le t  me just  –  

check.   I t  is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  t ry ing to  check.   Ja i t  is  Mr 

Robertson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Roy Robertson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Mr  – the statement  of  Mr Robertson 

that  s tar ts  at  page 94 wi l l  be Exhib i t  VV10B.7.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And i t  runs wi th  annexures a l l  the  

way through to page 107.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   A t  page 108 is  a le t ter  f rom the 

at torneys of  Nkonki  K i rshen Naidoo and Company and that  
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w i l l  be VV10B.8.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The le t ter  s ta r t ing at  page 108 wi l l  be 

Exhib i t  VV10B.8.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   There  is  a  fo l low up le t ter  a t  page 

110 which can be VV10B.9.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The le t ter  that  s tar ts  at  page 110 wi l l  be 

Exhib i t  VV10B.9.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   There is  then a  le t te r  f rom the 

Commission  at  VV10B –  sorry page –  at  111 which  can be 

VV10B.10.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   The le t ter  f rom the Commission star t ing at  

page 111 wi l l  be Exhib i t  VV10B.10.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then at  page 113 there is  a  

fur ther  le t ter  f rom Mr K i rshen Naidoo Incorporated – i f  that  

can be VV10B.11.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The le t te r  a t  page 113 wi l l  be  Exhib i t  

VV10B.11.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then there is  the aff idav i t  o f  Ms 

Faye fo r  Pygma Consul t ing at  page 114 that  can be 

VV10B.12.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  a  – one second.   Yes the aff idavi t  a t  

page 114 that  i s  o f  Thabisa Faye wi l l  be admi t ted as Exhib i t  

VV10B.12.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then Chai r  as I  look at  page 253 

in  fact  i t  is  a  not ice of  mot ion for  appl i cat ion on behal f  o f  –  
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o f  Tsebo wi th  the at tached aff idavi t  in  support  thereof  and –  

and what  the aff idavi t  –  what  the re l ie f  sought  by Tsebo is  

f i rs t  condonat ion  for  the la te f i l ing of  the appl i cat ion.   

Second leave to  g ive ev idence on aff idavi t .  The th i rd  i s  to  

request  the subpoena duces tecum of  a l l  re levant  

documents to  be  ident i f ied.   And the four th is  that  o ther  

re l ie f  is  the person as the Chai rperson may grant .   Chai r  I  

am not  aware of  anyone f rom Tsebo present  today but  for  

present  purposes can I  suggest  that  we – we provis ional ly  

grant  p rayers 1 and 2 of  that  appl i cat ion because we – once 10 

the aff idavi t  is  admi t ted as – in  ev idence that  might  suff i ce 

Tsebo’s  purposes and i f  Tsebo at  a  la ter  s tage comes to 

move the appl i ca t ion fo r  fur ther  re l ie f  we can deal  wi th  i t  

then.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Th is is  an appl i cat ion – oh i t  is  for  – th is  

is  an appl icat ion  which must  s t i l l  be decided but  Prayer  2 

should not  be a problem.   I  do not  know about  Prayer  3.   

You obviously have had a chance to read i t .   For  purposes 

of  today your  only in terest  or  our  on ly in terest  would be the 

aff idavi t  I  would imagine.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes I  just  want  the aff idavi t  to  be  

put  on record.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Because… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja you want  to  ra ise – put  cer ta in  mat te rs 
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to  Mr Holden.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  do not  need to put  –  I  am not  –  I  

do not  in tend to  put… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Mat te rs  to  Mr Holden in  re la t ion 

th is  aff idavi t  in  par t icu la r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  I  jus t  in  fa i rness to  Tsebo and 

the other  Rule 3.3  par t ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I f  Mr Ho lden’s repor t  goes publ ic  

a f ter  today ’s test imony the i r  responses should go publ i c  a t  

the same t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja that  may be a separate i ssue that  –  

what  I  am looking  at  is  whether  i t  should be in  th is  f i le  and 

maybe i t  should not  be i f  you are not  go ing to  rea l ly  need i t  

for  purposes of  leading Mr Holden ’s  ev idence.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  –  I  th ink Mr Holden wi l l  –  he wi l l  

respond gener ica l ly  to  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   To some of  the mat ters.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   To a l l  o f  these.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   To  a l l  o f  these Rule 3.3 

responses.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  not  in  any deta i l  a t  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And – and for  that  purpose we only 

need Mr Radebe’s  aff idavi t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s  cor rect  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  that  r ight?  We just  happen to have the  

– the not ice of  mot ion.   I  would  l ike to  – I  would l ike an  

ar rangement  in  te rms of  which h is  appl i cat ion is  p rocessed 

in  the normal  way but  we have what  we need here.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To the aff idavi t .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r  should we then just  admi t  

the aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   From page 255.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wi thout  the not ice of  mot ion.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja so – so we wi l l  –  I  th ink what  can be 

done is  just  to  put  a  b lank page before the aff idav i t  to  say 

pages 174 and 175 re lated to  a not ice of  mot ion which was 

taken out  or  someth ing l i ke that .   Okay so – h is  aff idavi t  –  20 

Mr Radebe’s aff idavi t  i s  f rom page 255 to 267.   So that  wi l l  

be Exhib i t  VV10B number what .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   13 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   13.   Okay.   The aff idavi t  o f  Mr  Michael  

Radebe which star ts  at  page 255 wi l l  be admi t ted and 
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marked as Exhib i t  VV10B.13.   Ja.   Yes Mr Chaskalson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then Chai r  I  have just  been 

not i f ied that  there is  a  fur ther  Rule 3.3 i ssue which  is  that  

Ms Matselo  has been contacted on – I  am not  sure i f  i t  is  on  

emai l  o r  on the phone – te lephonica l ly  f rom at to rneys fo r  T-

Systems who were one of  the  impl icated par t ies who 

objected last  t ime i t  is  Mr Purchase f rom Bowman Gi l f i l lan.   

Now they have had more than two weeks to  respond to the 

last  Rule 3.3 Not ice and have not  done so.   There is  an 

added wr ink le in  that  there is  in  Mr  Holden’s supplementary  10 

test imony new evidence about  T-Systems to which they 

were only a ler ted  I  th ink on Fr iday.   But  what  we have is  a  

te lephonic object ion to  the ev idence.   My submission is  that  

there is  no basis  to  object  to  the ev idence that  was in  the  

or ig ina l  repor t  and that  has now been in  the i r  possession 

for  c lose to  a month and in  response to which we have 

received noth ing.   I f  Mr  Purchase or  T-Systems and another  

representat i ve of  T-Systems is  go ing to  come today maybe 

we can hear  them on that .   I  am in  a awkward s i tuat ion 

Chai r  because I  –  i t  is  important  to  canvass that  ev idence.   20 

I t  is  very s ign i f i cant  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  th ink that  somebody can te l l  them 

that  i f  they leave th ings as they are they run the r i sk that  

we wi l l  p roceed – they wi l l  p roceed and inc lude that  

ev idence.   I f  they  want  someth ing d i f ferent  then they should 
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be here before lunch or  someth ing so that  they can say 

what  they need to  say and then we can take i t  f rom there or  

a  ru l ing can be made but  they cannot  just  leave i t  a t  just  

phoning.   What  i s  your  at t i tude to  that?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r  i t  is  a  d i f f i cu l t  s i tuat ion  

because par t  o f  what  I  in tend to  canvass wi th  Mr Holden 

th is  morn ing which was the second housekeeping issue is  

that  –  and I  suppose we can move i t  around.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh unless – unless I  ad journ and you ta lk  

to  them for  f ive m inutes or  someth ing.    10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r  I  would rather  no t  waste 

t ime – lose the t ime because we are so pressed for  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:  Can I  propose th is  Chai r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  I  wi l l  change the st ructure of  

the ev idence f rom what  I  was going  to  do.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  w i l l  ask Ms Masi lo  to  contact  Ms 

– Mr Purchase and  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And i f  we have not  –  i f  an 

appl i cat ion is  not  made by luncht ime in  the af ternoon I  wi l l  

canvass what  I  had in tended to canvass th is  morn ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.   That  i s  f ine.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then Chai r  there – there is  a  

last… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry – I  am sorry – I  am sor ry  Mr  

Chaskalson.   Just  technica l ly  I  am – I  conf i rm that  the  

correspondence and statements  and aff idavi t s  that  we 

a l located Exhib i t  numbers ear l ie r  on are a l l  admi t ted .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r  there is  a  – a fu r ther  mat ter  

o f  housekeeping which is  qu i te  a  s ign i f i cant  i ssue and which  

– which may affect  –  which I  do need to address now even 

though for  the most  par t  i t  is  go ing to  be shelved unt i l  

luncht ime and Chai r  what  has happened s ince Mr  Holden 

f i rs t  test i f ied i s  that  a  range of  people have come forward 

wi th  fur ther  in fo rmat ion.   Some d iscrepancies in  h is  – or  

some overs ights  in  h is  f igures have been p icked up by 

par t ies and fur ther  in fo rmat ion has been made ava i lab le to 

h im so those  who now change s l igh t ly  on  the  s t rength  o f  20 

the  new in fo rmat ion  and what  we  have done is .   We had  

prepared rep lacement  pages wh ich  inco rpora tes  the  new 

in fo rmat ion .   Now I  am not  go ing  to  canvas the  new 

in fo rmat ion  w i th  Mr  Ho lden because some o f  i t  re la tes  to  T-

Systems,  bu t  I  wou ld  ask  i f  we can jus t  ge t  you r  consent ,  
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Cha i r,  to  have those rep lacement  pages put  in to  your  f i le  

so  tha t  the  tab les  in  you r  f i le  w i l l  now re f lec t  the  cor rec t  

numbers  and then a f te r  lunch,  we can ask  Mr  Ho lden to  

address those changes and maybe  i f  we can jus t  check tha t  

a l l  i s  done sa t is fac tor i l y  a t  tea t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  tha t  can be done.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Then jus t  ve ry  br ie f l y  be fore  we 

–  we leave the  Ru le  3 .3 ’s .   I  wonder  i f  Mr  Ho lden cou ld  be  10 

sworn  in  so  tha t  we cou ld  jus t  very  br i e f l y  dea l  w i th  h is  

response to  the  Ru le  3 .3 .  responses.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   P lease  admin is te r  the  oa th  or  

a f f i rmat ion ,  Reg is t ra r.  

REGISTRAR :    P lease state your fu l l  names for the record? 

WITNESS :    Paul  Edward Holden.  

REGISTRAR :    Do you have any object ion to make a 

prescr ibed aff i rmat ion? 

WITNESS :    I  do not .  

REGISTRAR :    Do you aff i rm that  the ev idence you wi l l  g ive,  20 

wi l l  be the t ruth,  the whole t ruth and nothing else but  the 

t ruth?  I f  so,  p lease raise up your r ight  hand and say,  I  t ru ly 

aff i rm.  

WITNESS :    I  t ru ly aff i rm.  

PAUL EDWARD :   (aff i rmed) 
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CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.    

EXAMINATION BY ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you,  

Cha i r.   Mr  Ho lden,  can we br ie f l y  address the  Ru le  3 .3 .  

responses wh ich  have now been admi t ted  as  exh ib i t s?    

MR HOLDEN :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  shou ld  p lace on record  tha t  no  

one is  sought  to  c ross-examine you or  to  g ive  ora l  

ev idence themse lves bu t  in  tha t  contex t ,  do  you have any  

response tha t  you want  to  pu t  on  record  i n  re la t ion  to  those  

var ious le t te rs ,  s ta tements ,  and a f f idav i t s  tha t  you have  10 

seen?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   I  th ink  my gener ic  and 

genera l  response is  tha t  the  add i t iona l  s ta tements  and 

le t te rs  a re  we l l  rece ived.   On re f lec t ion ,  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  

any o f  the  ev idence tha t  has been presented to  me wou ld  

make me change  my mind in  de termin ing  tha t  these are  

cont rac ts  ta in ted  by  s ta te  capture ,  by  wh ich  I  mean,  tha t  

some aspects  o f  the  cont rac ts  i nvo lve  e i the r  ind iv idua l  

assoc ia ted  w i th  s ta te  captu re ,  o r  the  funds u l t imate ly  

f lowed to  the  benef i t s  to  what  I  ca l l  the  Gupta  Enterpr ise .    20 

 Cer ta in ly,  there  are  ob jec t ions tha t  a re  made to  

very  spec i f i c  e lements  o f  my ev idence but  wh ich  I  do  no t  

th ink  undermine the  genera l  th rus t  o f  my f ind ings.   The  

on ly  except ion  and nuance are  a t  tha t  i s  in  re la t ion  to  

Pygma(?)  Consu l t ing  wh ich  my ev idence  leader  
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t raversed(?)s l igh t ly  ear l ie r.    

 On read ing  Pygma’s  very  de ta i l ed  a f f idav i t ,  I  am 

s t i l l  o f  the  op in ion  tha t  the  cont rac t  i s  ta in ted  by  s ta te  

capture  i n  tha t  Mr  Ashok Narayan was in t imate l y  invo l ved 

in  the  cont rac t  and the  por t ion  o f  the  funds were  u l t imate ly  

pa id  to  a  company tha t  appears  to  be  under  the  cont ro l  o f  

the  Gupta  Enterp r ise ,  jus t  in  the  management .    

 That  sa id .   I t  does not  appear  f rom the  ev idence  

tha t  For t ime Consu l t ing  aware  o f  th is  s tu f f  o r  were  aware  

tha t  th is  was a  cont rac t  ta in ted  by  s ta te  capture  and i t  10 

appears  tha t  –  in  good fa i th .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    There  i s  one fu r the r  i ssue tha t  I  

wanted to  jus t  ra i se  w i th  you in  response to  –  in  response  

to  these Ru le  3 .3 ’s .   There  is ,  wha t  I  th ink  a  typo tha t  was  

p icked on by  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Radebe Potsebo(?)  

[00 :04 :38] .   I  have no los t  my re ference,  bu t  there  i s  a  

po in t  in  you r  repor t  where  you re fer  to  85% of  the  

payments  f rom the  s ta te  to  Tshebo(?)  go ing  on to  Inova(? ) .   

You say jus t  over  85%.   I  am a f ra id  I  have los t  my 

re ference.   Mr  Radebe po in ts  ou t  tha t  i t  was jus t  over  75%.   20 

Do you take  issue w i th  tha t?  

MR HOLDEN :    No,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you.   Then  beyond  tha t ,  i s  

there  anyth ing  fu r the r  tha t  you  want  to  say to  these 

responses to  the  Ru le  3 .3 ’s?  
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MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   Obv ious ly,  I  am not  go ing  

to  respond in  fu r ther  de ta i l  here ,  bu t  I  w i l l  be  very  happy to  

fu rn ish  the  Commiss ion ,  i f  i t  i s  requ i red ,  w i th  fu r ther  

wr i t ten  responses  to  the  a f f idav i t s  and the  le t te rs  tha t  have  

been sent ,  and i t  can  obv ious ly  be  shared w i th  the  a f fec ted  

par t ies  tha t  needs be,  as  we l l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you,  Mr  Ho lden.   Then I  

wou ld  –  we are  go ing  to  the  par t  f rom the  s t ruc ture  o f  your  

ev idence as  or ig ina l l y  p lanned,  and we a re  now go ing  to  

move to  the  money laundry  o f  the  proceeds o f  the  s ta te  10 

capture  ta in ted  cont rac ts  tha t  we have d iscussed las t  t ime 

you tes t i f ied ,  and  jus t  to  re f resh –  I  mean,  i t  has  been over  

a  month  s ince  you las t  tes t i f ied .    

 Your  tes t imony las t  t ime dea l t  w i th ,  essent ia l l y,  

th ree  d i f fe ren t  b road top ics .   The  f i rs t  was cont rac ts  tha t  

were  ta in ted  by  s ta te  captu re  and the  aggregate  amount  

pa id  by  the  s ta te  in  tha t  regard .   The second was the  

aggregate  amoun t  by  wh ich  the  Gupta  Enterpr ise  benef i ted  

th rough those cont rac ts .    

 And the  th i rd  and  las t  top ic  tha t  we touched on las t  20 

t ime was what  you ca l led  F i rs t  Leve l  Laundry  en t i t ies  and  

we have d iscussed –  and you dea l t  in  some deta i l  w i th  the  

aggregate  amoun ts  tha t  was pa id  by  cont rac tors  w i th  the  

s ta te  to  what  you ca l l  F i r s t  Leve l  Laundry  en t i t ies .   Can  

you br ie f l y  jus t  re f resh the  Cha i r ’s  memory  on  what  the  
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F i r s t  Leve l  Laundry  en t i t ies  are  and what  they do?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   Over  a  pe r iod  o f  a  number  

o f  years ,  the  Gupta  Enterpr i se  made use o f  veh ic les  tha t  

rece ived payments  f rom cont rac t s  to  the  s ta te  in  cont rac t  

ta in ted  by  s ta te  capture .   The cont rac t s  to  the  s ta te  wou ld  

make mul t ip le  and many payments  to  these F i rs t  Leve l  

Laundry  tha t  were  des ignated by  the  Gupta  Ente rpr i se .    

 Once these payments  were  rece ived by  these f i rs t  

leve l  o rgans they  were  the  f i rs t  aggregat ing  par t  o f  a  much 

broader  and more  complex  laundry  scheme.   From these 10 

F i rs t  Leve l  Laundry  en t i t ies ,  they are  then se t  ou t  in to  a  –  

or  pa id  ou t ,  ra the r,  in to  a  much more  complex  and deta i led  

loca l  laundromat  wh ich  then connect  in to  a  vast  and qu i te  

ex tended in te rnat iona l  laundromat  as  we l l .    

 And so ,  the  f i r s t  leve l  laundr ies  are  e f fec t i ve ly  the  

veh ic les  to  wh ich  the  Gupta  Enterpr ise  was f i rs t  pa id  and  

th rough wh ich  o f  the  funds th rough mul t ip le  d i f fe ren t  loca l  

and in te rnat iona l  laundromats .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And when you use the  te rm  

laundromat ,  what  a re  you re fe r r ing  to?  20 

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   A laundromat  –  what  I  

mean by  laundromat  i s  a  sys tem o f  connected  ent i t ies  

wh ich  rece ive  funds f rom the  Gupta  Enterpr ise  by  the  f i rs t  

leve l  laundr ies  –  F i rs t  Leve l  Laundry  veh ic les  and then 

e f fec t i ve l y  wash those funds or  laundered those funds by  



22 JUNE 2021 – DAY 414 
 

Page 24 of 319 
 

var ious means by  pass ing  i t  to  mul t ip le  d i f fe ren t  re la ted  

accounts  un t i l  such t ime as  i t  ex i t  a t  the  f ina l  dest ina t ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    What  we are  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  

now is  your  ev idence in  re la t ion  to  the  fu l l  domest ic  money  

laundry  ne tworks  and before  we get  there ,  I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  

to  f lag  in  your  s ta tement  the  –  in  you r  repor t  the  re levant  

sec t ions tha t  we  are  go ing  to  be  address ing  because we  

are  no t  go ing  to  have t ime to  go  i n to  the  de ta i l ,  bu t  fo r  the 

Cha i r ’s  benef i t ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  g ive  the  cross  re ferences.    

 Cha i r,  I  w i l l  ask  you to  take  down these cross  10 

re ferences fo r  l a te r  re fe rence.   I t  i s  incred ib l y  de ta i led  and  

compl ica ted  tes t imony tha t  Mr  Ho lden has p rov ided in  h is  

repor t  and wh ich  we s imp ly  do  no t  have the  t ime  to  do  

jus t i ce  to  in  th is  hear ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    In  re la t ion  to  the  loca l  laundry  

ne twork .   Mr  Ho lden f i rs t  in t roduces the  top ic  a t  Bund le  9  

page 229 to  page  231.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bund le  9?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    229 to  231.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 229 to  231.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i t  i s  paragraphs 310 to  322.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Parag raphs 310 to  322.   Okay?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The  f i rs t  ne twork  tha t  he  

ident i f ies  i s  one tha t  he  ca l l s  the  Ch iv i ta  Network ,  C-h- i - v -
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i - t -a .   He dea ls  w i th  tha t  f rom pages 232.   I t  is  a l l  in  

Bund le  9 ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    232 to  page 241.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    A t  paragraphs 323 to  341.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Parag raphs 323 to  341?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And you w i l l  reca l l ,  Cha i r,  there  10 

was an execut ive  summary tha t  Mr  Ho lden prepared .   That  

i s  now be ing  p laced in  Bund le  20 ,  Cha i r,  and the  same 

top ics  are  addressed a t  page 47 to  48  o f  Bund le  20  in  the  

Execut ive  Summary,  paragraphs 52  to  55 .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Execut ive  Summary is  in  Bund le  20  and 

page?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    47  to  48 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Paragraphs 52 to  55 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The  second money  laundry  

ne twork  he  ident i f ies ,  he  ca l l s  i t  the  Homix  Network .   That  

i s  addressed a t  Bund le  9 ,  pages 241 to  259.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   For  some reason,  I  am s lower.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    [ laughs]   Sor ry.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    The second money laundry  ne twork ,  

what . . .?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    He ca l l s  the  Homix ,  h -om- i -x .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Network .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  i s  addressed a t  page 241.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 241.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    To  259.  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  259.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    A t  paragraphs 342 to  385.  

CHAIRPERSON :    342 to  th ree  hundred and. . .?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    E igh t ,  f ive .  

CHAIRPERSON :    E igh ty,  f i ve .   Okay?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And tha t  i s  in  Bund le  9 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Then  there  i s  a  summar i sed 

t rea tment  o f  i t  in  Bund le  20 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    A t  pages 48 to  50 .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Pages 48 to  50 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Paragraphs 56 to  65 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Parag raphs 56 to  65 .   Yes?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The  th i rd  ne twork  tha t  he  

ident i f ies ,  he  ca l l s  the  Forsure ,  f -o - r - s -u - r -e .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    F-o- r -s -u- r -e .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    H-a-s - t -a -u - f .   Hastauf .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H-a-s . . .?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    T-a-u - f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    T-a -u-m.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    F  fo r  Fredd ie .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   So,  i t  i s  Forsure  Hastauf?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    In  Bund le  9 ,  tha t  i s  addressed a t  10 

pages 260 to  266 .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i t  i s  paragraphs 386. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    386. . .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . . to  400.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And the  summar ised t rea tment  o f  

i t  in  Bund le  20  is  a t  pages 50 and 51.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    A t  paragraphs 66 to  70 .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And the  four th  ne twork  he  

ident i f ies  i s  su f f i c ien t ly  compl i ca ted  fo r  h im to  ca l l  i t  the 

Sp ider ’s  Web.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Sp ider ’s  Web.   Yes?  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And tha t  i s  dea l t  w i th  in  Bund le  9  

a t  pages 266. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    266. . .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . .338.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    338.   I t  i s  a lmost  –  i t  i s  more  

than 70 pages.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  338?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i t  i s  paragraphs 401. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . . to  561.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And the  abbrev ia ted  t rea tment  o f  

i t  in  Bund le  20  is  aga in  pages and I  have an incor rec t  

re fe rence there ,  Cha i r.   I  w i l l  come back to  you w i th  the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wi th  the  page numbers .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . .w i th  the  cor rec t  page numbers .   20 

I t  i s . . .   Bu t  Cha i r,  i t  s ta r ts  a t  page 51.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i t  runs th rough to  page 56.   

Sor ry,  58 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  



22 JUNE 2021 – DAY 414 
 

Page 29 of 319 
 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i t  i s  paragraphs 71 to  95 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So ,  tha t  i s  where  Cha i r  w i l l  f ind 

the  de ta i l  to  wh ich  Mr  Ho lden is  go ing  to  tes t i f y  a t  fa i r l y  

h igh  leve l  today.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Bu t  le t  us  now s tar t  tha t  

tes t imony.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  know tha t  we  

ta lked about  the  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  Mr  Ho lden cou ld  ge t  10 

another  t ime i f  we do not  f in ish  today in  a  way tha t  

sa t is f ies  us  tha t  he  has dea l t  w i th  i ssues proper l y  in  te rms 

o f  t ime and we ta lked about  the  poss ib i l i t y  o f  Thursday.   I  

jus t  ment ion  tha t  i f  you  fee l  tha t  the  t ime const ra in ts  a re  

no t  –  a re  preven t ing  h im f rom do ing  jus t i ce  to  the  issues 

sub jec t  to  everybody be ing  ava i lab le ,  we cou ld  even look 

a t  Saturday morn ing .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Can I  ask  tha t  

we do not  make a  ca l l  on  tha t  today?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Le t  us  see how the  tes t imony 

goes f i rs t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Bu t  la te r  in  the  day 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . . i f  we need to  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . . take  you up on e i ther  o f  those 

o f fe rs .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  jus t  want  to  make 

sure  tha t  we fee l  tha t  he  has been g iven enough t ime.   You 

have been g iven enough t ime to  dea l  w i th  i ssues  

su f f i c ien t ly.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you very  much.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Mr  Ho lden,  you have  ta lked 

br ie f l y  about  the  f i rs t  leve l  l aundr ies  and the  mode  o f  

laundry  money.   Can you exp la in  a t  a  very  h igh  leve l  how 

these four  ne tworks  tha t  you have ident i f ied  in  your  repor t  

opera ted?  What  was the i r  s t ruc tu re ,  to  beg in  w i th?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   The laundr ies  were  

obv ious ly  incred ib le  compl ica ted  but  in  ana lys ing  them i t  20 

became c lea r  tha t  there  was a  cer ta in  pa t te rn i c i t y  the  ways  

on wh ich  the  laundry  opera ted .   In  very  broad  te rms,  

a l though there  is  nuances and  except ions in  ce r ta in  

p laces,  you have a t  the  very  top  leve l  a  F i rs t  Leve l  Laundry  

veh ic le  such as  Med jou l  o r  f i rs t  p ro jec ts  o r  For t ime and 
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rece iv ing  funds f rom s ta te  cont rac tors .    

 Some -  the re  the  funds a re  then pa id  in to  a  what  I  

ca l l  an  in te rmed iary  account  o r  a  h igh- leve l  laundry 

veh ic le .   The funds are  then pa id  in to  tha t  in te rmed ia te  –  i t  

comes f rom mul t ip le  d i f fe ren t  F i rs t  Leve l  Laundry  en t i t ies  

wh ich  are  then a l loca t ing  to  tha t  account  and then send  

onwards in  the  money laundry  ne twork .    

 Genera l l y  speak ing ,  the  funds a re  e i ther  send onto  

a  second th i rd  par ty  who aggregates  the  funds and then  

makes those t ransfers  onwards aga in .   In  most  ins tances  10 

where  we have been ab le  to  t race  the  funds f low ing to  

some sor t  o f  endpo in t ,  the  funds genera l l y  end up o f fsho re  

to  what  I  re fe r  to  as  an  onshore /o f fshore  b r idge  in  my 

repor t .   And an onshore /o f fsho re  br idge is  ve ry  s imp le  a  

company tha t  rece ives and aggregates  payments  f rom th is  

ex tended laundry  ne twork  and  then makes payments  

abroad in to  a  ve ry  ex tended overseas laundry  ne twork .    

 The vast  ma jo r i t y  o f  funds wh ich  we have ident i f ied  

mov ing  to  th is  ne twork  en ter  in to  what  I  ca l l  the  Hong  

Kong/Ch ina  laundry  ne twork  wh ich  I  have addressed in  20 

some deta i l  in  the  ev idence I  gave w i th  regards to  

Reg iments ,  As ia ,  and Tequesta  in  re la t ion  to  the  Transnet  

k ickbacks pa id  to  them.    

 The essence o f  tha t  incred ib le  complex  Hon  

Kong/Ch ina  laundry  i s  tha t  i t  ran  many hundreds o f  
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d i f fe ren t  compan ies  reg is te red in  Hong Kong and  Ch ina  

tha t  rece ived funds f rom s ta te  capture  and mul t ip le  o ther  

sources and then  be l ievab le  check  those funds out  in to  an  

eventua l  a t tended rec ip ien t .   I  th ink  the  po in t  to  be  

emphas ised here  is  tha t  in  many ins tances the  Gupta  

Enterp r ise  was mak ing  use o f  p re-ex i s t ing  and independent  

c r im ina l  ne tworks .    

 These are  ne tworks  tha t  ex is ted  independent ly  o f  

the  Gupta  Enterpr ise  and pr io r  to  the  Gupta  En terpr i se  

wh ich  the  Gupta  Enterpr i se  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  in to  in  o rder  to  10 

launder (? )  i t s  funds suppor t (? ) .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And jus t  to  s ta r t  a t  the  F i rs t  

Leve l  Laundry  veh ic les .   Can I  ask  you to  tu rn  to  page  

157?  We have addressed –  we have addressed th is  las t  

t ime,  bu t  jus t  to  re f resh the  Cha i r ’s  memory  w i th  who these  

f i rs t  leve l  –  what  these ent i t ies  tha t  you ca l l  the  F i rs t  Leve l  

Laundry  veh ic les  are .   Can you go to  page 157 o f  Bund le  

9?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And there ,  you w i l l  have the  20 

rep lacement  page,  I  wou ld  imag ine ,  bu t  in  pa ragraph 197 

there  are  a  l i s t  o f  en t i t ies  s ta r t ing  w i th  A lba t ime.   I  th ink  

the  Cha i r ’s  document  w i l l  s t i l l  i n  the  check(?)  o f  commerce 

a t  paragraph N.   Can you jus t  b r i e f l y  ident i f y  these? 

CHAIRPERSON :    One second,  Mr  Chaska lson.    
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you,  Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Cha i r,  do  you have page 157 

there?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Mr  Ho lden,  w i l l  you  jus t  look  a t  

the  en t i t ies  l i s ted  f rom A to  N or  on  your  document?   I  th ink  

i t  may be O on your  document  because you have added on 

in  the  rep lacement  page.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  in  m ine as  we l l .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Oh.   Then  O was be ing  added.   

Can you jus t  con f i rm tha t  these a re  what  you desc r ibe  a t  

the  F i rs t  Leve l  Laundry  en t i t ies?  

MR HOLDEN :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And maybe i f  you can jus t  l i s t  

them so tha t  anyone watch ing  or  read ing  the  t ransc r ip t  w i l l  

know what  these ent i t ies  are?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly.   We have a t :  

(A )  A lba t ime  

(B)  B i rsaa Pro jec t  20 

(C)  B lock  Man ia  

(D)  Ch iv i ta  Trad ing  

(E)  Forsure  Consu l tan ts  

(F )  For t ime Consu l tan ts  

(G)  Homix  
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(H)  I smer  

( I )  Jacsha Trad ing  

(J )  Maher  S t ra tegy  

(K)  Matson Cap i ta l  

(L )  Med jou l  

(M)  Pact rade  

(N)  Shacob Commerce 

(O)  Host i le (? )  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you,  Mr  Ho lden.   You have  

now –  be fo re  I  took  you back,  you had br ie f l y  d iscussed  10 

the  s t ruc ture  o f  how these laundry  ne tworks  worked.   I  

wonder  i f  you  cou ld  i l l us t ra te  i t  w i th  an  example  tha t  you 

address a t  Annexure  69  and tha t  i s  in  Bund le  13 ,  page 605 

because tha t  p robab ly  p rov ides an  eas ier  way o f  

unders tand ing  what  you are  ta lk ing  about  theore t ica l l y.   

So,  i t  i s  page 605 ,  Bund le  13 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  have got  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Now,  

Mr  Ho lden,  can you take  the  Cha i r  th rough th is  Annexure  

69 ,  th is  one-page  d iagram?  And exp la in  w i th  re ference to  20 

the  s t ruc ture  o f  these laundry  ne tworks ,  what  you are 

desc r ib ing  here .  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   I  have shared my sc reen.   

I  am not  sure  i f  tha t  i s  coming up on your  s ide  or  no t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So ,  can –  i f  you  s ta r t  a t  the  top  
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w i th  Combined Pr iva te  Invest iga t ions,  who are  they?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly.   Combine Pr i va te  Invest iga t ions 

is  a  f i rm tha t  we have ident i f ied  in  the  repor t  rece iv ing  

qu i te  a  la rge  number  o f  s ta te  cont rac ts  f rom mul t ip le  

d i f fe ren t  sources  prov id ing ,  amongst  o the r  th ings,  secur i t y  

serv i ces  and i t  made qu i te  substant ia l  payments  to  what  I  

ca l l  the  F i rs t  Leve l  Laundry  Network .   And to work  th rough 

the  i l l us t ra t ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    P lease do.  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   So,  th is  i s  one iso la ted  10 

example  where  you can pack the  d ispos i t ion  o f  one o f  the  

source  o f  payments .   A t  the  top  leve l ,  you have Combined  

Pr iva te  Invest iga t ions wh ich  a re  t he  f i rs t  in  2016 made a  

payment  o f  R 1  575 760 74.   I t  made tha t  payment  to  

Med jou l  wh ich  I  have a l ready ident i f ied  as  a  F i rs t  Leve l  

Laundry  veh ic le .    

 Three days la te r,  on  the  4 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016,  Med jou l  

then t ransfers  an  amount  o f  R 1  544 245 16 to  an  en t i t y  by  

the  name o f  SAAMED(?)  Bu l l ion  Group.   And SAAMED 

Bu l l ion  Group i s  a  par t i cu la r ly  ac t i ve  par t  o f  the  ex tended 20 

laundry  ne twork  tha t  we a re  look ing  a t .   I  have p laced the  

SAAMED Bu l l ion  Group w i th  wha t  I  ca l l  the  Sp ider  Web.   

The funct ion  o f  the  SAAMED Bu l l ion  Group was what  I  ca l l  

an  in te rmed iary  funct ion .   I t  rece i ved mul t ip le  payments .    

 Many hundreds o f  m i l l i ons  o f  rands o f  payments  



22 JUNE 2021 – DAY 414 
 

Page 36 of 319 
 

f rom Fi rs t  Leve l  Laundry  en t i t ies  f rom mul t ip le  F i r s t  Leve l  

Laundry  en t i t ies .   Aggregated those amounts  and then  

d is t r ibu tes  i t  in to  an  ex tended loca l  and in te rnat iona l  

laundromats .   On  the  same day,  the  SAAMED Bu l l ion  Group 

was pa id  tha t  amount  by  Med jou l .   I t  then t ransfers  an  

amount  o f  R 1  629 003.15 to  Gra inCorp  D is t r ibu tors  and 

tha t  i s  R 1  629 003.15.    

 The Cha i r  w i l l  no t ice  tha t  i t  i s  s l igh t ly  more  than  

the  amount  tha t  has been pa id  by  Med jou l  to  SAAMED 

Bu l l ion .   I  have inc luded i t  here  because a l l  o f  the  funds 10 

tha t  appears  in  SAAMED Bu l l ion  Group tend to  a r ise  f rom 

s ta te  capture  payments  f rom the  F i rs t  Leve l  Laundry  

en t i t ies .   So,  the  amounts  tha t  were  res idua l  in  the 

SAAMED Bu l l ion  account  wou ld  have ar isen f rom s ta te  

capture  in  any event .    

 Aga in ,  on  the  same day,  Gra inCorp  –  i f  I  may add  

is ,  what  I  ca l l  an  aggregator  p r io r  to  the  –  i t  i s  the  

onshore /o f fsho re  br idges.   I t s  ro le  was to  rece ive  depos i ts  

f rom mul t ip le  d i f fe ren t  sources f rom ent i t ies ,  l i ke ,  SAAMED 

Bu l l ion  Group bu t  a lso  o the r  un re la ted  sources.   I t  was to  20 

aggregate  those amounts  and to  bu lk  them,  as  i t  were ,  and  

then make an onward  payment  to  an  en t i t y  tha t  wou ld  then 

t ransfer  the  funds abroad.   That  i s  Gra inCorp  D is t r ibu tors  

funct ion .    

 So,  as  you see,  the  fo l low ing –  on  the  same day,  
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on  the  4 t h  o f  Apr i l ,  R  1 .7  m i l l ion  i s  t ransfer red  f rom 

Gra inCorp  to  an  onshore /o f fsho re  br idge ca l led  Qu i te  

B ig(?)  [00 :29 :50]  Wholesa le rs .   Qu i te  B ig Wholesa le rs  was 

par t i cu la r l y  ac t i ve  onshore /o f f sho re  br idge.    

 I  am sure  we w i l l  ge t  to  the  exac t  number  tha t  we 

have been ab le  to  ident i f y  f rom [ ind is t inc t ]  se l le rs  abroad.   

Aga in  the  funct ion  o f  [ indist inct ]  cent res  was to  rece ive  the  

funds f rom feeder  accounts  such as  [ ind is t inc t ]  d is t r ibu tors  

and then t ransfer  the  funds ab road in to  the  ex tended Hong 

Kong Ch ina  laundry  and as  you can see on tha t  same day 10 

indeed [ ind i s t inc t ]  Wholesa le rs  does make a  fu r ther  

payment  on  the  4  Apr i l  2016 o f  1 ,870,000 wh ich  is  

R1 870 000 in to  an  ent i t y  by  the  name o f  Success  S tand  

L im i ted  wh ich  is  a  company reg is te red in  Hong Kong.   We -  

I  addressed Success S tand L im i ted  in  re la t ion  to  the  

Transnet  k i ckback ev idence aga in  a t  the  end o f  las t  year .    

 Success S tand is  a  company reg is te red in  Hong  

Kong tha t  rece ives a  t ru ly  vas t  amount  o f  money f rom 

var ious d i f fe ren t  sou rces in  Sou th  A f r i ca  and inc lud ing  

have been pa id  by  bo th  Reg iments  As ia  and the  Tequesta  20 

Group f rom Hong  Kong and we be l ieve  – o r  I  be l ieve ,  tha t  

i s ,  tha t  Success  S tand fo rms par t  o f  a  ve ry  complex  

in te rnat iona l  laundry  ne twork  opera t ing  ou t  o f  Hong Kong 

in  Ch ina  usua l l y  th rough HSPC bank accounts .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you jus t  re f resh the  Cha i r ’s  
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memory,  Tequesta  and Reg iments  As ia ,  who were  they?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   Tequesta  and Reg iments  

As ia  are  two compan ies  tha t  were  cont ro l led  by  Sa l im 

Essa.   He was the  d i rec tor  o f  bo th  compan ies  in  Hong  

Kong.   They were  bo th  rec ip ien ts  and des ignated rec ip ien ts  

o f  k ickbacks tha t  were  pa id  by  Ch ina  South  Ra i l  and Ch ina  

Nor th  Ra i l  and i t s  successor  to  -  in  re la t ion  to  the  var ious  

locomot ive  cont rac ts  tha t  were  awarded to  those par t ies .   I  

cannot  remember  the  exact  amoun t  o f fhand but  as  fa r  as  I  

reca l l  bo th  in  to ta l  Reg iments  As ia  and Tequesta  Group 10 

rece ived many hundreds o f  m i l l i ons  o f  do l la rs  f low ing f rom 

those k ickbacks.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  there  var ia t ions  in  the  amounts  

s ta r t ing  f rom wha t  Med jou l  pa id  to  some Korean Group and 

f rom the re  up  to  Success S tand L im i ted  the  amounts  be ing  

var ied  to  be  a  l i t t le  lower  than the  or ig ina l  amount  o r  more  

than the  or ig ina l  amount .   Would  those be a t tempts  to  

d isgu ise  the  –  tha t  i s  s t i l l  the  same amount  tha t  came f rom 

Combined Pr i va te  Invest iga t ions or  no t  necessar i l y?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  the re  are  p robab le  20 

two reasons here .   One is ,  as  you cor rec t l y  ident i f y,  a  

means o f  mak ing  i t  harder  to  t race  the  or ig in  o f  the  funds.  

 The second reason is ,  cer ta in ly  when the  reach the  

s tage o f  b reak or  an  ID,  so  they a re  rece iv ing  vast  sums o f  

money on a  da i l y  bas is  f rom mul t ip le  d i f fe ren t  sources and 
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what  happens then is  tha t  the  amounts  tha t  a re  pa id  in  

f rom the  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  ne tworks  by  [ indist inct ]   Group,  

so  they coming le  w i th  a  range o f  o ther  funds to  then fund 

[ ind is t inc t ]  payments  ab road.    

 So I  th ink  i t  i s  bo th  a  combinat ion  o f  d isgu is ing  the  

or ig in  o f  the  funds and a lso  probab ly  a  s imp le  account ing  

mechan ism o f  bu lk ing  mul t ip le  d i f fe ren t  payments  f rom 

d i f fe ren t  sources to  fund spec i f i c  do l la r  amount  

t ransact ions abroad.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And wou ld  the  issue o f  exchange ra tes  10 

in  d i f fe ren t  count r ies  be  a  fac tor  as  we l l ,  rand to  do l la rs  

and so  on?  

MR HOLDEN :   I  wou ld  imag ine  so ,  Cha i r. ,  

CHAIRPERSON :    You wou ld  imag ine  so?  

MR HOLDEN :   I  wou ld  imag ine  so ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .    

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in l y  there  is  –  the  laundr ies  cou ld  a lso  

probab ly  ex t rac t  the i r  own fee  and charge fo r  p rocess ing  

the  funds as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   Mr  Chaska lson?  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now you have ident i f ied  14  o f  

the  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  veh ic les  o f  wh ich  Med jou l  wou ld  be  

one  in  th is  case.   Were  these 14 used a l l  a t  the  same t ime 

or  –  I  mean,  how –  what  happens do you see here  in  

re la t ion  to  those 14 f i rs t  leve l  laundr ies?  
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MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  le t  me jus t  co r rec t  my 

ev idence leader,  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  15  f i rs t  leve l  laundry,  no t  14 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  he  has up  to  14 .   Yes.   And th is  

f i l e  can go away fo r  now,  Mr  Chaska lson?  

MR HOLDEN :   Ac tua l l y  what  happened …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  th is  f i l e  can go away fo r  

now? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    F i le  13  can go away fo r  a  wh i le ,  

yes ,  Cha i r,  i t  w i l l  be  9  and 20 tha t  we w i l l  spend most  o f  10 

our  t ime in .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r i gh t .   Mr  Ho lden,  I  th ink  I  

in te r rup ted  you,  do  you want  to  jus t  repeat  what  you sa id?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly  Cha i r,  apo log ies ,  there  i s  a  b i t  o f  a  

lag  so  I  was ta lk ing  over  you by  m is take.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR HOLDEN :   So  I  do  apo log ise  fo r  tha t .   What  i t  –  

re tu rn ing  to  my  ev idence to  th is  quest ion ,  the re  were  

mul t ip le  d i f fe ren t  laundry  methods tha t  were  used over  

t ime.   These were  used sequent ia l l y  and chrono log ica l l y,  20 

they were  no t  opera t ing  s imu l taneous ly.   Genera l l y  

speak ing  what  we w i l l  see  is  the  Gupta  en terpr ise  makes 

use o f  one par t i cu la r  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  veh ic le  fo r  mu l t ip le  

d i f fe ren t  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  veh ic les  a t  a  t ime and then a t  a  

cer ta in  po in t  they are  en t i re ly  d iscarded and a  new se t  o f  
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f i rs t  leve l  laundry  and ent i t ies  a re  there  in t roduced and  

used.    

When those new f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies  are  

in t roduced and used they tend to  then a lso  make  use o f  

new extended loca l  laundry  ne tworks  and a l so  new onshore  

and o f fsho re  br idges to  move the  funds abroad.   I t  seems 

in  cer ta in  ins tances,  ce r ta in ly  in  Homix ,  fo r  example ,  tha t  

Homix  was te rm inated as  a  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  veh ic le  when  

i t  a t tempted to  move funds abroad d i rec t l y  ra the r  than to  

i t s  loca l  laundry  ne twork  in to  a  company by  the  name o f  10 

Morn ing  S ta r  In te rnat iona l ,  another  Hong Kong laundry  

veh ic le  wh ich  then led  to  the  a t ten t ions o f  the  Reserve  

Bank and a t  tha t  po in t  Homix  was dropped and rep laced by  

another  se t  o f  laundry  veh ic les .   So e f fec t i ve ly  what  we 

have i s  four  se t s  o f  rough ly  chrono log ica l  laundry  en t i t ies .   

F i r s t  they were  laundry  en t i t ies  and co r respond ing  

laundromats  tha t  opera te  ove r  th is  po in t  o f  t ime.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r ,  I  have jus t  been not i f ied  

tha t  there  may have been a  schedu l ing  c lash  and tha t  there  

is  a  separa te  i ssue re la t ing  to  Mr  Agr izz i  and Mr  or  Ms J iba  20 

tha t  was go ing  to  be  addressed a t  ten  o ’c lock .   A re  you 

aware  o f  tha t ,  Cha i r?   And how shou ld  we dea l  w i th  i t? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.   Yes,  no ,  I  remember.   Can  I  dea l  

w i th  tha t  maybe between –  a t  e leven,  wou ld  tha t  be  f ine?  I  

th ink  counse l  fo r  Ms J iba  is  here .  Yes,  I  comple te l y  fo rgo t  
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about  tha t .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Thank  you,  Cha i r.   Sor ry  i f  I  

add ress you seated.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t ,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Ja .   I  wanted to  make a  d i f fe ren t  

p ropos i t ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Which  may save a  b i t  o f  t ime 

because I  am aware  tha t  my bro ther  i s  ha rd-pressed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  10 

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  f i rs t l y  i t  may have  

been a  m is take because f i rs t l y,  the  mat te r  was enro l led  fo r  

the  15  June 2021 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    And I  was jud i c ia l l y  engaged a t  

the  t ime and I  requested to  be  accommodated.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    And the  mat te r  was then ro l led  

over  to  today a t  ten  o ’c lock .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  20 

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Bu t ,  Cha i r,  my unders tand ing  and 

reco l lec t ion  -  and i t  may we l l  be  tha t  the  Cha i r ’s  

reco l lec t ion  is  congruent  w i th  m ine .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Th is  who le  purpose might  even be  
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academic .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  I  th ink  you are  r igh t  because I  

th ink  I  saw your  le t te r.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    When you appeared somet ime back the  

issue tha t  I  had ra ised was tha t  Mr  Agr izz i  d id  no t  have  

persona l  knowledge o f  any money  be ing  g iven to  Ms J iba  

and I  wondered  whether  i t  wou ld  serve  any purpose to  

c ross-examine h im and I  th ink  in  your  le t te r  you a l luded to 

the  fac t  tha t  we then ad journed the  mat te r  a t  tha t  s tage on 10 

the  bas i s  tha t  we wou ld  see whethe r  there  was any 

subsequent  –  there  wou ld  be  any subsequent  w i tnesses 

who have persona l  knowledge who wou ld  g ive  ev idence  

and then we w i l l  take  i t  f rom there .   That  i s  my reco l lec t ion  

wh ich  I  th ink  i s  in  l ine  w i th  yours .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    That  i s  spot  on ,  Cha i r,  you took i t  

a  s tep  fu r the r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    And asked i f  there  was ob jec t ion  

f rom Mr  Agr izz i ’s  rep resenta t i ves .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    On the  pos i t ion  tha t  you and I  had 

debated and agreed upon.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    And there  was none.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    So  un less  there  m ight  have been 

subsequent  cor robora t ion  bu t  I  checked the re  was none.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    And I  thought  i t  wou ld  be  r i sky  or  

be  seen as  contemptuous i f  I  do  no t  come and c la r i f y  tha t  

pos i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  no ,  no ,  i t… 

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    That  be ing  the  case then ,  Cha i r,  

and I  checked w i th  Ms J iba .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Our  pos i t ion  s t i l l  s tands.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    We do not  w ish  to  take  the  mat te r  

any fu r ther  than tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Because tha t  i s  the 

unders tand ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    And I  thought  there  is  no  po in t  in  20 

wa i t ing  fo r  e leven o ’c lock  and the  Cha i r  and I  a re  in  

agreement  then maybe Mr  Chaska lson can have the  res t  o f  

the  day to  dea l  w i th  more  p ress ing  mat te rs ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  I  was aware  o f  what  

had t ransp i red  l as t  t ime –  I  mean,  when you appeared but  
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to  be  on  the  sa fe  s ide  I  p re fe r red  tha t  i t  be  se t  down and 

you come,  every th ing  i s  on  record  as  to  where  we s tand  

and then we take  i t  f rom there  because what  then remains  

is  I  th ink  one o f  two or  th ree  th ings,  in  the  l igh t  o f  the  

remarks  tha t  I  had made and our  unders tand ing ,  i t  seems 

to  me tha t  you wou ld  no t  be  pursu ing  the  app l i ca t ion  or  you 

wou ld  w i thdraw i t  o r  i f  you  say fo r  fo rmal i t y  I  must  d ismiss  

i t  then we can see but  I  jus t  wanted to  make su re  tha t  

there  i s  some record  o f  what  happened to  i t .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Okay.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    What  wou ld  you pre fe r  to  be  reco rded?  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Cha i r,  I  wou ld  no t  be  inc l ined to  

ask  you to  d ismiss  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Nor  wou ld  I  want  to  have i t  

w i thdrawn because there  was a  subsequent  caveat .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Cha i r  had a lso  d i rec ted  tha t  in  the  

l igh t  o f  what  was ra ised in  the  second supp lementary  

a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Agr izz i ,  you had d i rec ted  tha t  the  20 

invest iga to rs  mus t  do  a  b i t  o f  d igg ing  on  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    And to  the  ex ten t  tha t  tha t  may or  

may not  have been comple ted ,  I  w i l l  s t i l l  want  to  reserve  

my c l ien t ’s  r igh ts .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Bu t  fo r  now the  record  can re f lec t  

tha t  our  pos i t ion  has no t  changed f rom your  las t  pr ima  

fac ie  v iew.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    And in  the  event  tha t  in  the  t ime 

le f t  someth ing  comes out  o f  what  the  Cha i r  d i rec ted  then  

we w i l l  come back and ob l ige  accord ing ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Bu t  i t  wou ld  no t  be  fa i r  to  then 10 

come back and waste  t ime on a  mat te r  tha t  i s  p roceed ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  yes .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    So  I  needed to  conf i rm tha t  Ms 

J iba ’s  p reparedness to  coopera te  remains  unchanged.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    And so  is  my commi tment  to  be  o f  

ass is tance to  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Wel l ,  as  th ings p resent ly  s tand,  I  

mean,  the  mat te r  re la ted  to  BOSASA,  as  th ings present ly  

s tand,  there  is  –  except  maybe one or  two mat te rs  wh ich  as  20 

fa r  as  I  know are  unconnected w i th  them,  the  i nves t iga tors  

a re  no t  do ing  any fu r ther  invest iga t ion .   So I  do  no t  th ink  

tha t  anyth ing  is  go ing  to  come up wh ich  has no t  come up in  

the  past  th ree  and a  ha l f  years .   So i f  you  want  to  – i f  you  

want  me to  s imp ly  ad journ  pend ing  you mak ing  a  dec is ion  
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as  to  whether  what  we shou ld  reco rd  I  can ad journ  and say  

you w i l l  wr i te  to  t he  secre ta ry  and  ind ica te  what  your  f ina l  

pos i t ion  is  because we cannot  leave i t  hang ing ,  you know,  

i t  i s  e i ther  w i thdraw or  d ismissed  or  i f  you  say i t  i s  no t  

be ing  pursued,  a t  leas t  tha t  i s  wha t  we record .   Wha t  wou ld  

you pre fer?   Sha l l  we g ive  you some t ime to…? 

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    No,  no ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    I  had consu l ted  c l ien t  and we  

have cons idered th is  qu i te  care fu l l y.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    I  can  conf i rm my ins t ruc t ion  on  

record  to  be  as  fo l lows.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    One,  apropos her  p reparedness to  

tes t i f y  in  person,  she is  no t  pursu ing  tha t  because tha t  was 

l inked to  the  ex ten t  tha t  she may have to  re fu te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Second ly,  the  app l i ca t ion  to  c ross-

examinat ion  Mr  Agr izz i  under  these c i rcumstances  is  now 20 

no longer  pers is ted  w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    And tha t  i s  what  the  record  can 

then re f lec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Can record ,  i t  can  re f lec t ,  ja .  
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UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    There  is  c losure  on  the  issue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  then tha t  i s  

no ted ,  namely  Ms J iba  i s  no t  pers is t ing  i n  the  app l i ca t ion  

and her  reques t  to  g ive  ev idence in  regard  to  the 

a l legat ions by  Mr  Agr izz i  fa l l s  away in  the  l igh t  o f  the  fac t  

tha t  Mr  Agr izz i  does not  have  persona l  knowledge o f  

hav ing  rece ived any mon ies .  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Cor rec t l y  captu red,  Cha i r,  and we  

are  happy w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  Okay,  a l r igh t ,  thank you.  10 

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Migh t  I  then be excused,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  you a re  excused.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    And,  Cha i r,  in  the  event  I  do  no t  

come back I  w ish  you fo r t i tude  as  you conc lude the  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you very  much.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL :    Mr  Chaska lson,  thank you fo r  

a l low ing me to  cu t  in .   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you,  thank you.   Sor ry  about  tha t  

Mr  Chaska lson,  I  had fo rgo t ten  and  thank you fo r  remind ing  20 

me.   I t  looks  l i ke  I  am beg inn ing  to  fo rge t  too  many th ings.   

Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    There  is  qu i te  a lo t  on  your  

p la te ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden,  to  go  now a  l i t t le  

fu r ther  in to  these  laundry  ne tworks ,  I  ment ioned ear l ie r  the  

passages in  your  repor t  where  you ident i f ied  four  separa te  

ne tworks .   Can you very  br ie f l y  te l l  the  Cha i r  about  the  

f i rs t  ne twork  tha t  you descr ibe  as  the  Ch iv i ta  ne twork?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  the  Ch iv i ta  ne twork  I  re fe r  

to  as  the  f i rs t  leve l .   I t  rece ives  a  very  la rge  amount  o f  

funds f rom mul t ip le  o the r  sources pr io r  to  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se  ge t t ing  invo l ved wh ich  leads me to  be l i eve  tha t  

Ch iv i ta  i s  a  p re -ex is t ing  and  independent  c r im ina l  10 

en terpr i se .  

 However,  the  t ime per iod  in  wh ich  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se  s ta r ts  mov ing  s ta te  capture- re la ted  funds in to  

Ch iv i ta  i s  in  January  2013.   The f i rs t  inward  f low o f  funds 

tha t  we see in  re la t ion  to  s ta te  capture  i s  a  depos i t  made 

by  Combined Pr iva te  Invest iga t ions  on  the  20  January  2013  

fo r  500 000 and the  las t  inward  payment  i s  on  the  27  May 

2014 by  Reg iments .   So the  Ch iv i ta  ne twork  e f fec t i ve ly  

opera tes  fo r  approx imate ly  a  year  and a  ha l f .  

 I  have been ab le  to  ca lcu la te  tha t  Ch iv i ta  i s  pa id  a  20 

to ta l  amount  o f  144,093,427,  tha t ’s  R144 093 427 in  

re la t ion  to  s ta te  capture  l inked  cont rac ts .   The tab le  

re ference the re ,  i f  I  may,  Cha i r,  i s  tab le  114 in f low o f  

funds,  bund le  9 ,  page 198.   I t  a lso  rece ives a  fu r ther  R9.1  

m i l l ion  f rom Homix  wh ich  I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  shor t l y.  
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 Genera l l y  speak ing ,  however,  the  bu lk  o f  the  Ch iv i ta  

s ta te  captu re  funds in f lows are  f rom Reg iments and i t  i s  –  

tha t  i s  a lso  what  makes up the  bu lk  o f  the  funds rece ived.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Ho lden,  what  page d id  

you say tha t  was in  bund le  9 ,  the  tab le?  

MR HOLDEN :   Apo log ies ,  Cha i r ,  i t  i s  tab le  1 .4 ,  i t  i s  page  

198 o f  bund le  9 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  thank you,  you may p roceed .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You were  say ing ,  Mr  Ho lden,  

tha t  the  bu lk  o f  the  Ch iv i ta  in f lows re la ted  to  s ta te  capture  10 

come f rom Reg iments .   You ident i f y  in  your  repor t  a  fea ture  

o f  the  ear l y  Ch iv i ta  invo ices tha t  l inks  these Reg iments  

in f lows to  the  Guptas .   Can you te l l  the  Cha i r  about  th is?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in l y ,  Cha i r ,  qu i te  a  la rge  number  o f  

o r ig ina l  invo ices tha t  a re  submi t ted  by  Ch iv i ta  to  

Reg iments  were  d iscovered on the  Reg iments ’  servers  and 

they are  re fe r red  to ,  you w i l l  reca l l ,  Gateway pro  fo rma.   

Gateway is  a  re fe rence to  a  Gateway L im i ted ,  wh ich  I  dea l t  

w i th  very  ex tens i ve l y  in  my ev idence regard ing  the  Est ina  

f low o f  funds.   Gateway L im i ted  is  an  o f fshore  company 20 

reg i s te red in  Duba i  under  the  adm in is t ra t i ve  cont ro l  o f  Mr  

San jay  Grovo  but  under  the  e f fec t i ve  cont ro l  o f  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se  wh ich  was used to  rece ive  a  very  la rge  number 

o f  payments  in  re la t ion  to  s ta te  capture  cont rac t s  and then  

d iss ipa ted  th rough tha t  o f fshore  ne twork  and somet imes 
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re tu rned back to  South  A f r i ca .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then ask  you to  go  to  

bund le  13 ,  annexure  46?  Bund le  13 ,  page 383.   And can  

you descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  you see there?  

MR HOLDEN :   Le t  me jus t  ge t  to  tha t  qu ick ly .    

CHAIRPERSON :    The page is  383? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r ,  i t  i s  383,  tha t  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR HOLDEN :   Can I  ask  fo r  the  annexure  number  aga in  

p lease?  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  annexure  46 .  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  what  we have here  a t  

annexure  46  is  a  coopera t ion  agreement ,  so-ca l led ,  

en tered in to  be tween Reg iments  Cap i ta l  and Gateway  

L im i ted .  

MR HOLDEN :   And then i f  you go  to  annexure  47 ,  wh ich  is  

in  the  same bund le ,  bund le  13 ,  a t  page 396,  s t ra igh t  a f te r  

the  agreement  be tween Gateway and Reg iments .   Can you  

take  the  Cha i r  f i rs t  th rough the  i nvo ices tha t  we see a t  

annexure  47  to  50  w i th  the  cover ing  emai ls ,  tha t  w i l l  be 20 

pages 396 to  407.   Le t  us  go  f i rs t  th rough a l l  o f  those 

invo ices and then le t  us  go  back  in to  your  s ta tement  to  

exp la in  the  s ign i f i cance o f  them.  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly.   Annexure  47 ,  we have an emai l  

f rom Inderen(? )  P i l lay  to  N iven P i l lay  on  the  15  May 2013  
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w i th  the  sub jec t  Gateway Pro  Forma 13 May 2013  and an 

a t tachment  ca l led  Gateway Pro  Forma 13 May 2013.docex 

wh ich  is  a  Word  document .   On the  fo l low ing page 

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  Mr  Ho lden,  can you jus t  

te l l  the  Cha i r  who  N iven P i l lay  i s?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cha i r,  I  w i l l  have to  remind myse l f ,  there  a re  

so  many names tha t  a re  coming up in  my ev idence tha t  I  do 

no t  want  to  ge t  th is  wrong.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Leave i t  fo r  now,  I  w i l l  take  you  10 

to  the  par t  o f  your  repor t  where  you dea l  w i th  i t  in  due  

course  but  jus t  remember  the  names Inderen and N iven 

P i l lay.   Le t  us  go  th rough the  invo ices wh i le  we are  there  in  

one p lace and then we can see the i r  s ign i f i cance when we  

go to  the  repor t .  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly.   So wha t  we have in  th is  invo i ce  

is  a  p ro  fo rma invo ice ,  does not  ac tua l l y  have a  company  

name on top  o f  tha t ,  i t  jus t  has  a  p lace ho lder  wh ich  I  

assume was supposed to  be  f i l l ed  in ,  in  o rder  to  p rocess 

the  invo ice .   The invo ice  was to  be  sent  to  Reg iments  20 

Cap i ta l  and then  an invo i ce  is  two amounts  in  re la t ion  to  

Transnet  RMO and the  to ta l  i s  fo r,  inc lud ing  VAT,  

4 ,321,776.48.   That  i s  R4 321 776.48.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  you can qu ick ly  run  

th rough annexures –  the  invo ices tha t  fo l low a l l  the  way to  
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annexure  50?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly,  we have  a t  annexure  48  an emai l  

sent  f rom the  same person,  same rec ip ien t ,  tha t  i s  f rom 

Inderen P i l lay  to  N iven P i l lay  a t tach ing  a  f i le  ca l led  

Gateway Pro  Forma 12 June 2013 wh ich  is  a lso  the  da te  

the  emai l  i s  sen t .   The a t tached  invo ice  aga in  ind ica tes  

tha t  the  invo ice  is  to  be  d i rec ted  to  Reg iments Cap i ta l ,  the 

company name,  the  company s logan an a l l  sor ts  o f  o ther  

[ ind is t inc t ]  in fo rmat ion  was due to  be  added  and tha t  i s  an  

invo i ce  i n  re la t ion  to  Transnet  RMO.   The to ta l  f igure  i s  10 

966,801.62.   That  i s  R966 801.62.  

 Annexure  49  is  an  emai l  fo rm Inderen P i l lay  to  one  

[ ind is t inc t ]  Vu la  and i t  i s  a lso  –  i t  is  sent  on  the  22  October  

2013,  ac tua l l y  a  Gateway Pro  Forma invo ice  da tes  the  22 

October  2013.   The invo ice  tha t  then appears  on  the 

fo l low ing page i s  an  invo ice  f rom Reg iments  Cap i ta l  to  

Transnet  wh ich  i s  invo i c ing  fo r  a  to ta l  amount  o f  2 ,852,964.   

That  i s  R2 852 964,  wh ich  was  due  to  be  pa id  in to  

Reg iments  Cap i ta l  S tandard  Bank account  and on the  

fo l low ing page you have anothe r  p ro  fo rma invo ice  awai t ing  20 

[ ind is t inc t ]  in fo rmat ion  wh ich  was to  be  sent  to  Reg iments  

Cap i ta l ,  a lso  in  re la t ion  to  the  Transnet  RMO and i t  i s  

va lued a t  1 ,026,456.   That  i s  R1 026 456.    

And then tu rn ing  to  the  las t  invo ice ,  wh ich  i s  

annexure  50 ,  we  have –  apo log ies ,  an  emai l  f rom Inderen  
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P i l lay  to  Er ic  Wood o f  Reg iments  and Tr i l l i an  wh ich  says –  

the  sub jec t  l ine  i s  Pens ion  Fund Rev iew Gateway Pro  

Forma,  i t  a t taches a  document  ca l led  Gateway Pro  Forma 

Pens ion  Fund Rev iew,  November  2013,  PDF.    

And on the  fo l low ing pages aga in  another  p ro  fo rma 

invo ice  awai t ing  in  fac t  26 .57  in fo rmat ion .   That  i s  da ted  

the  31  August  2013 to  be  submi t ted  to  Reg iments Cap i ta l .   

I t  p rov ides fo r  an  amount  o f  R2 mi l l ion  exc lud ing  VAT to  be  

pa id  in  re la t ion  to  the  Transnet  pens ion  fund rev iew and  

the  to ta l  amount  w i th  VAT fo r  tha t  invo ice  is  2 ,280,000,  10 

tha t  i s  R2 280 000.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then ask  you to  go  to  your  

repor t  in  vo lume 9  a t  page 166 where  you dea l  w i t h  these 

invo ices in  Ch iv i ta?    

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Page 166 o f  bund le  9 .  

MR HOLDEN :   I  am there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  one second?  Yes,  you may  

cont inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  ask  you to  see –  to  te l l  the 20 

Cha i r  the  l ink  tha t  you p icked up between th is  Gateway pro  

fo rma invo ice  tha t  you d i scussed a t  annexure  47  and 

Ch iv i ta?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly.   The connect ion  wou ld  i den t i f y  the 

–  has an  invo i ce  to  be  addressed to  Reg iments  fo r  the 
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amount  o f  4 ,321,776.48 inc lud ing  VAT and tha t  i s  the  exact  

amount  tha t  Reg iments  u l t imate ly  pays to  Ch iv i ta  on  the  23 

May 2013.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  the  pro  fo rm Gateway  invo ice  

is  pa id  to  Ch iv i ta  on  the  23  May 2013? 

MR HOLDEN :   That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  ask  you to  go  up  to  page  

164 where  you have a  tab le  79  wh ich  re f lec ts  a l l  o f  the  

payments  by  Reg iments  to  Ch iv i ta  and can you ident i f y  tha t  

payment  o f  R4 321 776.48 on the  23  May 2013?  10 

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  look ing  a t  tab le  79  i t  i s  

ac tua l l y  the  f i rs t  en t ry,  so  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  payment  tha t  i s  

made f rom Reg iments  Cap i ta l  to  Ch iv i ta  Trad ing  on  the  23 

May 2013.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  you s tay  on  tha t  tab le  can 

you ident i f y  the  payment  o f  R966 801.62 wh ich  was on the  

Gateway pro forma invo ice  12  June 2013?  R966 801.62.   

R966 801. . .  [ in te rvenes]  

MR HOLDEN :    So  tha t  w i l l  be  the  th i rd  en t ry  on  the  

tab le  tha t  the  [ ind is t inc t ]  i s  re fe r r ing  to  i s  an  amount  o f  20 

966,802.08 wh ich  is  obv ious ly  a lmost  exact ly  the  same 

amount  as  on  the  invo ice .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And Annexure  49  there  was a  

Gateway pro forma invo ice  fo r  1  026456.   The f i le  was  

ca l led  Gateway pro fo rma 22 Oct  2013.   Can you f ind  a  
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payment  cor respond ing  to  tha t  to  Ch iv i ta ,  1  026456?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   I t  i s  the  s ix th  row on the 

tab le ,  popu la ted  tab le ,  and i t  shows a  payment  o f  

1 ,026,456.00 and tha t  takes p lace on 18 t h  o f  November  

2013.   Cha i r,  fo r  your  re fe rence tha t  par t  o f  the  tab le  tha t  I  

am ident i f y ing  is  a t  F low o f  Funds  Bund le  9 ,  page 165,  the  

very  top  l ine  o f  tha t  tab le .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then. . .  [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  Bund le  9 ,  page 165.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    165,  Cha i r.  10 

MR HOLDEN :    165.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  tha t  i s  where  I  am.   Okay.   A l r igh t ,  

thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And you  sa id  i t  was the  very  f i rs t  

en t ry  on  tha t  page.  

MR HOLDEN :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then las t l y  the  four th 

Gateway pro forma invo ice  tha t  we saw was Gateway 

pro fo rma pens ion  fund rev iew Nov  2013.   That  was  fo r  an  

amount  o f  2  280000 inc lud ing  VAT.   Can you f ind  the  20 

cor respond ing  payment  to  Ch iv i ta?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   That  i s  the  seventh  row 

[ ind is t inc t ]  row and tha t  appears  d i rec t l y  underneath  the  

t ransact ion  I ’ ve  jus t  dea l t  w i th  and we had a  payment  o f  

2 ,280,000.   Tha t  i s  R2.28 mi l l ion  and tha t  i s  pa id  to  
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Ch iv i ta ’s  ABSA Bank account  on  the  26 t h  o f  November  

2013.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And tha t  wou ld  be  the  second  

row o f  the  tab le  on  page 165.  

MR HOLDEN :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  we can move now f rom the  

Ch iv i ta  ne twork  to  the  next  ne twork  tha t  you descr ibe  

wh ich  i s  the  Homix  ne twork .   Can you te l l  the  Cha i r  very  

br ie f l y  the  pe r iod  in  wh ich  the  Homix  ne twork  ran  and the  

amounts  o f  money tha t  went  th rough the  Homix  ne twork?  10 

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   The f i rs t  payment  f rom 

Sta te  Capture  tha t  we have ident i f ied  i s  a  payment  made  

by  Neote l  on  the  3 r d  o f  Apr i l  2014.   I t  i s  an  amount  o f  

34 ,533,519.88 and the  las t  payment  we have ident i f ied  in  

re la t ion  to  S ta te  Capture  i s  made on the  29 t h  o f  May 2015  

by  Reg iments  fo r  an  amount  o f  1 ,973,916.78.   So the  

laundry,  the  Homix  laundry  opera tes  fo r  j us t  ove r  a  year  

be fore  i t  i s  d isca rded.  

In  tha t  per iod  Homix  i s  pa id  an  amount  o f  

395,418,856.44.   That  i s  R395,418,856.44 o f  wh ich  an  20 

amount  o f  324,952,517.46 has been t raced by  myse l f  in to  

the  Hong Kong  Ch ina  laundromat .   Cha i r,  fo r  your  

re fe rence the  tab le  tha t  se ts  ou t  the  payments  tha t  a re  

made in  aggregate  to  Homix  i s  tab le  114 wh ich  appears  a t  

page 198 o f  Bund le  9 .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And tha t  R395,418,856 tha t  is  

pa id  in to  Homix ,  i s  tha t  money tha t  comes f rom anywhere  

in to  Homix  or  i s  tha t  money tha t  i s  l inked spec i f i ca l l y  to  

S ta te  Captu re  cont rac ts?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cha i r,  tha t  spec i f i ca l l y  re la tes  to  S ta te 

Capture  cont rac ts .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  as  you re fer,  Mr  Chaska lson and 

Mr  Ho lden,  re fe rs  to  var ious annexures,  p lease  ment ion  

bo th  the  annexure  and the  page .   That  i s  go ing  to  be 

conven ien t  to  me.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thanks,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  i f  you  ment ion  the  page tha t  i s  more  

conven ien t  to  me  than the  annexure ,  bu t  i t  m igh t  be  tha t  

ment ion ing  bo th  m ight  be  someth ing  you wou ld  l i ke ,  bu t  

page number  i s  eas ie r  fo r  me.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cer ta in ly.   The las t  tab le  tha t  

Mr  Ho lden re fer red  to  i s  Bund le  9 ,  page 198 and i t  i s  

tab le  114.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  have got .   I  have got .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then br ie f l y  to  move to  t he  th i rd  20 

laundry  ne twork  tha t  you ca l l  the  Forsure  Host i le (? )  

laundry  ne twork ,  can you te l l  the  Cha i r  the  per iod  i n  wh ich  

i t  ran?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   In  re la t ion  to  Forsure ,  the  

f i rs t  payment  i s  on  the  29 t h  o f  May  2015 and the  las t  i s  the 
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3 r d  o f  Ju ly  2015.   So Forsure  i s  used fo r  approx imate ly  a  

month  be fo re  i t  i s  d iscarded.   And  in  re la t ion  to  [ ind is t inc t ]  

i t s  f i rs t  s ing le  payment  re la tes  to  S ta te  Captu re  i s  the  2n d  

o f  June 2015 and the  las t  payment  i s  on  the  3 r d  o f  Ju l y  

2015,  so  aga in  i t  i s  used fo r  a  day over  one month  be fore  i t  

i s  d iscarded.    

In  to ta l  Forsu re  was pa id  an  amount  o f  

16 ,890,928.70.   That  i s  R16,890,928.70 by  Reg iments  and  

a  fu r the r  14 ,820 ,000,  tha t  i s  R14.82 mi l l ion  is  pa id  by  

A lba t ime to  Forsure  and Host i le (?)  i s  pa id  an  amount  o f  10 

12 ,360,369.62 by  Reg iments .   Tha t  i s  R12,360,369.62 and 

a  fu r ther  R17.76 mi l l ion  by  A lba t ime.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now as you po in t  ou t  th is  

ne twork  ran  fo r  jus t  over  a  month  f rom the  end o f  May 2015 

to  the  beg inn ing  o f  Ju ly  2015.   What  was s ign i f i can t  about  

the  end o f  May 2015 wh ich  may exp la in  why there  was a  

sh i f t  to  th is  ne twork?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   The issue arose in  re la t ion  

to  Homix .   Dur ing  the  f i rs t  years  o f  Homix  opera t ion  i t  

moved funds ab road in to  what  we ca l l  the  Hong Kong Ch ina  20 

laundry  ne twork  th rough a  much more  soph is t i ca ted  loca l  

laundry.   A t  some po in t  a t  a  much la te r  s tage in  Homix ’s  

l i fe  i t  was then dec ided to  move  the  funds d i rec t l y  f rom 

Homix  to  a  Hong Kong company wh ich  is  Morn ingstar  

In te rnat iona l .  
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As  soon as  tha t  happened tha t  then ra ised the  

susp ic ions o f  the  bank tha t  he ld  tha t  account ,  wh ich  is  

Mercant i le  Bank,  who then a le r ted  the  Reserve  Bank and  

they very  swi f t l y  moved to  take  ac t ion  to  f reeze those  

funds and f reeze  those payments .   E f fec t i ve ly  what  tha t  

meant  was tha t  Homix  had been d iscovered as  i t  were  and 

ident i f ied  as  a  susp ic ious veh ic le  wh ich  then necess i ta ted 

a  ve ry  rap id  move to  a  d i f fe ren t  se t  o f  laundry  veh ic les  tha t  

cou ld  then process S ta te  Capture  payments .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A f te r  th is  month  o f  the  Forsure  10 

Host i le (? )  ne twork  we move in to  what  you descr ibe  as  the  

sp ider  web and you descr ibe  the  sp ide r  web as  one  laundry  

ne twork ,  bu t  i t  has  a  lo t  o f  d i f fe ren t  component  par ts  and 

d i f fe ren t  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies  tha t  opera te  over  

d i f fe ren t  t imes.  

Maybe i f  I  can  ask  you to  take  the  Cha i r  to  

parag raph 72 o f  your  execut ive  summary tha t  i s  Bund le  20  

a t  page 52 where  you descr ibe  a lmost  the  pe r iod i sa t ion  o f  

th is  sp ider  web laundry  w i th  re ference to  the  in i t ia l  laundry  

veh ic les .   So can I  ask  you to  go  to  Bund le  20 ,  page 52,  20 

parag raph 72 o f  your  execut ive  summary?  

MR HOLDEN :    I  am there .   Shou ld  I  share  my sc reen so  

the  pub l i c  can see th is  tab le  as  we l l?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  wou ld  be  usefu l .  

MR HOLDEN :    I  shared the  sc reen.   I  t rus t  tha t  i t  i s  now 
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showing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  showing.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you take  the  Cha i r  th rough  

th is  tab le?  

MR HOLDEN :   Yes,  cer ta in ly.   Wha t  I  re fe r  to  as  the  sp ide r  

web network  rece ived funds re la ted  to  S ta te  Capture  o f  a  

to ta l  amount  o f  314,949,662.06,  the  to ta l  amount  a t  the  

very  end o f  the  tab le .   In  tha t  p rocess the re  were  10  

d i f fe ren t  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies  tha t  were  used and 

wh ich  rece ived qu i te  substant ia l l y  d i f fe ren t  amounts .  10 

The most  no tab le  and the  la rgest  rec ip ien t  was  

For t ime Consu l tan ts  and i t  opera ted  between Ju ly  2015 and  

August  2016,  so  jus t  over  a  year  and i t  rece i ved  a  to ta l  

amount  o f  105,543,369.69 f rom Sta te  Capture  re la ted  

payments .   Med jou l  ran  f rom August  2015 to  August  2016 

and i t  was pa id  an  amount  o f  95 ,148,371.74 in  re la t ion  to  

S ta te  Capture  payments .   Both  the  pro jec ts  ran  f rom 

January  2016 to  September  2016 ,  so  n ine  months  and i t  

was pa id  an  amount  o f  49 ,230,737.23 ar i s ing  f rom Sta te 

Capture  cont rac ts .  20 

Maher  S t ra tegy ran  f rom November  2015 to  January  

2017 and i t  was pa id  an  amount  o f  28 ,928,450.00.   

Pact rade wh ich  ran  jus t  in  October  2016 was pa id  an  

amount  o f  4 ,291,766.   Matson Cap i ta l  a lso  on ly  opera ted  in  

October  2016 and i t  was pa id  an  amount  o f  1 ,970,000.   
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Jacsha was pa id  an  amount  –  ran  f rom –  a lso  on ly  ran  in  

October  2016 and i t  was pa id  an  amount  o f  2 ,150,000.   

That  i s  R2.15 mi l l ion  ar i s ing  f rom S ta te  Captu re  cont rac t s .    

Shacob Commerce was pa id  be tween October  2016 

and Ju ly  2017  in  an  amount  o f  24 ,589,767.40 and 

Matusa(?)  was pa id  an  amount  –  sor ry,  opera ted  in  Apr i l  

2017 on ly  and was pa id  an  amount  o f  3 ,097,200.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thanks ,  Mr  Ho lden.   Now a t  the  

s ta r t  o f  your  ev idence I  gave the  Cha i r  re fe rences to  where  

you dea l  w i th  the  in t r i ca te  de ta i l s  o f  each one o f  these four  10 

laundry  ne tworks  tha t  you cover  in  your  repor t .  

I  do  no t  p ropose to  go  th rough  a l l  four  o f  the  

laundry  ne tworks ,  bu t  poss ib ly  as  an  i l l us t ra t i ve  dev ice  can 

I  ask  you to  take  the  Cha i r  th rough  Annexure  57  wh ich  is  a  

d iag ram tha t  desc r ibes fea tures  o f  the  Homix  laundry  

ne twork .   That  i s  in  Bund le  13 ,  page 449.   And I  see you  

have i t  up  there .   Cha i r,  can I  ask  whethe r  the  copy  in  your  

f i le  a t  Bund le  13  is  a  doub le  page and i s  b ig  enough  fo r  

you to  fo l low?  I f  i t  i s  no t  we may have some d i f f i cu l t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  the  page  number?  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  page 449 o f  Bund le  13 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  have got  a  d iagram tha t  can p roper ly  

be  descr ibed as  a  sp ide r  web i t se l f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  the  s imp le  laundry  

ne twork .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  have go t  the  d iagram here .   You 

wanted to  know someth ing  about  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Jus t  whether  i t  i s  in  a  fo rm tha t  

i s  v is ib le  –  tha t  i s  leg ib le  to  you so  tha t  we can ask  

Mr  Ho lden to  exp la in  i t  to  us .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  the  words  cou ld  have been b igger  

bu t  I  th ink  I  can manage.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden,  can you then take  

the  Cha i r  t h rough Annexure  57 ,  t h is  d iagram tha t  you had  

prepared o f  the  Homix  ne twork?  10 

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   So a t  the  very  top  we  

have a  number  o f  en t i t ies  tha t  a re  ind ica ted  in  g reen and 

green,  I  have ident i f ied  them as g reen because tha t  i s  the 

s ta r t  o r  the  go  o f  the  laundry  ne twork ,  sor t  o f  as  I  d id  in  

re la t ion  to  Est ina .   S ix  en t r ies  we have,  I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  one  

by  one.  

The f i rs t  en t ry  i s  Transnet  inc lud ing  cont rac ts  

invo l v ing  McK insey and what  i s  be ing  re fer red  to  as  the 

Maputo  Cor r idor  Pro jec t  wh ich  pays a  ve ry  la rge  number  o f  

funds in to  Reg iments  over  a  pe r iod  o f  t ime between Apr i l  20 

2014 and May 2015.   The second ent ry  i s  SA Express 

wh ich  a lso  does the  same and t ransfers  funds to  

Reg iments .  

There  are  such a  huge number  o f  payments  tha t  I  

do  no t  ident i f y  every  one,  bu t  t he  substance,  the  most  
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impor tan t  e lemen t  o f  tha t  i s  tha t  f rom Reg iments  be tween  

Apr i l  2014 and May 2015 an amount  o f  175,516,583.48 is  

pa id  f rom those sources to  Homix  i n  tha t  per iod  o f  t ime.    

The th i rd  en t ry  i s  Innovo Asset  Management  and we 

can see a  l ine  ex tend ing  down and the  amounts  tha t  Innovo 

Asset  Management  pa id  to  Homix  in  th is  per iod  was 

6 ,384,000.   That  i s  R6.384 mi l l ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can I  jus t  s top  you there ,  

Mr  Ho lden.   Can you jus t  remind the  Cha i r  where  tha t  6 .38  

-  6 ,384,000 came f rom before  i t  reached Innovo  Asset  10 

Management?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   I  do  no t  want  to  make a  

m is take here ,  bu t  as  fa r  as  I  reca l l  i t  came f rom the  S ta te  

Capture  cont rac t  invo l v ing  Tsebo.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  you  may –  we l l ,  wh ich  

organ o f  S ta te  are  we ta lk ing  abou t?  

MR HOLDEN :    Oh,  tha t  was the  Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re  

and Rura l  Deve lopment  in  the  Free  S ta te .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you.  

MR HOLDEN :    [ Ind is t inc t ] .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  you are  cor rec t  on  tha t .   I  

cannot  reca l l  whether  tha t  i s  a  payment  tha t  goes  th rough  

Tsebo o r  tha t  goes d i rec t l y  to  Innovo,  bu t  we w i l l  c la r i f y  

tha t  in  your  repor t .   Can you move then to  Neote l ,  your  

next  g reen box and maybe s tar t  w i th  exp la in ing  where  the  
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Neote l  funds come f rom? 

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly.   So the  Neote l  funds a re  aga in  

another  S ta te  Capture  re la ted  cont rac t  wh ich  I  dea l t  w i th  in  

my f i rs t  ev idence .   Th i s  i s  in  re la t ion  to  cont rac t s  tha t  were  

awarded by  Transnet  to  Neote l  and the  f i rs t  payment  –  

we l l ,  in  aggregate  over  th is  per iod  o f  t ime Neote l  wh ich  

a lso  t rades as  L iqu id  Communica t ions t ransfe r red  an  

amount  o f  75 ,573 ,519 to  Homix  in  th is  pe r iod .   In  add i t ion  

to . . .  [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  Mr  Ho lden,  i f  I  may,  can I  10 

jus t  co r rec t  you a t  tha t  po in t .   A t  the  re levant  t ime Neote l  

was Neote l .   I t  has  subsequent ly  been pu rchased by  L iqu id  

Communica t ions.   So today what  was Neote l  i s  now a  par t  

o f  L iqu id  Communica t ions.  

MR HOLDEN :    Thank you fo r  tha t  cor rec t ion .   Return ing  to  

the  d iagram.   Neote l  then a lso  pays an  amount  to  D ig i ta l  

Video So lu t ions and tha t  amount  i s  in  re fe rence  to  the  

CCTV cont rac t  tha t  was awarded by  Transnet  to  Neote l  and  

u l t imate ly  D ig i ta l  Video So lu t ions pays an  amount  o f  

119,700,000,  tha t  i s  R119,700,000 in to  Homix  in  th is  20 

per iod .  

The penu l t imate  box over  here  is  L iba  A f r i ca (?)  and 

L iba  A f r i ca (?)  pays an  amount  o f  R2 mi l l ion  to  [ ind is t inc t ]  

S t ra tegy and [ ind is t inc t ]  S t ra tegy  then onward  pays an  

amount  o f  R1.8  m i l l ion  to  Homix  in  th is  per iod .  
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And then the  f ina l  box is  Combined P r iva te  

Invest iga t ions wh ich  then pays an  amount  o f  17 ,510,400,  

tha t  i s  R17,510,400 in to  Homix  in  th is  per iod .   And I  shou ld  

c la r i f y,  Cha i r,  tha t  a l l  o f  these payments  are  made in to  the  

same Homix  bank account  wh ich  is  he ld  a t  S tandard  Bank 

w i th  the  account  number  11863897 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then. . .  [ in te rvenes]  

MR HOLDEN :    From tha t  po in t . . .  [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    P lease cont inue.  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   F rom tha t  po in t  the  funds 10 

e f fec t i ve l y  move in to  two d i f fe ren t  s t reams and I  w i l l  dea l  

w i th  the  s imp les t  one f i rs t ,  a l though i t  happens 

chrono log ica l l y  a t  a  la te r  s tage and i t  i s  the  s t ream tha t  

f lows to  the  r igh t ,  d iagona l ly  to  the  r igh t  fo l low ing the  

Homix  box.   And what  we have  here  is  an  amount  o f  

66 ,329,001 tha t  i s  pa id  be tween the  21s t  and the  28 t h  o f  

May 2015 and tha t  i s  t ransfer red  f rom Homix ’s  S tandard  

Bank account  in to  Homix ’s  Mercant i le  Bank account  and  

tha t  Mercant i le  Bank account  number  was 4000564463.    

And f rom the  Homix  bank account  a t  Mercant i le  20 

Bank i t  i s  then t ransfer red  in to  two o f fsho re  compan ies  

based in  Hong  Kong.   The f i rs t  amount  o r  the  f i rs t  

aggregate  amoun t  i s  an  amount  o f  39 ,819,225.50 and tha t  

i s  pa id  to  Morn ingsta r  In te rnat iona l  Trade.   And the  second 

amount  i s  an  aggregate  amount  o f  12 ,034,450,50 wh ich  i s  
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pa id  to  YKA In ternat iona l  reg i s te red in  Hong Kong and YKA 

In ternat iona l  i s  an  en t i t y  tha t  we see a  very  la rge  number  

o f  payments  go ing  to  wh ich  l eads me to  be l ieve  i t  i s  a  par t  

o f  the  ex tended Hong Kong Ch ina  laundry  ne twork .    

As  I  po in ted  out  ear l ie r,  Cha i r,  i t  is  p rec i se l y  these  

payments ,  in  par t i cu la r  the  payments  tha t  were  made to  

Morn ingstar  In te rnat iona l  tha t  a t t rac ted  the  a t ten t ion  o f  the  

Reserve  Bank and Mercant i le  Bank and led  to  Homix ’s  

funds be ing  f rozen and Homix  be ing  d i scarded as  a  f i rs t  

leve l  laundry.    10 

Now turn ing  to  the  second s t ream which  is  

un for tunate l y  ra ther  compl ica ted .   Between Sep tember  

2013 and June 2015 there  are  130 separa te  t ransact ions in  

wh ich  Homix  t ransfer red  a  to ta l  amount  o f  324,095 ,719.87 

to  an  en t i t y  by  the  name o f  Buko Trad ing .   From Buko  

Trad ing  –  I  shou ld  ment ion ,  Cha i r,  tha t  Buko Trad ing  is  an  

en t i t y  tha t  appears  to  on ly  hand le  funds f rom Homix  o r  

o ther  f i r s t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies ,  so  I  be l ieve  tha t  Buko 

Trad ing  was se t  up  spec i f i ca l l y  to  hand le  S ta te  Capture 

re la ted  payments .    20 

That  sa id ,  the  ind iv idua ls  who ran  Buko Trad ing  

seem to  have a  number  o f  connect ions to  the  ind iv idua ls  

who a lso  ran  Ch iv i ta  Trad ing ,  wh ich  makes you th ink  tha t  

those two ent i t ies  were  run  by  e f fec t i ve l y  the  same 

organ isa t ion ,  a l though Buko Trad ing  was exc lus ive ly  and  
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spec i f i ca l l y  fo r  hand l ing  Gupta  Enterp r ise  S ta te  Capture  

re la ted  funds.    

From there  we  can see a  number  o f  d i f fe ren t  

ou tgo ing  amounts .   I  am go ing  to  dea l  go ing  downwards  

f i rs t ,  i f  I  may.   So downwards d iagona l l y  to  the  le f t  we have  

an amount  o f  5 ,791,700.88 wh ich  was pa id  by  Buko  Trad ing  

to  Ch iv i ta  be tween Apr i l  and May 2014.   Subsequent  to  tha t  

there  is  an  amount  o f  186,7  –  I  am go ing  to  zoom in  

s l igh t ly  so  i t  i s  a  b i t  more  leg ib le ,  186,700,560.81.   That  i s  

71  t ransact ions be tween October  2014 and May 2015 tha t  10 

are  pa id  f rom Buko Trad ing  in to  an  ent i t y  by  the  name o f  

FGC Commodi t ies .  

FGC Commodi t ies  i f  I  fo l low the  l ine  go ing  fu r ther  

down so  I  do  no t  b reak the  f low,  FGC Commodi t ies  was an 

ent i t y  tha t  aggregated funds in  o rde r  to  be  sent  abroad.   

So i t  i s  e f fec t i ve l y  an  onshore /o f fshore  br idge tha t  rece ives  

funds and then makes mul t ip le  payments  abroad.   And what  

we see is  tha t  I  do  no t  g ive  a  f igu re  fo r  th is  because i t  i s  a  

lo t  o f  coming led  funds a t  the  t ime,  bu t  e f fec t i ve ly  a l l  o f  the 

funds tha t  a re  pa id  in to  FGC Commodi t ies  are  pa id  to  the 20 

Hong Kong laundry  ne twork ,  as  you can see here  FGC 

Commodi t ies  box  they connect  aga in  to  a  fu r the r  FGC 

Commodi t ies  box  wh ich  is  a  s l igh t ly  d i f fe ren t  ABSA Bank  

account  where  the  funds are  then poo led  and then pa id  up  

to  mul t ip le  d i f feren t  compan ies  fo rm ing the  Hong Kong  
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Ch ina  laundry  ne twork .  

The on ly  except ion  to  th is  i s  tha t  on  the  21s t  o f  Apr i l  

2015 a lbe i t  tha t  R186 mi l l ion  i s  pa id  to  FGC Commodi t ies ,  

an  amount  o f  3 ,200,294 is  pa id  ou t  to  the  en t i t y  by  Komodo 

Wholesa le rs  and Komodo Wholesa lers  i s  another  

onshore /o f fsho re  br idge tha t  rece ives –  wh ich  aggregates  

payments  and then makes the  payments  ab road and you 

can see there  tha t  the  payments  are  made aga in  i n to  the 

Hong Kong Ch ina  laundry  ne twork .    

Retu rn ing  back up  to  the  en t i t y  fo r  Buko Trade,  the  10 

th i rd  l ine  go ing  downwards is  payments  made to  an  

except iona l l y  ac t i ve  and qu i te  a la rm ing onshore /o f fsho re  

br idge by  the  name o f  Syngen D is t r ibu t ion  and i t  i s  pa id  an  

amount  o f  71 ,922,955.65 between May 2014 and  August  

2014 in  32  d iscreet  t ransact ions and Syngen D is t r ibu t ion  is  

pa id  back by  Buko Trad ing  ar is ing  f rom Sta te  Capture  

funds.   Those amounts  are  then bu lked and combined w i th  

a  huge number  o f  o ther  inward  f rom d i f fe ren t  sou rces and  

then fo rm par t  o f  t ransfers  ou t  o f  Syngen D is t r ibu t ion  in to  

the  Hong Kong Ch ina  laundry  ne twork .  20 

The four th  en t i t y  go ing  down and the  las t  one go ing  

downwards and  d iagona l ly  to  the  r igh t  shows a  l ine 

be tween Buko Trad ing  and Bay  Breeze Ho ld ings wh ich  

shows an amount  o f  R10.9  m i l l ion  wh ich  is  t ransfe r red  

between the  8 t h  o f  October  2014 to  the  13 t h  o f  May 2015  
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and there  is  21  d isc reet  payments  tha t  a re  made us ing  

S ta te  Captu re  funds in  tha t  regard .   And in  a l l  ins tances  

those funds are  then w i thdrawn in  a  very  la rge  number  o f  

cash w i thdrawals  wh ich  un fo r tuna te ly  ends our  ab i l i t y  to  

t race  those funds as  cash w i thdrawals  a re  e f fec t i ve l y  

un t raceab le  a t  th is  po in t  and we have not  seen  

cor respond ing  cash depos i ts  in  any o ther  account  wh ich  

matches the  amounts  tha t  a re  w i thdrawn f rom Bay  Breeze 

Ho ld ings.  

I  am now go ing  to  tu rn ,  i f  I  may,  to  the  le f t  hand 10 

s ide  o f  the  d iag ram and proceed fu r ther  upwards.   So 

f low ing d iagona l ly  upwards to  the  le f t  there  is  an  

amount . . .  [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  be fore  you move to  the  

payments  to  the  le f t ,  can you in  te rms o f  the  typo logy tha t  

you have been descr ib ing  o f  how the  laundry  works  w i th  

f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies ,  aggregators ,  onshore -o f fsho re  

br idges,  can you br ie f l y  desc r ibe  to  the  Cha i r  on  th is  

p ic tu re  what  the  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t y  o r  en t i t ies  are ,  

where  the  aggregators  are ,  where  the  onshore /o f fsho re  20 

br idges are?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   The f i rs t  leve l  laundry  i s  

Homix  wh ich  runs f rom Apr i l  2014 to  May 2015  and i t  

appears  very  much a t  the  cent re  o f  th is  d iagram here .   I t  i s  

the  one tha t  rece ives a l l  the  inward  payments  f rom the  
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var ious S ta te  Capture  cont rac tors .  

And then d iagona l ly  to  the  le f t  o f  tha t  –  down and to  the  

le f t  i s  Buko Trad ing  and Buko Trad ing  is  what  I  ca l l  an  

in te rmed iary  or  an  aggregator  account  and i t s  funct ion  is  to  

rece ive  payments  f rom mul t ip le  d i f fe ren t  f i rs t  leve l  l aundry  

en t i t ies .   So Buko Trad ing  does ac tua l l y  rece ive  payments  

f rom f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies  bes ides f rom Homix  and  i t s  

job  is  to  rece ive  and bu lk  those funds and then there  is  

d i f fe ren t  rec ip ien ts ,  in  th is  case we see one payment  goes 

to  another  f i rs t  leve l  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Ch iv i ta  wh ich  ran  10 

prev ious l y  to  Homix ,  bu t  what  we see here  is  FTC 

commodi t ies  and  Syngen D is t r ibu t ion  bo th  o f  those are  

what  I  descr ibe  as  onshore /o f fshore  br idges,  and the i r  

funct ion  is  to  rece ive  payments  f rom pub l ic  t rad ing  bu t  a lso  

f rom very  many o ther  sources and to  pay those funds out  

in to  the  in te rnat iona l  o f f sho re  l aundry  ne twork ,  so  bo th  

Syngen D is t r ibu t ion  and FTC Commodi t ies  a re  o f fsho re  

br idges,  I  don ’ t  ac tua l l y  have a  name or  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  fo r  

Baybury ’s  Ho ld ings bu t  i t  i s  e f fec t i ve l y  an  account  tha t  was 

used exc lus i ve l y  to  –  or  a lmost  exc lus i ve l y  to  rece ive  20 

inward  payments  f rom a  very  la rge  number  o f  sources 

beyond jus t  Homix  and to  ex t rac t  those payments  in  cash.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you.   I f  you  can now go 

back to  the  payments  on  the  le f t  hand s ide  and  maybe  

before  we dea l  w i th  these payments  because they are  fa i r l y  
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spec i f i c  can you g ive  the  Cha i r  a  re fe rence where  you dea l  

w i th  them in  your  repor t?   

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  g ive  me one second.    In  re la t ion  

to  the  payments  t o  –  sha l l  I  g ive  th is  ahead o f  t ime  or  as  I  

am go ing  th rough  each payment .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Maybe  as  you go th rough each  

payment  w i l l  be  eas ie r.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  okay,  so  I  am go ing  to  s ta r t  w i th  

the  eas ies t  f i rs t  i f  I  may.   What  we have is  downwards to  

the  le f t  i s  an  amount  o f  R450 000  and tha t  i s  pa id  on  the  10 

30 t h  o f  September  2013,  and tha t  i s  pa id  to  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  o f  

wh ich  Sa l im Essa is  a  so le  d i rec tor,  then the  second  

payment  wh ich  i s  mov ing  d iagona l ly  to  the  le f t ,  s l igh t l y  

downwards is  an  amount  o f  R1mi l l ion  tha t  i s  pa id  in  two 

t ransact ions be tween the  8 t h  and 9 t h  o f  Apr i l  2014 and tha t  

i s  pa id  to  an  en t i t y  by  the  name o f  I s id ingo Personne l .   The 

re levance o f  I s id ingo Personne l  i s  then revea led  a t  

Annexure  60 ,  wh ich  appears  a t  the  F low o f  Funds Bund le  

13 ,  page 495 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am not  sure  what  you ’ re  say ing  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR HOLDEN:    . . . [ Ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  th ink  jus t  g ive  the  re ference 

but  exp la in  to  the  Cha i r  what  we see there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  so r ry  Mr  Ho lden d id  you say  Bund le  
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13  page 495 Annexure  60?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That ’s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

MR HOLDEN:    That ’s  cor rec t  [aud io  d is to r ted ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And jus t  b r ie f l y  . . . [ in te rvenes]     

MR HOLDEN:    . . . [ Ind is t inc t  –  aud io  d is to r ted ]  se  see an  

emai l  f rom Rajendra  Nath  to  Sa l im Essa,  and obv ious ly  

Ra jendra  Nath  was an employee o f  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  and  

Sahara  Systems and obv ious ly  se l l ing  tha t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

the  Commiss ion  and e f fec t i ve l y  shows tha t  I s id ingo 10 

Personne l  i s  engag ing  in  bus iness contac ts  w i th  the  

en terpr i ses ,  an  assoc ia te  company  as  i t  were .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And  do you reca l l  what  i s  

a t tached o t  the  emai l  tha t  i s  Annexure  60?   I t  speaks fo r  

i t se l f ,  so  what  we  see . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR HOLDEN:    . . . [ Ind is t inc t  –  aud io  d is to r ted ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Maybe not ,  we don ’ t  need to  

waste  the  t ime but  what  there  is ,  i s  a  d ra f t  jo in t  venture  

agreement  w i th  I s id ingo Personne l  tha t  comes f rom the  

Gupta  Leaks,  bu t  maybe move on to  your  next  i tem.  20 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  there  is  a  payment  to  the 

a t to rneys Abbas  Lat im[? ] ,  the  10 t h  o f  Apr i l  2014 fo r  an  

amount  o f  R2 830 000.   As  fa r  as  I  unders tand the  

Commiss ioner  d id  approach Abbas Lat im A t to rneys and 

they were  unab le  to  ident i f y  the  mat te r  aga ins t  wh ich  tha t  
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payment  was made unfo r tunate ly  and then the  f ina l  and  

most  compl ica ted  o f  the  payments  ou twards is  an  amount  

on  the  9 t h  o f  Apr i l  2014 but  ex tends s l igh t ly  upwards to  the  

le f t ,  tha t  i s  an  amount  o f  R4 413 369 [Four  comma four  one  

th ree ,  th ree  s i x  n ine  m i l l ion  Rand]  and tha t  i s  pa id  to  

Hu l ley  &  Assoc ia tes ,  Michae l  Hu l l ey  the  Hu l ley  there ,  le t  

me see . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  one second . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR HOLDEN:   Hul ley  has the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  a f f idav i t  

re la t ion .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    One second Mr  Ho lden,  you d idn ’ t  use  

the  re ferences to  the  prev ious payment  o f  Abbas Lat im 

A t to rneys where  one f inds  the  fu r ther  –  the  annexure  and  

so  on ,  as  you d id  w i th  regard  to  Is id ingo.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Paqe 2  Cha i r,  maybe i f  I  can  jus t  

g ive  the  re ference qu ick ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  a t  Bund le  9  page 250,  

parag raph 367B  and the  –  and then la te r  down a t  

parag raph 370E on page 252.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.   Okay.   A l r igh t ,  you may then 

cont inue Mr  Ho lden w i th  regard  to  Mr   -  w i th  regard  to  

Hu l ley  and Assoc ia tes .   

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in l y  Cha i r,  so  resuming where  I  le f t  o ff  

on  the  9 t h  o f  Apr i l  there ’s  a  payment ,  9 t h  o f  Apr i l  2014 there  
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i s  a  payment  o f  R4 414 369 f rom . . . [ Ind is t inc t ]  Trad ing  to  

Hu l ley  &  Assoc ia tes  and in  re la t ion  to  th is  there  is  an  

a f f idav i t  tha t  has been submi t ted  to  the  Commiss ion ,  wh ich  

is  Annexure  61  and tha t  appears  a t  F low o f  Funds  Bund le  

13  page 498.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden I  wonder  i f  you  cou ld  

take  the  Cha i r  bo th  to  tha t  a f f idav i t  bu t  maybe  to  the 

nar ra t i ve  tha t  you have in  your  repor t  a t  paragraph 370 

Bund le  9 ,  page 250 so  tha t  you can take  the  Cha i r  t h rough 

the  nar ra t i ve  and  then we can look a t  the  a f f idav i t  and the  10 

annexures tha t  f low f rom i t .   So  i f  you  cou ld  s ta r t  a t  tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR HOLDEN:    . . . [ Ind is t inc t  –  aud io  d i s to r ted ]  re fe rence  

aga in .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A t  page 250 o f  Bund le  9 ,  

parag raph 370.   

MR HOLDEN:   I  am there  okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  wonder  Mr  Chaska lson whether  he  

shou ld  s ta r t  a f te r  tea .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Th i s  wou ld  be  a  conven ien t  t ime 20 

to  take  the  break because th is  w i l l  be  qu i te  a  lengthy  

passage.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  le t ’s  take  the  tea  ad journment  

un t i l  ha l f  past  e leven.  

 We ad journ .  
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INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden are  you w i th  us?  

MR HOLDEN:    I  am indeed.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you take  the  Cha i r  th rough  

paragraph 370 o f  your  repor t  on  page – Bund le  9  page 250.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in l y  Cha i r.   A t  paragraph 370 I  wr i te :  

“Both  Hu l ley  &  Assoc ia tes  and  As i f  La t ib  were  

re ta ined by  Jacob Zuma in  re la t ion  to  va r ious Cour t  10 

app l i ca t ions inc lud ing  those re la t ing  to  cor rup t ion  

charges aga ins t  h im f lowing f rom the  arms dea l .    

Hu l ley  &  Assoc ia tes  fu rn i shed the  Commiss ion  w i th  

an  a f f idav i t  a t tach ing  a  ledger  account  o f  the  c l ien t  

f i l e  to  wh ich  the  bu t ton  payment  o f  R4 413 369 was  

depos i ted ,  and a  copy o f  tha t  a f f idav i t  i s  a t tached a t  

Annexure  61 . ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you jus t  g ive  the  Cha i r  

the  re ference aga in  where  Annexure  61  is ,  I  do  no t  p ropose  

you go there  ye t ,  we w i l l  go  fo r  the  ledger,  bu t  Annexure  61  20 

the  re ference fo r  tha t .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in l y  tha t  i s  a t  Bund le  13 ,  page 498.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  Bund le  13 ,  page 490?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    498,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    498 okay,  thank you.   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And you re fer  to  the  ledger,  tha t  

you have a  re fe rence fo r  the  ledger,  the  ledger  a t tached to  

tha t  a f f idav i t .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r  tha t  i s  f low o f  funds 13,  

page 501.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  you have tha t  ledger  to  

hand,  can you pu t  i t  up  on  your  screen?  You address the  

ledger  a t  -  in  you r  –  a t  Sub-Paragraph A o f  paragraph 370,  

i f  you  can take  the  Cha i r  to  tha t .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  a t  paragraph A I  say  i t  appears  10 

f rom the  ledger  i t  has  to  be  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Hu l ley  bu t  the  

c l ien t  f i l l ed  the  quest ion  was a  f i le  opera ted  on beha l f  o f  

o thers  p lus  the  l edger  has in  respect  o f  a  c l ien t  f i l e  w i th  

the  re ference MOT/MH-ALCO and has severa l  l ine  i tems 

wi th  the  descr ip t i on  La t ib ,  As i f  La t ib  o r  A lko  or  va r ia t ions  

thereof .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you jus t  ident i fy  some 

o f  those on your,  on  the  screen tha t  you are  shar ing? 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  as  you can see he re  fo r  example ,  

I  am not  sure  i f  you  can see my po in te r  bu t  on  the  19 t h  o f  20 

June 2014 we have an amount  re f l ec ted  o f  R10,000 aga ins t  

A lko /Mr  La t ib  and on the  2 n d  o f  Ju ly  2014,  we have a  

fu r ther  amount  o f  R10,000 aga ins t  As i f  La t ib .   Then i f  you  

go down fu r ther  to  the  very  bo t tom o f  tha t  ledger  we  

ac tua l l y  have the  las t  four  en t r ies  there .   Three on  the  2n d  
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o f  December  2014,  and one on the  9 t h  o f  December  2014 

aga ins t  the  name As i f  La t ib  o r  desc r ip t ion  As i f  La t ib  o r  a  

depos i t  As i f  La t ib  and company.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  ask  you to  take  the  Cha i r  

to  a  payment  o f  R200,000 on the  1 s t  o f  October  2014 on  

tha t  ledger.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  I  w i l l  t ry  and zoom in  because i t  

makes i t  eas ie r  to  see.   Cer ta in l y  so  Cha i r,  we have he re  

a t  the  1 s t  o f  October  2014 aga ins t  the  descr ip t ion  KJ Kemp 

wh ich  is  Advocate  Kemp and an amount  o f  R200,000 tha t  i s  10 

pa id  to  -  in  respect  o f  to  Advocate  Kemp.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now,  you have seen s ta tements  

o f  accounts  in  re la t ion  to  tha t  payment  tha t  Advoca te ,  the  

la te  Advocate  Kemp SC furn ished  the  Commiss ion ,  can I  

ask  you to  take  the  Cha i r  to  Bund le  13  s ta r t ing  a t  page 

504,  a re  you in  Bund le  13  a t  the  moment  on  your  screen,  

bu t  then go down to  page 504 wh ich  is  Annexure  62 ,  wh ich 

is  a  s ta tement  o f  an  account ,  the  la te  Advocate  Kemp 

and…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    50?  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    504.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now what  i s  the  da te  o f  that  

account  o f  tha t  s ta tement  o f  account?  

MR HOLDEN:    That  s ta tement  o f  tha t  account  i s  da ted  the  
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30 t h  o f  September  2014.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  i t ’s  be fore  the  payment  o f  the   

R200,000 wh ich  was on the  1s t  o f  October,  as  I  reca l l .   

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you jus t  ident i f y  to  

whom tha t  account  i s  addressed?  

MR HOLDEN:    That  account  i s  addressed f rom the  la te  

Advocates  Kemp SC to  Hu l ley  and Assoc ia tes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you ident i f y  any i tems 

on tha t  account  tha t  where  –  or  maybe befo re  we to  make 10 

sense o f  the  o f  the  s ta tement ,  le t  us  go  down the  fo l low ing 

page to  page 505 ,  where  there  is  a  spec i f i c  invo ice  re la t ing  

to  a  par t i cu la r  mat te r,  and can you descr ibe  the  mat te r  and 

the  invo ice  number  and the  amoun t?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in l y,  we have an invo ice  tha t  i s  

d i rec ted  f rom the  la te  Advocate  Kemp SC aga in  to  Hu l ley  

and Assoc ia tes ,  the  invo ice  number  i s  0303/13,  i t  re la tes  to  

a  spec i f i c  mat te r  in  wh ich  Advocate  Kemp acted  and i t  i s  in  

a  mat te r  o f  Democra t ic  A l l iance and the  ac t ing  Nat iona l  

D i rec tor  o f  Pub l i c  Prosecut ions he ld  o f  the  d i rec tora te  o f  20 

DSO and Zuma,  and i t  g ives  spec i f i c  f i l e  re fe rence there .   

 And then we have the  next  a  descr ip t ion  o f  the  

serv i ce  o f  the  fo rmer  Advocate  Kemp and i t  g ives  the  da te  

o f  the  6 t h  o f  February  2013 and the  descr ip t ion  is  on  

read ing  papers  and on heads o f  a rgument  in  regards fo r  
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the  in te r locu to ry  app l i ca t ion  fo r  the  product ion  o f  the  ru les  

o f  the  pre- reco rd  and a  consu l ta t ion  w i th  Michae l  Hu l ley  on  

the  28 t h  o f  February  2013.   The to ta l  va lue  o f  tha t  amount  

p lus  VAT was R34,200.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now the  annota t ions underneath ,  

can you jus t  comment  on  them? 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  these appear  to  be  annota t ions 

tha t  were  made by  Advocate  Kemp and i t  ind i ca tes  the  

prev ious tab les  t ha t  have been made in  re la t ion  to  th is ,  

what  was outs tand ing  and the  prev ious payment  was 23 10 

649.96.   I  th ink  i t  m igh t  be  647.96 apo log ies ,  so  jus t  –  w i th  

tha t  tha t  payment  the  ba lance remain ing  on  th is  par t i cu la r  

invo i ce ,  the  ba lance remain ing  aga ins t  34 ,200 i s  

R10,542,04.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And what  i s  the  annota t ion  on  

the  le f t?  

MR HOLDEN:    And tha t  used to  be  par t  o f  a  -   the 

remain ing  adapta t ion  we have is  o f  R200,000 on the  1 s t  o f  

October  2014,  so  i t  appears  as  par t  o f  a  b roader  se t  o f  

fees charged by  Kemp and then  on the  le f t  hand s ide  i t  20 

says p lease note  th is  account  i s  payab le  w i th in  60  days.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  you  go back up  to  the  ove ra l l  

s ta tement  on  page 504,  can you  can you see how th is  

invo i ce  is  re f lec ted  when the  number  was 0303/13?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cer ta in ly  we have the  f i r s t  en t ry  
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on  tha t  pa r t i cu la r  tab le  i s  da ted  the  12 t h  o f  March 2013 and 

i t  i s  aga ins t  an  amount  o f  the  invo ice  0303/13.   The  

or ig ina l  amount  i t  i s  c lear  f rom tha t  par t i cu la r  l ine  i tem was 

the  or ig ina l  invo ice  amount  o f  34 ,200 aga ins t  wh ich  a  

payment  o f  R10 .552,  04  and Advocate  Kemp has very  

he lp fu l l y  p rov ided an annota t ion  there  wh ich  ind ica tes  

ba lance,  wh ich  is  the  ba lance tha t  was due on tha t  

par t i cu la r  invo i ce .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you then go down to  page 

508 and invo ice  0803 and can you jus t  descr ibe  to  the  10 

Cha i r  what  you see there?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  th is  i s  a  fu r ther  invo ice  tha t  i s   

submi t ted  by  the  la te  Advocate  Kemp SC to  Hu l ley  and  

Assoc ia tes  aga ins t  the  invo ice  number  0803/13 aga in ,  

p rov ides fo r  the  mat te r  be ing  contempla ted  tha t  i s   

Democra t ic  A l l iance versus the  ac t ing  Nat iona l  D i rec to r  o f  

Pub l ic  Prosecut ions the  head o f  the  DSO and JT Zuma,  

Jacob Zuma on  the  24 t h  o f  Ju ly  2013,  i t  g ives  the  

desc r ip t ion  o f  the  par t i cu la r  serv ices  prov ided by  Advocate  

Kemp and i t  says  on  prepara t ion  o f  one day and on 20 

arguments  w i th  Vic to r ia  one day,  da ted  the  24 t h  o f  Ju ly  

2013.  

So i t  i s  two days a l l  togethe r  to  become c la r i f ies  

and the  to ta l  fee  w i th  VAT is  R68 ,400 tha t  was due to  be  

payab le  w i th in  60  days.   Aga in ,  there  is  a  very  he lp fu l  
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annota t ion  a t  the  bo t tom by Mr  Kemp wh ich  he  wr i tes  the  

ba lance o f  R200,000 wh ich  i s  the  borde r  invo ice ,  wh ich  i s  

pa id  on  the  1 s t  o f  October  2014 in  the  amount  R50,124,33  

w i th  a  ba lance owing o f  R18,275,67.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  you go back up  to  the 

s ta tement  the  30  September  s ta tement ,  can you show 

where  tha t  invo i ce  is  re f lec ted .   

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t ly,  i t  i s  invo i ce  

0318/14 or  the  d i f fe ren t  one.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  03 /13  sor ry,  0803/13 .  10 

MR HOLDEN:    Ah  there  you go;  apo log ies  i t  i s  a  l i t t le  hard  

to  read a t  t imes.   We have on 30 t h  o f  August  2013 we have  

aga ins t  tha t  invo ice  number  080/313 the  or ig ina l  invo i ce  

amount  o f  R68,400 and we have a  due date  o f  the  amount  

o f  R68,400.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So i f  you  go –  can you jus t  scro l l  

up  so  tha t  we can see what  the  to ta l  amount  owing on a l l  

Advocate  Kemp SC’s  -  scro l l  down sor ry,  the  to ta l  ba lance  

as  o f  30  September  2014 was on a l l  o f  these invo ices.  

MR HOLDEN:    So  fo r  a l l  o f  these invo ices,  the  amount  due 20 

was R402,  429,33.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And inc luded w i th in  tha t  amount  

was I  th ink  i t  was the  60  -  i t  was th i s  68  400 and the  

ba lance o f  10  552 in  respect  o f  tha t  mat te r  invo lv ing  Mr  

Zuma,  do  you know what  tha t  mat te r  was?  
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MR HOLDEN:    As  fa r  as  I  reca l l ,  tha t  was a  mat te r  in  

wh ich  Pres ident  Zuma made in  u l t imate ly  unsuccessfu l  

a t tempts  to  res is t  an  app l i ca t ion  by  the  Democra t ic  

A l l iance,  sor t  o f  v iew and se t  as ide  the  dec i s ion  by  the  

NDP,  the  Nat iona l  D i rec to r  o f  Pub l ic  Prosecut ions ,  no t  to  

p roceed w i th  the  prosecut ion  o f  Mr   Zuma on the  arms dea l  

re la ted  cor rup t ion  charges fo r  wh ich  he  is  cu r ren t ly  

s tand ing  t r ia l ,  i s  tha t  mat te r,  the  Democra t ic  A l l iance  

successfu l l y  se t  as ide  th is  dec i s ion  tha t  was made by  the  

NDPD at  the  t ime not  to  p rosecu te  Mr   Zuma,  wh ich  was 10 

then we ac t iva ted  the  or ig ina l  p rosecut ion  o f  Mr   Zuma,  

wh ich  he  is  now fac ing  charges.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So ,  th is  s ta tement  o f  account  

tha t  we see was on the  30 t h  o f  September  be fore  the  

payment  o f  200,000.  Can we see the  next  s ta tement  o f  

accounts  on  the  7 t h  o f  November,  wh ich  i s  a f te r  tha t  

payment ,  i t  i s  page 509.  so r ted?  

MR HOLDEN:    Sor ry  Mr  you re fer red  to  a  s ta tement  o f  30 t h  

September.  I  am t ry ing  to  look  as  i f  a t  August .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  may  I  have -  page 504 the  20 

s ta tement  made is  a t  504.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  I  am a t  308 ,  oh  30  September,  okay,  

we were  on  d i f fe ren t  pages.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So as  o f  30  September,  there  

was th is  amount  o f  -  can we jus t  sc ro l l  down,  470,000 due  

and pa r t  o f  tha t  amount  was 68 400 and I  th ink  the  ba lance 

o f  jus t  over,  I  th ink  i t  was 10,552 was the  ou ts tand ing  

ba lance on the  two invo ices fo r  the  DA Zuma mat te r?  Can 

we go to  the  next  S ta tement  o f  Account ,  wh ich  is  in  

November,  wh ich  is  a f te r  tha t  200,000 payment  tha t  we  

saw on the  ledger?  and tha t  s ta tement  o f  account  i s  a t  

page 509 and what  you see –  o r  f i rs t l y,  do  we see any 

re ference to  invo i ce  0303/13 on the  30 t h  o f  August  2013.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now tha t  in  September  t ha t  had  

a  ba lance o f  68 ,400,  what ' s  happened to  tha t  ba lance? 

MR HOLDEN:    That  ba lance has been reduced,  there  have  

been a  payment  made,  you can see the re  is  an  annota t ion  

there  o f  R50,134,33 leav ing  an  amount  to  be  pa id  o f  

R18,275,67.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  we go back up  and the  

to ta l  amount  i f  we can scro l l  down and see what  the  to ta l  

amount  due is .  

MR HOLDEN:    So  the  to ta l  amoun t  due is  R270,429 ,33.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  tha t  i s  200,000 less  than i t  

was –  what  was owing in  September,  i f  tha t  annota t ion  is  

cor rec t ,  so  now fo r  my reco l lec t ions the  two numbers  i t  i s .   

So can you desc r ibe  to  me what  we are  see ing  in  these 

accounts?  What  i s  happen ing  in  the  200,000 tha t  goes f rom 



22 JUNE 2021 – DAY 414 
 

Page 85 of 319 
 

Homix  to  Bapu,  to  Mr  Hu l ley,  how is  i t  be ing  spent  in  

re la t ion  to  these mat te rs  o f  Mr  Kemp? 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in l y  Cha i r,  I  am go ing  to  b r ing  up  the  

v isua l i sa t ion  aga in  jus t  up  in  f ron t  o f  the  long as  we l l ,  what  

we see here  e f fec t i ve l y  here  f rom the  s ta te  i s  tha t  o f  the 

R200,000 tha t  i s  pa id  in  re la t ion  to  J  Kemp f rom Hul ley  and 

Assoc ia tes  o f  tha t  amount  R60,676,37 was in  payment  o f  

Advocate  Kemp’s  serv i ces  o f  Hu l ley  and Assoc ia tes  in  

rep resent ing  the  Pres ident  Jacob  Zuma in  tha t  par t i cu la r  

mat te r.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The las t  i tem in  re la t ion  to  th is  

desc r ip t ion  o f  the  Bapu Laundry  tha t  I  had asked  you to  

address is  jus t  the  Komodo Wholesa lers  Box and the  FTC 

Commodi t ies  Box  a t  the  bo t tom the  cross  bo rder  payments  

in to  the  Hong Kong,  Ch ina  laundry  on  the  box,  can I  ask  

you to  take  the  Cha i r  very  br ie f l y  to  Bund le  9  page 343.   

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  I  am there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  found i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And ve ry  b r ie f l y  i f  you  can jus t  

desc r ibe  what  you see what  you  say in  re la t ion  to  FGC 20 

Commodi t ies  and  Komodo Wholesa lers  f rom paragraph 577  

onwards.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  we have a  very  br i e f  desc r ip t ion  

o f  the  phones tha t  a re  pa id  by Homix  v ia  Bapu to  the  FTC 

Commodi t ies  and ident i f y  there  the to ta l  amount  o f  
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R186,700,516,81  pa id  to  the  FTC Commodi t ies  in  71  

d iscre te  t ransact ions,  wh ich  I  ment ioned jus t  be fore  the  

break and Komodo Wholesa lers ,  wh ich  rece ived a  payment  

o f  R3,200,294 on the  21s t  o f  Apr i l  2015 f rom FTC 

Commodi t ies ,  wh ich  was then pa id  ou t  to  the  Hong Kong  

Ch ina  mor tgage network .   

We were  -  the  Commiss ion  has rece ived ev idence 

f rom South  A f r i can Reserve  Bank,  wh ich  conf i rmed tha t  the  

d i rec tor  o f  FTC Commodi t ies ,  and an add i t iona l  company 

by  the  name o f  Bapu Wholesa lers  was a  man by  the  name 10 

o f  Mah ind ra  Govender,  who very  impor tan t ly,  was a lso  the  

so le  d i rec tor  o f  Morn ingstar  In te rnat iona l  Trade,  wh ich  was  

rece iv ing  funds  f rom the  Gupta  en terpr i se  and was  

d iss ipa t ing  funds in to  and out  o f  the  Hong Kong laundromat  

on  the i r  beha l f .   

The Reserve  Bank has ind i ca ted  tha t  he  fo rmed the  

sub jec t  o f  a  p rev ious repor t  to  the  d i rec tor  o f  p r io r i t y  c r ime  

invest iga t ions du r ing  November  2015.   Over lea f  on  page 4  

sor ry  le t  me i t  i s  fu r ther  back -  a t  parag raph 581 I  se t  up  a  

number,  the  to ta l  number  o f  funds tha t  I  can def in i t i ve ly  20 

ident i f y  f low ing f rom Sta te  Captu re  in to  the  Hong Kong  

laundry  v ia  FGC Commodi t ies  and Komodo Who lesa lers  

and tha t  i s  an  amount  o f  R98,407,691,58 o f  wh ich  

R69,910,189,22  emanated f rom Reg iments  re la ted  

t ransfers ,  wh i le  R28,497,502,36 emanated f rom the  
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payments  o f  R300mi l l ion  in  re la t ion  to  the  Neo te l  and  

Transnet .  

A t  Tab le  206 wh ich  appears  a t  Te lkom’s  Bund le  9  

page 344,  I  se t  ou t  how I  have  been ab le  to  t race  the 

d ispos i t ion  o f  funds f rom Sta te  Capture  cont rac ts  and how 

they f low -what  por t ion  o f  those funds then f low out  v ia  

FTC to  the  Hong  Kong laundry  and you can see i t  i s  qu i te  

substant ia l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And a l l  o f  these funds tha t  

emanate  in  Transnet ’s  cont rac ts  w i th  Reg iments  or  Neote l ,  10 

go  th rough Homix ,  th rough Bapu,  th rough FTC,  where  you 

have f lagged i t  th rough Komodo as  we l l  and then come out  

on  the  Hong Kong laundry  to  the  en t i t ies  tha t  you have  

l i s ted  on  the  r igh t  hand s ide ,  am I  unders tand ing  i t  

cor rec t l y?  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  we have on  the  le f t  

hand s ide  o f  tha t  tab le ,  wh ich  is  the  f i rs t  th ree  co lumns,  we 

have the  amount  tha t  the  pa r t i cu la r  S ta te  Capture 

cont rac tor  was pa id .   So the  f i rs t  sec t ion  o f  th is  tab le  dea ls  

w i th  payments  to  Reg iments .    20 

So fo r  example ,  the  f i rs t  en t ry  on  the  29 t h  o f  

September  2014 ,  you see an  amount  re f lec ted  o f  

R16,054,050 tha t  i s  an  amount  pa id  to  Reg iments  in  

re la t ion  to  tha t  spec i f i c  invo i ce  number,  wh ich  is  CRX 

NMPP004 to  the  Transnet  cont rac t ,  and then be –  the  th ree  
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remain ing  co lumns then ident i f y  asked to  be  re f lec t ing  

Baku and then onto  the  FTC Commodi t ies  how and when  

they ex i t  FTC Commodi t ies  in to  the  Hong Kong laundry   

ne twork  to  car ry  on  w i th  tha t  same top  l ine ,  we see tha t  

eventua l l y  tha t  amount  o f  R16 mi l l ion  has been pa id  to  

Reg iments  a f te r  pass ing  th rough th is  laundromat  then ex i t  

South  A f r i ca  on  the  17 t h  o f  October  2014,  in  an  amount  o f  

R1,262,094 and tha t  i s  pa id  to  an  en t i t y  by  the  name o f  

An ja l i  Trad ing  Company,  wh ich  fo rm par t  o f  the  Hong Kong,  

Ch ina  laundromat .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And in  fac t ,  on  your  tab le ,  i f  you  

have got  th ree  o ther  -  th ree  o the r  payments ,  tha t  can be 

t raced back to  those or ig ina l  payments  by  Transnet ,  oh  

sor ry  no ,  the  th ree  o ther  payments  can be t raced back to  a  

separa te  payment  by  Transnet  on  the  12 t h  o f  November,  I  

am sor ry.   

Mr  Ho lden,  I  th ink  a t  th is  po in t ,  we shou ld  p robab ly  

move on f rom the  Bapu Laundry  and maybe take a  look a t  a  

d iag ram tha t  you  have produced tha t  now appears  a t  page  

-  in  vo lume 20 page 320,  the  vo lume 20 page 320.  20 

MR HOLDEN:    I  have now ra ised tha t  on  my screen .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  no t  ye t  an  exh ib i t  

because i t  was not  a t tached to  Mr  Ho lden ’s  repor t ,  can we  

admi t  i t  as  an  exh ib i t?   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  have jus t  found i t ,  yes ,  what  exh ib i t  
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shou ld  i t  be?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  th ink  we a re  now a t  V,  doub le  

V10,  cap i ta l  D .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Exh ib i t  BB10,  B…[ in tervene]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  D fo r  dog.   

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  a f te r  10B? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    We have got  a  10C as we l l ,  so  I  

i t  i s  -  I  th ink  we a re  now a t  10D.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay and  the  D is  a  smal l  one,  a  

smal l  le t te r?  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  th is  i s  –  oh  no  in  f ac t  the  

o thers  I  th ink  are  cap i ta ls .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  the  o thers  a re  cap i ta l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cap i ta l ,  so  le t  us  make i t  

cap i ta l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Th i s  d iagram i s  admi t ted  as  

Exh ib i t…[b reak in  aud io ]  

MR HOLDEN :    . . . those funds ar is ing  fo r  s ta te  capture  

cont rac ts  on  the  r igh t -hand co lumn.   Forg ive  me.   I  fo rgo t  

the  spec i f i c  da tes ,  bu t  my ev idence leader  wanted  me to 20 

have re ference to  i t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I t  i s  the  da tes  be tween June and  

August  2016.    

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   The amounts  in  the 

accounts  and the re  are  qu i te  substant ia l  o f  i t ,  the  t ransfers  
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f rom June to  August ,  a re  a l l ,  u l t imate ly,  emanate  f rom 

Tr i l l i an  and in  re la t ion  to  spec i f i c  cont rac ts  tha t  Tr i l l i an  

he ld  w i th  Transnet .   So,  fo r  example ,  you can see a  

number  o f  th ings.    

 I  th ink  i t  i s  seven payments  i f  my eyes do not  

dece ive  me tha t  a r ise  f rom payments  made by  Transnet  

and Tr i l l i an  in  re la t ion  to  the  p roper ty  da tabase cont rac ts .   

There  are  o ther  payments  tha t  a re  sourced –  tha t  a re  pa id  

to  Tr i l l i an  by  Transnet  in  re la t ion  to  the  f re igh t  

b reakth rough –  the  genera l  f re igh t  b reakthrough cont rac t ,  10 

TFB/Soc-2(?)  p ro jec t .    

 And then f i ve  f ina l  payments  a l l  in  August  wh ich  

are  made by  Tr i l l i an  and u l t ima te ly  emanate  f rom the  

Eskom maste r  se rv ices  agreement  pa id  in  August  2016.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Then can I  ask  you to  go  down 

to  page 308 o f  Bund le  9?   Where  you dea l  –  you jus t  

desc r ibed payments  tha t  emanate  f rom s ta te  capture  

cont rac ts  in  tha t  SAAMED Bu l l ion .   A t  page 308  –  sor ry,  

page 308,  parag raph 503,  we ta lk  about  payments  f rom 

SAAMED Bu l l ion  to  Le thab i le (?)  Techno logy.   Can you take  20 

the  Cha i r  th rough  tha t?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  s i r.   A t  paragraph 503,  I  no te  tha t  

Le thab i le  Techno logy was pa id  an  amount  o f  

R 5  3084 728.84 by  SAAMED Bu l l ion  Group.   A l l  o f  tha t  

money emanated  f rom s ta te  captu re  funds.   The re levance  
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here  i s  tha t  Le thab i le  Techno logy had two d i rec tors ,  

namely,  Zayno(? )  Abadeen(?)  Nugbee(?)  and a  son,  

Saf ras(? )  Nugbee .   Zayno Nugbee  is  a  po l i t i ca l l y  exposed  

person.    

 On the  11 t h  o f  December  2014,  Mr  Nugbee was 

appo in ted  to  Transnet ’s  Board  Acqu is i t ion  and D isposa ls  

Commi t tee .   And ,  obv ious ly,  the  Commiss ion  has heard  

substant ia l  ev idence about  the  ro le  o f  the  BADC in  re la t ion  

to  i r regu lar i t ies  occu r r ing  a t  Transnet  and ce r ta in ly  over  

the  per iod  in  wh ich  Mr  Nugbee sa t  on  the  BADC.   10 

Preced ing . . .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    P lease proceed  

MR HOLDEN :    P reced ing  to  parag raph 504 and the  

suppor t ing  tab le  188,  the  payments  tha t  were  made by  

SAAMED Bu l l ion  Group in to  the i r  accoun ts  o f  

Le thab i le  Techno logy was pa id  a lmost  immedia te ly  to  

Success and L im i ted  and Success and L im i ted  came up  

s l igh t ly  ear l ie r  in  my tes t imony as  one o f  the  most  ac t i ve  

rec ip ien ts  o f  funds f rom the  s ta te  capture  ne tworks  in to  the  

Hong Kong network .    20 

 S ta te  captu re  i s  a  –  Success and L im i ted  is  a  Hong  

Kong reg is te red  company,  because these hundreds o f  

m i l l ions  o f  rands o f  payments  and a l so  payments  f rom 

Reg iments  As ia  and Tequesta  Group on fu r the r  launder ing .    

 So,  my conc lus ion  is  tha t  and Mr  Nugbee was  
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rece iv ing  funds a r is ing  f rom s ta te  captu re  and most  l i ke ly  

launder ing  those  funds on beha l f  o f  the  Gupta  En terpr i se  

v ia  the  Hong Kong laundromat ,  o r  a l te rna t ive ly,  tha t  Mr  

Nugbee was rece iv ing  h i s  own i l l i c i t  inducements .  

 And tha t  he  was look ing  to  move those funds  

abroad th rough the  same laundromat  used by  the  Gupta  

Enterp r ise .   And a t  tab le  188,  I  se t  ou t  the  amounts  tha t  

a re  pa id  f rom SAAMED Bu l l ion  to  Le thab i le  Techno logy and  

then subsequent l y  pa id  to  Success  and L im i ted .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So ,  tha t  was one member  o f  the 10 

Transnet  BADC.   Le t  us  go  to  another  one,  Mr  S tan ley  

Shane.   Can you go to  a  new annexure ,  Bund le  20  a t  page  

319?  

MR HOLDEN :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And Cha i r,  th is  d iagram a t  319,  

can we in t roduce i t  as  a  new annexure?  And I  th ink  we are  

now a t  BB-10(g) .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  th ink  we are .   The d iagram a t  

page 319,  Bund le  20  is  admi t ted  and w i l l  be  marked as  

Exh ib i t  BB-10(g ) .  20 

DIAGRAM AT PAGE 319 OF BUNDLE 20 IS ADMITTED 

AND MARKED AS EXHIBIT  BB-10(G)  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can you take  the  Cha i r  th rough  

th is  d iagram s tar t ing  aga in  w i th  the  payment  f rom CNR to  

Bex?  
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MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   So,  th is  i s  a  d iagram tha t  

s ta r ts  a t  the  top  w i th  a  payment  f rom CNR Rol l ing  S tock  

South  A f r i ca  to  Bex wh ich  I  jus t  desc r ibed in  re la t ion  to  the  

un iversa l  auct ions conf ident (?)  concepts  t ransact ions.   To  

re i te ra te ,  on  the  25 t h  o f  September  2015,  CNR pays an  

amount  o f  R 76  586 903.16 in to  Bex ’ S tandard  Bank  

account  2054833.    

 On the  12 t h  o f  October,  Bex t rans fers  tha t  amount  

in to  a  second S tandard  Bank account  tha t  i t  opera tes  –  

[b reak in  t ransmiss ion  –  speaker  unc lea r ]  . . . t ransfer  as  on  10 

the  12 t h  o f  October  2015,  R 76 585 630.43 in to  Bex ’s  

S tandard  Bank account  608483702001.   In  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

thereaf te r,  on  the  5 t h  and the  6 t h  o f  November,  Bex 

t ransfers  R 10 154 226.18 to  a  company by  the  name o f  

B lock  Man ia  who opera tes  an  FNB account  62533675453.    

 And tha t  aggregated amount  i s  made up o f  th ree  

payments .   The f i rs t  i s  on  the  5 t h  o f  November  2015 fo r  

R 3 .42  mi l l ion ,  and an amount  o f  R 115 000,00  on the  

5 t h  o f  November  2015,  an  amount  o f  R 6  584 226.18 on the  

6 t h  o f  November  2015 f rom B lock  Man ia  –  and apo log ies ,  20 

Cha i r,  fo r  the  typo where  the  rand s ign  tw ice .    

 In  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  [00 :08 :13]  B lack  Man ia  t ransfe rs  

R 9  906 210.18 f rom those same funds to  the  account  o f  a  

company by  the  name o f  Green B lossom which  opera ted  an  

account  a t  FNB,  F i rs t  Nat iona l  Bank,  o f  –  w i th  an  account  
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number  625644567067 and th is  was made up o f  seven 

t ransfers  tha t  a re  made between the  9 t h  o f  November  2015  

and the  11 t h  o f  November  2015.    

 I  wa i ted  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  [00 :08 :49]  because i t  i s  very  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  [00 :08 :51]  together  those payments  make up  

an aggregated amounts  o f  R 9  906 210,18.   And then us ing  

those same funds,  Green B lossom then t ransfers  an  

aggregated amount  o f  R 9  370 800.00 in to  the  account  o f  

In tegra ted  Cap i ta l  Management  and aga in  tha t  i s  made in  

seven t ransfers  and tha t  i s  made between the  10 

9 t h  o f  November  2015 and the  16 t h  o f  November  2015.    

 The essence o f  my d iagram,  Cha i r,  i s  to  show tha t  

the  funds ar i s ing  f rom the  u t te r ly  egreg ious(? )  cont rac t  

be tween CNR and Bex wh ich  mass ive ly  increased the  costs  

accounts  tha t  a re  communica t ion (? )  p ro jec ts .   Those funds 

tha t  –  the  success(? )  fees(?)  pa id  th rough to  Bex 

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  [00 :09 :42]  ended up be ing  pa id  to  –  in  par t  to  

In tegra ted  Cap i ta l  Management .    

 As  the  Commiss ion  is  no  doubt  aware ,  a t  the  t ime 

those payments  are  made,  the  d i rec to rs  were  C l ive  Ange l ,  20 

Mark  Ch ipk in ,  and S tan ley  Shane,  who a t  the  same t ime,  

S tan ley  Shane in  par t i cu la r  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  o f  h im,  was  a lso  a  

Transnet  D i rec tor  and Cha i r  o f  the  Board  Acqu is i t ion  and 

D isposa l  Commi t tee  and he was a lso  the  D i rec tor  o f  the  

Transnet  Second . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Benef i t  Fund.    
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 So ,  you have funds f low ing f rom a  very  obv ious  

fee ,  quest ionab le  cor rup t  cont rac t  w i th  Transnet  bu i ld ing (?)  

CNR and those  funds eventua l l y  f low ing to  a  company 

cont ro l led  by  one  o f  the  men s i t t ing  on  the  Transne t  Board  

approv ing  those sor ts  o f  t ransact ions.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Le t  us  dawn on Mr  Shane fo r  a  

wh i le .   Can I  ask  you to  go  to  page 404 o f  your  repor t ,  

parag raph 717 wh ich  is  in  the  con tex t  o f  th is  very payment  

we have pressed to  Mr  Shane ’s  company f rom the  amounts  

tha t  Bex was pa id  fo r  mak ing  Transnet  o r  persuad ing  10 

Transnet  to  pay  more  fo r  the  locomot ives  manufac tu r ing  

fac i l i t y  to  be  re loca ted to  Durban.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  page 404 o f  Bund le  9?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I t  i s ,  Cha i r.   I t  w i l l  be  in  Bund le  

9 ,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You have ment ioned tha t  

Mr  Shane was bo th  a  member  o f  the  board  and the  Cha i r  o f  

the  Board  Acqu is i t ions  and D isposa l  Commi t tee .   You a lso  

ment ioned h is  ro le  on  the  TSDBF.   Can you take  the  Cha i r  20 

th rough parag raphs 717 and 718  thought  to  719  to  see  

what  Mr  Shane d id  a t  the  TSDBF?   

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   I  w i l l  read th is  and to  

make sure  tha t  I  do  no t  make any unfor tunate  er rors .   

Under  parag raph 717 I  wr i te :    
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“My t rac ing  work  has revea led  tha t  In tegra ted  

Cap i ta l  Management ,  ICM,  was pa id  

R 9  370 800.00 i n  November  2015 der i ved  

f rom funds pa id  to  Bex by  CNR in  re la t ion  to  

the  Durban Re locat ion  Pro jec t .   In tegra ted  

Cap i ta l  Management  was d i rec ted  by  Mark  

Ch ipk in ,  C l i ve  Ange l  and most  cer ta in ly (?) ,  

S tan ley  Shane. . . ”  

 As  the  Commiss ion  has a l ready  heard ,  S tan ley  

Shane ac ted  as  a  board  member  o f  Transnet  on  December  10 

2014,  June 2017,  and a  cha i r  o f  the  TSDBF over  the  same 

per iod .   The payments  to  In tegra ted  Cap i ta l  Management .   

Wel l ,  tha t  i s  rece ived by  them whi le  S tan ley  Shane  was a  

Transnet  D i rec tor.   A t  paragraph 718,  I  wr i te :    

‘A l l  o f  the  –  the  a f f idav i t s  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

[d is to r t ion  in  t ransmiss ion  –  speaker  unc lear ]  

. . . the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Mar i t z  i s  TSDBF which  is  

a t tached as  Annexure  12  to  the  record . . . ”  

I t  shows how a t  paragraph  A(? ) ,  I  wr i te :    

“A t  h is  f i rs t  meet ing  as  Cha i rperson o f  the  20 

TSDBF in  December  2014.  

Mr  S tan ley  Shane in te rvened  to  p revent  

TSDBF wi thd raw ing the  Fund Management  

B id(?)  Board  tha t  p rev ious l y  made  Reg iments ’ 

own(?)  managers  and rep lac ing  them wi th  O ld  
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Mutua l  because  Reg iments  fund managers  

were  then re fus ing  to  honour  the  te rms o f  the  

proposa l  on  the  bas is  on  wh ich  they awarded 

the  Fund Manager  tender.  

Shane p revent  on  –  preva i led  on  the  TSDBF to  

engage Ch ipk in  as  an  adv iso r  in  negot ia t ions  

w i th  Reg iments ’ fund managers .  

A t  a  spec ia l  meet ing  o f  the  TSDBF on the  

1 s t  o f  October  2015 i .e . ,  a  month  be fore  the  

R 9  370 800.00 payments  to  ICM,  Shane 10 

repor ts  th rough the  appo in tment  o f  Reg iments ’ 

fund managers  to  manage a  R 9  b i l l i on  

por t fo l io  o f  assets  o f  the  TSDBF as opposed to  

the  R 1 .3  b i l l i on  por t fo l io  hav ing  been the  

sub jec t  o f  a  tender  p rocess in  wh ich  they were  

successfu l  b idders(? ) .  

Reg iments ’ fund  managers  con t ro l  o f  the  

R 9  b i l l i on  por t fo l io  o f  TSDBF assets  was a  

pre requ is i te  o f  the  four  in te res ts  s lo ts  tha t  the  

purpo r ted  to  conc lude on beha l f  o f  the  fund 20 

between December  o f  2015 and 2016. . . ”  

As  I  have po in ted  out  e lsewhere ,  in  th is  repor t ,  these  

swops led  to  payments  o f  more  than R 228 mi l l ion  to  

Tr i l l i an  and A lba t ime hav ing  used the  fund more  than 

R 200 mi l l ion  o f  the  Tegeta  purchase p r ice  fo r  the  Opt imum 
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Coa l  Mine o f  wh ich  we w i l l  tu rn  to  s l igh t ly  la te r,  I  wou ld  

imag ine .    

“G iv ing  the  t im ing  o f  Shane ’s  in te rvent ion  in  

the  TSDBF,  i t  i s  qu i te  poss ib le  tha t  the  

R 9  370 800.00 payment  to  ICM was not  

mere ly  a  remunera t ion  payment  fo r  the i r  ro le  

in  the  Bex fo r  Transnet  bu t  a lso  a  reward  to  

Shane in  secur ing  Reg iments ’ pos i t ion  w i th in  

the  TSDBF as a  p la t fo rm f rom which  assets  o f  

the  TSDBF cou ld  be  loo ted  fo r  the  Gupta  10 

Enterp r ise . . . ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And jus t  fo r  the  Cha i r ’s  

re fe rence.   That  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Mar i t z ,  Annexure  12 ,  i s  in  

Bund le  9 ,  page 653,  i s  where  the  a f f idav i t  s ta r ts .   I t  i s  a  

long a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bund le  9 ,  page. . .?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    653,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  we are  about  

to  move on to  a  new top ic .   We have heard  in  the  meant ime 20 

f rom T-Systems tha t  they are  no t  go ing  to  b r ing  an  

app l i ca t ion .   They sa id  they have  not  had enough  t ime to 

do  so .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    My submiss ion  is  tha t  in  those 
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c i rcumstances,  Mr  Ho lden shou ld  be  a l lowed to  ta lk  to  h is  

repor t ing  re la t ion  to  T-Systems.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  th ink  they  –  I  th ink  tha t  wou ld  be  

f ine .   There  is  a  p rov is ion  in  the  ru les ,  i f  they  fee l  tha t  they 

were  no t  g iven  enough t ime fo r  them to  make an 

app l i ca t ion  fo r  whatever  re l ie f ,  cou ld  m i t iga te  o r  address 

the i r  g r i evances i f  they  fee l  tha t  they are  gr ieved.   So,  I  

wou ld  th ink  tha t  on  ba lance i t  shou ld  be  found to  a l low Mr  

Ho lden to  dea l  w i th  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Then  we w i l l  10 

tu rn  to  tha t  a f te r  lunch.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And con t inue thereaf te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    We can –  maybe to  save t ime,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    No,  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  go ing  to  take  

too  much –  [ laughs]  –  too  much t ime.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Do you  want  us  to  s ta r t  a t  th is  

po in t  o r  –  so  tha t  we do not  waste  ten  m inutes  or  a re  you 

happy to  take  the  lunch now? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  we can take  the  lunch b reak and 

res t r i c t  i t  to  an  hour  so  tha t  whatever  f i ve  m inutes ,  ten  
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m inu tes  we wou ld  have used to  ge t  to  one o ’c lock ,  we can  

use a f te r  lunch.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  f ine?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   From my watch ,  i t  i s  s ix  m inutes  to  

one.   So,  we can resume a t  f i ve  to  two.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  we w i l l  ad journ ,  and  we w i l l  

resume a t  f i ve  to  two.   We ad jou rn .  10 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank  you,  Cha i r .   Mr  Ho lden,  

las t  t ime tha t  you tes t i f ied  we de l ibera te ly  avo ided 

address ing  any o f  the  T-Systems issues.   Can I  ask  you 

now to  address those issues and maybe to  s ta r t  by  go ing  

to  your  repor t  in  bund le  9  page  91 and take  the  Cha i r  

th rough pa ragraphs 96 to  98  in  re la t ion  to  what  you have 

found out  th rough your  invest iga t ions i n  re la t ion  to  T-20 

Systems.   So i t  i s  bund le  9  page 91.  

MR HOLDEN :   Thank you,  Cha i r .   I  am get t ing  the  aud io  

f rom the  venue but  I  am a f ra id  I  am not  ge t t ing  the  v ideo 

but  I  am sure  the  techn ic ians can a t tend to  tha t  wh i le  I  am 

dea l ing  w i th  th is .   I  hope tha t  I  can  seen and heard .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    We can hear  you,  we can see you,  so  

there  was someth ing  wr i t ten  on  the  screen,  bu t  we can see 

you,  we can hear  you.  

MR HOLDEN :   Ter r i f i c .   Thank you.   Okay,  to  tu rn  to  tha t  

re fe rence,  a t  paragraph 96 I  wr i te :  

“On the  19(?)  December  2009 T-Systems conc luded  

f i ve  year  o r  MSA or  Maste r  Serv ices  Agreement  

cont rac t  to  p rov ide  IT equ ipment  and data  serv ices  

to  Transnet  fo r  a  per iod  o f  f i ve  years .   The cont rac t  

p rov ided fo r  Transnet  to  have a  two year  r igh t  o f  10 

renewal . ”  

A t  parag raph 97 I  wro te :  

“T -Systems or  TS have used [ ind is t inc t ]  in  p r ice  

connect ions to  secure  i t s  pos i t ion  a t  Transnet  and 

to  more  than doub le  the  te rm and va lue  o f  i t s  

Master  Serv i ces  Agreement  cont rac t  o r  MSA 

cont rac t .   As  d iscussed more  fu l l y  be low,  ( ind is t inc t  

–  record ing  d is to r ted)  payments  by  s ta te  

cont rac tors  to  Gupta  en te rp r ise  laundry  en t i t ies  

over  the  per iod  August  2012 unt i l  m id-Ju ly  2015,  T-20 

Systems made  regu lar  month ly  payments  o f  

R81 830.91 in to  Zesta lo r ,  a  company o f  Zeena t  

Osmany who is  marr i ed  to  Sa l im Essa.   In  to ta l ,  T-

Systems pa id  Zesta lo r  R3 051 639.21 to  Zesta lo r  

S tandard  Bank account  2063977 th rough these 
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month l y  payments . ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you te l l  the  Cha i r  about  

T-Systems cess ion  o f  i t s  cont rac t  w i th  Transnet  to  

Zesta lo r?   I t  i s  an  issue addressed a t  paragraph 100.  

MR HOLDEN :    

“T-Systems re la t ing  to  Sa l im Essa and Zesta lo r  was  

cemented when T-Systems ceded  to  Zesta lo r  the i r  

[ ind is t inc t ]  and ren ta l  e lements  o f  a  Master  Serv ices  

Agreement  w i th  e f fec t  f rom 19  May 2015 a f te r  

Transnet  had ag reed to  ex ten t  the  Master  Serv i ces  10 

Agreement  fo r  the  fu l l  two years  a l lowed fo r  the  

ex tens ion  under  the  Master  Serv ices  Agreement .   

The cess ion  agreement  be tween  T-Systems and  

Zesta lo r  was conc luded on the  1  December  2014 

less  than a  month  be fore  the  or ig ina l  te rm o f  the  T-

Systems MSA had exp i red . ”  

And I  have the  cont rac t  cess ion  wh ich  is  a t tached to  the 

bund le  –  so r ry,  tha t  i s  ac tua l l y  a t tached to  the  bund le  o f  Mr 

Mahomedy but  I  do  no t  a t tach  i t  to  my submiss ion  because 

i t  i s  qu i te  ex tens ive .    20 

The substance here  o f  what  I  am say ing  to  cu t  

th rough is  tha t  on  the  1  December  2014 T-Systems agreed 

to  g ive  qu i te  substant ia l  fo r tune o f  i t s  cont rac t  under  work  

under  tha t  cont rac t  f rom Transnet  to  Zesta lo r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You then dea l  w i th  the  demise  o f  
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a l l  a t tempts  to  pu t  the  serv ice  ou t  to  tender  to  f ind  a  

rep lacement  se rv ice  prov ider  when T-Systems cont rac t  

wou ld  exp i re .   Can you address the  Cha i r  on  tha t?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly.   In  November  2015 Transnet  

in i t ia ted  a  new p rocurement  p rocess to  rep lace the  MSA.   

As the  procu rement  p rocess f rom TMSA was ex tended w i th  

a  success ion  o f  shor t  te rm extens ions,  in  February  2017 

Transnet  reso lved to  reappo in t  T-Systems desp i te  the  fac t  

tha t  G i j ima had  submi t ted  a  h igher  ranked b id  a t  a  

substant ia l l y  lower  p r i ce  than T-Systems.    10 

The board  acqu is i t ions  and d i sposa ls  commi t tee  

tha t  awarded the  cont rac t  to  T-Sys tems was cha i red  by  the  

Gupta  assoc ia tes ,  Danny Shane(?)  what  I  dea l t  w i th  be fore  

the  break.   Shane mot iva ted  s t rong ly  fo r  keep ing  the  new 

cont rac t  w i th  T-Systems desp i te  the  h igher  rank ing  o f  

G i j ima.  

Another  pe rson who sa t  on  the  board  in  acqu is i t ions  

and d isposa l  commi t tee  a t  tha t  t ime was then [ ind is t inc t ]  

and I  have po in ted  out  h is  ro le  in  rece iv ing  g i f t s (?)  s ta te  

capture  funds and d i ss ipa t ing  i t  ou t  to  the  Hong Kong 20 

network .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you then cont inue w i th  your  

parag raph 102 where  you ta lk  about  how th is  cont rac t  

u l t imate ly  ended?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly .   In  October  2017 Transnet  app l ied  
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to  the  H igh  Cour t  to  have the  dec i s ion  to  award  the  

cont rac t  to  T-Systems se t  as ide  and to  rep lace tha t  

dec is ion  w i th  an  award  to  Ga j ima.    

A  year  la te r ,  in  October  2018,  T-Systems f ina l l y  

w i thdrew i t s  oppos i t ion  to  tha t  par t i cu la r  app l i ca t ion  and  

tha t  was awarded  to  G i j ima.   However ,  in  the  meant ime and 

because the  mat te r  had to  be  reso lved,  the  cess ion  o f  the  

shor t  te rm cont rac t  ex tens ions meant  tha t  the  T-Systems 

MSA remained a l i ve  un t i l  March  2019.    

So,  as  we can see,  the  MSA was f i rs t  g ran ted to  T-10 

Systems in  December  2009 and  desp i te  a t tempts  fo r  a  

number  o f  years  to  have tha t  cont rac t  moved to  a  d i f fe ren t  

supp l ie r ,  tha t  MSA remained a l i ve  un t i l  March  2019,  so  

c lose  to  a  decade .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now you have ta l ked about  how 

par t  o f  the  cont rac t  was ceded to  Zesta lo r ,  wh ich  was  

l inked to  Sa l im Essa.   Can you ta lk  a lso  about  how the  

Gupta  en te rpr i se  company Sechaba was engaged  by  T-

Systems as a  subcont rac tor?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in l y .   Cha i r ,  Sechaba was l i s ted  as  a  20 

supp ly  deve lopment  pa r tners ,  se lec ted  as  a  supp ly  and 

deve lopment  par tner  w i th  T-Systems and as  a  resu l t  i t  

rece ived qu i te  substant ia l  income f rom T-Systems as the  

supp ly  deve lopment  par tner .   Those funds tha t  were  

rece ived by  Sechaba were  then – a  por t ion  o f  i ts  funds  
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were  then t ransfer red  to  Zesta lo r  on  a  month ly  bas is  as  a  

re ta iner .    

I  have a l so  no t iced tha t  Sechaba ’s  bank s ta tements ,  

bank reco rds ind ica te  tha t  Sechaba made mul t ip le  

payments  to  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you te l l  the  Cha i r  what  

the  to ta l  amoun t  o f  the  payments  f rom T-Systems to  

Sechaba was?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly ,  Cha i r .   In  to ta l  T-Systems 

t ransfer red  an amount  o f  R323 413 332.51 to  Sechaba ’s  10 

Nedbank accoun t  1940071216 in  February  2015 and  

December  2017.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And because i t  i s  no t  in  the  

sect ion  o f  your  –  no t  in  th is  par t i cu la r  sec t ion  o f  the  repor t ,  

can I  ask  you jus t  to  go  to  page 208 o f  bund le  9  and tab le  

122?  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  page o f  bund le  9?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    208.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And tha t  i s  a  tab le  tha t  runs fo r  20 

about  f i ve  or  s i x  pages a l l  the  way  th rough to  page 213.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  have got  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  i t  runs f rom 208 to  213 and 

can you te l l  the  Cha i r  what  tha t  tab le  l i s ts?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in l y ,  Cha i r ,  tha t  tab le  122(? )  l i s ts  169  
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payments  made to  Sechaba Computer  Systems Nedbank 

account  by  T-Systems between February  2015 and 

December  2017,  the  to ta l  va lue  o f  R323 413 332.51.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then ask  you to  go  back to  

page 94 o f  bund le  9 ,  page 94,  and tab le  –  and desc r ibe  to  

the  Cha i r  what  you had se t  ou t  in  tab le  42 .  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in l y ,  Cha i r .   There  is  two funct ions to  

th is  tab le .   F i rs t  i t  l i s ts  the  per iod  o f  t ime and the  cont rac t  

da tes  under  wh ich  T-Systems was awarded i t s  MSA and  

then a l l  the  var ia t ions  and  modi f i ca t ions  thereaf te r  to  have  10 

the  e f fec t  o f  ex tend ing  the  Master  Serv ices  Agreement  so  

tha t  T-Systems wou ld  cont inue to  –  the  da te  tha t  we have 

as  the  f ina l  payment  tha t  i s  under  var ia t ion  5 ,  wh ich  was  

fo r  s ix  months  and tha t  te rm ina ted on the  8  December  

2018.    

The co lumn to  the  r igh t  a re  the  cont rac t  da tes ,  

p rov ides an  aggregate  amount  tha t  T-Systems was pa id  

under  those cont rac t s  ove r  those per iods bu t  I  th ink  what  

i s  most  in te res t ing  is  the  co lumn to  the  fa r  r i gh t  wh ich  i s  

an  annua l ised average payment  and tha t ,  very  s imp ly  i s ,  I  20 

have made an e f fo r t  to  es tab l i sh  the  amount  tha t  T-

Systems was pa id  eve ry  year  under  those Master  Serv i ces  

Agreement .    

As  you can see the  amount  tha t  T-Systems earns  

every  year  increases substant ia l l y  f rom 2015 onwards.  So 
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be tween 1  January  2010 unt i l  the  31  December  2014 T-

Systems earned an average o f  R263 408 760.30 per  year  

f rom Transnet .   F rom the  1  January  2017 to  30  September  

2017 you have what  i s  e f fec t i ve ly  a  to ta l  payment  fo r  tha t  

year  ca l cu la ted  pro  ra ta  o f  R813 475 948 wh ich  I  take  to  –  

wh ich  I  have in te rp re ted  as  T-Systems ab i l i t y  to  ex t rac t  

fu r ther  funds f rom the  s ta te  and fo r  Transnet  to  be  m inded  

to  reward  T-Systems over  th i s  pe r iod  o f  t ime desp i te  the  

constant  a t tempts  to  ac tua l l y  have the  cont rac t  vacated  

and be ing  g iven to  somebody e l se .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Was the  cont rac t  tha t  T-Systems 

had in  the  per iod  f rom 2015 when  the  annua l ised payment  

s ta r ted  increas ing  the  same scope or  a  b igger  scope or  

nar rower  scope than the  cont rac t  tha t  i t  had up to  the  end  

o f  December  2014?  

MR HOLDEN :   I t  was a  nar rower  scope,  Cha i r .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you exp la in  why i t  was  

a  nar rower  scope? 

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in l y .   Cer ta in  por t ions  o f  tha t  

agreement  had a l ready been ceded in  par t i cu la r  the  supp ly  20 

o f  ren ta l  ag reements  hav ing  ceded to  Zesta lo r  and  then a t  

a  la te r  s tage,  as  I  sure  we w i l l  exp la in ,  to  [ ind is t inc t ]  to  

them pa id  ou t  as  Zesta lo r .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  w i th  a  na r row scope T-

Systems was charg ing  on  an annua l  bas is  a lmost  th ree  
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t imes as  much accord ing  to  tha t  tab le?  

MR HOLDEN :   Abso lu te ly ,  Cha i r ,  we have a  s i tua t ion  he re  

were  T-Systems is  no  longer  supp ly ing  the  ha rdware  in  

re la t ion  to  the  Maste r  Serv ices  Agreement .   The serv i ces  

prov id ing  have decreased but  the  amount  they have been 

pa id  has increased ve ry  d ramat ica l l y .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we then move f rom Transnet  

to  Eskom and th is  i s  someth ing  tha t  you address f rom page  

100.1  o f  your  repor t ,  100.1  o f  bund le  9  and i t  was not  in  

your  o r i g ina l  repor t ,  can you exp la in  why?  10 

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in l y ,  Cha i r .   When I  o r ig ina l l y  

submi t ted  my repor t s  to  the  Commiss ion  I  no ted  tha t  T-

Systems had been pay ing  month ly  amounts  to  Zesta lo r  

f rom August  2012 and I  suggested tha t  the  Commiss ion  

shou ld  i dent i f y  the  cause o f  those payments .   The  

Commiss ion  then conducted i t s  own invest iga t i on .   I  

unders tand tha t  i t  has  been invest iga t ing  th is  mat te r  fo r  a  

wh i le  and in  the  process i t  ident i f ied  an  add i t iona l  i r regu la r  

T-Systems cont rac t .   Th is  was a  T-Systems and Eskom 

Master  Serv i ces  Agreement  conc luded in  2009 fo r  a  f i ve  20 

year  pe r iod  f rom the  1  January  2010 to  the  31  December  

2014 and then as  w i th  the  Transne t  example ,  they regu lar l y  

ex tended w i th  a  success ion  o f  cont rac t  mod i f i ca t ions un t i l  

2019.    

So as  w i th  Transnet ,  T-Systems essent ia l l y  he ld  a  
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ten  year  cont rac t  o r  jus t  under  ten  year  cont rac t  fo r  a  

cont rac t  tha t  was supposed to  on ly  run  fo r  a  number  o f  

years .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A t  page 100.1  you have  a  tab le  

45A wh ich  –  we l l ,  can  you te l l  the  Cha i r  what  tha t  tab le  

desc r ibes?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly .   Tab le  45A se ts  ou t  the  to ta l  

amounts  tha t  were  pa id  to  T-Sys tems as a  resu l t  o f  th is  

Master  Serv i ces  Agreement  and thereaf te r  the  ( ind is t inc t  –  

record ing  d i s to r ted)  and you can  see the  f i rs t  four  l ines  10 

re fer  to  the  or ig ina l  Master  Serv i ces  Agreement  be tween 

the  1  January  2010 and the  31  December  2014.    

The fo l low ing th ree  l ines  no te  tha t  there  were  

mod i f i ca t ions to  tha t  Master  Serv ices  Agreement  wh ich 

increased the  amount  to  be  pa id  under  tha t  Master  

Serv i ces  Agreement .   The net  e f fec t  was tha t  a l l  the 

or ig ina l  Master  Serv i ces  Agreement  be tween the  1  January  

2010 and the  31  December  2014,  T-Systems was pa id  an  

aggregate  amoun t  o f  R4 506 794 902.54 and thereaf te r  I  

l i s t  the  mod i f i ca t ions tha t  took p lace.   20 

Mod i f i ca t ion  4  approved on the  9  December  2014.  

Mod i f i ca t ion  5  approved on the  28  February  2015.  

Mod i f i ca t ion  6  approved on the  13  December  2016.  

Mod i f i ca t ion  7  approved on 16 February  2018,  and  

Modi f i ca t ion  8 ,  wh ich  is  on  the  fo l low ing page,  i t  
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was agreed to  the  12  November  2018 and ran  to  the  30  

June 2019.   

I  th ink  there  is  a  d iscrepancy tha t  we p icked up,  

Cha i r ,  be tween the  amounts  tha t  were  approved by  Eskom 

to  be  pa id  under  the  cont rac t  and the  amounts  tha t  were  

eventua l l y  pa id  t o  T-Systems.   I  have g iven a l l  o f  those 

l i t t le  f igures  so  there  is  an  amount  approved w i th  VAT 

exc luded,  an  amount  approved w i th  VAT inc luded and then 

we have a l so  had –  I  have examined the  T-Systems bank 

s ta tements  and conf i rmed a  separa te  f igure .    10 

So fo r  the  purposes o f  th is  repor t  in to  my ta l l y ing ,  I  

re ly  on  tha t  f ina l  co lumn wh ich  shows tha t  T-Systems was 

pa id  a  to ta l  under  the  Eskom MSA over  these years  an  

amount  o f  R7 805 558 985.49.   For  the  poor  t ransc r ibe r ,  

tha t  i s  7 ,  805,558 ,985.49.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now in  the  next  pa ragraph you 

re fer  to  two le t te rs  tha t  Eskom sent  to  T-Systems 

conf i rm ing tha t  i t  had no i n ten t ion  to  renew the  cont rac t  

beyond the  end o f  2014.   Can I  ask  you to  take  the  Cha i r  to  

those le t te rs?   They are  a t  the  end  o f  th is  bund le  9  and the  20 

page re ference i s  914.5  fo r  the  f i rs t  le t te r  and 914.7  fo r  the  

second le t te r ,  annexures 23 .2  and  23.3 .  

MR HOLDEN :   Okay,  I  am jus t  ge t t ing  myse l f  there .   I f  I  am 

cor rec t ,  the  f i rs t  is  bund le  9 ,  914.4 .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  914.4 .  
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MR HOLDEN :   Okay,  tha t  i s  ac tua l l y  the  –  tha t  ident i f ies 

the  annexure  number  23 .2 ,  the  ac tua l  annexure  is  on  the  

fo l low ing page and th is  a  le t te r  tha t  i s  d i rec ted  f rom Eskom 

to  Mr  Ger t  Schoonbee who was the  manag ing  d i rec tor  o f  T-

Systems South  A f r i ca  on  the  26  August  2013  and i t  

essent ia l l y  says  tha t  –  we l l ,  I  w i l l  read the  quoted 

paragraph,  i t  says :  

“G iven our  longstand ing  ar rangement  and  

t ransparent  re la t ionsh ip  and as  T-Systems be ing  the  

incumbent  we thought  i t  p rudent  to  in fo rm you o f  10 

the  ou tcome o f  our  p resenta t ion  to  Eskom Exco and 

board  tender  commi t tee  and the i r  reso lu t ions.   The  

dec is ion  taken is  tha t  Eskom wi l l  fo l low an open 

tender  p rocess very  soon so  tha t  new agreement  i s  

pu t  in  p lace  on  the  exp i ry  o f  the  cur ren t  MSA 

outsourced agreement .   T-Systems wi l l  have every  

oppor tun i ty  to  respond to  th is  open  tender  p rocess. ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  August  2013,  w i l l  you  go  

down two pages to  23 .4?   Sor ry ,  to  914.7 ,  annexure  23 .3  

and desc r ibe  to  the  Cha i r  the  le t te r  f rom Eskom the re .  20 

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly .   We have a  le t te r  da ted  29 

September  2014  sent  f rom Eskom to  T-Systems South  

A f r i ca  a t  the i r  address in  Midrand fo r  the  spec i f i c  a t ten t ion  

o f  the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i ce r  o f  T-Systems,  Anya Hat t ingh.   

The le t te r  i s  cc ’d  to  a  number  o f  peop le ,  I  w i l l  no t  go  in to  
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here ,  su f f i ce  to  no te  tha t  a t  parag raph –  I  w i l l  read the  f i rs t  

two parag raphs o f  th is  le t te r  jus t  to  read i t  in to  the  reco rd .   

The f i rs t  parag raph reads?  

“We re fer  to  the  Master  Serv ices  Agreement ,  MSA,  

en tered in to  be tween Eskom Hold ings L im i ted  and 

T-Systems South  A f r i ca  e f fec t i ve  f rom 4  January  

2010 and our  le t te r  da ted  26 August  2013 whereby  

TSSA…” 

That  i s  T-Systems South  A f r i ca .  

“…was in fo rmed o f  Eskom’s  dec is ion  no t  to  renew  10 

the  MSA.   Eskom,  a  serv ice  rec ip ien t ,  he reby  

not i f ies  TSSA and p laces on  reco rd  tha t  the  MSA 

wi l l  te rm inate  on  the  exp i ry  o f  the  in i t ia l  te rm and 

w i l l  no t  be  renewed in  accordance w i th  c lause 8 .2  

o f  the  MSA.   C lause 8 .2 ,  wh ich  re fers ,  renewal  

wou ld  there fore  no t  be  app l i cab le . ”  

The substance o f  these two le t te rs ,  Cha i r ,  I  th ink  i t  i s  qu i te  

obv ious tha t  Eskom was in fo rming T-Systems tha t  they 

were  in tend ing  on te rm inat ing  T-Systems’  cont rac t  and  

put t ing  i t  ou t  to  open tender .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And ye t  as  we have seen four  

years  la te r  T-Systems was s t i l l  in  p lace .   Can I  ask  you  

now to  go  to  annexure  23 .4  wh ich  is  an  in te rna l  T-Systems 

Group compl iance repor t  da ted  24  June 2015 and descr ibe  

to  the  Cha i r  the  s ign i f i can t  fea tu re  o f  th is  document .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  tha t  page?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    914.8 ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  thank you.  

MR HOLDEN :   Cha i r ,  th is  document  i s  a  f ina l  repor t  on  a 

compl iance check tha t  was pe r fo rmed a t  T-Systems South  

A f r i ca  by  T-Systems head o f f i ce  on  the  24  June 2015.   The  

compl iance check was in to  the  appo in tment  o f  what  they 

ca l led  non- IT consu l tan ts  a t  T-Sys tems South  A f r i ca .   The 

re levant  sec t ion  fo r  th is  d i scuss ion  beg ins  a t  F low o f  

Funds bund le  9 ,  914.13.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ac tua l l y  tha t  repor t  s ta r ts  a t  914.9 .   

I  am jus t  mak ing  tha t  cor rec t ion  because Mr  Chaska lson 

sa id  914.8  bu t  tha t  i s  where  i t  is  wr i t ten  annexure  23 .4 .   

Okay,  a l r igh t .   Okay,  I  am 914.13.  

MR HOLDEN :   Thank you,  Cha i r ,  as  you can see the  issue 

there  i s  w i th  regard  to  the  appo in tment  o f  Sa l im Essa o r  T-

Systems South  A f r i ca ’s  engagement  w i th  Sa l im Essa.   I f  I  

may,  I  w i l l  read the  re levant  ex t rac ts  he re .   I t  says  here :  

“Sa l im Essa…”  

Which  they shor tened to  SE.  20 

“…is  a  board  member  o f  B roadband In f raco BDI  w i th  

whom T-Systems South  A f r i ca ,  TSSA,  par tnered on 

the  Transnet  ne twork  RFP as i t s  bandwid th  p rov ider  

and the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l i c  En terpr i ses as  the  

shareho lder  o f  Eskom,  Transnet  and a lso  BDI ,  Sa l im 
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Essa has a  s t rong network  to  Eskom of f i c ia l s  and  

i t s  s takeho lde rs .   A f te r  the  engagements  w i th  

Transnet  regard ing  the  ne twork  cont rac t  TSSA 

cont inued d iscuss ing  w i th  Sa l im Essa va r ious 

d i f fe ren t  s t ra teg ies  to  work  together  as  par t  o f  

TSSA’s  loca l i sa t ion  and en terpr i se  supp ly  

deve lopment  s t ra tegy a l igned w i th  changes in  BBEE 

codes. ”  

And here  I  th ink  i t  i s  par t i cu la r l y  in te res t ing .   

“TSSA cons idered var ious op t ions to  engage w i th  10 

Sa l im Essa conc lud ing  a  consu l t ancy engagement  

as  sa les  agent  and incorpo ra t ion  o f  spec i f i c  

subcont rac to rs  under  the  cond i t ion  tha t  i t  i s  a l igned 

w i th  TSSA’s  bus iness mode ls . ”  

S l igh t ly  fu r ther  down the  page i t  reads:  

“A f te r  these s teps were  taken the  TSSA 

management  dec ided not  to  fo rmal ly…”  

Sor ry,  I  have sk ipped the  impor tan t  po in t ,  i f  I  may go back.   

I t  says  here :  

“TSSA s tar ted  the  necessary  s teps w i th in  the  non- I T 20 

consu l tancy process namely  s ta r te r  f i l l i ng  and  

compl iance r i sk  eva lua t ion  templa te  fo r  use  o f  non-

IT consu l tan ts ,  s ta r ts  w i th  background checks,  

s ta r ted  the  document  rea l  r i sk  assessment…”  

And I  th ink  probab ly  the  most  impor tan t ,  i t  says :  
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“Assess loca l  laws and obta in  an  in te rna l  lega l  

op t ion . . ”  

Which  I  wou ld  imag ine  is  supposed to  be  lega l  op in ion .  

“…on the  use o f  Sa l im Essa as  a  sa les  consu l tan t  

spec i f i ca l l y  the  Prevent ion  and Combat ing  o f  

Cor rup t  Act iv i t ies  Act .   A f te r  these s teps were  

taken,  the  TSSA management  dec ided not  to  

fo rmal ly  engage w i th  Sa l im Essa as  a  sa les  agent  

bu t  to  in fo rmal ly  use  h is  ne twork .   In  reward  Sa l im 

Essa in t roduced severa l  loca l  s ta r te r  compan ies  to  10 

TSSA [ ind is t inc t ]  and he requested  TSSA to  prov ide  

these compan ies  w i th  the  oppor tun i ty  to  be  inc luded  

in  the  va lue  cha in  where  poss ib le . ”  

The compl iance repor t  then re fu tes  in  a  manner  wh ich  I  do  

no t  agree w i th ,  i t  says :  

“Taken in to  account  the  abovement ioned needs fo r  

the  TSSA in  te rms o f  loca l i sa t ion ,  as  an  

in te rnat iona l l y -owned ent i t y  to  improve the i r  BBBEE 

ra t ing  to  ge t  the  oppor tun i ty  to  share ,  p resent  the i r  

t ransformat ion  s t ra tegy to  po ten t ia l  pub l i c  20 

customers  as  Eskom,  the  dec i s ion  to  engage w i th  

the  sub-cont rac tors ,  espec ia l l y  Sechaba and  

Zesta lo r,  and th is  as  we l l  as  o ther  p ro jec ts  can be 

comprehended.   We had the  poss ib i l i t y  to  check the  

re levant  in te rna l  documents  and in fo rmat ion  
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ava i lab le  regard ing  the  sub-cont rac tua l  re la t ionsh ip  

w i th  Sechaba and Zesta lo r.   Based on these 

in fo rmat ion  as  we l l  as  on  the  conduct ive  in te rv iews  

there  i s  a  no rma l  cont rac tua l  re la t ionsh ip  in  p lace  

w i thout  any i r regu lar i t ies .   There  i s  no  ind ica t ion  fo r  

cor rup t ion  or  any o ther  i l l ega l  behav iou r…”:  

Which  I  w i l l  d iscuss my response to  tha t  sho r t l y.   And then  

I  emphas ise  th is  po in t .  

“Never the less ,  the  dec i s ion  to  engage Sa l im Essa in  

an  in fo rmal  way and w i thout  cont rac tua l  bas i s  led  to  10 

a  vast  number  o f  lega l  and  compl iance r i sks  

bes ides h is  inca l cu lab le  lega l  and  compl iance r i sks ,  

the  in fo rmal  engagement  was a  c lear  b reach o f  the  

non- IT consu l tancy process. ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then maybe fo r  comple teness 

over  the  page?  

MR HOLDEN :   I t  says :  

“The dec i s ion  o f  the  fu r ther  p reced ing  in fo rmal  

engagement  a  sa les  agent  ag reement  i s  no t  

acceptab le  due to  compl iance reasons tha t  led  to  20 

unnecessary  r i sks  because o f  a  lack  o f  

t ransparency and  documenta t ion . ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    What  do  you make o f  th is  

repor t?  

MR HOLDEN :   I  th ink  the  repor t  i s  qu i te  shock ing  f rom a  
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number  o f  perspect ives .   The f i rs t  i s  tha t  the  repor t  

d isc loses tha t  T-Systems was work ing  ex tens i ve l y  w i th  

Sa l im Essa and re ly ing  on  Sa l im Essa fo r  i t  to  secure  work  

w i th  Eskom in  pa r t i cu la r .   I t  makes i t  very  abundan t ly  c lear  

tha t  in  reward  Sa l im Essa had the  oppor tun i ty  to  ind ica te  

to  T-Systems wh ich  compan ies  he  wou ld  l i ke  to  be  added  

to  what  they ca l l  the  T-Systems va lue  cha in  accord ing  to  

the  more  prosa ic  te rms wh ich  compan ies  he  though t  shou ld  

ge t  cont rac t s  f rom T-Systems f lowing f rom the  Master  

Serv i ces  Agreement .    10 

 Frank l y ,  Cha i r ,  I  am aston ished by  the  f ind ings o f  

th is  repor t .   The fac tua l  mat r i x  i s  d is tu rb ing  enough but  the  

fac t  tha t  then  T-Systems dec ided in te rna l l y  in  i t s  

compl iance check  tha t  th is  d id  no t  amount  to  an  i r regu la r i t y  

o r  cor rup t ion ,  I  do  no t  fu l l y  comprehend and I  to ta l l y  

d isagree w i th  a t  leas t  on  the  face  o f  the  in fo rmat ion  I  have  

seen.   I t  seems to  me to  be  the  essence o f  a  p rob lemat ic  

re la t ionsh ip  fo r  t hem to  re ly  i n fo rmal ly  on  an  agent  who 

had been to ld  they cannot  cont rac t  w i th  fo rmal ly ,  p rec ise ly  

a f te r  they have conducted an invest iga t ion  and sought  an  20 

op in ion  under  the  te rms o f  the  Prevent ion  o f  Cor rup t ion  Act  

bu t  then as  a  resu l t  o f  tha t  in fo rmal  engagement  then  

handed cont rac ts  to  peop le  tha t  tha t  agent  has spec i f i ca l l y  

ident i f ied  tha t  T-Systems shou ld  inc lude in  the  va lue  cha in  

as  a  reward  fo r  the  se rv i ces  tha t  i t  p rov ided in fo rmal ly .   I  
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th ink  tha t  speaks  to  par t  o f  an  inc red ib ly  i r regu lar  cont rac t  

and on the  face  o f  i t  a  cor rup t  cont rac t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now th is  repor t  was prepared in  

June 2015.   Can you jus t  take  the  Cha i r  back to  how long  

a f te r  June 2015 T-Systems cont inued to  keep the  cont rac t  

tha t  had apparen t ly  been procured w i th  the  ass is tance o f  

Sa l im Essa in  th is  way?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   I t  re ta ined cont rac ts  un t i l  

the  30 t h  o f  June 2019,  so  a  number  o f  years  a f te r  the  fac t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wou ld  i t  be  fa i r  to  say tha t  i t  i s  10 

poss ib le  tha t  in  June 2015 peop le  m ight  no t  have  known 

the  ro le  tha t  Sa l im Essa was p lay ing  in  S ta te  owned 

enterpr i ses?  

MR HOLDEN :    I  suppose i t  i s  poss ib le ,  a l though w i th in  a  

shor t  per iod  o f  t ime h is  ro le  was [ ind is t inc t ]  no tab le  tha t  he 

–  tha t  T-Systems under took what  wou ld  be  qu i te  a  normal  

and rud imenta ry  compl iance exerc ise  fo r  Sa l im Essa,  wh ich  

was to  es tab l i sh  whether  h i s  appo in tment  as  a  sa les  

consu l tan t  as  you wou ld  do  normal ly  fo r  a  [ ind is t inc t  

cont rac t  and i t  d id  a f te r  rev iew essent ia l l y  es tab l i sh  tha t  20 

en ter ing  in to  tha t  sor t  o f  re la t ionsh ip  wou ld  fa l l  fou l  o f  

those par t i cu la r  compl iance checks,  in  par t i cu la r  the  

Prevent ion  o f  Cor rup t  Act iv i t ies  Act .   So i t  appears  to  me 

tha t  on  i t s  face  T-Systems was aware  o f  the  fac t  on  the  

da te  o f  th is  repor t  tha t  there  were  majo r  i r regu lar i t ies  
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a round h is  engagements .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You th ink  they cou ld  have had  

any doubts  by  2019 when they were  s t i l l  ho ld ing  on to  tha t  

cont rac t?  

MR HOLDEN :    No doubt  whatsoever,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can  I  ask  you to  go  to  

page 100.4  where  you dea l  w i th  the  payments  to  Zest i lo r  

and Sechaba a t  parag raph 114.g?   Can you te l l  the  Cha i r  

what  you say there?  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly.   Payments  tha t  T-Systems made 10 

to  Zest i lo r  and Sechaba s t radd led  both  the  Eskom and  

Transnet  cont rac ts  and are  de ta i led  in  th is  repor t  a t  

tab les  104 to  122.   In  add i t ion  to  these tab les  as  

was. . .  [ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry.   I  am sor ry,  Mr  Ho lden.   

Mr  Chaska lson,  104 or  100.4?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  i t  i s  the  tab le  numbers ,  

Cha i r.   I  w i l l  ge t  those re fe rences fo r  you.   Tab le  122 is  a t  

Bund le  9  page 208 is  where  i t  s ta r ts  fo r  tab le  122.   Tab le  

104 I  w i l l  f ind  tha t  and I  w i l l  ge t  tha t  re fe rence  shor t l y,  20 

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :   Okay,  a l r igh t .   I  am a t  208,  tab le  122.   

Okay.   Okay,  you may cont inue,  Mr  Ho lden.  

MR HOLDEN :   Cer ta in ly.   Thank you,  Cha i r.   In  add i t ion  to  

these payments  as  was the  case  a t  Transnet ,  the  Gupta  
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En terp r ise  a lso  benef i ted  f rom d i rec t  payments  made by  

Eskom as a  resu l t  o f  changes to  the  T-Systems maste r  

serv i ces  agreement  a f te r  [ ind is t inc t ]  by  Eskom beyond the 

or ig ina l  f i ve  year  te rm.  

A t  the  t ime T-Systems ceded par t  o f  i t s  cont rac t  to  

Zest i lo r  in  the  renewal  per iod ,  however  a t  Eskom T-

Systems ceded par t  o f  i t s  cont rac t  back to  Eskom,  tha t  

Eskom wou ld  in  source i t s  w ide  area network  serv i ces .   

Hav ing  then in  sourced i t s  w ide  area network  serv i ces ,  

Eskom immedia te ly  ou tsourced  to  T-Systems’ serv ice  10 

prov iders  inc lud ing  Zest i lo r  those par t s  o f  the  re levant  

serv i ces  tha t  T-Systems had a l ready been outsourc ing  and  

I  no te  tha t  tha t  p rocess is  descr ibed in  a  submiss ion  to  the 

Cha i rman o f  Eskom Group Commerc ia l  D iv i s ion  on  the  12 t h  

o f  March 2015 wh ich  I  a t tach  as  Annexure  23 .5 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you te l l  the  Cha i r  how 

much T-Systems pa id  to  Zest i lo r  –  sor ry,  how much  Eskom 

pa id  to  Zest i lo r  on  th is  cont rac t  tha t  was crea ted  by  the  

w i thdrawal  o f  T-Systems to  make way fo r  Zest i lo r  and o ther  

cont rac tors?  20 

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   In  to ta l  Eskom pa id  

Zest i lo r  an  amount  o f  R2,490,484.50 over  the  per iod  o f  the  

next  th ree  years .   I  shou ld  no te  here  tha t  tha t  i s  ac tua l l y  

an  amount  tha t  was cons iderab ly  la rger  than the  or ig ina l  

amount  tha t  had  been earmarked  fo r  Zest i lo r  and  in  tha t  
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document  I  jus t  no ted  the  or ig ina l  earmarked amount  tha t  

Eskom in tended to  pay Zest i lo r  was R878,605.56.   So there  

is  qu i te  a  b ig  d iscrepancy and c lear ly  Zest i lo r  bene f i ted  by  

rece iv ing  a  la rge r  amount  o f  money f rom Eskom over  th is  

per iod .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then Cha i r,  i f  I  can  jus t  g ive  you  

the  re ference fo r  tab le  104.   That  i s  Bund le  9 ,  page 185.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  bund le?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    N ine .  

CHAIRPERSON :    N ine .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Page 185.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  th ink  tha t  conc ludes  the  T-

Systems d iscuss ion  bu t  fo r  the  fac t  o f  aggregat ing  the  

amounts  tha t  were  pa id  to  T-Systems under  these 

cont rac ts .   I  do  no t  have my re fe rence to  hand.   Do you  

have an easy f igure  be fore  you o f  what  the  to ta l  amount  

tha t  T-Systems got  f rom these two  cont rac ts  f rom Transnet  

and Eskom was?  

MR HOLDEN :    I  can  g ive  the  ind iv idua l ,  bu t  I  have not  20 

ac tua l l y  added the  two cont rac ts  t ogether  to  be  honest .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Maybe jus t  g ive  us  back  the  two 

ind iv idua l  amoun ts ,  aggregate  amounts  because they are  

s ign i f i can t  in  the  broader  scheme o f  th ings.  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly.   In  re la t ion  to  the  Eskom MSA i t  
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was an amount  o f  R7,805,558,985.49.   That  i s  fo r  the  

Eskom MSA.   And  then the  to ta l  pa id  to . . .  [ in te rvenes ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The to ta l  pa id  fo r  –  to  T-Systems 

by Eskom we d iscussed a  shor t  wh i le  ago wh ich  is  the  

R7,805,558,985.49 tha t  we see in  tab le  45A on Bund le  9 ,  

page 100.2 .   In  your  execut ive  summary I  am aware  tha t  

there  is  a  p lace  where  you add them togethe r,  bu t  we can  

do the  ar i thmet ic  ourse l ves a t  a  la te r  s tage.  

 That  conc ludes the  d iscuss ion  o f  T-Systems,  bu t  

wh i le  we a re  the re  can you b r ie f l y  take  the  Cha i r  th rough  10 

the  exp lanat ion  fo r  the  rep lacement  pages and what  has 

happened s ince  your  o r ig ina l  ev idence in  re la t ion  to  

in fo rmat ion  concern ing  S ta te  Capture  cont rac ts  and the  

l i ke?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   I f  I  may,  I  ac tua l l y  now 

have the  aggrega te  f igure  in  f ron t  o f  me,  i f  I  cou ld  –  i f  the 

[ ind is t inc t ]  wou ld  l i ke  me to  go  th rough tha t  aga in .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  le t  us  hear  the  aggregate  

f igure ,  because  I  th ink  a f te r  the  Ch inese locomot ive  

compan ies  i t  may  be the  b iggest  f igure  tha t  there  is .  20 

MR HOLDEN :    Indeed.   The to ta l  aggregate  f igure  tha t  I  

have inc lud ing  the  Transnet  cont rac t  i s  

R12,334,936,782.95 and aga in  to  save the  anx ie t y  o f  the  

t ranscr iber  tha t  i s  12 ,334,936,782.95.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then can you then exp la in  to  the  

Cha i r  the  reason  fo r  the  changes tha t  were  made to  some 

o f  the  tab les  and then I  w i l l  take  you to  those spec i f i c  

changes?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   On conc lus ion  o f  my 

ev idence in  May  the  Commiss ion  was then subsequent ly  

approached by  a  number  o f  o rgans  o f  S ta te  to  ind ica te  tha t  

the  payments  tha t  I  had ident i f ied  were  incomple te  and tha t  

I  un for tunate l y  undercounted cer ta in  costs  such as ,  and we  

w i l l  ge t  to  th is ,  the  f igures  supp l ied  fo r  McK insey were  10 

supp l ied  w i thout  VAT inc luded.   I  was a l so  very  k ind ly  

contac ted  by  Rud i  Heyneke o f  the  o rgan isa t ion  Undo ing  

Tax Abuse who under took the  no t  par t i cu la r l y  reward ing  or  

en joyab le  p rocess o f  reca lcu la t ing  a l l  my ca lcu la t ions and  

he ident i f ied  th ree  payments  tha t  were  made to  Reg iments  

tha t  I  d id  no t  re f lec t  in  my or ig ina l  repor t ,  so  I  need to  

increase the  amount  tha t  i s  pa id  to  Reg iments  under  my  

count ing .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  now tha t  you have done  

these exe rc i ses ,  can I  take  you  to  Bund le  9 ,  page 153  20 

where  you have  an aggregate  to ta l  cos t  to  S ta te  in  

tab le  73 .   So maybe i f  we can s tar t  a t  the  bo t tom o f  tha t  

tab le  wh ich  is  on  page 155 o f  Bund le  9 .  

MR HOLDEN :    Cha i r,  I  w i l l  share  my screen so  tha t  the  

pub l i c  can see the  f igures  as  we l l .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  have ended up  –  I  see,  Mr  Chaska lson,  

I  have ended up w i th  two pages 153.   I  do  no t  know i f  they  

are  the  same.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Two pages 153 or  155,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  153.   There  is  one 155,  i t  i s  jus t  

tha t  as  I  was pag ing  th rough I  rea l i sed I  have got  two 

pages 153 tha t  can be dea l t  w i th  maybe some o ther  t ime,  

bu t  they look the  same.   I  do  no t  know i f  they  are  exact ly  

the  same.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    They are  –  they wou ld  no t  be  10 

exact ly  the  same because –  153.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The one is  a  rep lacement  page.   I  

assume the  o the r  one wh ich  i s  no t  wr i t ten  rep lacement  

page.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  the  d i f fe rence between 

them,  Cha i r,  w i l l  be  in  paragraph  195 where  there  is  the 

f igure  quoted fo r  the  to ta l  cos t  to  the  S ta te  o f  S ta te 

Capture  cont rac ts .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Shou ld  one be 153B or  someth ing  

or  shou ld . . .  [ in te rvenes]  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The rep lacement  page  is  the 

page tha t  i s  the  one tha t  we wou ld  l i ke  to  be  there  because  

i t  re f lec ts  the  reca lcu la ted  f igure .   But  Cha i r,  maybe fo r  

sor t  o f  housekeep ing  pu rposes i f  you  can maybe  draw a  

l ine  th rough the  o ther  one,  the  or ig ina l ,  bu t  jus t  keep i t  so 
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tha t  you a re  aware  o f  what  has changed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   I  w i l l  d raw a  l ine  jus t  ac ross  the  

page.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you and the  rep lacement  

page is  the  one to . . .  [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  the  one. . .  [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    . . .be  re fer red  to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  o therw ise  page 155 is  

where  we shou ld  bee.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And Mr  Ho lden,  you have a  new 

to ta l  there .  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   The new to ta l  cos t  tha t  I  

have o f  S ta te  payments  made in  re la t ion  to  S ta te  Capture 

cont rac ts  invo lv ing  the  Gupta  Enterp r ise  i s  

R57,064,461,114.82 and  aga in  fo r  the  t ranscr iber  tha t  i s  

57 ,064,461,114.82.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then i f  you can jus t  b r ie f l y  

run  th rough wha t  has changed to  ge t  to  th is  i ncreased 20 

number.   Obv ious ly  a  la rge  par t  o f  i t  i s  accounted fo r  the 

Eskom – accounted by  the  Eskom T-Systems cont rac t  tha t  

was not  in  you r  o r ig ina l  repor t .   But  can I  take  you  f i rs t  to  

the  f igure  a t  th ree  l ines  f rom the  top  o f  page 153,  the  

Reg iments  Cap i ta l  Transnet  f igure  and  can  
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you. . .  [ in te rvenes ]  

MR HOLDEN :    I  cer ta in ly  can .   As  a resu l t  o f  the 

in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  was prov ided o f  add i t iona l  payments ,  

tha t  amount  has now increased to  R1,023,161 ,529.89.   

That  i s  1 ,023,161 ,529.89.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then I  th ink  the  next  number  

tha t  has changed  is  the  payments  to  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  by  

SAFCOL Forest ry  Company.  

MR HOLDEN :    That  i s  cor rec t .   That  f igure  has been 

updated to  inc lude a  new f igure  and tha t  i s  R6,623 ,400 o r  10 

6 ,623,400.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then s ix  l ines  be low 

SAFCOL is  the  Eskom T-Systems cont rac t .   Then –  and in  

add i t ion  I  th ink  i t  i s  seven l ines  f rom the  bot tom o f  the 

page there  is  the  Eskom Zest i lo r  payments  wh ich  we have 

d iscussed.   And there  i s  a  fu r the r  payment  on  page 155  

tha t  was not  on  your  o r ig ina l  tab le  f rom the  Depar tment  o f  

Water  and San i ta t ion  f rom TNA –  l inked to  TNA Media .   

Can you br ie f l y  exp la in  tha t  overs igh t?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   That  amount  has now 20 

increased to  R5,924,333.64.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i t  i s  those changes tha t  

account  fo r  the  increase to  jus t  over  57  b i l l i on .   The o ther  

changes. . .  [ in te rvenes]  

MR HOLDEN :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The o ther  changes where  some 

add i t iona l  payments  have been p icked up a re  the  to ta ls  

pa id  to  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies  and can I  ask  you in  tha t  

contex t  to  go  to  page 194 o f  Bund le  9  and tab le  113 wh ich  

aggregates  a l l  o f  those f i rs t  leve l  laundry  payments .   

Maybe i f  we can s tar t  a t  the  to ta l  wh ich  has changed and 

tha t  i s  a t  page 198.   Can  you te l l  the  Cha i r  

what . . .  [ in te rvenes]  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    . . . tha t  to ta l  i s .  10 

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   My reca lcu la ted  f igure  fo r  

payments  to  f i rs t  leve l  laundry  en t i t ies  f rom Sta te  funds is  

R1,232,286,003.48.   That  i s  1 ,232,286,003.48.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And in  your  ea r l ie r  repor t  tha t  

f igure  was 1 ,207,032,055.67.   Can  you jus t  take  the  Cha i r  

to  the  numbers  tha t  have changed and I  th ink  the  f i rs t  one 

is  on  page 195?   The to ta l  number  pa id  f rom Reg iments  

Cap i ta l  to  A lba t ime,  can you g i ve  the  new number  and can  

you exp la in  what  accounts  fo r  the  change? 

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly.   The new f igure  f rom A lba t ime to 20 

–  f rom Reg iments  Cap i ta l  i s  R232,267,385.20.   That  

changes made aga in  as  the  resu l t  o f  the  very  he lp fu l  and  

generous ass is tance prov ided by  Rud i  Heyneke who found 

tha t  I  had not  inc luded a  payment  tha t  shou ld  have been  

made in  and had as  a  resu l t  the  to ta l  va lue  o f  the  
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payments  re f lec ted  was incor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then there  is  a  f igure  fo r  

B i rsaa Pro jec ts .   Aga in  can you jus t  exp la in  tha t  f igu re?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   In  re la t ion  to  B i rsaa  

Pro jec ts  there  is  an  amount  o f  R2,227,150 tha t  was not  

inc luded.   That  was aga in  p icked  up by  Mr  Rud i  Heyneke 

as  a  resu l t  o f  h is  ident i f y ing  the  two payments  to  

Reg iments  tha t  I  had not  recorded in  my or ig ina l  ev idence.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  two payments  f rom 

Reg iments  to  B i rsaa?  10 

MR HOLDEN :    Payments  to  Reg iments  f rom Transnet  

wh ich  then made fu r ther  payments  on to  B i rsaa.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Ah .   And then the  las t  one –  oh  

no,  i t  i s  no t  the  las t  one –  i s  [ ind is t inc t ]  as  we l l  wh ich  

needs some exp lanat ion ,  two down f rom B i rsaa.  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   [ Ind is t inc t ]  we have an  

amount  o f  R12,360,769.62 pa id  to  i t  by  Reg iments .   The  

er ror  there ,  Cha i r,  I  ac tua l l y  d id  dea l  w i th  those payments  

in  my o r ig ina l  repor t  a t  a  la te r  s tage in  the  repor t  bu t  in  

compi l ing  th is  ta l l y  th is  amount  was not  inc luded or ig ina l l y,  20 

so  i t  needs to  be  inc luded now to  increase the  to ta l  amount  

pa id  by  Reg iments .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And f ina l l y  i f  we go down to  

page 197 the re  i s  a  s l igh t  change to  the  amount  pa id  by  

Combined Pr i va te  Invest iga t ions to  Med jou l .  
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MR HOLDEN :    Cha i r,  here  the  new amount  pa id  to  Med jou l  

i s  R12,372,962.22.   The d i f fe rence  ar ises  f rom the  fac t  tha t  

there  was a  –  on  the  sp readsheets  I  was work ing  f rom what  

I  assumed was a  dup l i ca ted  payment  made –  the  same 

amount  pa id  on  the  same day wh ich  I  exc luded f rom my 

or ig ina l  ana lys is  in  abundance o f  caut ion .   And I  have now 

been ab le  to  conf i rm by re fe r r ing  to  the  or ig ina l  bank  

s ta tements  tha t  i t  ac tua l l y  was not  a  dup l i ca te  payment  and  

as  such I  have inc luded i t  aga in  in  the  to ta l  f igure .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then the  las t  s ign i f i can t  10 

number  tha t  has had to  be  ad jus ted  consequent ia l l y  i s  the  

to ta l  pa id  to  the  Gupta  Enterp r ise  d i rec t l y  o r  i nd i rec t l y.   

That  i s  a  number  tha t  we see a t  page 420 and in  

parag raph 749 a t  the  foo t  o f  page  420 you have your  new 

ca lcu la t ion  fo r  the  to ta l  amount  pa id  to  the  Gupta  

Enterp r ise  d i rec t l y  o r  ind i rec t l y  as  a  resu l t  o f  S ta te  Capture  

imp l ica ted  cont rac ts .   Can you te l l  the  Cha i r  what  tha t  new 

number  i s?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   That  new number  i s  

R16,217,793,047.18.   That  i s  16 ,217,793,047.18,  a l l  o f  20 

wh ich  was drawn f rom South  A f r i can S ta te  funds or  

k ickbacks pa id  re la ted  to  S ta te  Capture .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Mr  Ho lden.   That  i s  

a l l  o f  the  ad jus tments  to  the  f igures .   There  is  a lso  what  

you wanted to  re fer  to  in  today ’s  tes t imony and hopefu l l y  
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we w i l l  have the  oppor tun i ty  to  do  so  is  a  submiss ion  tha t  

was made jo in t l y  by  Open Secre ts  and Shadow Wor ld  

Invest iga t ions,  Shadow Wor ld  i s  o f  course  your  

o rgan isa t ion .   That  i s  in  Bund le  2340 and tha t  i s  in  re la t ion  

to  remedia l  ac t i on  or  measures  in  respect  o f  corpora te 

accountab i l i t y  fo r  S ta te  Captu re .   Can you take  o r  can we  

go to  tha t  document?  

CHAIRPERSON :    You say Bund le  23 . . .  [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bund le  20 ,  page 340.  

CHAIRPERSON :    23  or  28?  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bund le  2340,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And  can we g ive  tha t  an  

annexure  number,  Cha i r?   Can we ca l l  i t . . .  [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me get  to  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    VB10,  I  th ink  we a re  a t  G now.   

HH.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    VB10. . .  [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry,  Mr  Chaska lson.   My Reg is t ra r  20 

thought  I  go t  Bund le  23 .   I  do  no t  have.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  no ,  Bund le  20 ,  Cha i r.   20 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bund le  20 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    20 ,  I  am sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay and page. . .  [ in te rvenes]  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Page 340.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Okay,  I  am a t  340,  Bund le  20 .   I t  

i s  a  le t te r  f rom Shadow Wor ld  Invest iga t ions.   I t  shou ld  be  

exh ib i t . . .  [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    VB10H,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    VB10H.   The document  tha t  s ta r ts  a t  

page 340 f rom Shadow Wor ld  Invest iga t ions and w i l l  be  

admi t ted  and marked Exh ib i t  VB10H.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden,  w i thout  ge t t ing  in to  

any de ta i l  in  th is  document ,  because I  wou ld  l i ke  to  10 

address the  themes tha t  you dea l  w i th  there  a t  a  la ter  

s tage,  can you jus t  b r ie f l y  descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  i t  i s?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   Th i s  i s  a  se t  o f  

d iscuss ions and arguments  and recommendat ions tha t  a re  

made jo in t l y  by  Shadow Wor ld  Invest iga t ions and Open 

Secre ts  tha t  looks spec i f i ca l l y  a t  the  in te rnat iona l  best  

p rac t ice  and exper ience and a lso  the  South  A f r i can lega l  

f ramework  to  a r r i ve  a t  a  ser ies  o f  suggest ions and 

recommendat ions  about  the  best  ways in  wh ich  these so r ts  

o f  S ta te  Captu re  cont rac ts  cou ld  be  pun ished and  20 

prevented in  fu tu re .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Hopefu l l y  a t  the  end o f  your  

tes t imony we w i l l  ge t  to  exp lore  some o f  the  sugges t ions in  

tha t  regard .   But  be fore  we do tha t  I  need us  to  go  back to  

the  money laundry  s to ry  and we dea l t  w i th  the  f i rs t  leve l  
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launderers ,  we have dea l t  w i th  the  loca l  laundry  ne tworks .   

What  I  now want  us  to  look  a t  i s  the  movement  f rom the  

loca l  to  the  in te rnat iona l  and th is  i s  a  top ic  tha t  you 

address in  your  execut ive  summary a t  Bund le  20 ,  page 58.   

And maybe the  p lace to  s ta r t  i s  where  you -  i s  th is  

ca tegory  tha t  you descr ibe  as  on-shore /o f f - shore  br idges  

can you te l l  the  Cha i r  what  you mean by,  what  you descr ibe  

as  on-shore /o f f - shore  br idges?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r,  when I  re fe r  to  an  on-

shore /o f f - shore  b r idge I  am re fer r ing  to  a  company tha t  10 

rece ives funds f rom mul t ip le  d i f fe ren t  sources in  South  

A f r i ca  in land and  then under takes  to  bu l k  those payments  

and then pay out  those amounts  t o  rec ip ien ts  ab road.    In  

the  cases tha t  we have looked a t  i t  most ly  moves in to  the  

Hong Kong Ch ina  launder  market  tha t  I  ident i f ied .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now aga in  th is  i s  a  top ic  tha t  

you dea l  w i th  in  cons iderab le  de ta i l  in  you r  repor t ,  and we  

are  no t  go ing  to  be  ab le  to  go  in to  tha t  de ta i l  so  i f  I  can  – 

Cha i r  i f  I  can  g i ve  you the  re ferences where  th is  par t y  o f  

the  laundry  process is  addressed in  the  repor t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  Bund le  9 ,  pages 340 to  387,  

parag raphs 564 to  679 and then in  the  execut ive  summary 

i t  i s  Bund le  20  pages 58 to  64 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bund le?  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   20  page  58 to  64 ,  paragraphs 98  

to  125.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Paragraphs 98 to  125?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now what  you show in  bo th  o f  

those p laces i s  tha t  you have ident i f ied  12  compan ies  tha t  

have been p lay ing  th is  ro le  o f  on-shore /o f f - shore  b r idges.   

The compan ies  in  quest ion  and the  amounts  tha t  you see 

pass ing  th rough them f rom Sta te  Capture  are  neat ly  se t  ou t  10 

in  paragraph 126  o f  your  execut ive  summary a t  Bund le  20 ,  

page 64 and maybe i f  you cou ld  go  there  and take  the  

Cha i r  to  what  you have d iscovered in  re la t ion  to  these 12  

compan ies .  

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in l y  Cha i r.    In  th is  tab le  I  se t  ou t  the  

to ta l  amounts  tha t  we see t rans i t ing  v ia  these,  pa id  to  

these on-shore  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  aud io  d is to r ted ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Chaska lson I  m issed 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR HOLDEN:   . . . [ Ind is t inc t ]    20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry  Cha i r,  i t  i s  bund le  20  page  

64,  parag raph 126.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay thank you .   Yes you can cont inue  

Mr  Ho lden.  

MR HOLDEN:    Thank you Cha i r.    In  to ta l  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  
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R388 630 198,41  emanat ing  f rom Sta te  Capture  funds tha t  

were  pa id  to  these on-shore /o f f -shore  b r idges and the  vast  

ma jor i t y  o f  wh ich  was then onward  pa id  to  the  Hongkong 

Ch ina  Laundromat .   The tab le  tha t  appears  thereaf te r  l i s ts  

those on-shore /o f f -sho re  br idges  and the  to ta l  amounts  

pa id  in  re la t ion  to  S ta te  Capture .    I t  a lso  ident i f ies  the  

rou te  tha t  the  funds took to  reach tha t  po in t  and ident i f y  

there  fo r  example  in  the  f i rs t  en t ry  FTC Commod i t ies  i s  

pa id  an  amount  o f  R186 700 560,81 and the  rou te  t here  is  

f rom Homix  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  be ing  pa id  to  FTC Commodi t ies  10 

and as  I  p roceed down the  tab le  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  aud io  

d is to r ted ]  aggregate  f igures  tha t  were  t ransfer red  to  on-

shore /o f f - shore  br idges and the  par t i cu la rs  rou tes  tha t  

were  taken to  wh ich  those on-shore /o f f -shore  br idges and 

eventua l l y  to  be  pa id  in to  o f f -sho re  rec ip ien ts .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cer ta in ly  what  fo r  me has been 

the  most  a la rm ing fea ture  o f  the  work  tha t  you have done 

is  re f lec ted  i n  the  tab le  a t  page 127,  can you take  the  

Cha i r  th rough tha t  tab le  because  what  i t  re f lec ts  to  me is  

tha t  what  we see in  S ta te Captu re  i s  jus t  the  t ip  o f  the 20 

iceberg  o f  money launder ing  tha t  has taken p lace  ins ide  

South  A f r i ca .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Page 127 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in l y  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry  Cha i r,  i t  i s  s t i l l  Bund le  20  
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page 65.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh i t  i s  paragraph 127.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    127,  i t  is  tha t  tab le  a t  the  foo t  o f  

page 65.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   You may cont inue Mr  Ho lden.  

MR HOLDEN:    Thank you very  much Cha i r.    I  echo 

Advocate  Chaska lson ’s  s ta tement  tha t  one o f  the  most  

d is tu rb ing  fea tures  o f  fo l low ing the  Gupta  Enterpr i se  funds 

has been d iscover ing  these inc red ib ly  ac t i ve  and e labora te  

on-shore /o f f -shore  br idges o f  wh ich  the  Gupta  En terpr i se  10 

funds on ly  ca ter  fo r  a  smal l i sh  por t ion ,  in  to ta l  jus t  look ing  

a t  those on-shore /o f fshore  br idges tha t  we have been ab le  

to  ident i f y  jus t  encas ing  the  Gupta  Enterp r ise  re la ted  funds  

we have ident i f ied  3  659 separa te  t ransact ions mov ing  

f rom these on-shore /o f fshore  br idges o f f sho re  and most  

o f ten  and most  f requent ly  i n to  the  Hongkong Ch ina  l aundry  

ne twork  and the  to ta l  [no  aud io ] .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  am jus t  go ing  to  ca l l  Mr  Ho lden  

to  see i f  we can  sor t  ou t .    In  the  meant ime I  th ink  the  

techn ica l  p rob lem may be here .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  th ink  the  techn ic ians must  look  a t  

i t .  

MR HOLDEN:    I  am not  sure  i f  you  can hear  me now? 

CHAIRPERSON:    We can hear  you now.    Ja ,  we can hear  

you now.  
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MR HOLDEN:   Apolog ies  bu t  . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  back in  the  hear ing  now,  no  

longer  on  the  phone to  Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The image o f  you is  f rozen w i th  

you ho ld ing  the  phone to  your  ear,  bu t  we can hear  you.    

Maybe what  we shou ld  do  i s  to  –  I  have been asked Cha i r  

i f  we can take  a  f i ve  m inute  ad journment  fo r  the  

techn ic ians jus t  to  res tar t  the  sys tem.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  we w i l l  take  a  f i ve  m inutes  

break.   We ad journ .  10 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay le t  us hope the technica l  g l i tches 

there wi l l  not  be more of  them.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thanks Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes le t  us cont inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Mr Holden you were descr ib ing to  

the Chai r  the tab le at  Bundle 20 page 65.   Can you p ick up 

where you were when we were looking at  that  tab le? 

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly  Chai r  just  to  go back to  my or ig ina l  20 

point .   So these are the onshore/offshore br idges that  we 

have ident i f ied  in  the t rac ing of  the Gupta Enterpr ise funds 

and in  to ta l  we can see an amount  of  R4 969 623 134.70 in  

the 3 659 separate t ransact ions.    

 As I  was saying before my in ternet  connect ion  
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s ta r ted p lay ing t r i cks on me i t  was in terest ing to  see that  in  

conduct ing the f low of  funds exerc ise of  t rac ing these – 

these Gupta Enterpr ise funds to  the i r  f ina l  po int  tha t  the – 

the South Af r i can Reserve Bank seemed to be – had been 

t ravers ing some of  these top ics for  qu i te  a whi le  before –  

before I  got  there  and very,  very helpfu l ly  the Reserve  Bank 

then was suppl ied – suppl ied  the f ind ings of  the i r  

invest igat ions to  the commission  which I  –  I  have then 

rev iewed and what  emerges is  an incredib ly  d is tu rb ing 

pat te rn of  huge – huge f lows of  funds abroad in to Hong 10 

Kong in  par t icu lar  v ia  these offshore networks and 

i l lust rates a rather  – a t ru ly  shocking scale of  the – of  

organised cr ime in  South Af r ica bu t  a lso the ro le  that  these 

– that  these very smal l  handfu l  companies we have 

ident i f ied as p lay ing in  making those funds paid abroad.    

 E ffect i ve ly  what  we see to  the Gupta  Enterpr ise 

involvement  in  us ing these companies is  the  Gupta  

Enterpr ise is  making common cause wi th  and us ing the  

same networks that  is  l inked to  some of  the most  ext reme 

and murderous organised cr ime.   I  re fer  par t icu la r ly  here to  20 

the case of  a  g lobal  which we ident i f ied was receiv ing 

payments for  00:02:51.   The Reserve Bank when they were  

invest igat ing th is  issue the ind iv idual  who was running that  

par t icu lar  onshore/offshore br idge which is  represented 

here as Ubuzusa they in tended to  br ibe the Reserve Bank 
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o ff ic ia l  and the Reserve Bank off ic ia l  then worked c losely 

wi th  the Hawks to set  up a st ing  in  which that  ind iv idual  

then proffered another  br ibe to  the Reserve  Bank off ic ia l  

was arrested and subsequent ly  charged and – and 

successfu l l y  prosecuted fo r  the cr ime of  corrupt ion.  

 What  was d is tu rb ing was that  in  the preparat ion and 

the announcement  around that  speci f ic  t r ia l  that  was 

conf i rmed by Shaun Abrahams who was then of  the NPA that  

the funds that  Ubuzuza and 00:03:38 Global  were involved 

in  – in  moving abroad inc luded payments inwards f rom some 10 

of  the most  murderous organised cr ime groupings in  the  

count ry and some of  the cr imes contemplated and which 

ra ised those funds inc luded th ings l i ke  people t ra ff ick ing,  

drug t ra ff ick ing and var ious heinous sexual  o ffences.  

 What  we effect ive ly  see here is  the  Gupta Enterpr ise  

making use of  the worst  possib le  organised cr ime networks  

you could possib ly  imagine to  move state funds abroad.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  –  just  to  – to  make sure I  understood 

what  you sa id about  the off ic ia l  f rom the Reserve Bank was 

invest igat ing he was offered a br ibe by an ind iv idual  o ff ic ia l  20 

f rom Ubuzuza and then when he brought  in  the  Hawks 

another  br ibe was offered to  the Hawks.  

MR HOLDEN:   No sorry Chai r  but  that  i s  not  so c lear.   What  

happened was that  the  ind iv idua l  o ffe red a br ibe  to  the  

Reserve Bank off ic ia l  who acted  to ta l l y  in  good fa i th  and a 
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to ta l ly  upstanding  way and in formed h is  super io rs  that  th is  

br ibe had been o ffered and a lso in fo rmed the Hawks.   And 

on that  basis  the Hawks worked wi th  the Reserve Bank 

off ic ia l  to  set  up  a fur ther  s t ing a t  a  restaurant  where the  

ind iv idual  was ar rested by the name of  Ms Tiyang Wang 

appeared at  the restaurant  and of fered the Reserve Bank 

off ic ia l  a  b r ibe again and as  she was being moni to red she 

was ar rested by the Hawks.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.   Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Now you ta lk  about  the scale of  – 10 

of  the launder ing that  – or  the launder ing networks that  a re  

crossing over  f rom South Af r i ca in to the Hong Kong 

launder ing network.   Let  us just  turn to  the scale  of  the 

network on the other  s ide and in  th is  regard you – you ta lk  

at  page 66 of  Bundle 20 of  the scale of  the Hong Kong 

China launder ing  network and you refer  in  par t i cu lar  to  an 

in ternal  HSBC repor t  that  was t r iggered by  HSBC 

exper ience wi th  Regiments Asia and Tequesta.  

 Can you te l l  the Chai r  about  that  repor t  and what  i t  

reveals?  20 

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly  Chai r.   As Advocate Chaskalson 

ment ioned th is  repor t  was wr i t ten in te rnal l y  wi th in  HSBC to  

establ ish the i r  exposure to  the Gupta Enterpr ise  and I  was 

t r iggered because of  the payments that  were made to 

Regiments Asia,  Tequesta and Morning Star  a r is ing f rom 
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Transnet  k ickbacks which were  paid in to the  HSBC 

accounts.  

 The in te rnal  invest igat ion – HSBC invest igat ion then 

sought  to  establ i sh where the funds paid to  Regiments Asia,  

Tequesta and Morning Star  went  and what  sor t  o f  exposure 

that  c reated fo r  the bank as a resul t  –  and the f igures were  

a la rming point ing  to  the fact  that  the amounts paid in  by the  

Gupta Enterpr ise  in to th is  t ru ly  vast  in ternat ional l y  money 

launder ing scheme was in  re la t ive terms very smal l .  

 The HSBC invest igat ion ident i f ied  that  there  were  10 

167 d i f ferent  companies that  received payments f rom 

Regiments Asia and Tequesta in  the space of  two and a hal f  

years.  

 Of  those 92 companies that  received payments f rom 

Regiments Asia,  Tequesta and Morning Star  92 o f  those 

companies  held  accounts at  HSBC and then when –  by the  

t ime the HSBC had in i t ia ted an invest igat ion 32 o f  those 

accounts had been c losed but  60 o f  the accounts were st i l l  

open 

 HSBC then d id an analys is  of  the d isposi t ion of  20 

funds in to an out  o f  those accounts and very d is tu rb ing ly  

HSBC’s invest iga t ion revealed that  just  these  60 accounts 

that  were ident i f ied received 50 339 payments to  a to ta l  

va lue of  4 .2 b i l l i on dol lars and these 60 accounts made 

onward payments  to  5 556 fur ther  benef ic iar ies of  which 55 
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were a lso paid by Regiments Asia ,  Tequesta and Morning  

Star.   The to ta l  va lue of  onward payments was 3.78 b i l l i on  

dol lars wi th  32 653 t ransact ions.    

 I  do not  know i f  that  is  just  an execut ive summary 

but  I  do in  main body of  my repor t  the HSBC internal  

invest igat ion was of  the opin ion that  the number of  

t ransact ion that  had taken p lace the extent  o f  the d ispers ion 

of  funds made i t  e ffect i ve ly  impossib le to  t race these 

u l t imate end points of  these funds so sophist i cated was th is  

network.    10 

 And i t  seems very obvious on th is  basis that  there  

ex is ts  a t ru ly  vast  in te rnat ional  money launder ing  network 

that  the Gupta Enterpr ise was tapping in to and which  was 

operat ing at  the  t ime and which  HSBC seems to have 

p layed some sor t  o f  ro le  provid ing the bank accounts  for.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r  just  for  re ference purposes 

that  –  that  HSBC repor t  is  annexure 89 and i t  i s  in  Bundle  

15 – page 2 of  Bundle 15.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Bundle 15 page? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   2 .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   2 .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   There  is  another  d is turb ing 

d iscovery that  you made in  re la t ion to  the E lcanani  network  

and two of  the companies  that  you ident i f y  as 

onshore/offshore  br idges John S i te l  and Truth Haven [?]   
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can you –  you address th is  at  page 66 of  Bundle 20.   Can 

you te l l  the Chai r  what  the Canani  network i s  and what  your  

invest igat ions showed in  re la t ion to  the i r  p resence in  South  

Af r ica? 

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly  Chai r.   The Canani  money 

launder ing invest igat ion a lso referred to  as a MLO was 

p laced under the  Uni ted States o ff ice of  fo re ign 00:10:54 

cont ro l  sanct ions in  2016 a long wi th  i ts  mastermind E l t i f  

Canani  who headed i t  and who most  appointed h is  fami ly  to  

run i t .  A t  the t ime of  the award – of  the sanct ions not ice and 10 

Mr Canani ’s  eventual  a rrest  he was descr ibed as the wor ld ’s  

most  wanted money launderer.  

 The E lcanani  money launder ing organisat ion was a  

vast  money exchange and money launder ing operat ion that  

operated for  many,  many years.   I t  operated a 00:11:33 

exchange cal led the E l  Serouni  Exchange based the UAE 

but  a lso moved funds f rom around the wor ld .  

 The US Ofax sanct ions designated f ive companies 

associated wi th  the money launder ing organisat ion  ca l led  

Mazaka Genera l  Trading,  LLIC,  Jet  L ink  Text i le  Trading,  20 

Seven Sea Golden Trading LLC,  A ida Trading LLC and 

00:12:00 Trading LLC.    

 I  th ink the most  d is tu rb ing feature of  th is  i s  that  the  

US invest igat ion establ ished that  the E lcanani  network the i r  

money launder ing  network was being used for  a  vast  range 
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o f  –  of  again heinous cr iminal  act iv i t ies.  

 There was launder ing money for  mul t i -nat ional ,  

in ternat ional  drug car te ls  and was a lso involved in  receiv ing  

d iss ipat ing  and launder ing funds for  terro r is ts  groups such 

as  A l -Qaeda.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And how does – how does 

E lcanani  on ly become re levant  to  our  invest igat ion? 

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly  Chai r.   We ident i f ied at  a  re la t ive ly  

la te stage in  th is  invest igat ion tha t  there were ent i t ies  that  

were making payments us ing Gupta Enterpr ise funds in to  10 

the – the Hong Kong offshore network.  

 We then ident i f ied that  cer ta in  of  these companies  

were a lso making  use s imul taneously of  – of  th is  E lcanani  

network and to make sure that  I  get  the – the exact  f igures 

r ight  a t  paragraph 134 of  my execut ive summary I  note that  

South Af r i can Reserve Bank records show that  Donsonte l  11  

– sorry 133CC pa id an amount  of  2  060 231.00 dol lars that  

is  23 966 952.69 in  February and March 2015 to one of  the 

E lcanani  network  companies ca l led Seven Seas Golden 

Trading and a lso to  A ida Trading.  20 

 At  the same t ime John S i te l  was making payments  to  

the Hong Kong network.   The other  company that  I  ident i f ied  

was True Haven which t ransfer red  R52 202 220.00 to  four  

d i f ferent  E lcanan i ,  Emelo companies inc lud ing Jet  L ink 

Trading,  Seven Seas Golden Trading,  00:14:09 Trad ing.   A t  
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the same t ime as i t  was making payments abroad to the  

Hong Kong China network.  

 What  I  f ind par t i cu la r ly  d is turb ing  is  that  the True 

Haven and John S i te l  were a lso as they were proceeding  

wi th  these payments paying funds in to the same extensive 

local  laundry network that  was used by the  Gupta  

Enterpr ise.  

 For  example True Haven made a number o f  

payments in to a  company by the  name of  Smart  Fabr ics  

Trading which was a very act i ve account .  10 

 For t ime Consul tants made a payment  of  that  amount  

in to the same company.   Smart  Fabr ics a lso received a 

payment  f rom a company by the  name of  Rich Rewards 

which as I  set  ou t  in  th is  sp ider  web analys is  in  my repor t  

was a key par t  o f  that  sp ider  web – sp ider  web network and 

actual ly  had developed a jo in t  venture re la t ionship or  

sought  to  develop a jo in t  venture  re la t ionship wi th  Sahara  

Computers.  

 Smart  Fabr ics  a lso  received a fur ther  13 payments  

f rom a company by the name of  Anchor Import  and Export  20 

which was cont ro l led by Devenshen Moodley who a lso  

cont ro l led a number of  the d i f ferent  onshore/offshore 

br idges that  were used by the Gupta Enterpr ise inc lud ing  

P inet ree Wholesa lers,  Gra in Core Dist r ibutors and Damler  

Trading.  
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 What  was a lso  in terest ing was that  –  that  the 

d i rector  o f  Donsente l  once Donsente l  was subject  to  a 

SAAB order  moved i ts  operat ions to  a company by the name 

of  Sty la  Fashions and Sty la  Fashions ended up paying R1.5 

mi l l ion  in to a  company by the name of  C&C Dis t r ibutors  

which was the feeder fund for  an  onshore/offshore  br idge 

ca l led CC Hold ings which most ly  pa id out  to  the Hong Kong 

China network and that  precise 00 :16:13 was a lso used at  

the same t ime by 00:16:14 Moodley and which was 

d is t r ibut ing state capture funds.  10 

 So i f  I  am to cut  through a l l  o f  tha t  in format ion  what  

we essent ia l ly  have here is  we can see the  operat ion of  two 

vast  in te rnat iona l  money launder ing networks that  are 

operat ing abroad but  which  are  p lay ing  a v i ta l  ro le  in  

launder ing the funds of  cr iminal  enterpr ises in  South Af r i ca  

and that  – the Gupta Enterpr ise emerges f rom th is  because 

the Gupta Enterpr ise was making use of  the same local  

laundry as the same – as those ent i t ies making funds 

payments in to the E lcanani  network were which ind icates 

that  the cr iminal  networks they were work ing together  wi th  – 20 

a lso the cr iminal  networks used by  the Gupta Enterpr ise  

were c losely re la ted i f  not  the same as the ones paying out  

to  the E lcanani  network.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   There is  one fu r ther  po int  before 

we leave th is  po int .   You ta lk  about  Anchor Import  and 
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Export  are you able to  te l l  the Chai r  anyth ing about  the 

cross border  payments f rom Anchor to  an ent i ty  ca l led  

ReMoon Import  and Export  –  an en t i ty  based in  UAE.  

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly  Chai r.   I  do not  have the speci f ic  

t ransfer  records in  f ront  o f  me but  I  can te l l  you that  that  

rec ip ient  agreement  has been ident i f ied in  re la t ion  to  the 

ar rest  and the bai l  appl i cat ion of  Mr Iqbal  Sharma and as 

far  as I  recal l  and I  hope I  do not  get  th is  wrong th is  was an 

ent i t y  that  was receiv ing payments that  was eventual l y  

payments onwards to  Iqbal  Sharma or  at  least  receiv ing  10 

payments for  the benef i t  o f  Iqbal  Sharma.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Before we leave these 

onshore/offshore br idges I  want  to  ra ise – to  take you to  the  

par t  o f  your  repor t  where you descr ibe payments through 

these br idges d i rect ly  in to the Gupta Enterpr ise  Dubai  

company ca l led  Gr i f f in  L ine but  I  –  I  not ice that  a l though 

and I  must  actual ly  take some of  the b lame here in  ear l ie r  

draf ts  of  the repor t  we had together  set t led vers ions that  

expla ined the connect ion between the Gupta ’s  and Gr i f f in  

L ine but  somehow in  edi t ing and f ina l i s ing  the  repor t  20 

re levant  ev idence was not  inc luded.   So I  am going to  ask i f  

we can in t roduce a ser ies of  emai ls  for  the purposes of  

expla in ing who Gr i f f in  L ine are and then we can get  in to the 

analys is  of  how money f lows to Gr i f f in  L ine.   So for  that  

purpose can we go to  Bundle 20 page 288 and Chai r  I  am 
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go ing to  ask Mr Holden real l y  to  speak to  a bundle o f  emai ls  

that  one f inds on the Gupta Leaks.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   We can ident i fy  each one wi th  a  

separate annexure number or  shou ld we just  g ive the whole 

bundle an annexure number instead? 

CHAIRPERSON:   And ca l l  i t  l i ke a  bundle of  Gupta  Leak –  

emai ls  Leak emai ls  o r  someth ing l ike that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Relat ing to  Gr i f f in  L ine Trading.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja we can g ive – we can do that  and then 10 

– and then we wi l l  g ive one exhib i t  number and the rest  a re 

par t  o f  i t  but  on separate pages.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay we can ( ta lk ing over  one 

another ) .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So Chai r  the bundle runs f rom –  

wel l  the pages are Bundle 20 pages 288 to 317.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes to  22  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   288 to  317.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And can we make that  bundle of  

emai ls  annexure VV10I?  

CHAIRPERSON:   And what  are we going to  ca l l  them? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   A bundle of  emai ls  re la t ing to  

Gr i f f in  L ine Trading.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   The bundle of  emai ls  s tar t ing f rom page 

288 of  Bundle 20 up to  page 327? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   317 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   3  – up to  317 those emai ls  wi l l  be 

admi t ted  as Exhib i t  VV10I  and they wi l l  –  re ference wi l l  be 

made to the page of  each emai l  as we go a long.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Mr Holden on that  basis can you 

star t  wi th  page –  Bundle 20 page 288 and descr ibe  to  the 10 

Chai r  what  you see there? 

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly  Chai r.   A t  th is  page we have an 

emai l  f rom Ronica Ragavan to Tony Rajesh Gupta on the 12 

October  2015 wi th  the subject  Dubai  New 00:23:12.   The 

substance of  th is  emai l  is  to  ind icate to  Tony Gupta that  two 

new companies were being  formed in  Dubai  and that  one of  

the companies was ca l led VKS Jewel le ry Trading LLC and 

the second was Gr i f f in  L ine Trading  LLC ind icat ing  that  the  

Gupta ’s  had cont ro l  over  that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then i f  we go to  289 the fo l lowing 20 

page.   Can you descr ibe what  you see there? 

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly  Chai r.   We have an emai l  f rom 

Ronica Ragavan to Tony Gupta that  was sent  on the 5 

November 2015 a t taching a – an at tachment  ca l led Agent  o r  

Representat ion Agreement  and the  draf t  agreement  is  then 
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a t tached to that .   And the agency representat ion agreement  

the draf t  one is  between a pr inc ip le  yet  to  be establ i shed 

and Gr i f f in  L ine Trading LLC which  ind icates again that  the 

Gupta Enterpr ise was cont ro l l ing or  draf t ing the process of  

enter ing in to a jo in t  agreement  on behal f  o f  Gr i f f in  L ine and 

as  a resul t  I  be l ieve that  Gr i f f in  L ine was under the i r  

cont ro l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I  ask you to  go to  page 291 

where you actual ly  see what  you have just  descr ibed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  before he does that .  10 

MR HOLDEN:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr – just  before he does that  Mr  

Chaskalson I  th ink what  I  agreed to here may cause 

confusion.   I  th ink what  we should do is  these emai ls  we 

have g iven them Exhib i t  VV10I  I  th ink  what  we shou ld do is  

maybe mark them abcd then – so they share the same 

exhib i t  BB10I  but  the f i rs t  one at  288 is  A and the rest  are  

BCD up to the end.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thanks Chai r  wel l  then . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  can be done la te r.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Or  I  could very quick ly… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja we could do that  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Do that  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So that  would be A then Chai r  i f  
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we go to  the emai l  on 289 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can that  be B? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   The… 

CHAIRPERSON:   On my f i le  I  wi l l  just  wr i te  B and 

somebody can la ter  on can wr i te  the fu l l  exhib i t  number.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Cer ta in ly  Chai r.   And then there is  

an at tached agreement  that  s tar ts  a t  291 i f  that  can be C? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And the  – I  th ink the next  one is  

at  307 on my notes.   I f  we can make that  D – an emai l  a t  

207 – D.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And at  312 there is  another  emai l  

which is  E.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you sk ip 308 or  i t  is  par t  o f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  apologise Chai r  you are 

absolute ly  r ight .   So i t  is  308 must  become E.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And the  annexure – the passport  

that  is  photographed at  310 can be F.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then 312 wi l l  be G.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry.   The passport  runs f rom 309 
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to?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  runs f rom… 

CHAIRPERSON:   To 311.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   3  – I  th ink  i t  s tar ts  on 310.   There 

is  one page on 310 and there is  a  second page on 311.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   So 310 would be G.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   No 310 would be F.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  have you got  a t  309 that  I  have 

marked as F? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   309 is  par t  o f  the same emai l  as  10 

308.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay,  okay.   Okay so 310 is  F.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And 312 is  G.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And there is  a  le t te rhead at  313 

which should be H.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And that  is  the fu l l  bundle Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   No thank you.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So – Mr  Holden can you then go 20 

to  307 which is  annexure VV10ID and descr ibe to  the Chai r  

what  you see here? 

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly  Chai r.   We have an emai l  f rom 

Ronica Ragavan to Tony Gupta at  Sahara.co.za sent  on the  

19 December 2015 in  which Ronica  Ragavan notes that   
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“Dear S i r,  our  agreements are as  fo l lows:   A l l  commodi ty  

and gra ins are in  Gr i f f in  L ineTrading LLC and then in  

brackets i t  g ives the name (Kamal  S inghala) .   Kamal  

S inghala was the  son of  A ja Gupta and we understand that  

he was the – a d i rector  o f  Gr i f f in  L ine Trading.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And last ly  i f  we can go to  312 

which is  VV10IG and i f  you can descr ibe to  the Cha i r  what 

you see there.  

MR HOLDEN:   Cer ta in ly.   We have an emai l  f rom Ronica 

Ragavan to Ashu Chawla that  i s  sent  o f  the  15 February  10 

2016,  w i th  sub jec t  Gr i f f in  L ine  New and a t tached the  

document  ca l led  Gr i f f in -L ine-New.doc and on the  fo l low ing 

page,  what  we have is  a  new document  se t t ing  ou t  Gr i f f in  

L ine ’s  s ta t ionery.   So,  th is  i s  the  l e t te rhead o f  Gr i f f in  L ine  

Trad ing  and tha t  i t  ge t  use  to  the  same cor respondence.   

E f fec t i ve ly  what  we have is ,  Gr i f f in  L ine ’s  le t te rhead and 

s ta t ioner ies  be ing  des igned by  the  Gupta  Ente rpr i se .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Then,  can we go back to  Bund le  

9  to  see the  payments  tha t  a re  made,  no t  th rough the  

o f fsho re  laundry,  bu t  s t ra igh t  in to  Gr i f f in  L ine  and i f  we can  20 

s ta r t  a t  page 384,  Bund le  9?  

MR HOLDEN :    I  am there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    384,  you sa id?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  I  have got  i t .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And can you desc r ibe  to  the  

Cha i r  who Bar low(?)  Zone were?   

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly.   Bar low Zone  was an 

onshore /o f fsho re  br idge and i t  rece ived funds ar i s ing  f rom 

s ta te  captu re  v ia  a  feeder (? )  account  by  t he  name o f  

Zacob i te (?) .   Zacob i te  was in  tu rn  a  SAAMED Bu l l ion ,  who  

was pa id  f rom s ta te  capture  funds .   So,  Bar low Zone is  the  

u l t imate  endpo in t  o f  an  onshore /o f fshore  ne twork  tha t  

rece ived(?)  o r  d iss ipa te  s ta te  capture  funds.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And a t  tab le  227 a t  the  foo t  o f  10 

page 304,  can you descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  i s  re f lec ted  

there?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   What  we have he re  is  the 

ta l l y (? )  o f  a l l  the  payments  tha t  a re  made f rom SAAMED 

Bu l l ion  to  Zacob i te  wh ich  is  the  feeder  account  fo r  Bar low 

Zone between the  15 t h  o f  February  2016 and the  

22 n d  o f  Apr i l  2016 .   The to ta l  amount  i s  R 7  675 000 .00.   Of  

par t i cu la r  re levance and impor tance are  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  a re  

the  payments  tha t  a re  made Apr i l  18  to  onwards to  Apr i l  

26 .    20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And then,  can you exp la in  what  

the  re levance o f  those payments  are ,  maybe by  go ing  down 

to  page 385,  paragraph 677?  

MR HOLDEN :    I  am sor ry  –  the  re ference?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    385,  pa rag raph 677.  
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MR HOLDEN :    What  we see  is  [ speaker  unc lea r  – 

d is to r t ion  in  v ideo l ink ]  Zacob i te  made [speaker  unc lear  –  

d is to r t ion  in  v ideo l ink ]  . . .a  very  l a rge  number  o f  payments  

wh ich  we  be l ieve  ended up w i th  Va lo  Zone  and  in  

par t i cu la r,  those dates  were  show tha t  the  funds go ing  f rom 

SAAMED Bu l l ion  to  Zacob i te  was exact ly  the  same t ime 

tha t  Va lo  Zone was made s ix  payments  to  Gr i f f in  L ine  

Genera l  Trad ing  va lued a t  R 3  536 970.06.   So,  I  be l ieve  

tha t  s ta te  captu re  funds t ransmi t ted  v ia  SAAMED Bu l l ion  

then onto  Zacob i te ,  then onto  Bar low Zone and then to 10 

Gr i f f in  L ine  abroad.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And can  you . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR HOLDEN :    A t  tab le  228,  wh ich  is  the  fo l low ing  page,  I  

then se t  ou t  those spec i f i c  payments  tha t  a re  made f rom 

Bar low Zone to  Gr i f f in  L ine  Trad ing  and as  you can see,  

the  da tes  genera l l y  acco rd  w i th  the  amounts  tha t  I  was  

d iscuss ing  prev ious l y  be ing  pa id  f rom SAAMED Bu l l ion  to  

Zacob i te .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And can we then look  a lso  a t  

Seat t le  Trad ing  and Gr i f f in  L ine  and tha t  i s  an  i ssue tha t  20 

you address a t  page –  no ,  I  have got  the  wrong re ference.   

I  am sor ry  about  tha t .   I  need to . . .   Maybe to  go  back up  to  

page 380. . .   I f  one s ta r ts  a t  page 379,  tab le  225.   The 

head ing  o f  tab le  225 i s  ac tua l l y  on  the  prev ious page 378,  

bu t  i f  you  can take  the  Cha i r  th rough tha t  tab le  and exp la in  
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what  one sees there?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   What  I  am descr ib ing  

here ,  i t  i s  aga in  f o rms par t  o f  the  Sp ide r  Web,  as  I  ca l l  i t ,  

the  ne twork  o f  money launder ing  en t i t ies .   Here ,  what  I  am 

address ing  is ,  payments  by  SAAMED Bu l l ion  to  Sh izar i (? )  

Trad ing  and I  ca lcu la ted  tha t  Sh iza r i  Trad ing  was pa id  

R 23 509 527.16 by  SAAMED Bu l l ion  in  47  payments .    

 The payments  are  a l l  made between the  18 t h  o f  

Apr i l  2016 and  the  13 t h  o f  Ju ly  2016 and a l l  o f  the 

payments  to  Sh izar i  Trad ing  were  funded w i th  funds tha t  10 

u l t imate ly  der i ved f rom s ta te  cap ture  and tab le  225 then  

se ts  ou t  the  payments  tha t  a re  made to  Sh izar i  by  SAAMED 

Bu l l ion  by  hav ing  ident i f ied  the  under l in ing  source  o f  funds 

wh ich  a l l  comes f rom the  Gupta  Enterp r ise  and the  source  

o f  funds is  ident i f ied  in  the  fa r - r igh t  co lumn.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And then a t  –  i f  you can sk ip  

fo rward  to  666 where  you desc r ibe  ce r ta in  payments  f rom 

Sh iza r i  tha t  ended up a t  Gr i f f in  L ine .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  parag raph . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.    20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Tr ip le . . .  666,  Cha i r,  on  page 

380.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR HOLDEN :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I  w i l l  i gnore  the  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  o f  tha t  number  fo r  the  moment .   The  Sh izar i  
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Trad ing  ac ted  as  a  c lear ing  house and a  feeder  account ,  

rece iv ing  mul t ip le  payments  f rom mul t ip le  d i f fe ren t  sources 

and these were  then pa id  on to  two separa te  

onshore /o f fsho re  br idges.    

 One was ca l led  Seat t le  C lo th ing  Manufac tu rers  and  

the  o ther  one was ca l led  L ine  For (?)  Trad ing .   And what  I  

dea l  w i th  a t  paragraph 666 i s  tha t  I  have been  ab le  t o  

t rade tha t  R 2  867 000,00 o f  the  funds tha t  were  pa id  by  

SAAMED Bu l l ion /Sh iza r i ,  t rans i ted  v ia  Sh izar i  to  Seat t le  

C lo th ing  Manufac turers  and then in to  the  account  o f  Gr i f f in  10 

L ine  Trad ing  abroad.    

 So,  we have a  very  d i rec t  l ine  o f  s ta te  capture  

funds mov ing  to  the  loca l  ne twork  on to  the  

onshore /o f fsho re  br idges and then to  Gr i f f in  L ine .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I f  you  can d iscuss the  de ta i l  o f  

tha t  a t  paragraph  667 on page 381? 

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly.   I  p rov ide  a t  parag raph 667 aga in  

a  l i s t  o f  t ransact ions and how th is  f lowed.   I  a lso  pu t  tha t  

in to  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  in to  tab le  fo rm ,  wh ich  maybe s l igh t ly  

eas ie r  to  fo l low a t  tab le  226.    20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So ,  i f  you  can exp la in  tab le  226? 

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly.   We have the  f i rs t  se t  o f  

payments  –  i t  desc r ibes,  essent ia l l y,  the  rou te  o f  payments  

to  Gr i f f in  L ine .   The f i r s t  en t r ies  are  a l l  payments  f rom 

SAAMED Bu l l ion  to  Sh izar i  Trad ing  and the  to ta l  was –  I  
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have g iven the  to ta l ,  aggregated  funds the re ,  wh ich  i s  

R 4  574 954.40.    

 Fo l lowing tha t ,  i t  i s  a l l  the  amounts  pa id  by  Sh izar i  

Trad ing  d rawing on those same funds a lso  on  the  21s t  o f  

Apr i l  to  Seat t le  C lo th ing  Manufac turers .   And the  to ta l  we 

can ident i f y,  a  to ta l  amount  o f  R 5  865 800,00 go ing  f rom 

Sh iza r i  Trad ing  to  Seat t le  and then o f  tha t  amount ,  we can 

see f i ve  t ransact i ons tha t  happened on the  21s t  o f  Apr i l  to  

the  22 n d  o f  Apr i l .    

 The ones tha t  a re  most  no tab le  occur  on  the  22n d  10 

o f  Apr i l  2016 and  tha t  i s  two payments  fo r  100 000 Do l la rs  

o r  R 1  434 000,00 f rom Seat t le  C lo th ing ’s  B idvest  Bank  

se t t lement  account  to  Gr i f f in  L ine  Trad ing .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And –  sor ry,  what  was the  da te  

o f  tha t  –  those two payments?  

MR HOLDEN :    I t  i s  the  22 n d  o f  Apr i l  2016.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Do you know what  was  

happen ing  in  the  greater  Gupta  fami ly  on  the  22n d  o f  Apr i l  

2016?  

MR HOLDEN :    You caught  me a t  a  b i t  o f  loss  there .   I  20 

wou ld  imag ine  i t  was –  I  know these funds or ig ina l l y  

emanate  f rom funds tha t  to  A lba t ime.   I  th ink  there  may 

have been a  wedd ing  a t  tha t  t ime.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    [ laughs]   I  th ink  you may be  

r igh t .   You remember  the  dest ina t ion  o f  tha t  wedd ing? 
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MR HOLDEN :    That  wedd ing  was –  I  know i t  was not  in  

South  A f r i ca ,  bu t  I  cannot  reca l l .   There  are  so  many  

d i f fe ren t  wedd ings.   [ laughs]   I t  may be –  I  th ink  i t  i s  the  

wedd ing  in  Duba i ,  bu t  i t  may a lso  be  the  wedd ing  in  Tu rkey  

tha t  we addressed in  the  Transnet  ev idence . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  th ink  i t  was the  wedd ing  in  

Anta lya ,  Turkey.    

MR HOLDEN :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Bu t  we can es tab l i sh  those fac ts  

in  due course .  10 

MR HOLDEN :    [ laughs]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wedd ings are  su f f i c ien t ly  

impor tan t  tha t  one pays money d i rec t l y  and not  th rough 

in te rnat iona l  money launder ing  ne tworks .   The –  I  th ink  

tha t  takes us  to  the  end o f  the  money launder ing  sect ion .   

The las t  b ig  sect ion  tha t  I  want  to  dea l  w i th  you –  w i th in  

your  ev idence is  t rack ing  the  or ig ins  and fa te  o f  a l l  o f  the 

money tha t  was used to  purchase the  Opt imum Coa l  Mine.    

 And I  wou ld  l i ke  us  to  take  a  g rea t  dea l  o f  t ime on  

th is  fo r  two reasons.   The f i rs t  i s  tha t  i t  i s  a  very  usefu l  20 

i l l us t ra t ion  o f  how s ta te  capture  funds are  recyc led  in to  

Gupta  Enterpr i se  opera t ing  compan ies  ins ide  South  A f r i ca .   

The second is .    

 I  mean,  fo r  th i s  Commiss ion ,  i t  i s  o f  symbol ic  

impor tance because i t  was in  many respects  the  events  
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re la t ing  to  the  purchase o f  the  Opt imum Coa l  M ine tha t  

gave r i se  to  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  repor t  tha t  led  to  the 

crea t ion  o f  th is  Commiss ion .    

 So,  I  do  no t  want  us  to  rush i t  and I  wou ld  ask ,  

Cha i r,  i f  we cou ld  dea l  w i th  tha t  top ic  separa te ly,  bu t  there  

is  some prepara tory  mater ia l s  tha t  I  can cont inue to  dea l  

w i th .   I  am not  sure  a t  what  s tage the  even ing  sess ion  

takes over  f rom us today.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  th ink  we can go up to  f i ve .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  w i l l  ce r ta in ly  –  I  wou ld  no t  10 

expect  us  to  need  as  much as  f i ve  fo r  the  prepara tory.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  wou ld  no t  want  to  s ta r t  the 

Opt imum cas ing  exerc ise .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Because i t  i s  a  par t i cu la r l y  

compl ica ted  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Then i f  less  than an hour  i s  –  

wou ld  be  adequate  fo r  your  pu rposes,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Cer ta in l y,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    In  re la t ion  to  the  Opt imum Coa l  

purchase,  we are  go ing  to  be  dea l ing  w i th  a  number  o f  

compan ies  w i th in  –  what  I  ca l l  the  Centaur (?)  Group.   I t  i s  

Centau r (? )  Min ing  ins ide  South  A f r i ca  and Centaur (?)  
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Ventures  L im i ted ,  Bermuda.   Maybe before  we descr ibe  

who Centau r  i s .   Can I  ask  you to  tu rn  to  Bund le  16 ,  wh ich  

is  par t  o f  an  app l i ca t ion . . .   Sor ry,  Bund le  16 ,  page 206,  

wh ich  ought  to  enab le  us  to  ident i f y  some o f  the  key 

corpo ra te  p layers  here .    

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly.   I  am there .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Now th is  document  fo rmed par t  

o f  an  app l i ca t ion  by  South  A f r i can compan ies  to ,  I  th ink ,  

S tandard  Bank wh ich  ass is t  in  ge t t ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . s ix?  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    A t  206.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I t  i s  a  company char t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And,  Cha i r,  jus t  to  loca te  where  

i t  comes f rom.   The South  A f r i can compan ies  were  seek ing  

Reserve  Bank approva l  to  rece ive  a  loan f rom Centau r  

Ventures  L im i ted ,  wh ich  is  an  o f fshore  company,  and they  

inc luded th is  document  as  par t  o f  the i r  app l i ca t ion  fo r  

Reserve  Bank approva l .   Mr  Ho lden,  can you take  the  Cha i r  20 

th rough th is  fa i r l y  s imp le  s t ruc ture  o f  the  Centau r  

Companies  Group  and jus t  exp la in  who these p laye rs  are?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   We have a t  the  very  top  

en t i t y,  we have Centau r  Ventures  L im i ted ,  wh ich  is  a lso  

re fer red  to  as  CVL as an  ac ronym.   Centau r  Ventures  
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L im i ted  and based in  Bermuda as  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  case.   

50% of  Centaur  Ventures  in  Bermuda is  he ld  by  Centaur  

Ho ld ings and 50% i s  he ld  by  Aakash is  a  shor t  name o f  the  

name Aakash Jaha jga rh ia .    

 Aakash Jaha jga rh ia  mar r ied  in to  the  Gupta  fami ly  

a t  the  Sun C i ty  wedd ing  when he mar r ied  Vega  Gupta .   

Centau r  Ho ld ings  is  cont ro l led  by  two ind iv idua ls ,  Dan ie l  

McGowan,  and S imon Hoy le .   Be low tha t ,  we have Centau r  

Min ing  reg is te red  in  Maur i t ius  fo r  CMM and tha t  i s  100% 

owned by  Centaur  Ventures  L im i ted .   Fo l lowing tha t ,  i s  10 

Centau r  Min ing  South  A f r i ca  wh ich  is  100% owned by  

Centau r  Min ing  Maur i t ius .    

 And then be low tha t ,  a l though  not  necessar i l y  

re levant  to  our  t rac ing  exe rc i se ,  i s  an  en t i t y  by  the  name 

Tok icap (P ty)  L td  in  South  A f r i ca  wh ich  is  74% owned by  

Centau r  Min ing  South  A f r i ca  and 26% owned by  Aerohaven.    

 For  the  pu rposes o f  th is  d iscuss ion ,  the  most  

impor tan t  th ing  to  bear  in  m ind,  I  wou ld  argue,  i s  tha t  

Aakash Jaha jga rh ia  50% ho ld ing  in  Centaur  Ventures  

meant  tha t  there fore  a lso  had –  he  a lso  he ld  a  50% 20 

shareho ld ing  in  Centaur  Min ing  Maur i t ius  and then Centau r  

Min ing  South  A f r i ca .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  sa id  ear l ie r  tha t  th is  was par t  

o f  an  app l i ca t ion  to  S tandard  Bank fo r  Reserve  Bank  

approved and in  re la t ion  to  a  loan .   Can I  ask  you to  go  to  
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page 199 o f  Bund le  16  and jus t  i dent i f y  the  document  tha t  

we see there?  

CHAIRPERSON :    On what  page,  216?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    199.  

CHAIRPERSON :    199.  

MR HOLDEN :    May I  p roceed?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  you may proceed.  

MR HOLDEN :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   The loan –  what  appears  

here  is  tha t  a  loan fac i l i t y  agreement  da ted  the  

5 t h  o f  January  2016 entered in to  be tween Centaur  Ventures  10 

L im i ted  and Centaur  Min ing  South  A f r i ca  and the  essence  

o f  th is  cont rac t  i s  tha t  Centau r  Ventures  ag reed to  loan an 

amount  o f  R 1 .5  b i l l i on  to  Centaur  Min ing  South  A f r i ca  and  

th is  i s  the  spec i f i c  loan aga ins t  wh ich  the  Centaur  Min ing  

seek ing  Reserve  Bank approva l  th rough S tandard  Bank.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And jus t  to  remind the  Cha i r.   

Centau r  Ventures  is  based where?  

MR HOLDEN :    Centaur  Ventu res  i s  based in  Bermuda and  

Centau r  Min ing  is  based in  South  A f r i ca .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Now,  tha t  1 .5  m i l l ion(s ic )  loan  20 

fac i l i t y  in  January  2016 ex tended by  Centaur  Ventures  

L im i ted  tu rns  ou t  to  have been funded by  Gr i f f in  L ine .   And 

to  show th is  to  the  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  take  the  Cha i r  

to  some judgments  o f  the  Bermuda High Cour t ,  and those  

appear  a t  –  i t  beg ins  w i th  page 19 o f  Bund le  16 .   Wel l ,  le t  
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us  go  to  the  f ron t  page o f  tha t  judgment  be fore  we get  to  

page 19.   So,  the  cover  page o f  the  judgment  i s  on  page 

16,  and can you  br ie f l y  desc r ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  the  

contex t  –  o r  f i r s t  who the  pa r t ies  a re  and what  the  

judgment  i s  about  and what  the  con tex t  i s .  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   So,  as  the  cover  page  

ind ica tes .   Th is  was an . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Supreme Cour t  

Bermuda in  the  c iv i l  ju r i sd i c t ion  in  the  Commerc ia l  Cour t  

and the  app l i ca t ion  is . . .  [ speaker  unc lear  –  d is to r t ion  in  

v ideo l ink ]  . . .was draw(?)  back a t  the  descr ip t ion  10 

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  l i ne(?)  t rad ing  NLC(?)  and the  respondent  i s  

Centau r  Ventures  L im i ted ,  and i t  was heard  be fore  the  

Honourab le  Ch ie f  Jus t ice ,  Be l inda(?)  Howman(? ) .    

 The essence o f  th is  app l i ca t ion  is  tha t  Gr i f f in  L ine  

was seek ing  to  asser t  i t s  r igh t s  to  what  they be l ieved were  

funds owing to  –  f rom Centaur  Ven tures  and to  rece ive  –  to  

ach ieve orders  i ssued by  the  Bermuda High Cour t  tha t  

wou ld  prevent  Centaur  Ventures  f rom d iss ipa t ing  cer ta in  

assets  fo r  cer ta in  funds.   They were  f rus t ra t ing  Gr i f f in  

L ine ’s  a t tempt  to  rec la im those funds they be l ieved they  20 

were  owed.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Now the  or ig in  o f  Gr i f f in  L ine  

c la im aga ins t  Centaur  i s  se t  ou t  a t  page 19,  paragraphs 10  

to  11 .   Can you take  the  Cha i r  to  those parag raphs? 

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly.   I t  s ta tes  here :  
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“ In  the  s ta tement  o f  c la im f i led  on  the  present  

p roceed ings,  Gr i f f in  L ine  asser ts  tha t  i t  

en tered in to  a  loan fac i l i t y  agreement  on  the  

15 t h  o f  February  2016 w i th  CVL . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

agreement  and  mater ia l  te rms o f  th is  

agreement  p rov ided tha t :  

(a )  Gr i f f in  L ine  agree to  make ava i lab le  

to  Centau r  Ventu res  L im i ted  a  loan fac i l i t y  o f  

100 mi l l ion  Do l la rs .  

(b )  The money drawn down by CVL under  10 

th is  fac i l i t y  wou ld  bear  in te res t  a t  the  ra tes  o f  

4% per  annum.   The draw-down in te res t  

together  as  re fe r red  to  as  the  persona l (? )  

amount .  

(c )  The f i rs t  loan amount  was repayab le  

on  or  be fore  14 t h  o f  August  2016 .   However,  

the  or ig ina l  payment  da te  under  the  f i rs t  

fac i l i t y  agreement  was,  accord ing  to  the 

case(?)  advance  by  Gr i f f in  L ine ,  ex tended on 

th ree  occas ions by  wr i t ten  agreements  20 

between Gr i f f in  L ine  and Centaur  Ventures  

L im i ted ,  f i rs t  on  the  7 t h  o f  August  2016  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  . . . the  payment  da te  was ex tended 

by  two months  to  14  October  2016 ,  second on  

the  11 t h  o f  October  2016,  the  da te  was fu r ther  
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ex tended fo r  a  fu r ther  two  months  to  

14  December  2016,  and th i rd ,  on  

13  December  2016,  the  da te  was ex tended by  

s ix  months  to  14  June 2017. . . ”  

A t  parag raph 11 i t  no tes :  

“The f i r s t  fac i l i t y  agreement  i s  a  th ree-page  

document  s igned  on beha l f  o f  Gr i f f in  L ine  by  

Mr  S inga la  ( tha t  i s  the  son o f  AJ  Gupta )  and 

on beha l f  o f  CVL by Mr  McGowan,  desp i te  the  

fac t  tha t  under  th is  agreement ,  Gr i f f in  L ine  had 10 

agreed to  lend Centau r  Ventures  L im i ted  an  

amount  o f  100 mi l l ion  Do l la rs ,  i t  d id  no t  

p rov ide  any secur i t y  in  respect  o f  the  amounts  

advanced by  Gr i f f in  L ines to  CVL.  

Under  th is  agreement ,  Gr i f f in  L ine  was content  

to  assume the  pos i t ion  o f  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

lender. . . ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Now the  da te  o f  tha t  loan  

agreement  was 15 February  2016,  and tha t  loan ag reement  

was fo r  100 mi l l ion  US Do l la rs .   Can you te l l  the  Cha i r  how 20 

100 mi l l ion  US Do l la rs  compared to  R 1 .5  b i l l i on  in  te rms o f  

exchange ra tes  a round tha t  t ime? 

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   100 mi l l ion  US Do l la rs  i s  

a lmost  exact ly  equa l  to  R 1 .5  b i l l i on .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And the  fac i l i t y  agreement  tha t  
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Centau r  Min ing  and Centaur  Ventures  L im i ted  had  

conc luded tha t  we saw in  Annexure  129 o r  a t  –  sor ry,  what  

–  the  –  sor ry,  I  have los t  my re fe rence aga in  –  a t  page 199 

o f  Bund le  C o f  R 1 .5  b i l l i on .   Do you reca l l  what  the  

s ignature  da te  o f  tha t  agreement  was?  Maybe I  can take  

you there .  

MR HOLDEN :    I  have i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sor ry?  

MR HOLDEN :    So ,  tha t  i s  the  5 t h  o f  January. . .   [speaker  

unc lea r  –  d is to r t ion  in  v ideo l ink ]  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    2016.   Now,  we w i l l  go  on  in  due 

course  to  ana lyse  what  happens to  the  funds tha t  come 

in to  Centaur  Min ing  L im i ted  f rom Centaur  Ventures  L im i ted ,  

bu t  le t  us  –  be fore  we get  there ,  we need to  see where  and  

when those funds  f rom Centaur  Ventures . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Can you s t i l l  hea r  us ,  Mr  Ho lden?  

MR HOLDEN :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  he  cannot  hear  us .   I f  the  –  i f  i t  w i l l  

no t  take  much t ime,  we do no t  have to  ad jou rn ,  the 

techn ic ians must  te l l  us  i f  –  oh ,  tha t  i s  back.   Can you hear  20 

me now,  Mr  Ho lden?  

MR HOLDEN :    Yes,  I  can,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you,  Mr  Ho lden,  bu t  there  

is  one fu r ther  de ta i l  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  us  to  no te  in  tha t  
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Bermuda judgment  and tha t  appears  a t  pa ragraph 12.   Can  

you go to  paragraph 12?  I t  i s  on  Bund le  16 ,  page 19,  one  

n ine  and descr ibe  what  you –  and  read what  you see there  

and desc r ibe  i t s  s ign i f i cance?  

MR HOLDEN :    Paragraph 16?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    No,  pa rag raph 12.   Sor ry.   On  

page 15.   Paragraph 12,  page 15.  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly.   A t  paragraph 12,  i t  no tes  tha t :  

“ In  accordance w i th  the  te rms o f  the  f i rs t  

fac i l i t y  agreement ,  CVL or  Centaur  Ventures  10 

L im i ted  drew down the  sum o f  99  222 862  

Do l la rs  dur ing  the  per iod  f rom 16 February  

2016 to  26  November  2016 du r ing  the  per iod  

18  Apr i l  2017 and 31s t  o f  Ju ly  2017,  Centaur  

Ventures  L im i ted  repa id  Gr i f f in  L ine  

9  999 234.91 US Do l la rs . . . ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And jus t  to  fo reshadow where  we 

are  go ing  to  be  go ing ,  Mr  Ho lden .   Can you te l l  the  Cha i r  

what  happened to  tha t  99  222 862 Do l la rs  tha t  Centaur  

Ventures  L im i ted  drew down f rom Gr i f f in  L ine?  Where  d id  20 

tha t  money end up?  

MR HOLDEN :    Cer ta in ly.   Cha i r,  tha t  money ended up in  

Centau r  Min ing ’s  accounts  in  Sou th  A f r i ca .   From Centau r  

Min ing ’s  accounts  in  South  A f r i ca ,  i t  was then d isbursed in  

a  number  o f  d i f fe ren t  d i rec t ions,  bo th  to  e lements  o f  the  
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Gupta  Enterpr ise ,  bu t  then a l so ,  most  substant ia l l y,  used to  

fund the  purchase o f  Konk i (? )  Inc  and a  very  la rge  por t ion 

o f  the  Opt imum Coa l  Mine purchase tha t  was under taken 

by  the  Gupta  Enterp r ise .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  on  tha t  no te ,  

we shou ld  p robab ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The next  ins ta lment  o f  the  se r ia l  

can come la te r  in  the  week.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Because now we need to  ge t  in to  

the  ve ry  m icroscop ic  de ta i l s  o f  how the  Opt imum Coa l  Mine 

was bought .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   What  i s  your  

es t imate  o f  how much t ime tha t  one w i l l  need? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  cer ta in ly  two hours 

wou ld  be  su f f i c ien t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  am look ing  a t  Mr  Ho lden and 

he is  nodd ing .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  a re  you nodd ing  Mr  –  do  you th ink  

tha t  i s  a  reasonab le  es t imate?  Okay.  

MR HOLDEN :   Yes,  I  was nodd ing  very  v igorous l y  Cha i r  

wou ld  have p icked up.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   So i t  i s  –  so  
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we hope tha t  the  ten ta t i ve  ar rangement  fo r  Thursday can  

happen but  we w i l l  ta lk .   I f  there  i s  a  need to  ge t  another  

day or  t ime th is  week we w i l l  t ry  and look a t  tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   I  am go ing  to  

ad journ .   I  must  jus t  check whethe r  the  next  work  s t ream is  

a l ready he re .   I  th ink  i t  wou ld  be  Eskom in  regard  o f  Mr  

Masango,  be  br ie f  ev idence and i t  wou ld  be  Mr  Hu l ley  in  

regard  to  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu .   Mr  Se leka is  a l ready he re .   

Okay,  a l r igh t ,  I  w i l l  take  a  ten  m inutes  ad journment  and  10 

then I  w i l l  come back.   Oh,  Mr  Hu l ley  i s  a lso  here .   I  th ink  

Mr  Hu l ley,  we w i l l  s ta r t  w i th  Mr  Masango because he w i l l  

be  very  qu i ck  and thereaf te r  we w i l l  ad jou rn .   I  w i l l  then 

hear  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  and therea f te r  there  w i l l  be  cross-

examinat ion  o f  Mr  Whi te .   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  we a re  go ing  to  

ad journ  fo r  ten  m inutes .   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good a f te rnoon Mr  Se leka,  good even ing  

everybody.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Good even ing ,  Cha i rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   A re  we ready?   

ADV SELEKA SC:   We a re  ready Cha i rpe rson.   The next  

w i tness is  Mr  Masango.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Good a f te rnoon Mr  Masango,  good  
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even ing  to  you.  

MR MASANGO:   Good a f te rnoon Cha i r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   He is  lega l l y  represented Cha i rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The lega l  representa t i ves  can p lace 

themse lves on  record .   

CHAIRPERSON:   They can do so  f rom where  they are  i f  

the i r  m ic  i s  work ing .    

MR OLDWAGE SC:   Good a f te rnoon Mr  Cha i r.   O ldwage,  

you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  I  have appeared  before  you.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  I  remember  you.  

MR OLDWAGE SC:   I  represent  Mr  Masango on  

ins t ruc t ions o f  Ga la t io  A t to rneys,  seated to  my r i gh t .   In  

th is  row are  the  two a t to rneys f rom tha t  f i rm.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

MR OLDWAGE SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you fo r  coming back Mr  Masango.    

MR MASANGO:   Thank you Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Welcome back,  ja .   Yes,  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  be l ieve  Mr  Masango w i l l  be  ready to  20 

take  the  oa th  or  the  a f f i rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  p lease  admin i s te r  the  oa th  or  

a f f i rmat ion?  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .   

MR MASANGO:   Abram AB Masango.  
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REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR MASANGO:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do  you cons ider  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am so r ry.   I  th ink  you are  speak ing  very  

so f t .   Maybe you  shou ld  take  o f f  your  mask.   I  th ink  there  

is  enough soc ia l  d is tanc ing .    

MR MASANGO:   Thank you Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you,  s ta r t  a f resh p lease.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .   10 

MR MASANGO:   Abram AB Masango.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any ob jec t ion  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR MASANGO:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MR MASANGO:   Yes.   

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and say  20 

so  he lp  me God.   

MR MASANGO:   So  he lp  me God.   

ABRAM AB MASANGO:   (d .s .s )  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  thank you.   Thank you  
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Cha i rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   For  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c ,  Mr  

Se leka you might  jus t  w ish  to  ind ica te  the  l im i ted  a reas on  

wh ich  Mr  Masango w i l l  tes t i f y  o r  be  quest ioned.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Masango has  

been asked to  come back and he has k ind l y  agreed to  do 

so  on  the  bas is  to  p resent  h is  ev idence in  regard  to  the  

po in t ing  ou t  o f  t he  p remises a t  Me l rose Arch  wh ich ,  a t  

wh ich  the  o f f i ces  o f  Mr  Essa were  l oca ted.   

 In  regards to ,  par t i cu la r l y  in  regard  to  the  meet ing  10 

tha t  Mr  Masango  tes t i f ied  about ,  hav ing  a t tended on the  

10 t h  o f  March 2015.   He has submi t ted  an  a f f idav i t  in  tha t  

regard  and w i l l  take  the  Cha i rperson th rough tha t .   One,  

and number  two,  there  are  cer ta in ,  a t  leas t  two a l legat ions  

tha t  have been made aga ins t  Mr  Masango,  one o f  wh ich  i s  

tha t  he  was aga in  a t  Me l rose Arch  somet ime in  December  

2015,  and in t roduced to  one Ms B ianca Goodson and Mr  

Masango can put  h is  comments  in  regard  to  tha t  a l legat ion  

and there  i s  a lso  an  a l legat ion  we  may want  to  pu t  to  you 

Mr  Masango,  wh ich  we ra ised to  what  Mr  Koko has sa id  20 

about  a  c r im ina l  case tha t  he  la id  aga ins t  you and o thers .   

 That  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I s  in  a  nu tshe l l  the  issues.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   The bund le  in  wh ich  Mr  Masango ’s  

a f f idav i t s  a re  con ta ined,  i s  Eskom Bund le  14(A) .   The f i rs t  

a f f idav i t  i s  on  page 3  o f  tha t  bund le .   I  be l ieve  in  tha t  

a f f idav i t  we wou ld  have admi t ted  i t  on  Mr  Masango ’s  

p rev ious appearance,  bu t  I  cou ld  do  so  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  we l l ,  i t  i s  Exh ib i t  U25.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  U25.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because there  are  two now Cha i r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  the  one tha t  s ta r ts  a t  page 3 .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   He has s ince  submi t ted  a  subsequent  

a f f idav i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   And I  was wonder ing  whether  we shou ld  

make the  f i rs t  one Exh ib i t  U25.1 .   

CHAIRPERSON:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I s  i t  f ine  Cha i r?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   We have a l ready  admi t ted  as  U25.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   As  U25.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We cannot  change now.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Then the  second a f f idav i t  i s  on  page 

49.1  in  the  same bund le .   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  Masango,  p lease go to  tha t  page.   

49 .1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Can you see i t?  

MR MASANGO:   49  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  you are  there .   Jus t  g ive  me the  

page number  where  you are  now.   

MR MASANGO:   On the  b lack  is  wr i t ten  Eskom 14  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   10 

MR MASANGO:   049.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   049,  ja .   Turn  the  page.    

MR MASANGO:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   There  is  the  a f f idav i t .   

MR MASANGO:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Masango,  i f  you  . . .  i f  we can hear  you  

we l l  w i th  your  mask on tha t  w i l l  be  f ine ,  bu t  usua l l y  there  

are  cha l lenges but  we know the  s i tua t ion ,  so  i f  you  wou ld  

. . .  you  fee l  s t rong ly  you must  say  so ,  bu t  I  be l ieve  there  i s  20 

enough soc ia l  d i s tanc ing ,  bu t  i f  you  fee l  uncomfor tab le  

w i thout  i t ,  you  must  le t  us  know.   

MR MASANGO:   Okay Cha i r,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  you are  on  page 49.1  Mr  Masango?   
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The a f f idav i t  runs  up  to  page 49.2 .   You see tha t?  

MR MASANGO:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see  you are  a  l i t t le  b i t  s low.   

MR MASANGO:   I  am there .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I s  someth ing  bo ther ing  you the re?  

MR MASANGO:   No,  no  I  am there .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay,  there  i s  a  s ignature  then aga ins t  

the  name Abram Masango,  Abram AB Masango.   Do you 10 

conf i rm tha t  to  be  your  s ignature?  

MR MASANGO:   I  do  conf i rm.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   And the  a f f idav i t  i s  da ted  15 March 

2021,  was s igned  a t  Wi tbank.   Do you conf i rm tha t?  

MR MASANGO:   I  do  conf i rm.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Do you conf i rm the  contents  o f  th is  

a f f idav i t  to  be  t rue  and co r rec t?  

MR MASANGO:   I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Cha i rperson,  I  wou ld  beg 

leave to  have th i s  a f f idav i t  then admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  U25  20 

and Cha i rperson w i l l  gu ide  me,  po in t  1  o r  po in t  2?  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  pu t  A .   I s  tha t  f ine?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  i t  i s  f ine  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  i s  tha t  go ing  to  be  incons is ten t  w i th  

how we have done i t  in  th is  bund le?   We can say po in t  1 .   
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   How have we dea l t  w i th  i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   We have been g i v ing  them po in t  1 ,  

po in t  2 ,  po in t  3 .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  le t  us  make i t  po in t  1  then.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Abram AB Masango  

tha t  s ta r ts  a t  page 49.1  w i l l  be  admi t ted  and marked as  

Exh ib i t  U25.1 .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i rperson,  together  w i th  10 

the  a f f idav i t s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Together  w i th  the  annexures.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   The annexures there to .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Masango,  th is  

a f f idav i t  re la tes  to  your  po in t ing  ou t  a t  the  premises a t  

Me l rose Arch .   Jus t  remember  to  speak to  the  m ic rophone.   

You had rece ived  a  request  f rom the  Cha i rpe rson and you  

cou ld  exp la in  how you then compl ied  w i th  tha t  request ,  for  

you to  po in t  ou t  the  premises.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  bas ica l l y  as  you say in  your  a f f idav i t  

Mr  Masango,  when you gave ev idence I  sa id  i t  m igh t  be  

necessary  fo r  you to  go  back to  the  area in  Mel rose Arch  

where  you say you met  w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa and Mr  Koko on  

the  15 t h  o f  March  2015 to  see whe ther  you can iden t i f y  the 
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p remises.    

 What  happened s ince  then?  

MR MASANGO:   Cha i r,  thank you.   Subsequent  to  tha t  

there  was an ar rangement  w i th  your  invest iga tors ,  a  

schedu led  t ime.   We met  a round the  area.   Then I  led  them 

to  show them the  bu i ld ing  tha t  in  my reco l lec t ion  was the  

bu i ld ing .   

CHAIRPERSON:   And what  da te  was tha t?   Was tha t  on  the  

5 t h  o f  March ,  tha t  i s  what  you say,  2021? 

MR MASANGO:   Yes Cha i r.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Cont inue.   

MR MASANGO:   So  I  went  there  w i th  my a t to rneys and 

then we drove a round.   I  cou ld  see the  bu i ld ing  tha t  i s  

s im i la r  because o f  the  ba lcony and then I  a l so  wen t  a t  the 

back,  though a t  the  t ime when I  went  there  I  never  went  on  

the  back,  because o f  the  ar rangement  o f  the  bu i ld ings.   

 The on ly  exh ib i t  fo r  me tha t  w i l l  conv ince me tha t  i s  

the  p lace,  i s  to  see the  ba lcony.   So I  saw the  ba lcony.   

Then I  a lso  wen t  a t  the  back to  see tha t  there  i s  no t  

another  bu i ld ing  look ing  l i ke  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Look ing  l i ke  th is .   

MR MASANGO:   The one tha t  I  see on the  o ther  s ide .   

Then we went  back,  where  in  f ron t  o f  the  ba lcony I  

ind ica ted  to  the  invest iga tors  tha t  th is  ba lcony  looked 

fami l ia r,  and then in  te rms o f  the  p ic tu res  tha t  you have 
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Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  be fore  we  go to  the  p ic tu res .   I s  

there  someth ing  tha t  you cou ld  immedia te ly  recogn ise  as  

someth ing  tha t  was not  there  p rev ious ly,  tha t  was now 

there  when you went  the  second t ime? 

MR MASANGO:   Yes Cha i r,  when I  looked a t  the  ba lcony,  I  

cou ld  see tha t  the  ba lcon ies  tha t  I  see,  they look fami l ia r  

bu t  as  you enter  be tween the  two bu i ld ings the re  was a  

boom gate .   Now in  my mind I  cou ld  no t  reca l l  observ ing  

the  boom gate .   10 

 But  remember  Cha i r,  as  I  tes t i f ied ,  as  we were  

wa lk ing  in ,  ta lk ing  to  h im on the  phone I  was look ing  a t  the  

ba lcony,  then I  go t  ou t  o f  the  car,  went  s t ra igh t  to  the  

en t rance.   So hence I  sa id  tha t  as  you were  en ter ing ,  I  saw 

the  boom gate .    

 The f i rs t  t ime I  went  there ,  I  was concent ra t ing  . . .  I  

never  reco rded o r  I  cou ld  no t  reca l l  see ing  the  boom gate ,  

whethe r  i t  was there  or  no t .   But  I  am o f  the  v iew tha t  I  was  

on the  phone,  look ing  a t  h im.   So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you say ing  on  the  f i r s t  occas ion  you  20 

went  there ,  you do not  reca l l  see ing  the  boom,  the  boom 

gate?  

MR MASANGO:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  you are  no t  in  a  pos i t ion  to  say 

de f in i te ly  i t  was not  there ,  because you were  speak ing  on 



22 JUNE 2021 – DAY 414 
 

Page 179 of 319 
 

the  phone?  

MR MASANGO:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  m igh t  have been there .   

MR MASANGO:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s  jus t  tha t  you might  no t  have  not iced  

i t .   

MR MASANGO:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   I s  there  someth ing  e lse  tha t  

looked l i ke  someth ing  tha t  you have not  no t iced before ,  o f  

any s ign i f i cance o ther  than . . . [ in tervenes]   10 

MR MASANGO:   No,  o ther  than the  boom,  no  Cha i r.   

Except  Cha i r,  I  must  po in t  ou t  tha t  when I  saw the  ba lcony 

and then the  en t rance a t  the  s teps  I  saw i t  bu t  the  more  I  

go  in ,  I  cou ld  no t  ident i f y  w i th  the  p lace ins ide .   As  we 

move w i th  the  s teps I  cou ld  see s im i la r  o f f i ces  tha t  I  saw.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Now was tha t  the  on ly  bu i ld ing  w i th  a  

ba lcony in  tha t  v ic in i t y  w i th  ba lcon ies  or  were  there  o the r  

bu i ld ings w i th  ba l con ies?   

MR MASANGO:   So  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   In  the  v ic in i t y  o f  the  bu i ld ing  tha t  we  20 

thought  was the  one where  you  had been on the  f i rs t  

occas ion?  

MR MASANGO:   No Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   [ ind is t inc t ]  

MR MASANGO:   Ja ,  no  Cha i r.   Between the  two bu i ld ings  
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tha t  we were  in ,  the  bu i ld ing  tha t  the  photo  i s  here  is  the  

on ly  bu i ld ing  be tween the  two bu i ld ings tha t  was hav ing  

the  ba lcony.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MASANGO:   And fo r  me t ry ing  to  make su re  tha t  I  am 

see ing  the  r i gh t  p lace  then we went  a round to  beh ind  o f  

th is  o ther  bu i ld ing .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MASANGO:   To  see whethe r  the  fo l low ing bu i ld ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Had ba lcon ies .   

MR MASANGO:   Had ba lcon ies .   I  cou ld  no t  see.   I  sa id  

then i t  shou ld  be  th is  one.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay,  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   So you were  busy 

exp la in ing  Mr  Masango in  re la t ion  to  the ,  you were  about  

to  go  to  the  photographs to  exp la in  the  p lace and your  

po in t ing  ou t  thereof .   

MR MASANGO:   Yes Cha i r.   In  te rms o f  the  photograph the  

ba lcon ies  tha t  I  was re fer r ing  to  i s  C1 and C.1  wh ich  is  on  20 

page 14,  49 .7 ,  49 .6 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  le t  us  s ta r t .   I s  the  bu i ld ing  a t  49 .6  

the  same bu i ld ing  as  the  one tha t  i s  shown a t  page 49.7?   

I s  tha t  the  same bu i ld ing?  

MR MASANGO:   Yes Cha i r,  i t  i s  the  same bu i ld ing .   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe le t  us  ask  th i s  quest ion .   These  

photos ,  these p i c tu res  were  they taken in  your  p resence? 

MR MASANGO:   Yes,  the  invest iga tors  were  hav ing  the  

cameras.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MASANGO:   From our  s ide  we  d id  no t  take  any p ic tu re .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  and d id  they show you the  p ic tu res  

be fore  you u t te red  w i th  them on tha t  day?  

MR MASANGO:   Wel l ,  I  on ly  rece ived the  p i c tu res  a f te r  we 

have par ted .   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  l i ke  how long a f te r,  a  day o r  two or  

a  week?  

MR MASANGO:   I  do  no t  remember  exact ly  bu t  i t  was qu ick  

to  f i le  th is  a f f idav i t ,  no t  a  week.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  was less  than a  week?  

MR MASANGO:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   So when  you look a t  the  p ic tu res  

a t  tha t  s tage,  d id  you recogn ise  them?  I  am ta lk ing  about  

49 .6  and 49.7 .  

MR MASANGO:    Yes Cha i r.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   As  re f lec t ing  any bu i ld ing  tha t  you had  

seen on the ,  on  the  day you were  w i th  the  inves t iga tors  

there?  

MR MASANGO:   Yes Cha i r,  49 .6  and 49.7  I  cou ld  ident i f y  

w i th  them when I  see them on the  p ic tu re .   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  and what  bu i ld ing  is  tha t?  

MR MASANGO:   Ask  aga in  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  bu i ld ing  is  tha t  one on page 49.6  

and 49.7?  

MR MASANGO:   That  i s  the  bu i ld ing  Cha i r  tha t  I  recogn ise  

as  a  bu i ld ing  tha t  I  went  to  when I  went  to  the  Mel rose  

Arch  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.   A l r igh t .   Now i s  49 .6  a  

d i f fe ren t  s ide  f rom 49.7  or  a re  they same s ide  o f  the  

bu i ld ing?  10 

MR MASANGO:   The two they a re  on  the  same s ide .   

CHAIRPERSON:   They are  on  the  same s ide?  

MR MASANGO:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Now I  see tha t  there  is  a  ba lcony  

or  the re  a re  ba lcon ies  the re .   Now i f  you look a t  49 .6  there  

is  a  ba lcony.   I s  there  any s ign i f i cance about  tha t  ba lcony  

tha t  you want  to  te l l  me about?  

MR MASANGO:   Ja ,  look  Cha i r.   I f  I  look  a t  the  top  

ba lcony,  i t  i s  the  ba lcony tha t  looks fami l ia r  and the  p lace  

where  he  was s tand ing .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   When you say he  was s tand ing ,  who are  

you ta lk ing  about?  

MR MASANGO:   Mr  Koko,  Maje la  Koko.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr  Se leke ,  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   So Mr  Masango,  
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these two p ic tu res  o r  photos ,  on  page 49.6  and 49.7 ,  do  

they show the  back par t  o r  the  f ron t  par t  o f  the  o f f ices?  

MR MASANGO:   I t  i s  the  f ron t  par t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I s  th is  the  f ron t  par t?  

MR MASANGO:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  where  w i l l  be  the  en t rance i f  you are  

look ing  a t  these photographs.   I s  the  en t rance v is ib le  on  

these photog raphs?  On these two.    

MR MASANGO:   On these two you w i l l  no t  see i t  exact ly  

because you mus t  come,  the  ba lcony are  more  on  the  le f t  10 

hand s ide  and the  en t rance w i th  the  s teps is  more  on  the 

r igh t  hand s ide  o f  the  same bu i ld ing .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   Now can you p lease exp la in ,  i f  

you  say Mr  Koko  was s tand ing  on the  top  ba lcony where  

wou ld  you have been w i th  the  ca r  and be ab le  to  see h im 

wav ing  a t  you?  

MR MASANGO:   When you look a t  page 49.3 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   49 .3?  

MR MASANGO:   Ja .   A t  page 49.3  you see a  po le .   You see 

a  po le  and then you see the re  is  a  person there  wa lk ing .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

MR MASANGO:   Where  the  pe rson is  wa lk ing  i t  i s  more  

towards the  en t rance s ide ,  towards  the  s teps.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

MR MASANGO:   Be tween the  person and the  po le  i s  more  
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o f  a  s t ree t  then on the  s ide  there  i s  pa rk ings.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

MR MASANGO:   So  in  o the r  words on  the  s ide  o f  the  po le  

there  i s  park ings there  bu t  there  is  a  road before  the  

park ing .   So you  dr ive  on  the  road,  you park  nex t  to  the  

road,  then you t rave l  towards where  the  pe rson i s  wa lk ing .   

There  are  s teps.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   And now i f  we  s tay  on  49.3 ,  you cou ld  

exp la in  le t  me see,  I  want  to  make i t  eas ie r  fo r  you.   You 

wou ld  have parked the  car,  I  wan t  to  unders tand how you  10 

are  approach ing  the  bu i ld ing  and you are  ab le  to  see Mr  

Koko on the  ba lcony.   Whether  by  re ference to  any o f  these 

p ic tu res  you cou ld  exp la in  tha t .    

 You fo l low what  I  want  to  ge t  to?  

MR MASANGO:   Ja ,  I  fo l low what  you are  say ing .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Whi le  you a re  look ing ,  what  i s  the  name 

o f  the  road tha t  you were  on  as  you were  speak ing  to  Mr  

Koko and he was g iv ing  you d i rec t ions where  you  moved 

f rom one road to  anothe r,  one s t ree t  to  anothe r  o r  was i t  

jus t  one s t ree t?  20 

MR MASANGO:   Cha i r,  i t  i s  one s t ree t  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MASANGO:   L ike  th is  i s  a  bu i l d ing  th is  s ide .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MASANGO:   And th is  i s  a  bu i ld ing  th is  s ide .   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

MR MASANGO:   So  you cou ld  dr ive  be tween the  two  

bu i ld ings.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  the  road is  be tween the  two 

bu i ld ings?  

MR MASANGO:   The road is  be tween the  two bu i ld ings and 

there  is  some park ings  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MASANGO:   There  is  some few park ings on  the  le f t  

towards th is  bu i ld ing  bu t  the  bu i ld ing  tha t  we were  go ing  in  10 

is  th is  s ide .   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  when you say the  road was between  

those two bu i ld ings,  one o f  those bu i ld ings . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MASANGO:   And the  road does not  go  th rough.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.  

MR MASANGO:   I t  does not  go  th rough.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  s tops?  

MR MASANGO:   Ja ,  you go in ,  you pa rk  next  door.   Then 

you go towards th is  bu i ld ing  where  you see C.1  and C and 

then there  i s  s teps there .   I f  th is  photo  were ,  i f  i t  was 20 

poss ib le  tha t  the  photo  on  49.6  and 49.7  togethe r  w i th  the  

photo  on  49.3 ,  i f  there  was an oppor tun i ty  to  pu t  them 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   In  one l ine .   

MR MASANGO:   Then i t  wou ld  become . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:   I t  wou ld  show? 

MR MASANGO:   Ja ,  you w i l l  see  the  ba lcony.   Then 

towards the  le f t  on  the  r igh t  hand bu i ld ing ,  you see the  

s teps and then on the  o ther  s ide  you w i l l  see  the  park ings 

bu t  no t  many cars  cou ld  park  there .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  look  a t  49 .4  tha t  i s  no t  i t?   I  see 

bu i ld ings on  e i the r  s ide .   

MR MASANGO:   Yes Cha i r,  49 .4  ja  tha t  i s  how the  

bu i ld ings a re .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  10 

MR MASANGO:   Ja .   

CHAIRPERSON:   And wou ld  tha t  road be the  one you are  

ta lk ing  about?  

MR MASANGO:   Ja ,  yes .   Yes,  you can see th is  o ther  

bu i ld ing  on  the  le f t  hand s ide ,  there  is  th is  bu i ld ing  on  the  

r igh t  hand s ide .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MASANGO:   And then you can see a  car  parked there  

Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  I  can see a  car  there .   20 

MR MASANGO:   That  i s  the  park ing  tha t  I  am re fe r r ing  to .   

E i ther  you s top  there ,  you get  o f f ,  you pa rk  there .   So when  

he was on tha t  ba lcony you can see the  ba lcony there  and  

you can see the  s teps go ing  up.   So I  go t  o ff  the  car.   Then  

I  fo l lowed the  s teps.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MASANGO:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Then Mr  Masango,  i f  

you  go back to  49 .7 ,  there  seems to  be  a  coup le  o f  

ba lcon ies  the re .   In  fac t ,  the  photograph dep ic t  a  coup le  o f  

ba lcon ies  and the  one w i th  the  red  ar row po in t ing .  

MR MASANGO:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Now how were  you ab le  to  ident i f y  

wh ich  o f  these ba lcon ies  i s  the  r igh t  one on wh ich  you 10 

wou ld  have seen Mr  Koko?  

MR MASANGO:   Cha i r,  the  one on  C1.1  is  the  one because 

when you enter  t h rough the  s teps ,  the  s teps lead you to  

these ba lcon ies  bu t  towards your  r i gh t  a t  the  co rner,  tha t  i s  

where  the  o f f i ces  are .   So i f  you  are  s tand ing  on th is  one,  

on  th is  ba l cony you a re  nearest  to  the  o f f i ce  tha t  i s  a t  the  

corne r.   

 So there  is  no  way tha t  you wou ld  be  s tand ing  on  

the  fu r ther  ba l cony because the  o f f i ces  were  on  the  r igh t  

hand s ide .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   So look ing  f rom outs ide  in  the  

s t ree t ,  was there  anyth ing  tha t  enab led  you to  see tha t  th is  

was the  ba lcony where  he  was s tand ing  or  you were  on ly  

ab le  to  conc lude tha t  th is  was the  one a f te r  you had  moved 

around and I  do  no t  know i f  you went  ins ide  and see where  
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the  o f f i ces  were  and you were  ab le  to  conc lude  tha t  he  

cou ld  no t  have been on another  one because th is  was the  

c losest?  

MR MASANGO:   Ja ,  look  Cha i r.   Th is  was the  on ly  ba lcony  

tha t  I  see and i t  brought  some memor ies  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MASANGO:   And then I  sa id  th is  looks l i ke  the  ba lcony.   

There  is  no th ing  e lse  o ther  than tha t  ba lcony.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MASANGO:   That  cou ld ,  I  remember.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you know whether  i t  was the  las t  one  

before  the  end o f  the  bu i ld ing  or  no t?   Was i t  in  the  

m idd le?   There  are  o ther  ba lcon ies  on  e i ther  s ide  o f  i t .   

MR MASANGO:   Wel l  Cha i r,  when you look a t  C1.1  you  

cou ld  see i t  i s  the  same bu i ld ing  as  i t  goes fu r the r.   I t  has  

go t  o ther  ba lcon ies .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MASANGO:   Bu t  the  one tha t  he  was s tand ing  i t  was 

not  fa r  f rom the  s teps.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   20 

MR MASANGO:   In  o ther  words i t  was nearest .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MASANGO:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr  Se leka,  I  jus t  need to  

remember  what  Mr  Pamensky ’s  ev idence was.   D id  he  
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con f i rm tha t  th is  bu i ld ing ,  shown in  these p ic tu res  he re  

was the  bu i ld ing  where  Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  o f f i ces  were?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because you remember  we asked h im to  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:   To  he lp  us .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   We d id .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  you do not  reca l l?   I  know tha t  he  

gave pos i t i ve  ev idence.   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  I  am jus t  no t ,  I  do  no t  remember.   He  

gave the  address  o f  a  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Where  the  o f f i ces  were  in  fac t  i f  I  reca l l  

cor rec t l y,  bu t  I  th ink  he  wou ld  have been shown these  

p ic tu res  o r  was he not  shown? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  was about  to  say tha t  s tep  was not  

done Cha i r,  because I  th ink  the  p ic tu res  l ook fami l ia r  o r  

the  same,  bu t  what  we d id  no t  do  w i th  h im was to  exchange 20 

and hav ing  conf i rmed tha t  th is  i s  the  same premises.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  am re luc tan t  to  answer  because o f  

tha t  reason.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay,  what  i s  necessary  there fore ,  i s  
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to  i s  tha t  he  showed these p ic tu res  and asked to  ind ica te  

whethe r  he  is  ab le  to  ident i f y.   He can look a t  the  a f f idav i t s  

as  we l l .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  he  is  ab le  to  say the  p i c tu res  re la te  to  

the  same bu i ld ing  or  no t ,  where  Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  o f f i ces 

were .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  f rom your  s ide  Mr  Masango,  you say  

when you looked  a t  the  ba lcon ies ,  th is  appeared to  be  the  10 

one you,  tha t  Mr  Koko where  he  was s tand ing .   

MR MASANGO:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   On the  ou ts ide ,  tha t  you used to  

recogn ise  or  i dent i f y  th is  one as  C1.   I t  was s imp ly  when 

you looked a t  i t ,  i t  appeared to  be  the  one? 

MR MASANGO:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Was the re  anyth ing  e lse  because  

you have to ld  us  tha t  you d id  no t ,  you had not  no t iced the  

boom before ,  on  the  f i rs t  occas ion .   I s  there  anyth ing  e lse 

tha t  you saw on the  second occas ion  when you went  w i th  20 

the  invest iga to rs  tha t  gave you an ind ica t ion  tha t  you were  

r igh t  to  th ink  th is  was the  bu i ld ing?    

MR MASANGO:   Yes Cha i r.   Cha i r,  I  want  to  go  back to  the 

issue o f  the  boom.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   
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MR MASANGO:   Because when we were  go ing  there  w i th  

the  invest iga tors ,  we s tood between the  two bu i ld ings and  

looked a round.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MASANGO:   Then I  see these booms.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MASANGO:   A t  the  t ime when  I  went  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime 

on the  10 t h  o f  March,  I  go t  o f f  the  car.   Saw h im,  go t  in to  

the  s teps.   As  I  was go ing  up I  meet  h im there ,  then we go 

to  the  o f f i ce  and  as  I  was leav ing  I  le f t  the  [ ind is t inc t ] .   I  10 

jus t  go t  o f f  the  s teps,  go t  in to  the  ca r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MASANGO:   Bu t  the  d i f fe rence th is  t ime is  when we  

were  ident i f y ing  the  bu i ld ing ,  we s tood and then I  t r ied  to  

see what  I  remember,  and then when I  see the  booms I  

sa id  bu t  I  do  no t  remember  these booms.   But  the  

ba lcon ies  looks  the  same,  and then I  asked the  

invest iga to rs  to  go ,  fo r  us  to  go  a t  the  back.   

 We went  a t  the  back.   I  sa id  we l l ,  I  am not  fami l ia r  

w i th  th is  p lace ,  bu t  the  ba lcony looks the  same.   Then f rom 20 

there ,  we proceeded to  the  s teps .   We went  in  w i th  the 

s teps.   As  I  was go ing  up w i th  the  s teps,  then I  s ta r ted  to  

have more  conf idence tha t  now looks l i ke  the  p lace.   

 As  I  s ta r t  to  l i f t  up  my eyes,  to  t ry  and see whether  

i t  i s  the  o f f i ces  tha t  I  saw,  and when I  look  a t  the  o f f i ces ,  
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then I  cou ld  conf ident ly  say  we  d id  no t  even wa lk  to  the  

o f f i ce .   I  show the  invest iga to rs  tha t  those o f f i ces  tha t  a re  

there ,  they look l i ke  the  one.   

 Though I  cou ld  no t  Cha i r,  ca l l  i t  and say i t  i s  th is  

o f f i ce  and th is  o f f i ce  and th i s  o f f i ce ,  bu t  s tand ing  on the  

s ta i rs  I  cou ld  show them and say those o f f i ces  l ook the  

same.   The on ly  th ing  tha t  Cha i r,  tha t  I  cou ld  no t  remember  

whethe r  was because the  o f f i ces  in  the  corner  on  the  f i rs t  

f loor  and on the  second f loo r  a re  the  same.   Whether  i t  i s  

the  f i rs t  f loor  o r  the  second.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  d id  you say the  o f f i ces ,  Mr  

Sa l im Essa ’s  o f f i ce  were  in  the  corner  o r  someth ing? 

MR MASANGO:   A t  the  co rner.   So befo re  you go to  the  

corne r  there  i s  two o f f i ces ,  then  there  is  a  corner.   Ja ,  

those o f f i ces ,  be fore  the  corne r  I  th ink  one,  two,  th ree .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MASANGO:   Somewhere  there ,  bu t  now the  se tup  there  

on  the  f i rs t  f loor  and the  second f loor  a re  the  same.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MASANGO:   And the  number ing  o f  these o f f i ces  are  20 

numbered.   They have not  changed.   They are  s t i l l  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MASANGO:   The numbers ,  the  numbers  were  b lack .   I  

cou ld  no t  remember  the i r  number.   What  was i t .    
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MASANGO:   Bu t  the  numbers  we cou ld  see,  ac tua l l y  

the  numbers  made me to  be l ieve  tha t  these numbers  

looked fami l ia r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.  

MR MASANGO:   Bu t  i f  you  were  to  ask  me what  was the  

number  o f  the  o f f ice ,  I  wou ld  no t  be  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   You wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  te l l .   Okay,  

a l r igh t .   So you say Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  o f f i ce  was c lose  to  a  

corne r?  10 

MR MASANGO:   To  a  corner  ja .   You w i l l  see  one,  two 

those o f f i ces .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  ja  and tha t  corne r  was i t  the  end o f  

the  bu i ld ing  or  what?  

MR MASANGO:   No,  i t  tu rns .   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  tu rns ,  okay.  

MR MASANGO:   I t  goes to  the  corner,  i t  goes l i ke  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay,  okay.   So do you reca l l  

whethe r  they,  h i s  o f f i ce  was on the  f i rs t  f loor  o r  second  

f loor  o r  th i rd  f loor?  20 

MR MASANGO:   Cha i r,  I  d id  no t  remember  bu t  I  . . .  I  th ink  

e i ther  f i rs t  f loor  o r  second f loo r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MASANGO:   Because we d id  no t  go  h igh  up .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   A l r igh t .   You can cont inue Mr  
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Se leka.   I  th ink  i t  w i l l  be  impor tan t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe i f  you ask  Mr  Pamensky what  

needs to  be ,  Mr  Pamensky need to  be  shown the  bu i ld ing  

tha t  Mr  Masango ident i f ied .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On the  second occas ion  as  the  bu i ld ing  

where  Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  o f f i ces  were ,  and because he knows 

in  wh ich  bu i ld ing  they were .   He might  say  no ,  no ,  no  Mr  

Masango is  m is taken.   That  i s  no t  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu i ld ing .   Mr  Essa ’s  o f f i ces  were  no t  in  

th is  bu i ld ing ,  they were  in  another  bu i ld ing  o r  he  m ight  say  

yes,  th is  i s  r igh t .   That  i s  what  needs to  be  invest iga ted  

and he can then [ ind is t inc t ]  g ive  us  an  a f f idav i t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   I  am t ry ing  to  open h i s  a f f idav i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  fo r  the  reason I  conveyed to  you.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  no .   I  th ink  le t  us  move.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do  no t  have anyth ing  fu r ther  to  ask  Mr  

Masango on th is .   I  th ink  you can ,  un less  you have some 

quest ion  you can move on to  the  next  top ic .   
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ADV SELEKA SC:   So  Mr  Masango,  when you were  there  

w i th  the  invest iga tors ,  d id  you have to  ask  somebody to  

conf i rm these premises o r  you independent ly  cou ld  reca l l  

upon inspect ion  o f  the  premises,  upon be ing  there ,  wa lk ing  

around tha t  th is  i s  where  I  was back on  the  10 t h  o f  March.  

MR MASANGO:   Ja ,  Cha i r  th rough you Cha i r.   I  wa lked  

around tha t  bu i l d ing .   We drove .   As  we drove you see 

d i f fe ren t  bu i ld ings,  bu t  when we were  c loser  to  th is  one,  

the  one tha t  I  was suspect ing  tha t  tha t  i s  the  one,  then I  

requested tha t  we pa rk ,  I  wa lk  ou ts ide .   Ja ,  tha t  i s  how I  10 

ident i f ied  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  i t  was an independent  reco l lec t ion?  

MR MASANGO:   Ja ,  I  was wa lk ing  w i th  the  invest iga tors  

and my a t to rney.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   D id  anybody on tha t  day te l l  you  

anyth ing  about  what  address Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  o f f i ces  were?  

MR MASANGO:   No Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  may have not  heard  you cor rec t l y,  bu t  

d id  you say you  were  lead ing  the  invest iga to rs  on  the  

second occas ion?  20 

MR MASANGO:   Yes Cha i r.   Before  you get  to  Mel rose  

Arch ,  a t  the  en t rance tha t  i s  where  we met ,  myse l f  the  

invest iga to rs .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MR MASANGO:   And the  a t to rneys .   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MASANGO:   And then we d rove . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   You were  d r iv ing  ahead?  

MR MASANGO:   Ja ,  I  was d r iv ing  yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.   A l r igh t .   Unt i l  you  reached the  

bu i ld ing  tha t  you were  suspect ing  was the  one.   

MR MASANGO:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay,  Mr  Se leka.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see  tha t  you  do say in  your  a f f idav i t  

tha t  you reca l l  the  o f f i ce  to  be  un i t  11A.   Now tha t  10 

reco l lec t ion ,  can  you exp la in  i t  because I  seem to  have 

unders tood you tha t  on  tha t  occas ion  when you were  there ,  

you d id  no t  p ick  up  the  o f f i ce  number  or  someth ing  to  tha t  

e f fec t .    

MR MASANGO:   Yes Cha i r,  the  when we were  go ing  up  

w i th  the  s teps,  I  po in ted  a t  the  o f f i ce  a t  the  co rne r.   As  you 

see on page 49.5 ,  I  po in ted  a t  the  corner  to  say th is  o f f i ce  

looks l i ke  and then the  invest iga tor  then conf i rmed tha t  

what  you are  po in t ing  is  11A.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.   20 

MR MASANGO:   So  in  o ther  words I  cou ld  no t  reca l l  and 

say the  o f f i ce  o f  11A,  bu t  I  jus t  po in ted  out  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MASANGO:   Because the re  were  numbers .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   
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MR MASANGO:   The invest iga to rs  sa id  where  you are  

po in t ing  i t  i s  11A.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   Wel l ,  you w i l l  reca l l  when you 

were  here  I  d id  ask  you whethe r  tha t  was your  f i rs t  and  las t  

t ime fo r  you to  be  a t  these o f f i ces  tha t  we are  ta lk ing 

about ,  and I  see  tha t  you do say  in  the  las t  paragraph o f  

th is  a f f idav i t  as  we l l ,  wh ich  is  on  page 49.2 .   Paragraph 8 .   

You say th i s  was the  f i rs t  and on ly  t ime tha t  I  a t tended any  

meet ing  a t  th is  o f f i ce .   10 

 Now we have asked you to  comment  on  the  

s ta tement  made by  Ms B ianca in  her  a f f idav i t ,  in  wh ich  she  

says tha t  dur ing  December  2015  and le t  me make th is  

c lea r,  because th is  meet ing  i s  10  March 2015.   So 

December  2015 she says she was a t  the  o f f i ces  o f  Mr  

Essa.    

 Mr  Essa in t roduced you to  her  as  you be ing  an  

o f f i c ia l  f rom Eskom.   So she says I  was in t roduced by  Essa  

to  Abram Masango,  Eskom group execut ive  o f  t ransmiss ion  

as  Tr i l l i an ’s  representa t i ve .   The . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    You . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Do you have any  

comment  on  tha t  Mr  Masango?  

MR MASANGO:   Through you Cha i r,  I  do  no t  reca l l  meet ing  

in  tha t  o f f i ce  aga in ,  bu t  i f  you  a l low me Cha i r,  I  d id  meet  
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B ianca . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MASANGO:   I  th ink  I  met  her  once.   I  met  her  a t  

Megawat t  Park  in  f ron t  o f  Koko ’s  o f f i ce .   When you go to  

Megawat t  Park  there  a re  launches in  f ron t  o f  the  o f f i ces .   

My o f f i ce  was next  to  Edd ie ’s  o f f i ce  and then as  you go 

fu r ther  to  the  CEO’s  o f f i ce ,  Koko ’s  o f f i ce  was there .   

 So what  I  reca l l  i s  tha t  as  I  was wa lk ing  on  the  

cor r ido r,  there  were  two lad ies  no t  s i t t ing  on  the  launch but  

s tand ing .   Edwin  ca l l ed  me.   Edwin  was our  ch ie f ,  in  10 

Mabe lane was our  ch ie f  p rocu rement  o f f i ce r.   Then he  

ca l led  me,  then he in t roduced me to  the  two lad ies ,  and  

one o f  those lad ies ,  those two lad ies  i t  was B ianca.   

 But  i t  was fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime I  met  her  and then I  do  

no t  reca l l  o r  remember  meet ing  he r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Meet ing  her  a t  Me l rose  Arch?  

MR MASANGO:   No,  I  do  no t  reca l l .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   A t  Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  o f f i ce .   

MR MASANGO:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you not  reca l l  bu t  i t  m igh t  have 20 

happened or  a re  you def in i te  tha t  you never  me t  a t  Mr  

Sa l im Essa ’s  o f f i ces ,  because she  seemed qu i te  de f in i te  in  

her  ev idence.   So are  you say ing  you do not  reca l l  bu t  

maybe i t  d id  happen or  a re  you in  a  pos i t ion  to  say  you are  

de f in i te  tha t  i t  d id  no t  happen? 



22 JUNE 2021 – DAY 414 
 

Page 199 of 319 
 

MR MASANGO:   Cha i r,  I  do  no t  reca l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Reca l l ,  you  do not  reca l l .  

MR MASANGO:   I  do  no t  reca l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MASANGO:   Meet ing  he r,  o the r  than what  I  reca l l  tha t  I  

met  her  a t  Megawat t  Park .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MASANGO:   Cha i r,  I  must  a lso  say tha t  when I ,  

because B ianca ’s  a f f idav i t  was sent  to  us .   When I  read i t ,  

I  t r ied  to  remember.   I  cou ld  no t ,  except  tha t  I  remembered 10 

tha t  a t  some s tage I  was in  the  A f r i can Pr ide  Hote l  bu t  no t  

in  Mel rose A rch .   

 So I  do  no t  reca l l  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Have you o the r  than on the  10 t h  o f  March  

2015,  d id  you ever  meet  Mr  Sa l im Essa anywhere  a f te r  

tha t?  

MR MASANGO:   Cha i r,  a f te r  the  10 t h  o f  March I  never  met  

Sa l im Essa.   But  I  must  ind ica te  Cha i r  tha t  Mr  Koko  dur ing  

h is  suspens ion  he used to  ca l l  the  meet ings,  bu t  no t  a t  

Me l rose Arch  because I  reca l l  one meet ing  where  I  met  20 

Koko around tha t  a rea .   There  is  a  ho te l .   I  th ink  i t  i s  

A f r i can Pr ide .   

 I  met  Koko there .   Koko used to  ca l l  the  meet ing  

dur ing  h i s  t ime he was suspens ion ,  and when I  was w i th  

Koko in  the  en t rance o f  the  ho te l ,  we were  s i t t ing  l ike  in  a 
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corne r.   Because  I  was s t i l l  t rave l l ing  to  Mpumalanga,  so  I  

met  Koko.  

 I  saw Sa l im Essa  pass ing ,  bu t  he  never  . . .  he  was  

fa r  f rom us.   I  sa id  bu t  I  have seen tha t  guy.   Then  I  was  

w i th  Koko,  I  never  bo the red.   I  l is tened to  what  Koko was 

say ing ,  then I  le f t .   I  am say ing  tha t  Cha i r,  because  dur ing  

h is  suspens ion  Koko used to  ca l l  us ,  to  want  to  see us .    

 That  i s  where  me and Koko I  s tar ted  no t  a t tend ing  

those meet ings because I  fe l t  they  are  no t  [ ind is t inc t ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you have any reason why you th ink  10 

Ms B ianca Goodson might  say  she saw you in  Mr  Sa l im 

Essa ’s  o f f i ces  i f  tha t  i s  no t  what  happened?  I s  there  any 

reason you can th ink  o f?   Do you  th ink  she is  m is taken or  

do  you th ink  she might  have a  be t te r  reco l lec t ion  than you? 

MR MASANGO:   Cha i r,  I  w i l l  no t  comment  Cha i r  on  tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   You wou ld  no t  comment  on  tha t .  

MR MASANGO:   Ja ,  I  w i l l  no t  comment  on  tha t  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MASANGO:   Bu t  what  I  reca l l  i s  tha t  Edwin  in t roduced 

me to  he r.    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MASANGO:   And there  were  two lad ies .   I  cannot  

remember  the  o ther  lady,  bu t  you cou ld  see tha t  Edwin  and 

them,  they were  go ing  in to  Koko ’s  o f f i ce .   They were  

s tand ing  here ,  wa i t ing .   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  Masango,  I  am reminded o f  another  

quest ion .   When  Ms Nonh lanh la  was here ,  about  your  

meet ing  w i th  he r,  there  was one meet ing  you desc r ibed as  

hav ing   been on the  s ide  o f  the  road and she sa id  no ,  bu t  

you d id  no t  meet  on  the  s ide  o f  the  road.   Do you th ink  you 

can exp la in  yourse l f  on  tha t  aspect?  

MR MASANGO:   Yes,  I  can.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  p lease do? 

MR MASANGO:   Ja .   Cha i r,  I  s tand by  what  I  sa id  tha t  10 

because Nonh lanh la  was s tay ing  in  Mid rand,  I  was  s tay ing  

in  Mpumalanga.   So because I  m issed the  meet ing  on  s i te ,  

because a f te r  the  Megawat t  Park  meet ing  I  was supposed 

to  go  ins ide  and then I  ge t  ca l led  a t  Me l rose Arch .   

 I  then ca l led  her  as  I  was go ing  back.   Then I ,  bu t  

l i ke  I  sa id  Cha i r,  be fore  I  ca l led  her  I  t r ied  to  ca l l  Dan  

Marokana.   Cou ld  no t  ge t  h im and I  ca l led  her,  and then 

the  next  person a f te r  Me l rose Arch  tha t  I  ta lked to ,  i t  was 

he r.    

 The reason Cha i r,  I  am say ing  tha t ,  we met  on  the  20 

s ide  o f  the  road  as  he  was go ing  up,  me go ing  down to  

Mpumalanga.   Then the  fo l low ing day wh ich  was the  11 t h ,  

l i ke  I  exp la ined Cha i r  p rev ious ly  tha t  when I  wake  up the  

fo l low ing day on  the  11 t h ,  I  saw a  lo t  o f  m issed ca l l  on  my 

phone.   
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 I t  was a round f i ve  o ’c lock  and then when I  ca l led  

the  number  I  d id  no t  ge t  the  response,  bu t  there  was a  

vo i ce  message tha t  sa id  I  must  meet  the  Cha i rman a t  

Megawat t  Park  a t  e igh t .   Then out  o f  tha t ,  I  dec ided  not  to  

t rave l  to  the  pro jec t  o f f  s i te .   I  dec ided to  t rave l  f rom home 

to  Megawat t  Park .   

 My f i rs t  meet ing  a t  s i te ,  was a t  seven o ’ c lock  and I  

was go ing  to  have a  te leconference meet ing  w i th  Dan 

Marokana.   A l l  the  pro jec t s  were  go ing  to  connect  to  tha t  

meet ing  tha t  was  go ing  to  be  se t  by  Dan Marokana.   So 10 

ins tead o f  go ing  to  s i te  to  connect ,  because there  is  

meet ing  now,  th is  u rgent  meet ing  a t  e igh t  tha t  I  am 

supposed to  a t tend,  go  and see the  Cha i rman and  there  is  

a  seven o ’c lock  meet ing .   

 Then I  dec ided tha t  I  ra ther  d r ive  to  Megawat t  Park .   

Then I  a t tended the  f i rs t  meet ing  a t  seven.   A t  Megawat t  

Park ,  on  ground  f loor.   I t  was Cha i red  by  Peter  Sebu la ,  

because Dan Marokana was no t  there .   Peter  Sebu la  

Cha i red  the  meet ing .   

 The meet ing  was  schedu led ,  I  cannot  remember  the  20 

exact  t ime,  bu t  f i ve  to  e igh t ,  then I  le f t  the  mee t ing .   I  

wa lked w i th  the  s teps to  the  th i rd  f loor  to  meet  the  

Cha i rman.   So t rave l l ing  f rom Wi tbank to  Megawat t  Park ,  i t  

i s  one and a  ha l f  hour  to  two hours .   

 So there  is  no  way tha t  I  cou ld  have dr i ved to  s i te ,  
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wake up f i ve  o ’ c lock ,  p repare ,  d r ive  to  s i te ,  f rom s i te  d r ive  

to  Megawat t  Park  and make a  seven o ’ c lock  meet ing .   I  

must  say  Cha i r,  I  am a lso  a l i ve  to  the  cont rad ic t ion  

be tween what  Nonh lanh la  i s  say ing  and what  my ve rs ion  is .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   I t  m igh t  no t  be  

a  mater ia l  compl ica t ion .  

MR MASANGO:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  w i l l  be  looked a t  fu r ther  w i th  

every th ing ,  whether  you met  on  the  s ide  o f  the  road or  

e lsewhere .   I t  may be tha t  [ ind is t inc t ]  what  was d iscussed  10 

and what  you conveyed to  h im and what  she,  to  her  and  

what  she sa id .   

 But  whether  o r  no t  i t  i s  mater ia l  is  someth ing  tha t  

w i l l  be  looked a t  in  the  contex t  o f  a l l  the  ev idence.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   I  have been  ab le  to  

open the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Pamensky and he says,  i t  reads:  

 “To  the  best  o f  my knowledge Mr  Essa 

occup ied  an o f f i ce  s i tua ted  a t  Un i t  11A,  f i rs t  20 

f loor,  1  Mel rose Bou levard ,  Me l rose Arch ,  

Johannesburg . ”  

 I  see tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  he  ment ions 11A? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   11A,  yes.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Which  is  the  o f f i ce  tha t  you say you 

ident i f ied  and the  invest iga tors  a t  the  o f f i ce  you are  

ident i f y ing  is  11A? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see  he had,  he  a lso  d id  the  po in t ing  

out  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   On the  5 t h  o f  March  2021,  wh ich  the 

da te ,  i t  co inc ides  w i th  your  da te  Mr  Masango.   Were  you  10 

there  togethe r  o r  on  separa te  t imes?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  Masango was on the  5 t h  o f  March .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  i t  i s  the  same date  as  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  i s  i t  the  same date?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Were  you there  together  o r  on  separa te  

t imes?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you know Mr  Pamensky?  20 

MR MASANGO:   Ja ,  Pamensky used to  be  a  board  member.   

CHAIRPERSON:   A board  member  yes.   D id  you see  h im on 

the  day you went  there  w i th  the  invest iga tors?  

MR MASANGO:   No,  I  d id  no t  see.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You d id  no t  see.    



22 JUNE 2021 – DAY 414 
 

Page 205 of 319 
 

MR MASANGO:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Then las t l y  Mr  Masango,  Mr  Koko 

has been here ,  and as  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you conf i rm tha t  the  two o f  you ca l led  

each o ther  Mak i?  

MR MASANGO:    Yes Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You conf i rm.   Okay,  no  he  sa id  the  two o f  

you used to  ge t  on  very  we l l .   He sa id  you were ,  he  pu t  h is  

two f ingers  togethe r,  he  sa id  you  were  l i ke  th is .   He sa id  10 

you were  the  same WhatsApp group.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.   Cont inue Mr  Se leka.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  now he ,  i t  seems th ings have  

tu rned around Mr  Masango,  because he ment ioned a  

coup le  o f  t imes  tha t  he  has la id  a  c r im ina l  charge or  

opened a  cr im ina l  case aga ins t  you and o the rs  in  regard  

to ,  i f  my reco l lec t ion  serves me we l l ,  the  cor rup t ion  as  he  

says tha t  took p lace a t  Kus i le  Medup i  power  s ta t ions .   A re 

you aware  o f  h im hav ing  done so?  20 

MR MASANGO:   No,  I  am not  aware  o f  Koko lay ing  a  

c r im ina l  cha rge aga ins t  me.   There  is  an  a l leged case a t  

Kus i le  tha t  I  am a t tend ing .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  I  th ink  the  one he was ta lk ing  about ,  

I  th ink  he  sa id  he  la id  the  cr im ina l  compla in t ,  I  do  no t  know 
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whethe r  2016 or  2017.   I  th ink  2017 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  cannot  remember  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  what  he  d id  say i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  

because when he was g iv ing  ev idence and he was te l l ing  

me how c lose the  two o f  you had been fo r  a  number  o f  

years ,  I  asked h im when i t  was tha t  your  re la t ionsh ip ,  the 

re la t ionsh ip  be tween the  two o f  you changed or  sou red.    

 My reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  he  may have sa id  tha t  was  

2017.   Maybe 2016 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:   17  Cha i r.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Was i t  2017?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  th ink  tha t  i s  17 ,  yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  ja .   So i t  may be tha t  tha t  i s  t he  t ime 

he is  ta l k ing  about .   Do you no t  know tha t  he  l a id  any 

cr im ina l  compla in t  aga ins t  you and  o thers  in  2017 or  2016?   

MR MASANGO:   Cha i r,  what  I  know is  tha t  the re  is  a  case  

tha t  was,  there  is  an  a l leged case tha t  I  am a t tend ing .   I t  i s  

on  pre- t r ia l  now.   La id  by  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  do  you know whethe r  tha t  one was  

la id  w i th  the  po l i ce  as  fa r  back as  tha t  o r  a re  you  ta lk ing  20 

about  a  case tha t  i s  recent .   

MR MASANGO:   Yes,  the  case Cha i r  was la id  in  2017.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.  

MR MASANGO:   Was la id  in  2017.   When I  look  a t  i t ,  

though i t  was la id  by  the  secur i t y  manager.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Not  by  Mr  Koko?  

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   Cha i r,  m ight  I  ass is t?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   So  the re  is  no  case.   I  represent  Mr  

Masango in  those  proceed ings.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV OLD WAGE SC:   There  is  abso lu te ly  no th ing  to  do  w i th  

Mr  Koko.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR OLDWAGE SC:   What  I  can be sure  o f  i s  tha t  the 10 

docket  contents  o f  tha t  mat te r  has been d iscovered to  the  

de fence.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   I  had read those papers .   

CHAIRPERSON:   And there  is  no  s ta tement  by  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV OLD WAGE SC:   There  i s  ce r ta in ly  no  charge 

pre fe r red  aga ins t  Mr  Masango where  Mr  Koko  is  the 

compla inant  and  I  can take  i t  one s tep  fu r ther.   Mr  

Masango was requ i red  to  appear  and launch  a  ba i l  20 

app l i ca t ion  and  what  he  was  requ i red  to  do  in  tha t  

app l i ca t ion  was to  d isc lose  whether  there  were  any o ther  

cases pend ing  aga ins t  h im a t  the  t ime.   

 He made the  d isc losu re  tha t  there  was not  and so  I  

do  no t  want  any confus ion  . . .  Mr  Masango has perhaps not  
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cor rec t l y  answered th is  w i th  re fe rence to  the  da te ,  bu t  

p resent  we as  the  de fence team have no knowledge o f  any 

such case and cer ta in l y  the  mat te r  wh ich  is  p resent ly  p re-

t r ia l  in  the  spec ia l i sed  commerc ia l  c r imes cour t ,  has 

abso lu te l y  no th ing  to  do  w i th  Mr  Koko and he is  no t  the  

compla inant  in  tha t  mat te r.   

 I  jus t  want  to  p rov ide  c la r i t y  in  tha t  regard .   

CHAIRPERSON:   O f  course  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  the  

compla inant  wou ld  be  re f lec ted  as  Eskom.   I s  the  pos i t ion  

tha t  in  the  docket  you have not  come across any s ta tement  10 

made by  h im to  the  po l i ce  as  we l l?  

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   And so ,  he  is  cer ta in l y  no t  what  i s  in  

the   o rd inary  cause descr ibed as  the  A1,  in  o ther  words the  

f i rs t  in fo rmat ion  o f  the  cr ime is  genera l l y  the  compla inant  

in  c r im ina l  mat te rs .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   And he is  cer ta in ly  no t  tha t  person 

and I  have not  come ac ross any a f f idav i t  f rom h im in  tha t  

d isc losure  process.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   20 

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   And my a t to rneys who are  w i th  me 

today,  a lso  conf i rm tha t  they a lso  have not  seen such an 

a f f idav i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.   A l r igh t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  Cha i r,  t he  s imp le  way to  reso lve  
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tha t  Cha i r,  i s  to  ob ta in  what  Mr  Koko had p romised to  g ive  

me.   Which  was cop ies  o f  the ,  he  sa id  he  has documents  

tha t  show tha t  he  opened th i s  case .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   And tha t  he  is  keep ing  them in  the  boot  

o f  h is  ca r,  bu t  they wa lked away w i thout  g iv ing  them to  me,  

so  I  have jus t  reminded h is  a t to rney . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   I f  he  cou ld  prov ide  me wi th  tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   So Mr  Masango,  when d id  you 10 

hear  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  accord ing  to  Mr  Koko he la id  a 

c r im ina l  compla in t  aga ins t  you,  I  th ink  he  sa id  fo r  

cor rup t ion .   When d id  you hear  tha t  tha t  i s  wha t  he  is  

say ing  or  tha t  the re  is  such a  th ing  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime? 

MR MASANGO:   Cha i r,  i t  i s  the  f i rs t  t ime I  hear  today tha t  

Koko la id  a  c r im ina l  charge aga ins t  me.   

CHAIRPERSON:   When he gave ev idence and subsequent  

you d id  no t  ge t  to  know tha t  tha t  i s  what  he  had sa id?  

MR MASANGO:   I  d id  no t  fo l low a l l  h is  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:   H is  ev idence.   20 

MR MASANGO:   H is  ev idence.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So when you gave ev idence  before  

th is  commiss ion ,  was i t  las t  year  o r  ea r ly  th is  year?   

Whenever  i t  was,  d id  you have any  knowledge tha t  Mr  Koko  

may have la id  some cr im ina l  comp la in t  aga ins t  you?  
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MR MASANGO:   No Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Because he i f  I  am not  m is taken,  h is  

ev idence suggested tha t  you may have g iven the  ev idence  

tha t  you have g i ven about  the  mee t ing  o f  the  10 t h  o f  March 

2015 and sa id  he  was par t  o f  tha t  meet ing ,  because  o f  the  

fac t  tha t  he  had la id  a  c r im ina l  compla in t  aga ins t  you fo r  

cor rup t ion ,  bu t  what  I  d id  ra ise  w i th  h im was tha t  on  h is  

vers ion ,  your  re la t ionsh ip  a t  the  t ime,  w i th  the  two o f  you 

was good,  and  accord ing  to  h is  own vers ion  tha t  

re la t ionsh ip  was good unt i l  I  th ink  2017.    10 

 But  in  the  meant ime you had  to ld  [ ind is t inc t ]  

Me l rose Arch  on the  10 t h  o f  March .   So the  re la t ionsh ip  a t  

tha t  t ime on h is  vers ion  was s t i l l  f i ne .   But  tha t  i s  the  

contex t ,  tha t  i s  what  he  was say ing  i f  I  reca l l  co r rec t l y.   So 

you say you do not  know anyth ing  about  h im hav ing  la id  a  

compla in t?  

MR MASANGO:   Yes,  I  d id  no t  know anyth ing  Cha i r,  about  

h im lay ing  a  c r im ina l  charge aga ins t  me.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Se leka.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do  no t  have anyth ing  fu r the r.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .   Now I  do  no t  th ink  I  have  e i the r.   

The 1 s t  o f  December  2020,  tha t  i s  when you tes t i f ied .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   The,  ja  I  th ink  we have c la r i t y  on  th is  
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i ssue o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Because i t  was the  issue  o f  the  

ident i f i ca t ion  o f  the  bu i ld ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  was the  issue,  the  ev idence  o f  Ms  

B ianca Goodson.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Then i t  was what  Mr  Koko had sa id .   

Those were  the  th ree  issues,  ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Those were  the  issues,  ja .   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   I f  you  do  not  have any quest ions,  

I  am go ing  to  ask  counse l  fo r  Mr  Masanga,  i s  there  any re -

examinat ion?  

ADV OLD WAGE SC:   I  do  have Mr  Cha i r,  two or  th ree 

quest ions.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  I  am qu i te  happy fo r  you to  e i ther  do  

i t  f rom there  i f  your  m ic  i s  work ing  or  i f  you  want  to  come 

to  the  pod ium,  i t  i s  f ine .   Whichever,  okay.   You want  to  do 

i t  f rom there?  

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   I  can  do i t  f rom here  Mr  Cha i r.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  i t  i s  f ine .   Okay,  you may do so .   

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   Thank you.   Mr  Masango,  I  d raw your  

a t ten t ion  to  Exh ib i t  U ,  page 31.   I f  you  cou ld  k ind l y  tu rn  to  

tha t  page and in  par t i cu la r  the  paragraph numbered  18.3 .2 .    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry.   What  page in  Bund le  14  is  
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tha t?  

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   Mr  Cha i rperson,  page 31.  

CHAIRPERSON:   E igh ty  one?  

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   Three one.   I t  i s  U31,  B54-007.   I t  i s  

the  a f f idav i t  o f  Ms B ianca Goodson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.   Go ahead.   

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   A re  you there  Mr  Masango?  

MR MASANGO:   Page 31?   

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   U31.    

MR MASANGO:   U  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  wou ld  be  the  exh ib i t  number.   U31 

w i l l  be  the  exh ib i t  number  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   B54-007.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Have you got  the  b lack  number,  the  b lack  

pag ina t ion  on  the  le f t  o f  the  corner?  

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   431 Mr  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   431?  

ADV OLDWAGE:   Indeed.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Page 431 Mr  Masango.    

MR MASANGO:   Yes,  I  am on page 431.    20 

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   Paragraph 18.3 .2 ,  I  am go ing  to  

quote  i t  fo r  you.   I t  reads:  

 “Dur ing  or  about  week 50 2015(6  to  12 

December)  and  in  Essa ’s  o f f i ce ,  I  was  

in t roduced by  Essa to  Abram Masango,  Eskom 
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g roup execut ive  o f  t ransmiss ion  as  Tr i l l i an ’s  

rep resenta t i ve . ”  

 Now before  we dea l  w i th  tha t  capt ion ,  how many 

meet ings d id  you a t tend a t  Essa ’s  o f f i ce ,  the  o f f i ce  tha t  

you have desc r ibed the  loca t ion  o f  here  today?  

MR MASANGO:   I  reca l l  one meet ing ,  tha t  was on the  10 t h  

o f  March 2015.     

ADV OLD WAGE SC:   Reca l l  means tha t  i s  what  you 

remember?  

MR MASANGO:   That  i s  what  I  remember.   10 

ADV OLD WAGE SC:   I s  there  any reason why you do not  

remember  any o ther  meet ing  a t  these premises?  

MR MASANGO:   There  is  no  o ther  reason,  bu t  the  meet ing  

tha t  I  remember  i s  the  one on the  10 t h  o f  March 2015.   

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   Now can we accept  tha t  i t  was jus t  

tha t  meet ing  a t  tha t  o f f i ce  w i th  Essa?  

MR MASANGO:   That  i s  what  I  reca l l .   That  i s  what  I  

remember.    

ADV OLD WAGE SC:   I s  i t  poss ib le  tha t  you cou ld  have 

fo rgo t ten  about  hav ing  another  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Essa,  Mr  20 

Masango?   

MR MASANGO:   One o f  the  reason tha t  I  remember  the  

meet ing  o f  the  10 t h ,  i s  because I  a lso  reca l l  the  contents  o f  

the  d iscuss ion  on  the  10 t h .   So i f  there  was any o the r  

meet ing ,  I  shou ld  a lso  a t  leas t  remember  the  reason or  
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what  t ransp i red  in  tha t  meet ing .   

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   Thank you.   Now we can re tu rn ,  what  

Ms Goodson a l leges in  th i s  a f f idav i t ,  i s  tha t  Essa  

in t roduced you  to her  as  the  group execut ive  o f  

t ransmiss ion .   You see tha t?    

MR MASANGO:   I  do ,  th rough you Cha i r.   

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   Now have you ever  he ld  the  pos i t ion  

o f  g roup execut ive  o f  t ransmiss ion  w i th  Eskom? 

MR MASANGO:   I  never  he ld  any pos i t ion  o f  g roup 

execut ive  o f  t ransmiss ion  in  Eskom.   10 

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   So  the re fore  Ms Goodson must  have 

been mis taken when she in t roduced you in  tha t  capac i ty,  

do  you agree?   

MR MASANGO:   Yes.    

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   Mr  Masango,  you have been asked  

about  the  tes t imony and the  a f f idav i t  o f  Ms K raa i .   Where  

were  you on the  morn ing  o f  11  March 2015?  Can you  

reca l l?    

MR MASANGO:   In  the  morn ing  o f  the  11 t h  I  was ,  in  the  

morn ing  I  was in  Wi tbank.   I  le f t  Wi tbank.   I  a t tended a  20 

seven o ’c lock  meet ing  a t  Megawat t  Park .    

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   D id  you a t tend a  meet ing  w i th  Ms 

Kraa i  a t  Kus i le  on  tha t  day 11  March,  yes  or  no?  

MR MASANGO:   No.    

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   Have you requested your  d ia ry  fo r  
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the  per iod  2015 f rom Eskom so as  to  ass is t  you w i th  an  

unders tand ing  o f  your  whereabouts  dur ing  tha t  yea r?  

MR MASANGO:   On the  11 t h?  

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   Jus t  l i s ten  to  the  quest ion .   Have you 

asked fo r  your  d ia ry,  fo r  access to  your  d ia ry  f rom Eskom 

for  the  per iod  2015?   

MR MASANGO:   I  asked fo r  spec i f i c  da tes .   I  asked fo r  

spec i f i c  da tes .    

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   And have you been g iven access to  

your  d ia ry?    10 

MR MASANGO:   No.  

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   As  I  unders tand your  ev idence,  you 

were  on  f r iend ly  te rms w i th  Mr  Koko dur ing  your  tenure  a t  

Eskom,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MR MASANGO:   Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   Not  towards the  end.   

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   Do you have any cause  to  have 

fa lse ly  imp l ica ted  Mr  Koko w i th  re ference to  the  meet ing  

w i th  Essa?   

MR MASANGO:   Ask  the  quest ion  aga in?  

ADV OLD WAGE SC:   Do you have any cause to  fa lse ly  20 

imp l ica te  Mr  Koko?  You w i l l  reca l l ,  le t  me put  the  contex t  

fo r  th is  quest ion .   Koko has sugges ted tha t  there  is  a  w i tch  

hunt  aga ins t  h im  and tha t  peop le  have fa l se l y  imp l ica ted 

h im,  in  par t i cu la r  you w i th  re ference to  your  ev idence  

concern ing  th is  meet ing  w i th  Essa,  where  he  was present .   
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 My quest ion  to  you is  do  you have any cause to  

fa lse ly  imp l ica te  Mr  Koko?  

MR MASANGO:   No.   

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r,  I  have noth ing  

fu r the r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you ve ry  much.   Thank you very  

much Mr  Masango.   You are  now excused.    

MR MASANGO:   You are  we lcome Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Your  lega l  team is  a lso  excused  i f  they  

w ish  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

ADV OLDWAGE SC:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   We,  I  am go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  

about  ten  m inutes  to  a l low Mr  [ ind is t inc t ]  to  se t  up  be fore 

the  next  w i tness.   We ad jou rn .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good even ing  Mr  Hu l ley.   Good even ing  

everybody.   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Good even ing  Mr  Cha i r.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good even ing  Mr  D ixon.  

ADV DIXON SC:   Good even ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good even ing .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Even ing  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you,  thank  you.    
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ADV HULLEY SC:   Mr  Cha i r,  today ’s  p roceed ings  re la tes  to  

the  ev idence o f  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu .   You have gran ted h im  

leave to  c ross-examine Mr  Trevor  Whi te  on  the  quest ion  o f  

the  one mi l l ion  rand donat ion  and before  he  may do  so ,  he  

is  requ i red  to  tes t i f y.   

 You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  he  had tes t i f ied  on  a  prev ious  

occas ion  where  you had to  cons ide r  whether  you were  

go ing  to  g rant  h im,  a t  tha t  s tage you were  cons ide r ing  

whethe r  to  g rant  h im leave to  c ross-examine Mr  Wh i te .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  10 

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  and we s topped a t  a  t ime when  

there  seemed to  be  some confus ion  as  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HULLEY SC:   There  had been some confus ion  as  to  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   What  Mr  Whi te ’s  d iagram rea l l y  meant  

and an a f f idav i t  has been obta ined .   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Two a f f idav i t s ,  in  fac t  th ree  a f f idav i t s  

have been obta ined.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  I  th ink  jus t  dea l  w i th  tha t  so  tha t  we  20 

are  a l l  on  the  same page . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   As  to  where  we a re .   

ADV HULLEY SC:   So  pursuant  to  your  d i rec t i ve  Mr  Cha i r,  

we obta ined a  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  f rom Mr  Whi te  in  
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wh ich  he  exp la ined what  h is  in ten t ion  was in  re la t ion  to  the 

donat ion .   So tha t  has been c la r i f ied .   We a l so  ob ta ined an  

a f f idav i t  f rom Colone l  du  P looy.    

 That  has been inc luded in  the  bund le  and then 

dur ing  the  course  o f  las t  n igh t  we obta ined an a f f idav i t  

f rom Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  in  wh ich  he  responded to  the i r  

a f f idav i t  and tha t  has a lso  been inc luded in  the  bund le .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  I  have not  seen Co lone l  du  P looy ’s  

a f f idav i t .   I  have not  seen Mr  Mabuyakhu lu ’s  la tes t  

a f f idav i t .    10 

ADV HULLEY SC:   So  Co lone l  du  P looy ’s  a f f idav i t  i s  to  be  

found,  I  can take  you to  i t ,  can  be found a t  page 248 o f  

LEA27.  

CHAIRPERSON:   There  is  a  bund le  in  f ron t  o f  me here .   Do 

you want  to  make sure  the  record  re f lec t s  what  bund le  we 

are  us ing .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   So  i t  i s  Bund le  LEA27.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV HULLEY SC:   And . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  and Co lone l  du  P looy ’s  a f f idav i t  i s  20 

a t  what  page?   

ADV HULLEY SC:   I t  i s  a t  page 248 o f  tha t  bund le .   

CHAIRPERSON:   What  does i t  dea l  w i th?  

ADV HULLEY SC:   So  i n  essence i t  dea ls  w i th  the  very  

same issue tha t  has been dea l t  w i th  by  Mr  Whi te ,  in  h is  
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a f f idav i t  and he  exp la ins  the  . . .  he  exp la ins  why in  h is  

v iew,  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  was in  fac t  the  person who came up 

w i th  the  s to ry  about  the  one mi l l ion  rand donat ion  hav ing 

been rece ived,  wh ich  re la ted  to  Dr  Savoy hav ing  been 

rece ived by  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  f rom Mr  Tshaba la la .   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  looks l i ke  i t  i s  no t  a  shor t  a f f idav i t .    

ADV HULLEY SC:   I t  i s  a  fa i r l y  substant ia l  a f f idav i t .   In  

fac t ,  i t  runs f rom page 248 and conta ins  a  number  o f  

annexures.   Wi th  a l l  i t s  annexures i t  runs to  page 502 and,  

bu t  some o f  those a f f idav i t s  tha t  a re  a t tached  to  h is  10 

a f f idav i t ,  a re  in  fac t  a f f idav i t s  wh ich  have a l ready been  

inc luded e lsewhere .    

 So they wou ld  in  fac t  be  dup l i ca t ions,  bu t  Co lone l  

du  P looy ’s  a f f idav i t  i s  one a f f idav i t ,  together  w i th  

annexures and I  wou ld  ask  tha t  tha t  par t i cu la r  annexure ,  

a f f idav i t  be  marked as  Exh ib i t  RR7.8 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   H is  a f f idav i t  i s  35  pages and then the  

annexures.    

ADV HULLEY SC:   The a f f idav i t  i s  35  pages,  together  w i th  

the  annexures.   Runs in to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  h is  a f f idav i t  a lone is  35  pages.   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   And then w i th  the  annexures,  w i l l  the 

annexures take  i t  to  what  page?  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Take i t  to  page 200,  sor ry  503.    
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CHAIRPERSON:   What  p rompted Co lone l  du  P looy ’s  

a f f idav i t ,  was he asked to  do  one o r  he  watched Mr  

Mabuyakhu lu ’s  ev idence and dec ided to  pu t  up  an  

a f f idav i t?  

ADV HULLEY SC:   We had asked h im to  cons ider  t he  same 

issues tha t  have been put  to  Mr  Trevor  Whi te ,  because the  

ev idence dove ta i led  w i th  each o ther.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV HULLEY SC:   So  we thought  i t  wou ld  be  impor tan t  fo r  

bo th  o f  them to  cons ide r  the  issue .   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   P roceed,  because I  am see ing  i t  fo r  the  

f i rs t  t ime,  I  now do not  know whe ther  what  he  says there ,  

whethe r  there  i s  anyth ing  tha t  wou ld  need to  be  pu t  to  Mr  

Mabuyakhu lu  in  the  f i rs t  p lace ,  o r  whethe r  he  ra i ses  

anyth ing  tha t  i s  d i f fe ren t  f rom what  Mr  Whi te  i s  say ing .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Wel l ,  he  covers  exact ly  the  same 

te r r i to ry  as  Mr  Whi te ,  bu t  in  add i t ion  to  what  Mr  Whi te  has 

sa id ,  he  a l so  adds two impor tan t  add i t iona l  documents .   He 

re fers  to  a  le t te r  tha t  was re fer red  to  by  Mr  Whi te  bu t  no t  

a t tached.   He a t taches tha t  and  then he re fers  to  an  20 

a f f idav i t  tha t  was obta ined f rom Mr  Zwele  Mkh ize  dur ing  

the  course  o f  the  invest iga t ion  wh ich  he  says prov ides  

suppor t  fo r  h is  v iew tha t  in  fac t  i t  was Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  who  

prov ided tha t  vers ion  tha t  the  donat ion  was rece ived f rom 

Dr  Savoy.    
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CHAIRPERSON:   Where  is  Dr  Mkh ize ’s  a f f idav i t?    

ADV HULLEY SC:   So  i f  you  wou ld  tu rn  to  Mr  Cha i r,  to  

page 490.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Four  n ine  zero?  

ADV HULLEY SC:   That  i s  cor rec t .   You w i l l  see  there  tha t  

i s  the  f i rs t  page o f  the  a f f idav i t  and tha t  a f f idav i t  goes as  

fa r  as  page 498.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Th is  i s  no t  a  sa t is fac to ry  s i tua t ion .   I t  is  

no t  sa t is fac tory.   Why was he  not  asked to  g ive  th is  

a f f idav i t  much ea r l ie r,  Co lone l  du  P looy.   Why d id  he  not  10 

g ive  i t  much ea r l ie r?   I  cou ld  have  had a  chance to  read i t .   

Was he asked recent ly?  

ADV HULLEY SC:   He was asked  a t  the  same t ime as  Mr  

Whi te  was asked.   H is  a f f idav i t  i s  a  l i t t le  b i t  more  

substant ia l  and i t  requ i red  cer ta in  add i t iona l  ev idence.   As  

I  say,  he  has covered the  same te r r i to ry  as  Mr  Whi te ,  bu t  in  

add i t ion  to  tha t  he  has managed to  loca te  add i t iona l  

documents  to  suppor t  h im,  o r  what  he  is  say ing .   

 One o f  those add i t iona l  documents  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  I  was not  even in fo rmed tha t  there  20 

was an a f f idav i t  be ing  awai ted  f rom h im.   Mr  Whi te ’s  one I  

go t  and I  read i t .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  I  had an idea,  I  had an idea  when I  

a l loca ted  the  da te ,  I  had an idea tha t  tha t  i s  the  a f f idav i t  
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tha t  has been prov ided.   I  d id  no t  even know Colone l  du  

P looy had been asked to  p rov ide  an  a f f idav i t .   A t  leas t ,  I  

wou ld  have asked tha t  he  wou ld  be  g iven s t r i c t  dead l ines,  

s t r i c t  dead l ines.   

 A s t r i c t  dead l ine .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Yes,  yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  tha t  he  cou ld  no t  p rov ide  i t  one day  

be fore  the  hear ing .   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Yes.   I  can  say  tha t  fo r  the  purpose o f ,  

because i t  covers  the  same te r r i to ry  as  I  have sa id  and i t  10 

is  a l l  concerned w i th  one issue and one issue on ly,  i .e .  who  

was the  source  o f  the  in fo rmat ion  re la t ing  to  the  donor.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Le t  us  see,  Mr  D ixon is  there  

anyth ing  you w ish  to  say a t  th is  s tage before  we s tar t?  

MR DIXON:   Cha i r,  I  do  no t  have anyth ing  to  say.   Mr 

Mabuyakhu lu  wan ted to  g ive  ev idence . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR DIXON:   I  am go ing  to  leave i t  to  h im . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR DIXON:   To  make h is  po in t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   Okay.   What  we 

w i l l  do  is  we w i l l ,  I  w i l l  a l low Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  to  g ive  

ev idence and to  be  quest ioned and then when he i s  done,  

then we w i l l  a l low  you to  c ross-examine Mr  Whi te .   

MR DIXON:   Thank you,  tha t  wou ld  be  apprec ia ted .   



22 JUNE 2021 – DAY 414 
 

Page 223 of 319 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  can  

you hear  us?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Yes,  I  can Mr  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good even ing .   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Good even ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you fo r  ava i l ing  yourse l f  aga in  and  

in  the  even ing .   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Thank you very  much Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   The reg i s t ra r  w i l l  admin is te r  the  oa th  or  

a f f i rmat ion .   You  d id  hear  what  I  sa id  jus t  be fo re  your  10 

counse l  d i sappeared,  namely  tha t  we w i l l  s ta r t  w i th  you.   

A f te r  you have f in ished,  then Mr  Whi te  w i l l  be  cross-

examined by  your  counse l .   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   That  i s  cor rec t  Mr  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record?   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   My fu l l  name is  Michae l  

Mabuyakhu lu .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed a f f i rmat ion?  20 

MR MABUYAKHULU:   No,  I  do  no t .   

REGISTRAR:   Do  you a f f i rm tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  g ive  

w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  bu t  the  t ru th?   

I f  so ,  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and say I  t ru ly  a f f i rm.  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  t ru ly  a f f i rm.  
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MICHAEL MABUYAKHULU:   (D .s .s )  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Okay,  Mr  Hu l ley,  do  you want  

to  lead . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   Mr  Mabuyakhu lu ,  

you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  on  the  prev ious occas ion  tha t  you  

tes t i f ied  be fore  the  Commiss ion  re la t ing  to  a  one  mi l l ion 

rand donat ion  tha t  you sa id  you  had rece ived f rom Mr  

Tshaba la la  fo r  the  ANC Kwazu lu  Nata l .   Do you reca l l  tha t?    

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  do .   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now you deposed to  a  number  o f  10 

a f f idav i t s  wh ich  a re  be fore  the  Commiss ion  and I  wou ld  l i ke  

you jus t  to  conf i rm tha t ,  be fore  I  cont inue to  quest ion  you  

and to  lead your  ev idence abou t  your  response  to  the  

a l legat ions tha t  were  made by  Mr  Trevor  Whi te .   

 I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you to  your  a f f idav i t .   Can you 

tu rn  w i th  me to  Bund le  LEA27.   Mr  Cha i r,  and i f  you  cou ld  

tu rn  to  page 5  o f  tha t  bund le .  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I t  i s ,  wha t  i s  in  my f i le  i s  Exh ib i t  

RR7.   

ADV HULLEY SC:   That  i s ,  in  the  top  r igh t  hand co rner  you 20 

wou ld  see RR7/MM/005.   For  your  benef i t  Mr  Cha i rperson i t  

w i l l  be  LEA27 in  the  top  le f t  hand corne r  and we a re  

look ing  a t  page 5  spec i f i ca l l y.    

MR MABUYAKHULU:   That  i s  27  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bund le  MMA27,  Exh ib i t  RR7 I  th ink  and  
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you  sa id  page 5  Mr  Hu l ley?  

ADV HULLEY SC:   I t  i s  page 5  o f  tha t  bund le .   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Page 5?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  when you say page 5  you w i l l  reca l l  

f rom las t  t ime Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s  275 and 005  but  we jus t  say  page 5 .   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   No I  d id  f ind  i t  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   And th is  purpo r ts  to  be  an  a f f idav i t  o f  10 

Michae l  Mabuyakhu lu .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

CHAIRPERSON:   You say i t  purpor t s?  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Wel l ,  be fore  I  can I  need to  ascer ta in  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   [ ind is t inc t ]  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  guess he  w i l l s  say  no ,  i t  does not  

purpo r t .   I t  i s  m ine.   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Ja .   Now . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  I  th ink  you may be r igh t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

ADV HULLEY SC:   Unt i l  I  know what  h is  answer  i s .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Unt i l  he  conf i rms .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   I f  you  wou ld  tu rn  

w i th  me s i r,  to  page 16 o f  tha t  bund le ,  you w i l l  see  there  

tha t  i s  a  s ignature  o f  a  deponent  and the  document  i t se l f  i s  
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s igned on the  10 t h  o f  February  o f  2020 and you have got  

the  de ta i l s  o f  the  Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths  on  the  fo l low ing 

page.   

 I s  the  s ignatu re  o f  the  deponent ,  i s  tha t  your  

s ignature?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   That  i s  cor rec t  Mr  Cha i r.   

ADV HULLEY SC:   And i s  th is  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  you 

deposed to  on  the  10 t h  o f  February  2020?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  Mr  Cha i r.   

ADV HULLEY SC:   And do you conf i rm tha t  the  contents  o f  10 

th is  a f f idav i t  a re  t rue  and cor rec t  to  the  best  o f  you r  

knowledge?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   That  i s  cor rec t  Mr  Cha i r.   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Mr  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  ask  tha t  th i s  be  marked 

as  Exh ib i t  RR7.1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  we not  admi t  th is  a f f idav i t  las t  t ime? 

ADV HULLEY SC:   We d id  admi t  i t  the  las t  t ime,  bu t  o f  

course  on tha t  occas ion  i t  was admi t ted  because as  par t  o f  

an  app l i ca t ion ,  sor ry  the  sequence number  was d i f fe ren t  

and o f  course  i t  was par t  o f  . . .  i t  was not  par t  o f  the  bund le  20 

LEA27.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  i t  cannot  be  admi t ted  under  

d i f fe ren t  each t ime.   Once i t  i s  adm i t ted ,  i t  i s  admi t ted .   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Very  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  i t  must  car ry  the  same exh ib i t  
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number  tha t  was used to  admi t  i t  las t  t ime.   

ADV HULLEY SC:   The d i f f i cu l t y  I  th ink  i s  tha t  I  am not  

sure  tha t  we ass igned an exh ib i t  number  to  i t  on  tha t  

occas ion  because i t  was jus t  fo r  the  pu rpose  o f  the 

app l i ca t ion ,  a t  tha t  s tage i t  on ly  had the  head ing  SEQ32.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  i f  i t  was admi t ted  i t  wou ld  be ,  i t  

wou ld  have been ass igned an exh ib i t  number.   I f  i t  was not  

ass igned then i t  was not  admi t ted .   So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Then I  be l ieve  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  we need to  know as a  mat te r  o f  fact  10 

whethe r  i t  was admi t ted  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HULLEY SC:   My jun io r  says  tha t  i t  was admi t ted  as  

RR7.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I t  must  car ry  the  same exh ib i t  

number.    

ADV HULLEY SC:   My document  s imp ly  does not  conta in  

tha t ,  the  cor rec t  number  bu t  I  w i l l  take  i t  tha t  i t  i s  RR7 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  I  am sure  your  jun io r  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HULLEY SC:   [ ind is t inc t ]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sure  she is  cer ta in .    

ADV HULLEY SC:   Then i f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  then cons ide r  

a  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  tha t  was a lso  admi t ted  on  tha t  

occas ion ,  and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  I  am sor ry.   Your  jun io r  sa id  i t  was 
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admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  R?  

ADV HULLEY SC:   She says i t  was admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  RR,  

I  need to  conf i rm i t  bu t  she says i t  was RR7 tha t  i t  was  

admi t ted  as .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.   Okay.   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Then i f  I  cou ld  take  h im to  the  most  

recent  a f f idav i t ,  and i f  you  cou ld  tu rn  w i th  me s i r  to  page 

129.1 .   Th i s  i s  your  most  recent  a f f idav i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   What  i s  the  page  number?  

ADV HULLEY SC:   129.1  Mr  Cha i r.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Have you got  tha t  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Wel l ,  in  th is  bund le  I  have,  129 is  

the  one o f  the  annexures tha t  I  submi t ted  in  the  prev ious 

documents .   

CHAIRPERSON:   129.1 .   Look fo r  129.1  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   That  i s  t he  po in t  I  am ra is ing  Mr  

Cha i rman.   I  do  no t  have th is  129.1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.    

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  have,  I  do  no t  have tha t  one .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You on ly  have 129?  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Mr  Mabuyakhu lu ,  you r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  have 129,  then I  go t  130 wh ich  is  a  

d i f fe ren t  document .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  
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MR MABUYAKHULU:   Not  f rom the  Commiss ion  to  me.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   You deposed to  an  a f f idav i t ,  so r ry.   You 

deposed to  an  a f f idav i t  on  the  21s t  o f  June.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  am sor ry.   I  th ink  Mr  D ixon 

w ishes to  ass is t?  

ADV DIXON SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  Mr  D ixon?  

ADV DIXON SC:   My a t to rney is  go ing  next  door  where  Mr  

Mabuyakhu lu  i s .   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV DIXON SC:   And he is  go ing  to  g i ve  h im a  copy 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   O f  the  r igh t  one?  

ADV DIXON SC:   O f  h is  most  recen t  a f f idav i t  and te l l  h im i f  

tha t  i s  go ing  to  129.1  2  3  4  e t ce tera .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV DIXON SC:   So  he shou ld  be  in  the  pos i t ion  to  answer  

the  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.   A l r igh t .   I  th ink  tha t  i s  he lp fu l .    20 

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Fo r  the  purpose o f  the  record  Mr 

Cha i rman . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Whi ls t  I  am wai t ing .   I  had those  

supp lementary  a f f idav i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   [ ind is t inc t  the  21 s t  o f  June 2021.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I s  tha t  the  one we a re  ta lk ing  

about ,  ja  21 s t  o f  June 2021.  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   That  i s  the  la tes t  supp lementa ry  

a f f idav i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  the  la tes t ,  yes .  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Which  I  deposed to  yeste rday.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay ja .   That  i s  the  one we want  to ,  

tha t  s ta r ts  a t  page 129.1 .   Has your  a t to rney g iven i t  to  you 10 

now?   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  rece i ved i t  Cha i rman.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  so  you can pag ina te  i t  as  129.1  tha t  

i s  the  f i rs t  page  and i t  goes up to  the  las t  page  o f  your  

a f f idav i t  w i l l  be  129.12.  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Done Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr  Mabuyakhu lu .   Now i f  you  

cou ld  look  a t  the  s ignatu re  on  the  las t  page  o f  tha t  

document ,  129.12 once aga in  there  i s  a  deponent  and 20 

above tha t  deponent  i s  a  s ignature .   I s  tha t  your  s ignature?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   That  i s  cor rec t  yes  Cha i r.   

ADV HULLEY SC:   And you deposed to  th is  be fore  a  

Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   That  i s  cor rec t .   
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ADV HULLEY SC:   And th i s  i s  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  you 

deposed to  in  response to  the  a l legat ions o r  to  the  a f f idav i t  

tha t  was p repared by  Mr  Whi te  and Co lone l  du  P looy,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Ja ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV HULLEY SC:   And do you conf i rm tha t  the  in fo rmat ion  

or  the  ev idence  conta ined in  th is  a f f idav i t  i s  t rue  and 

cor rec t  to  the  bes t  o f  your  knowledge?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   Can we mark  th i s  10 

par t i cu la r  document  as  Exh ib i t  RR7.2 .2 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  guess you asked me to  f i rs t  admi t  i t  

be fore  we mark  i t .   To  admi t  i t ,  you  are  ask ing  me to  admi t  

i t  be fore  we mark  i t .   Ja .   You want  i t  to  be  marked as  

exh ib i t?    

ADV HULLEY SC:   RR7.2 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   7 .2 .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   7 .2 .2 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay.   The  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Michae l  

Mabuyakhu lu  tha t  i s  da ted  21s t  o f  June 2021 tha t  s ta r ts  a t  20 

page 129.1  i s  admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  and is  marked as  

Exh ib i t  RR7.2 .2 .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   Now Mr  

Mabuyakhu lu ,  I  w i l l  ge t  to  the  aspects  o f  your  ev idence,  

bu t  I  want  to  go  th rough chrono log ica l l y  th rough the  
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events ,  as  you unders tand the  events  and I  wou ld  l i ke  you  

to  tu rn  to  page 163 o f  the  same bund le .    

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  found i t  Cha i r.   

ADV HULLEY SC:   And th is  i s  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Ms Ngobane  

Zu lu .  But  on  the  a f f idav i t  i t se l f  i t  s imp ly  says S ibus iwe 

Nomuso Ngobane .    

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Yes,  I  can see i t  Mr  Cha i r.   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now jus t  to  go  back in  te rms o f  the  

chrono logy.   Accord ing  to  Ms Ngobane,  the  . . .  she  was par t  

o f  a  pa r tnersh ip ,  a  f i rm o f  a t to rneys known as Ngobane  10 

Wi l l s  Inco rpora ted ,  and you were  contac ted  by  a  Mr  Senzo 

Mnxuno to  make contac t  w i th  Ms Ngobane.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?     

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  have no knowledge o f  tha t .   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Pardon me? 

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  am say ing  I  have no knowledge o f  

tha t .   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Wel l ,  wou ld  i t  be  cor rec t  . . .  le t  us  look  

a t  the  a f f idav i t  and then you can  te l l  me what  you agree 

w i th  and wh ich  aspects  you d i sagree w i th .   I f  you  tu rn  to  

parag raph 4  o f  page 163,  she says tha t :  20 

 “ In  2009 I  was  approached by  Mr  Senzo 

Mnxuno who was the  prov inc ia l  secre tary  a t  

the  t ime. ”  

 Do you know Mr  Mnxuno?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  know h im very  we l l  Mr  Cha i r.   
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ADV HULLEY SC:   And is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  he  was the  

prov inc ia l  sec re ta ry  a t  the  t ime?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   He was the  prov inc ia l  sec re tary  a t  

the  t ime,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV HULLEY SC:   “He adv ised  me tha t  he  had been  

contac t ing  by  the  SAPS invest iga tors  who were  

invest iga t ing  a  donat ion  tha t  was a l leged ly  

made to  the  ANC,  KZN.   A t  the  t ime Mr  Mnxuno  

shared the  contac t  de ta i l s  o f  the  invest iga tor  

in  o rder  fo r  me to  ge t  more  de ta i l s  on  what  10 

was requ i red  f rom the  ANC Kwazu lu  Nata l  and 

to  be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  p roper l y  adv i se . ”  

 Turn  ove r  the  page to  page 164 ,  a t  paragraph 5 .   

She says:  

 “My co l league a t  the  t ime,  Mr  John [ ind is t inc t ]  

and I  had reached out  to  the  invest iga tor  

whose name I  no  longer  reca l l .   He adv ised  

tha t  they were  invest iga t ing  f raud and  

cor rup t ion  a l lega t ions aga ins t  a  number  o f  

ind iv idua ls .   He fu r the r  adv i sed tha t  our  c l ien t ,  20 

the  ANC,  was a l leged to  have  rece ived a  

donat ion  o f  one mi l l ion  rand.   However,  there  

was no such ev idence in  the i r  possess ion .   He 

there fo re  requ i red  the  ANC,  KZN to  conf i rm  

rece ip t  o f  the  donat ion  by  submi t t ing  an  
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a f f idav i t  to  h im. ”  

 In  paragraph 6  she says:  

 “Fo l lowing th i s  engagement  . . . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry  Mr  Hu l ley.   I  do  no t  want  you to  

read the  who le  ve rs ion .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  you d id  ask  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  tha t  

quest ion ,  a  ce r ta in  quest ion  and I  d id  no t  hear  the  answer.   

Have you had a  chance o f  read ing  Ms Ngobane ’s  a f f idav i t  

Mr  Mabuyakhu lu?  10 

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Yes s i r,  I  have had a  chance o f  

read ing  Ms Ngobane ’s  a f f idav i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I t  was submi t ted  to  me [ ind is t inc t ]  

very  shor t  no t ice .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Bu t  I  have made every  e f fo r t  to  be  

ab le  to  go  th rough i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   The po in t  I  re fe r red  to  ear l ie r  Mr  20 

Cha i rman,  in  response to  the  quest ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   From Mr  Hu l ley  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   That  I  sa id  I  had no knowledge o f ,  
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he  was ask ing  whether  I  was aware  o f  the  communica t ion  

be tween Mr  Senzo Mnxuno and Ms Ngobane,  and tha t  i s  

the  po in t  I  say  I  have no knowledge o f .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   Wel l ,  Mr  Hu l ley  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Perhaps I  can summar ise  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe you can  go to  the  rea l  i ssue,  

because I  know tha t  you,  we a l l  know what  the  rea l  i ssue 

is .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Wel l ,  accord ing  to  her  she says tha t  

a f te r  she had  exp la ined to  Mr  Mnxuno what  the  

invest iga t ion ,  the  cr im ina l  invest iga t ion  was about  and tha t  

i t  re la ted  to  a  donat ion ,  Mr  Mnxuno then contac ted  you  

d i rec t l y  in  o rder  fo r  you to  be  the  one to  p rov ide  the  

in fo rmat ion  to  he r.   

 Wou ld  tha t  be  cor rec t?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  cannot  reca l l  tha t ,  in  tha t  par t i cu la r  

contex t .   I  do  reca l l  however  tha t  I  was ab le  to  have a  20 

communica t ion  w i th  the  a t to rneys o f  Ngobane Wi l l s  

Inco rpo ra ted  and  in  my own memory  tha t  communica t ion  

happened w i th  one o f  the  pa r tne rs  in  the  f i rm tha t  was Mr  

John Wi l l s .    

ADV HULLEY SC:   Sor ry,  tha t  was mis ter  who?   John  
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Wi l l s .   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Mr  John Wi l l s .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  John Wi l l s ,  yes .   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Wel l ,  d id  you have contac t  w i th  Ms  

Ngobane a t  a l l?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  have abso lu te ly  no  reco l lec t ion  of  

be ing  in  contac t  w i th  Ms Ngobane.   As  I  sa id  even the  

cor respondence tha t  I  had,  and I  have a t tempted  to  go 

back down memory  l ane to  remember  whether  I  ac tua l l y  

ever  had a  communica t ion  or  meet ing  w i th  he r,  and I  jus t  10 

cannot  reco l lec t  tha t  I  was in  a  meet ing  w i th  her.   

 I  was say ing  Cha i r,  I  d id  have consu l ta t ions  w i th  the  

same f i rm,  bu t  i t  was not  necessar i l y  Ms Ngobane,  i t  was 

Mr  Wi l l s .   

ADV HULLEY SC:   Very  we l l ,  and the  contac t  tha t  you 

made or  the  f i rs t  occas ion  when you were  brought  in to  th is  

par t i cu la r  invest i ga t ion ,  was i t  Mr  Senzo Mnxuno who 

approached you to  ask  you fo r  in fo rmat ion  or  to  ask  you to  

make contac t  w i th  Ngobane Wi l l s  Incorpora ted?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  cannot  remember  who  rea l l y  20 

approached me,  bu t  I  cannot  deny tha t  i t  m igh t  have been 

Mr  Mnxuno,  bu t  as  I  say  Mr  Cha i rman,  what  i s  no t  in  

d ispute  i s  the  fac t  tha t  I  was ac tua l l y  in  consu l ta t ion  a t  

some po in t ,  in  2010,  the  beg inn ing  o f  2010 w i th  one  o f  the  

depar tments  or  the  f i rm o f  Ngobane Wi l l s  Incorpo ra ted ,  and 
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in  my memory  tha t  person tha t  was  dea l ing  w i th  tha t  mat te r  

was Mr  Wi l l s .    

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now in  as  much as  you do not  reca l l  

whethe r  you dea l t  w i th  Ms Ngobane a t  the  t ime,  your  

reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  you dea l t  w i th  Mr  Wi l l s  a t  a l l  s tages.   In  

as  much as  tha t  may be so ,  do  you reca l l  tha t  you ac tua l l y  

. . .  you  had suggested tha t  an  a f f idav i t  shou ld  be  p repared 

to  be  sent  to  the  po l i ce?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  wou ld  no t  have sa id  tha t  Cha i rman  

tha t  the  a f f idav i t  shou ld  be  p repared to  be  sent  to  the 10 

po l i ce .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  remember  tha t  I  d id ,  the  one  th ing  I  

remember  Mr  Cha i rman wh ich  is  [ ind is t inc t ]  by  the  da te  o f  

the  2 n d  o f  February  2012,  tha t  Mr  Wi l l s  wro te  a f t e r  tha t  

consu l ta t ion ,  tha t  le t te r  o f  the  2n d  o f  February  i s  a  de ta i led  

impos i t ion  tha t  I  as  the  Treasury  ac tua l l y  asked them to  be 

ab le  to  wr i te  on  my beha l f  par t i cu la r ly  Mr Wi l l s  a t  the  t ime.   

That  le t te r  i s  [ ind is t inc t ] .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  maybe before  Mr  Hu l ley  con t inues,  20 

Ms Ngubane I  th ink  was qu i te  c lear  tha t  he  had a  

d iscuss ion  w i th  you.   What  she was not  c lea r  about  when 

she gave her  o ra l  ev idence is  whe ther  a  cer ta in  s ta tement  

o r  cer ta in  in fo rmat ion  came f rom you or  f rom Mr Mzi la ,  bu t  

she seemed to  be  qu i te  c lear  her  reco l lec t ion  tha t  she  



22 JUNE 2021 – DAY 414 
 

Page 238 of 319 
 

dea l t  –  she had a  d iscuss ion  w i th  you and she sa id  tha t  

Mr  Mkunu had sa id  he  was go ing  to  contac t  you and ask 

you to  be  in  touch w i th  her  and you were  in  touch w i th  her.    

Now you say you do not  have a  reco l lec t ion ,  bu t  she  

seems to  be  qu i t e  c lea r.   Do you  th ink  i t  i s  poss ib le  tha t  

you might  no t  reca l l  bu t  she d id  ta lk  to  you about  the  

mat te r  o r  a re  you  def in i te  tha t  you  never  had a  d i scuss ion  

w i th  he r,  you on ly  had a  d iscuss ion  w i th  her  par tne r,  her  

bus iness pa r tner?  

MR MABUYAKHULU :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  on ly  p ropose the  10 

purpose o f  be ing  ab le  to  t rave rse  w i th  [ ind is t inc t ]  tha t  I  

may not  reco l lec t  how I  was in fo rmed o f  the  need to  ass is t  

the  ANC wi th  the  invest iga t ion  tha t  was pend ing .   As  I  d id  

say in  my prev ious appearance before  th is  Commiss ion ,  

Cha i rman,  tha t  I  ceased to  be  the  Prov inc ia l  Treasure r  on  

the  22 n d  o r  21 s t  o f  June 2008 and I  was not  even par t  o f  – 

member  o f  the  re levant  commi t tee .  

And sure ly  as  I  say  someone f rom e i ther  Mr  Mkunu 

or  f rom the  ANC of f i ce  wou ld  have contac ted  me to  say  

dur ing  the  t ime when you were  Treasure r  there  are  mat te rs  20 

tha t  requ i res  you to  be  ab le  to  dea l  w i th  and they may have 

ind ica ted  tha t  o f  course  we may have ac tua l l y  then  spoken  

to  the  a t to rneys o f  Ngubane Wi l l s  Incorpora ted .   Tha t  par t  I  

do  no t  th ink  wou ld  be  much o f  an  issue o f  be ing  con tes ted .  

But  I  am s imply  say ing  f rom the  verac i t y  o f  my  
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memory  when I  remember  the  p rocess o f  then be ing  drawn 

in to  the  p rocess o f  dea l ing  w i th  the  mat te r,  I  then  had  a  

consu l ta t ion  w i th  Mr  Wi l l s  wh ich  I  do  remember  and tha t  

consu l ta t ion  then resu l ted  in  the  le t te r  tha t  was then 

wr i t ten  on  the  2 n d  o f  February  2020 where  i t  was the  f i rs t  

t ime in  tha t  le t te r  tha t  i t  ac tua l l y  ou t l ined f i rs t l y  tha t  I  made 

i t  c lear  tha t  I  was the  person who  had rece ived the  money  

and I  dec la re  tha t  I  have rece ived  the  money in  cash and I  

made i t  c lear  tha t  I  rece ived the  money f rom Mr Shaba la la .   

So I  th ink  i t  i s  tha t  le t te r  and I  am [ ind is t inc t ] .    10 

Now in  t ry ing  to  remember  in  the  process whethe r  

Ms Ngubane was  ever  par t  o f  tha t ,  I  am say ing ,  Cha i rman,  

I  have no reco l lec t ion .   I  do  have reco l lec t ion  tha t  I  d id  o f  

course  in te r face  w i th  Ngubane Wi l l s  Incorpora ted  and I  am 

say ing  tha t  i s  hence tha t  le t te r  o f  the  2n d  o f  February  2012.   

But  be  as  i t  may,  Mr  Cha i rman,  i f  the  c la ims are  made by  

Ms Ngubane tha t  I  had g iven he r  ins t ruc t ions,  the  f i rs t  

po in t  tha t  I  am ra is ing  the re ,  and I  am say ing  th is  

hypothet ica l l y  because I  have  no reco l lec t ion  o f  me 

meet ing  w i th  he r,  bu t  i f  we had met  Ms Ngubane  a t  the  20 

t ime was one o f  the  par tne rs  a t  Ngubane Wi l l s .  

Second ly,  a l ready by  the  t ime Ms Ngubane had  

been an admi t ted  a t to rney.   I f  Ms Ngubane says I  wou ld  

have g iven ins t ruc t ions to  her  to  depose an a f f idav i t ,  no t  

fo r  myse l f  bu t  fo r  someone e l se ,  I  wou ld  f ind  tha t  be ing  the  
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person tha t  unders tands the  law and an admi t ted  a t to rney  

tha t  you wou ld  no t  –  she wou ld  no t  have accepted  those 

ins t ruc t ions f rom someone e lse  o ther  than the  person fo r  

whom she had to  depose the  a f f idav i t  fo r.   So tha t  i s  why I  

say,  Mr  Cha i rman,  I  rea l l y  have  no reco l lec t ion .   But  

never the less ,  i t  is  no t  the  k ind  o f  ins t ruc t ion  tha t  I  wou ld  

have g i ven in  any  event .  

MR HULLEY :    When you say  i t  i s  no t  the  k ind  o f  

ins t ruc t ion  tha t  you wou ld  have  g iven,  why do you say  

tha t?  10 

MR MABUYAKHULU :    I  say  i t  on  [ ind is t inc t ]  op in ion  

because I  wou ld  no t  have sa id  to  an  a t to rney,  a  p rac t ic ing  

a t to rney,  admi t ted  a t to rney tha t  go  and f rame an a f f idav i t  

on  beha l f  o f  someone e l se  and  put  the  th ing  tha t  tha t  

person has no persona l  knowledge o f  and then ac tua l l y  

make tha t  person to  s ign  fo r  i t ,  because what  i s  a  sworn  

a f f idav i t .   And I  say  Ms Ngubane be ing  an admi t ted  

a t to rney and be ing  a  sen ior  pa r tner,  a  par tner  in  tha t  f i rm 

fo r  tha t  mat te r,  wou ld  have ac tua l l y  sa id  to  me there  is  no  

way I  can take  those ins t ruc t ions f rom you.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  th ink ,  Mr  Hu l ley,  somet imes the  

use o f  language tha t  lawyers  and  judges are  used  to  can 

crea te  a  prob lem when the  w i tness  is  no t  a  law pe rson and  

you use the  word  ins t ruc t ion  and i t  can mean d i f fe ren t  

th ings fo r  lawyers .  
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MR HULLEY :    Indeed,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me put  i t  th is  way.   My reco l lec t ion  

o f  Ms Ngubane ’s  ev idence,  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu ,  i s  tha t  when  

the  two o f  you  had a  d iscuss ion  fo l low ing upon her  

d iscuss ion  w i th  Mr  Mkunu and Mr  Mkunu hav ing  contac ted  

you to  contac t  her,  when the  two  o f  you had a  d i scuss ion  

she wou ld  have wanted to  p repare  an  a f f idav i t .  

Now I  do  no t  remember  tha t  she sa id  you ins t ruc ted  

tha t  an  a f f idav i t  be  made as  such,  bu t  she wanted to  

p repare  an  a f f idav i t .   And she says you sa id  to  her  tha t  10 

Mr  Mzi la  wou ld  be  the  person who wou ld  depose  to  the 

a f f idav i t .   And then she sa id  when she was g i v ing  her  

ev idence tha t  tha t  was cons is ten t  w i th  the  prac t ice  

whenever  she d id  ANC mat te rs .   She sa id  whenever  she 

was represent ing  the  ANC the  mat te r  wou ld  be  d i scussed 

and the  ANC wou ld  then ident i f y  who wou ld  depose to  an 

a f f idav i t  on  i t s  beha l f  and she made an example .   She sa id  

fo r  example  I  do  no t  know whether  i f  i t  i s  a  reg iona l  mat te r  

they wou ld  say i t  i s  the  Reg iona l  Secre tary  who must  

depose to  an  a f f idav i t .  20 

So she says you sa id  i t  wou ld  be  Mr Mzi la  who  

wou ld  depose to  the  a f f idav i t  and tha t  i s  why then she  

contac ted  Mr  Mzi la .   But  she sa id  tha t  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  

she had,  she got ,  was tha t  th is  donat ion  had come f rom Dr  

Savoy.   In  her  a f f idav i t  tha t  she fu rn i shed  to  the  



22 JUNE 2021 – DAY 414 
 

Page 242 of 319 
 

Commiss ion  she sa id  tha t  you to ld  he r  tha t  the  ANC had  

rece ived a  donat ion  o f  R1 mi l l ion  f rom Dr  Savoy,  bu t  when  

she gave ev idence she sa id  she was not  su re  whether  she 

got  tha t  in fo rmat ion  about  Dr  Savoy be ing  the  donor  f rom 

you or  whethe r  she got  i t  f rom Mr Mzi la ,  bu t  she sa id  i t  

wou ld  have been  one o f  you.   But  she sa id  in  the  end you  

sa id  Mr  Mzi la  was go ing  to  be  the  one who wou ld  depose to  

an  a f f idav i t .   That  i s  what  she sa id .   Do you have any  

comments?  

MR MABUYAKHULU :    Le t  me comment ,  Cha i r.   Thank you  10 

very  much fo r  tha t  c la r i t y.   I  have a l ready ment ioned,  

Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  I  rea l l y  have  no reco l lec t ion  o f  a  

consu l ta t ion  tha t  I  had w i th  Ms Ngubane,  so  tha t  I  want  to  

p lace  a t  tha t  leve l .  

The second par t ,  Mr  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  as  I  say  i f  

Ms Ngubane asked the  po in t  o f  a  re fe ree wh ich  I  do  no t  

have reco l lec t ion  o f ,  to  re fe r  her  to  someone,  I  th ink  i t  

wou ld  have been probab ly  i f  i t  was an admin i s t ra t i ve  

mat te r.   I f  i t  was not  an  admin is t ra t i ve  mat te r  then I  wou ld  

probab ly  [ ind i s t inc t ]  my unders tand ing  g i ve  an  ins t ruc t ion  20 

or  ra the r  to  re fe r  [ ind is t inc t ] .   Even then,  Mr  Cha i rman,  I  

am say ing  I  am speak ing  under  co r rec t ion  because I  do  no t  

have any reco l lec t ion  o f  tha t .  

What  i s  fac tua l  though,  Mr  Cha i rman,  I  tha t  a t  the  

po in t  when I  was  made,  and I  th ink  a t  some po in t  in  the 
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beg inn ing  o f  2010,  when I  was  made tha t  there  was a  

pend ing  invest iga t ion ,  tha t  there  were  cer ta in  answers  tha t  

need to  be  p rov ided w i th  regard  to  the  quest ion  tha t  the  

invest iga to rs  were  pos ing ,  i t  i s  then tha t  I  met  w i th  

Mr  Wi l l s  and the re fore  in  our  d iscuss ions w i th  Mr  Wi l l s  I  

then ind i ca ted  because those mat te rs  in  my v iew wou ld  

have not  been admin is t ra t i ve  mat te rs .  

And I  say  tha t  re la t i ve  to  the  ev idence tha t  I  a l ready  

have g iven befo re  th is  Commiss ion ,  tha t  i t  was  those 

mat te rs  tha t  I  was respons ib le  fo r,  hence I  ac tua l l y  then  10 

are  ab le  to  i nd ica te  w i th  very  a lmost  c la r i t y  tha t  f i rs t  o f  a l l  

I  was the  one who rece ived the  donat ion .   I  then w i l l  c la r i f y  

tha t  I  rece ived tha t  donat ion  o f  the  cash.  I  then c la r i f y  tha t  

I  au thor ised the  use o f  tha t  money to  d ispe rse  fo r  the  cost  

o f  upcoming conference in  June 2008.   Then I  a lso  sa id  I  

th ink  in  paragraph 4  wh ich  the  lawyer  sa id ,  tha t  I  ac tua l l y  

rece ived tha t  money f rom donat ion  f rom Mr Shaba la la .    

So I  th ink  tha t  sequence wou ld  have been the  

sequence tha t  I  remember  because i t  wou ld  have been very  

d i f f i cu l t  fo r  me to  re fer  Ms Ngubane i f  she quest ioned me 20 

about  the  substant ive  par t ,  even i f  I  say  I  have no 

reco l lec t ion ,  bu t  i f  the  issue is  about  the  donat ion ,  rece ip ts  

and a l l  o f  those issues because I  was the  one who dea l t  

w i th  i t ,  I  wou ld  have taken tha t  respons ib i l i t y  the  same way 

tha t  I  d id  in  the  consu l ta t ion  w i th  Mr  Wi l l s  o f  the  same 
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company,  Ngubane Wi l l s  Incorpora ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :   Wel l ,  when one reads Ms Ngubane ’s  

a f f idav i t  and when one has regard  to  her  ev idence i t  wou ld  

seem tha t  what  was an issue a t  tha t  t ime was whether  th i s  

donat ion  had been rece ived by  the  ANC or  no t .   And in  

parag raph 5  o f  her  a f f idav i t  she says or  I  see tha t  in  her  

a f f idav i t  she says  you requested her  to  ass is t  w i th  d ra f t ing  

an  a f f idav i t .   Okay,  she says in  pa ragraph 5 :  

 “A f te r  I  b r ie fed  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  about  the  reques t  

f rom the  invest iga tor  he  conf i rmed to  me tha t  the  10 

ANC KZN had  indeed rece ived a  donat ion  o f  

R1 mi l l ion  f rom a  cer ta in  Dr  Savoy when they were  

prepar ing  fo r  one  o f  the  ANC confe rences. ”  

I  have ind ica ted  tha t  in  her  o ra l  ev idence she has qua l i f ied  

tha t  to  say she is  no t  su re  whether  she got  the  in fo rmat ion  

about  Dr  Savoy f rom you or  f rom Mr Mzi la .   And then she  

says:  

 “ I  asked h im i f  there  was any proo f  o f  th is  donat ion  

be ing  made or  an  acknowledgement  sent  to  the  

donor.   He adv i sed tha t  such admin is t ra t ion  wou ld  20 

have been hand led  by  Mr  De lan i  Mz i la  who dea ls  

w i th  day- to -day ANC f inance mat te rs .   

Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  then requested me to  ass i s t  w i th  

d ra f t ing  the  a f f idav i t  conf i rm ing  rece ip t  o f  th is  

donat ion  as  he  was cer ta in  tha t  i t  had been  
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rece ived.   He a lso  adv i sed tha t  Mr  De lan i  Mz i la  

wou ld  be  the  deponent  and w i l l  accord ing ly  s ign  the  

a f f idav i t  once he conf i rmed the  de ta i l s  in  h is  

records  regard ing  the  rece ip t  o f  the  donat ion . ”  

So i f  one has regard  to  tha t  ev idence,  to  what  she says,  i t  

wou ld  seem tha t  i f  tha t  i s  t rue  i t  wou ld  make sense to  say 

i f  the  quest ion  is  whether  the  ANC rece ived the  donat ion  i f  

i t  was thought  tha t  there  wou ld  be  records conf i rm ing 

rece ip t ,  then the  person who shou ld  s ign  shou ld  be  

somebody who has got  those reco rds.   What  do  you say to  10 

tha t?  

MR MABUYAKHULU :    Wel l ,  my f i rs t  th ing  is  tha t ,  

Mr  Cha i rman,  you  now have my s ta tement  on  record .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MABUYAKHULU :    And cons is ten t ly  tha t  I  have  sa id  I  

rece ived the  money. . .  [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MABUYAKHULU :    Not  anybody e lse  f rom Mr  Shaba la la  

and I  have sa id  t ha t  in  my prev ious appearance before  th is  

Commiss ion  tha t  Mr  Shaba la la  gave tha t  money to  me and I  20 

rece ived i t  f rom the  ANC of f i ces .   And there fore  we  d id  no t ,  

and I  have sa id  th is ,  tha t  we d id  no t  i ssue any rece ip ts  in  

th is  regard .   So i t  wou ld  have been not  poss ib le  fo r  me to 

re fer  Ms Ngubane to  Mr  Mz i la  when in  fac t  the  knowledge  

o f  hav ing  dea l t  w i th  tha t  mat te r  i s  w i th in  my purv iew and 
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no t  w i th in  the  purv iew o f  Mr  Mz i la .    

And tha t  i s  the  reason why I  w i l l  s t i l l  be  say ing  

when the  f i rs t  ma t te r  in  my reco l lec t ion  f i rs t l y  came to  me 

tha t  there  was th is  pend ing  mat te r,  i t  was the  t ime tha t  

then I  then had a  consu l ta t ion  and  then in  tha t  consu l ta t ion  

I  made mat te rs  t o  be  ve ry  c lear  and I  made tha t  very  c lear  

in fo rmat ion  to  the  f i rm o f  Ngubane Wi l l s  Incorpo ra ted  in  

the i r  le t te r  da ted  the  2 n d  o f  February  2010 to  c la r i f y  these 

mat te rs  so  tha t  the  person tha t  had the  knowledge wou ld  

be  the  one tha t  takes the  respons ib i l i t y.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Hu l ley.  

MR HULLEY :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.   Now in  her  a f f idav i t  

she a lso  says tha t  the  reason why Mr  Mkunu contac ted  you  

to  ge t  fu r ther  in fo rmat ion  was because once he rea l i sed  

tha t  i t  re la ted  to  a  donat ion  he  sa id  s ince  you were  the  

re levant  Prov inc ia l  Treasure r  a t  the  t ime tha t  i s  the  person 

fo r  us  to  contac t .   Now is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  you were  the  

Prov inc ia l  Treasurer  in  Kwazu lu -Nata l  a t  the  t ime,  i .e .  in  

2007-2008?  

MR MABUYAKHULU :    I t  i s  common cause,  Mr  Cha i rman.  20 

MR HULLEY :    So  i f  there  was a  concern  about  tha t  you  

wou ld  have been the  r igh t  person to  contac t ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t ,  about  a  donat ion?  

MR MABUYAKHULU :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

MR HULLEY :    Then i f  we cou ld  l ook a t  the  document  tha t  
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was prepared by  Mr  Mzi la  o r  fo r  h im to  depose to  and can I  

ask  you to  go  to  Bund le  RR4 a t  page. . .  [ in te rvenes]  

MR MABUYAKHULU :    There  is  one po in t ,  Mr  Cha i rman,  

be fore  –  can I  request  one po in t ,  Mr  Cha i rman,  tha t  I  want  

to  make before  we go to  the  next  quest ion?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Yes.  

MR MABUYAKHULU :    Th is  one po in t ,  Mr  Cha i rman,  I  th ink  

i t  i s  impor tan t  fo r  us  to  ac tua l l y  make he re .   I  say  so  

because I  had the  benef i t  o f  l i s ten ing  to  the  ev idence o f  

Ms Ngubane yesterday.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MABUYAKHULU :    As  she was lead ing  her  ev idence.   

The f i rs t  th ing  tha t  [ ind is t inc t ] ,  Mr  Cha i r,  in  her  ev idence in  

the  a f f idav i t  tha t  she made before  th is  Commiss ion ,  she  

made i t  c lear  tha t  she ac tua l l y  I  had conf i rmed tha t  the  

money had come f rom a  Dr  Savoy,  the  donat ion .   And when  

you asked her  a  quest ion  she somehow actua l l y  changed 

tha t  va lue  and sa id  i t  i s  ins t ruc t ion  is  coming f rom c l ien ts .   

And i f  I  am not  m is taken Cha i r  asked I  th ink  two or  th ree  

t imes.  20 

Now,  i t  i s  impor tan t  I  ac tua l l y  p lace  tha t  i ssue on 

record  because there  i s  another  mat te r  tha t  I  thought  

a l though the  conc lus ion  tha t  [ ind is t inc t ]  made tha t  i t  cou ld  

have been e i ther  myse l f  o r  Mr  Mz i la ,  bu t  I  th ink  there  is  

another  poss ib i l i t y  and tha t  poss ib i l i t y  i s  a lso  be fore  th i s  
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Commiss ion .   And in  the  l e t te r  da ted  the  2n d  o f  February  

2010 and down there  I  th ink  in  one o f  the  pa ragraphs  

towards the  end ment ion  is  made  tha t  the  same f i rm a lso  

rep resented the  ANC and there fo re  by  ex tens ion  myse l f  

and Mr  Mzi la ,  bu t  i t  a lso  represented Mr  Shaba la la  who 

was –  f rom whom we had rece ived the  donat ion .  

Now,  I  am say ing ,  Mr  Cha i rman ,  look ing  a t  the  

cons is tency o f  my ev idence f rom the  beg inn ing  up to  now,  

th is  Commiss ion  is  en t i t led  to  go  and look a t  i t ,  I  have  

ind ica ted  cons is ten t ly  tha t  the  on ly  person tha t  I  know f rom 10 

whom I  rece ived th is  donat ion  was Mr  Shaba la la .   And fo r  

anyone to  s imp ly  t ry  and a t t r ibu te  to  me a  name tha t  I  d id  

no t  know and tha t  I  wou ld  no t  have known unt i l  very  la te r  

in  the  day when my lega l  team t raversed what  had occur red  

in  the  issue o f  indaba.    

So I  rea l l y  want  to  s imp ly  then say –  re fu te  tha t  

vehement ly,  Mr  Cha i rman,  tha t  I  wou ld  no t  have  spoken  

about  a  Dr  Savoy  because I  wou ld  no t  have had knowledge 

o f  tha t .   And there fore  tha t  i s  borne out  by  my vers ion  tha t  

I  have ac tua l l y  pu t  here .   You can go f rom tha t  le t te r  and  20 

a l l  o f  my supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t s ,  I  am very  cons is ten t  in  

th is  because i t  is  no t  a  ta i lo r -made vers ion ,  i t  i s  what  i t  

was and how I  have ac tua l l y  a lways unders tood i t .   So  I  

thought  i t  i s  impor tan t  fo r  you,  Mr  Cha i rman,  to  make tha t  

po in t  very  c lea r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   For  the  record  I  can 

ind ica te  to  you  tha t  the  Commiss ion  d id  approach  

Mr  Shaba la la  so  tha t  he  cou ld  g ive  h is  vers ion ,  bu t  h is  

lawyers  wro te  and sa id  he  w ished  to  –  he  d id  no t  w ish  to  

pu t  up  a  vers ion  because o f  the  cr im ina l  case  tha t  i s  

coming up,  he  d id  no t  want  to  incr im inate  h imse l f .   So we 

do not  have h is  vers ion .  

Cer ta in ly  i t  m igh t  have been he lp fu l  i f  we had h is  

vers ion  as  we l l ,  bu t  I  am jus t  ment ion ing  tha t  so  tha t  i t  i s  

no t  a  s i tua t ion  where  somebody  might  say  bu t  why was 10 

Mr  Shaba la la  no t  asked to  g ive  a  ve rs ion  h imse l f .   Okay,  

a l r igh t .   Mr  Hu l ley,  cont inue.  

MR HULLEY :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.   Now,  i f  I  unders tand  

your  la tes t  oppos i t ion  cor rec t l y,  you are  say ing  tha t  there  

is  a  th i rd  poss ib i l i t y  as  to  where  these ins t ruc t ions may 

have been obta ined f rom and tha t  poss ib i l i t y  i s  tha t  

Mr  Shaba la la  h imse l f  wou ld  have to ld  the  f i rm o f  a t to rneys  

tha t  the  money was pa id  ove r  to  the  ANC by – sor ry,  tha t  

the  money was rece ived f rom Dr  Savoy the  amount  o f  

R1 mi l l ion .   I s  tha t  co r rec t?   Do I  unders tand your  20 

propos i t ion  cor rec t l y?  

MR MABUYAKHULU :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  i s  tha t  in  –  the  po in t  I  

am ra i s ing ,  Mr  Cha i rman,  tha t  in  the  contex t  o f  

Ms Ngubane no longer  hav ing  any  v iv id  reco l lec t ion  where  

she got  the  in fo rmat ion ,  i t  must  be  p laced on reco rd  tha t  a t  
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the  very  same t ime the  same f i rm was a lso  ac t ing  fo r  

Mr  Shaba la la .   Now unfo r tunate l y  no  one asked  her  the  

quest ion  when she appeared yeste rday whether  i n  fac t  d id  

she ever  have any encounte rs  o r  any consu l ta t ion  w i th  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay. . .  [ in te rvenes]  

MR HULLEY :    Bu t  I  th ink  tha t  i s  the  

Commiss ion . . .  [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :   Yes.  

MR HULLEY :    Le t  us  no t  concern  ou rse lves w i th  tha t  fo r  

p resent  purposes .   Would  you accept  tha t  the  amount  o f  10 

R1 mi l l ion  tha t  had been rece ived accord ing  to  you f rom 

Mr  Shaba la la  tha t  Mr  Mz i la  wou ld  no t  have known o f  who  

the  source  was o f  tha t  amount  o f  money un less  you had  

g iven h im tha t  in fo rmat ion?  

MR MABUYAKHULU :    He wou ld  no t  have known.   Mr  Mz i la  

wou ld  no t  have known.   The reason why he wou ld  have not  

known is  because tha t  money had been rece ived  by  the  

Prov inc ia l  Treasurer  and indeed Mr  Mzi la  does conf i rm in  

h is  second a f f idav i t  tha t  when I  in fo rmed h im I  d id  no t  

ment ion  any name and I  d id  no t  ment ion  the  amount  o f  20 

money.  

MR HULLEY :    Yes.   Now i f  you wou ld  tu rn  w i th  me to  

page 1843 o f  Bund le  RR4.  

MR MABUYAKHULU :   One?  

MR HULLEY :    1843.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  jus t  repeat  the  bund le  and 

the  page number.  

MR HULLEY :    Pardon me,  Mr  Cha i r.   I t  i s  Bund le  RR4.   I t  

dea ls  w i th  Mr  Trevor  Whi te  and i t  i s  Bund le  D fo r  your  

purposes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   We must  keep an eye on the  t ime 

because we must  be  ab le  to  g ive  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu ’s  

counse l  t ime to  –  I  do  no t  suppose h i s  c ross-examinat ion  

o f  Mr  Whi te  wou ld  be  long,  bu t  we must  g ive  t ime.   I  th ink  

we must  t ry  and not  go  beyond 19 :30 w i th  Mr Mabuyakhu lu .   10 

Which  a f f idav i t  a re  you. . .  [ in te rvenes]  

MR HULLEY :    I  am re fer r ing  to  the  f i rs t  a f f idav i t  wh ich  is  

a t  page 1843 o f  Mr  De lan i  Mz i la .   I t  i s  h is  a f f idav i t  wh ich  is  

da ted  4  May 2009 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Cont inue.   Have you 

found i t ,  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu?  

MR MABUYAKHULU :   Yes,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  found i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  r igh t .   Con t inue,  Mr  Hu l ley.  

MR HULLEY :    Now he says in  pa ragraph 2  o f  tha t  

a f f idav i t ,  now bear  in  m ind tha t  th is  a f f idav i t  was  20 

subsequent ly  re t rac ted  by  h im,  bu t  he  says i n  pa ragraph 2  

tha t :  

“ In  the  course  o f  my dut ies  I  conf i rmed tha t  a  

donat ion  o f  R1 m i l l ion  was rece ived by  the  A f r i can  

Nat iona l  Congress f rom a  donor  who I  am adv ised 
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was a  cer ta in  Dr  Savoy. ”  

Now le t  us  dea l  w i th  the  f i rs t  par t  o f  tha t  a l legat ion .   He 

says:  

“ In  the  course  o f  my dut ies  I  conf i rmed tha t  a  

donat ion  o f  R1 m i l l ion  was rece ived by  the  A f r i can  

Nat iona l  Congress f rom a  donor. . . ”  

I s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  you adv i sed h im,  tha t  i s  Mr  Mz i la ,  tha t  an  

amount  o f  R1 mi l l ion  was rece ived by  the  ANC f rom a 

donor?   I s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MR MABUYAKHULU :   I t  i s  no t  cor rec t .  10 

MR HULLEY :    So  you d id  no t  adv ise  h im tha t  an  amount  o f  

R1 mi l l ion  was rece ived f rom a  donor?  

MR MABUYAKHULU :   I t  i s  no t  cor rec t  tha t  I  adv ised  

Mr  Mzi la  tha t  there  was R1 mi l l ion  rece ived f rom a  donor.   I  

adv ised Mr  Mzi la  tha t  we had rece ived money f rom a  

donat ion .   I  never  ment ioned to  h im the  amount  as  we l l  as  

f rom whom.   Tha t  i s  why Mr  Mzi l a  in  h is  second a f f idav i t  

made tha t  po in t  very  c lea r.  

Now to  t ry  and there fore  –  because we must  a lso  

unders tand,  Mr  Cha i rman,  tha t  Mr  Mz i la ,  and I  cannot  20 

speak fo r  h im,  he  can on ly  speak fo r  h imse l f ,  bu t  i t  i s  now 

common cause tha t  the  ve rac i t y  under  wh ich  th is  very  

a f f idav i t  tha t  Counse l  i s  ask ing  me on,  i t  i s  the  same 

a f f idav i t  tha t  was w i thdrawn by Mr  Mzi la .  

MR HULLEY :    Yes,  I  unders tand tha t ,  bu t  I  am ask ing  you 
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a  d i f fe ren t  quest i on .   I  am ask ing  you is  i t  co r rec t  tha t  you  

adv ised Mr  Mzi la  tha t  you had rece ived an amount  o f  

R1 mi l l ion  f rom a  donor  fo r  the  ANC.   Forgot  about  Mr  –  

fo rge t  about  the  second par t  o f  tha t  sentence.   I  am 

worr ied  on ly  about  the  f i rs t  par t .   D id  you so  adv i se  h im,  

yes or  no?  

MR MABUYAKHULU :   No,  Mr  Cha i rman,  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  

I  wou ld  ac tua l l y  be  sa id  tha t  I  shou ld  say yes o r  no  to  an  

a f f idav i t  tha t  i s  a l ready under  quest ionab le  by  the  very  

same person deposed to  i t .   The po in t  I  am mak ing  here ,  i f  10 

a  d i f fe ren t  quest i on  is  be ing  asked,  i f  I  adv ised Mr Mzi la  

tha t  I  had rece ived the  donat ion  and the  po in t  I  am say ing ,  

Cha i rman,  wh ich  is  a lso  pa r t  o f  my  a f f idav i t ,  I  con f i rm tha t  I  

d id  in fo rm Mr  Mz i la  tha t  I  had rece ived a  donat ion  bu t  I  

never  to ld  h im how much?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay I  th ink  tha t  does answer  i t .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.    Then he says in  

parag raph 3 :  

“Mr  S ipho Shaba la la  had adv i sed  the  organ isa t ion  

tha t  such a  dona t ion  had been made and when the  20 

money was requested Mr  Shaba la la  brought  the  

money to  our  o f f i ces  in  cash. ”  

D id  you adv ise  h im o f  tha t  tha t  i s  Mr  Mz i la ,  d id  you  te l l  h im 

tha t ,  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  conta ined in  paragraph 3?  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    I  do  no t  remember  tha t  I  to ld  Mr  
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Mz i la  tha t  Mr  Shaba la la  brought  the  money in  cash but  i t  i s  

t rue  tha t  Mr  Shaba la la  d id  b r i ng  the  money in  cash to  the 

o f f i ce ,  as  I  have a l ready tes t i f ied  be fore .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Then he says:  

“ I  am aware  tha t  the  money was u t i l i sed  to  pay  

var ious serv ice  prov iders  fo r  i tems re la ted  to  the  

Prov inc ia l  Congress he ld  in  August  2008. ”  

I s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  you adv ised Mr  Mzi la  o f  tha t  as  we l l?  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    Mr  Mz i l a  wou ld  have,  o f  course  

known as I  sha l l  work  w i th  h im tha t  in  the  lead up to  the  10 

Prov inc ia l  Conference,  we ac tua l l y  pa id  some o f  the  i tems 

outs ide  o f  the  ANC bank ing  accoun t  a t  the  t ime and he was 

a lso  a  par t  o f  the  Prepara to ry  Commi t tee  fo r  the  

conference o f  wh ich  I  have a l so  pa r t i c ipa ted  in .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    So  i f  I  unders tand you cor rec t l y,  you 

are  say ing  tha t  bo th  o f  you knew th is  in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  

conta ined in  pa ragraph 4 ,  i s  tha t  what  you are  say ing?  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    What  I  am say ing ,  Cha i rman  is  tha t  

Mr  Mz i la  wou ld  have known tha t  we wou ld  ac tua l l y  have to  

pay w i th  –  we pay serv ice  prov iders ,  and wh ich  we d id ,  20 

ou ts ide  o f  the  donat ion  –  or  f rom the  donat ion  tha t  has 

been ra ised by  and th rough the  Prov inc ia l  Treasure r  a t  the  

t ime,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Yes,  bu t  remember,  Mr  Mz i la  d id  no t  

know about  the  R1mi l l ion ,  he  knew tha t  a  donat ion  had 
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been rece ived,  i f  I  unders tand your  tes t imony cor rec t ,  he  

knew tha t  a  dona t ion  had been rece ived,  and he knew tha t  

because you had in fo rmed h im o f  tha t .  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    I  in fo rmed h im because ac tua l l y  I  

can see the  dona t ion ,  yes .  

ADV HULLEY SC:    And he knew a lso  tha t  ce r ta in  i tems 

were  pa id  bu t  he  wou ld  no t  have known tha t  the  i tems tha t  

were  pa id  fo r  came f rom the  R1mi l l ion ,  because he d id  no t  

know about  the  R1mi l l ion .  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    No,  there  were  a  number  o f  10 

fundra is ing  ac t iv i t ies .   I  make th is  po in t  very  c lea r  in  one 

o f  my a f f idav i t s .   I f  my reco l lec t ion  serves me we l l  Mr  

Cha i rman,  i t  i s  the  a f f idav i t  o f  the  19 t h  o f  October  2010,  

where  I  sa id  a t  the  t ime where  the  package o f  donat ions,  

and th is  was one  par t  o f  the  package o f  donat ion ,  because  

the  cost  tha t  we are  dea l ing  w i th  i s  fa r  more  than jus t  a  

R1mi l l ion .   So I  th ink  f rom tha t  po in t  o f  v iew,  know ing the  

cost  expend i tu re  tha t  we had to  dea l  w i th ,  and what  

needed to  be  done,  as  I  sa id  I  was  par t  o f  the  Prepara to ry  

Commi t tee  tha t  somet imes I  wou ld  no t  make i t ,  and  he  20 

wou ld  go  there  and i f  he  had gone there  he  wou ld  g ive  me 

the  repor t  o f  what  was d iscussed in  the  Prepara to ry  

Commi t tee .   

So we were  there fore  in  constan t  communica t ion ,  

because we worked in  the  same o f f i ce ,  a l though I  must  say  
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tha t  when i t  come to  the  donat ion  i t  was the  t reasure r  tha t  

was respons ib le  fo r  tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    So is  the  –  are  you accept ing  tha t  even 

i f ,  on  your  ve rs ion ,  some o f  the  i tems tha t  re la ted  to  

p repara t ions fo r  the  conference,  where  he  is  w i th  money 

tha t  inc luded th i s  donat ion ,  do  you  accept  tha t  Mr Mz i la  d id  

no t  know a t  the  t ime tha t  inc luded  in  the  money tha t  may  

have been used to  purchase some o f  the  i tems was  money 

tha t  came as pa r t  o f  the  R1mi l l ion  donat ion  tha t  you had 

rece ived.   10 

In  o ther  words,  he  wou ld  have known tha t  some 

money tha t  had been donated had been used,  bu t  he  wou ld  

no t  have known tha t  inc luded in  t he  money tha t  was used 

was,  perhaps was money tha t  was par t  o f  a  donat ion  tha t  

you had not  –  tha t  you had rece ived,  he  wou ld  no t  have 

known tha t ,  do  you accept  tha t  o r  no t?  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    Accord ing  Mr  Cha i rman,  what  he  

wou ld  have known i s  tha t  they wou ld  have been a  

fundra is ing  and  donat ions tha t  have been ra i sed f rom 

which  some o f  the  purchase i tems were  ac tua l l y  pa id  20 

th rough tha t  fundra is ing  in i t ia t i ves  and ac t iv i t ies  because,  

as  I  say,  I  cannot  s ta r ted  remember  tha t  I  ac tua l l y  

ind ica ted  to  h im  -  o f  course ,  I  am  ta lk ing  here  about  

a lmost  15  o r  16  years  back,  bu t  I  do  no t   remember  tha t  I  

ac tua l l y  had sa t  down and sa id  to  h im,  we had rece ived 
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th is  donat ion  o f  a  R1mi l l ion .  

I  remember  I  wou ld  have sa id ,  there  wou ld  have  

been i tems tha t  wou ld  have been  fundra ised fo r  i t  tha t  we  

wou ld  have ra ised and Mr  Mzi la  wou ld  have worked  out  o f  

those coming out  o f  the  P repara to ry  Commi t tee  o f  

conference and  tha t  was tha t  he  wou ld  have worked 

together  on  those i tems in  t ha t ,  and ensur ing  tha t  those  

i tems get  to  be  pa id .   

As  I  say  Mr  Cha i rman,  tha t  i s  my reco l lec t ion  and I  

am indeed d id  guard ,  I  sa id  take  the  adv ice  tha t  a rose in  10 

l igh t  o f  Mr  Mz i la ’s  a f f idav i t  tha t  he  ac tua l l y  deposed,  okay  

the  second a f f idav i t  where  he  made ment ion  o f  th is ,  now,  I  

do  no t  have myse l f  a  reco l lec t ion ,  s i t t ing  and say ing  to  Mr  

Mz i la  -  among donat ions,  there  was a  one pa r t i cu la r  

donat ion  tha t  we have rece ived o f  a  R1mi l l ion,  tha t  I  do  no t  

have a  reco l lec t ion  o f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  who in  the  ANC d id  you d i sc lose  -  

to  whom in  the  ANC d id  you d i sc lose  tha t  you had rece ived  

th is  donat ion  o f  R1mi l l ion  and you had  not  re fe r red  i t  to  the  

re levant  o f f i ce  so  tha t  a  rece ip t  cou ld  be  issued and  20 

records cou ld  be  made.   I s  there  somebody w i th in  the  ANC 

to  whom you made th is  d i sc losure  to  say,  I  have rece ived a  

donat ion  o f  R1mi l l ion  on  beha l f  o f  the  organ isa t ion  and I  

d id  no t  re fer  i t  to  the  o f f i ce  fo r  a  rece ip t  to  be  made or  fo r  

a  record  to  be  made?  
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MR MABUYAKHULE:    There  are  two processes Mr  

Cha i rman before  I  dea l  w i th  tha t  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    The f i r s t  you wou ld  have  donors  

who were  no t  w i l l i ng  to  be  acknowledged and tha t  you  

wou ld  have to  respect  tha t  p rocess o f  the  donors .   Then 

you wou ld  have donors  who wou ld  have wanted jus t  to  be 

acknowledged,  and some donors  tha t  wou ld  have ac tua l l y  

pu t  money in to  your  fundra i s ing  account  and there fo re ,  

they wou ld  have chosen tha t  rou te .   10 

And i t  was a l l  a t  the  d isc re t ion  o f  the  donors  a t  the  

t ime,  what  rou te  they wou ld  fee l  comfor tab le  w i th  bu t  I  

th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t ,  Cha i rman,  tha t  in  the  -  my las t  

appearance,  I  dea l t  w i th  th is  quest ion  tha t  the  Cha i r  i s  

ra is ing  and I  guess i f  you  go to  the  t ransc r ip t ,  i t  can  be 

found and I  remember  the  Cha i r  ra is ing  v iv id l y  as  he  does,  

and I  sa id…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  must  have fo rgo t ten .  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    The th ing  o f  the  donors  was the  

manner  in  wh ich  you hand le  i t ,  we  d id  no t  hand le  i t  in  an 20 

open meet ing  bu t  i t  wou ld ,  o f  course ,  be  ab le  to  b r ie f  the 

o f f i c ia ls  o f  the  ANC and I  then put  in  the  premise  o f  the  

ex i s t ing  a f f idav i t  o f  Dr  Mkh ize  and  o thers  who were  par t  o f  

the  o f f i c ia ls .    

They wou ld  ac tua l l y  have known fo r  me tha t  we had 
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rece ived a  donat ion ,  then I  wou ld  have br ie fed  tha t  laye r  o f  

leadersh ip  to  o f f i c ia ls  because as  I  d id  say,  in  my p rev ious 

appearances,  Cha i rman,  tha t  we  hand le  the  issues o f  

donors  in  a  par t i cu la r  manner  because we were  sens i t i ve  

tha t  tha t  in fo rmat ion  needed to  be  t rea ted  in  a  manner  tha t  

wou ld  no t  go  and  ac tua l l y  p resent  i t  to  anyone and fo r  tha t  

reason,  I  th ink  i f  Mr  Cha i r  wou ld  a l low me,  I  know tha t  we 

have a  p rob lem o f  t ime Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    Bu t  I  th ink  i t  wou ld  be  fa i r  fo r  me  10 

jus t  to  take  the  Cha i r  to  the  repor t  tha t  I  had submi t ted  

myse l f ,  as  tha t  we are  dea l ing  w i th  these mat te rs  ve ry  

br ie f l y  in  my –  a t  the  t ime,  tha t  repor t  Mr  Cha i rman and  

on ly  i t  i s  on  page  –  i t  s ta r ts  on  page 368,  i t  s ta r ts  on  page  

366,  no  365.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  –  do  you know which?  

ADV HULLEY SC:    The w i tness i s  re fe r r i ng  to  Bund le  A27,  

Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  i t  s ta r ts  a t  page 320.  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    I t  s ta r ts  on  365.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

ADV HULLEY SC:    The repor t ,  in  fac t  s ta r ts  on  page 363,  

Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  yes .   

MR MABUYAKHULE:    Now,  i f  you  go to  tha t  repor t  Mr  
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Cha i rman I  th ink  you have the  benef i t  o f  the  doubt  o f  why 

we hand le  the  mat te rs  in  a  par t i cu la r  way,  and i f  you go to  

page 374 o f  tha t  repor t  I  made ment ion  on  paragraph 2  

f rom the  bot tom,  and I  w i l l  read i t  ou t ,  now I  re fe r  you back  

and th i s  i s  my repor t ,  I  say :  

“F rom the  Cha i r  we . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r ted ]  fo r  th is  

approach because o f  the  ANC organ isa t ion  tha t  

be longs to  the  peop le  o f  South  A f r i ca  and our  on l y  

insu rance tha t  . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r ted ]  cont inue to  

serve  the  major i t y  o f  the  poor  and underp r iv i leged  10 

is  tha t  our  movement  must  be  susta ined by  

. . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r ted ]  and canno t  be  t raded a t  the  

Johannesburg  S tock  Exchange  to  the  h ighest  

b idder. ”  

Now you see tha t  po in t  in  the  las t  parag raph a t  the  request  

o f  t ime I  w i l l  l eave tha t .    The po in t  I  am ra is ing  the re ,  the  

po in t  I  was ra i s ing  there  i s  connec ted w i th  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t  

-  d is to r ted ]  po in t  tha t  I  gave . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r ted ]  as  a  

proposa l  under  page 376 paragraph 8 .10 .   Now in  tha t  

parag raph 8 .10 ,  page 376 I  w i l l  say  tha t  the  contents  20 

. . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d is to r ted ]  shou ld  adopt  the  reso lu t ion  when  

they th ink  . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r t ion ] ,  deve lop  a  conference 

and fundra i s ing  gu ide l ines  fo r  a l l  the  s t ruc tures  tha t  we 

move now in  the  prov ince and  the  fac t  . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  

d is to r t ion ] .  
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 Now to  end there  i f  you  go to  the  f i rs t  paragraph on  

page 367 o f  the  same repor t  Cha i rman I  make ment ion  

there  o f  a  case tha t  became such a  b ig  concern  fo r  us  

because when the  mat te r  was taken up by  one  o f  our  

leaders  a t  na t iona l  leve l  the  ANC mat te rs  ended up be ing  

v iewed in  the  pub l i c  domain ,  and fo r  tha t  reason a t  the  end  

o f  th is  repor t  o f  the  Cha i rman,  wh ich  i s  my las t  po in t ,  on  

page 378 I  say  as  I  end th is  repor t  the  en t i t y  i s  today the  

20 t h  o f  June 2008 and have . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r t ion ]  

ba lance,  and then I  go  and go to  those ju r isd ic t ions ,  now I  10 

want  to  say he re  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r t ion ]  cha i rman 

tha t  I  . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r t ion ]  February  and there  was a  

reason why,  because tha t  t ransfe rs  had more  than 3  600 

. . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r t ion ]  to  about  3  700 or  so  . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  

d is to r t ion ]  bu t  i t  was a  huge meet ing  and fo r  tha t  reason I  

ra ised these issues outs ide  o f  . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r t ion ]  

because in  keep ing  w i th  what  I  sa id  prev ious ly  we wou ld  

no t  repor t  on  the  ind iv idua l  in te rvent ions except  tha t  we  

wou ld  do  so  to  the  leadersh ip  and when we repor t  on  

in te rvent ions i t  wou ld  be  the  g loba l  repor ts  and tha t  i s  the  20 

po in t  I  have ra ised and in  here  I  ra ised those issues  wh ich  

was the  bank ing  s i tua t ion  o f  the  ANC at  the  t ime,  where  we  

are  i n  te rms o f  t he  bank ing  s ta tements  o f  the  ANC and I  

cou ld  no t  pu t  them here  because tha t  in fo rmat ion  wou ld  

have . . . [ in te rvenes]  i t .   
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 I  a lso  repor ted  on  donat ions,  tha t  second paragraph 

and what  the  donat ions o r  the  s i tua t ion  o f  donat ions was a t  

the  t ime.  

 The th i rd  t ime tha t  I  repor ted  on  were  the  lega l  

cases and what  we were  exposed  to  as  a  movement ,  and I  

repor ted  tha t  as  we l l  and then . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d i s to r t ion ]  

l iab i l i t i es  genera l l y.   These are  mat te rs  tha t  you wou ldn ’ t  

ac tua l l y  go  and  to  spec i f i ca l l y  take  in  a  huge meet ing  

because tha t  wou ld  then cause d i f f i cu l t ies  fo r  the 

movement ,  bu t  I  sa id  in  tha t  repor t  tha t  we shou ld  then be  10 

ab le  to  have a  comprehens ive  approach o f  how we dea l  

w i th  i t .  

 So  I  am g iv ing  th i s  contex t  to  the  Cha i rman tha t  as  I  

sa id  the  leadersh ip  wou ld  know exact ly  o f  donat ions and 

tha t  i s  the  o f f i c ia ls ,  you br ie f  them because i t  i s  impor tan t  

tha t  i t  i s  co l lec t i ve  leadersh ip  in  t ha t  leve l ,  so  they  w i l l  be  

br ie fed  about  th is .  

 Th is  i s  why Dr  Mkh ize  is  ac tua l l y  say ing  tha t  he  

knew about  th is  donat ion  because as  i t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  as  

the  Prov inc ia l  Treasury  and tha t  he  sa id  tha t  in  h is  20 

a f f idav i t ,  bu t  I  wou ldn ’ t  make h im  now o f f i c ia ls  bu t  I  am 

jus t  say ing  these th ings they a l ready have ind ica ted  but  

the  o f f i c ia ls  wou ld  want  tha t  you wou ld  take  in to  

cons idera t ion  to  repor t  these mat te rs ,  you wou ldn ’ t  go  

th rough an . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r t ion ]  meet ing  . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  
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d is to r t ion ] .  

 I t  i s  a  po in t  I  ra ised in  my . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r t ion ]  

Cha i rman . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r t ion ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes as  I  sa id  ear l ie r  on  –  Mr  Mkh ize ’s  

a f f idav i t ,  I  have i t ,  Dr  Mkh ize ’s  a f f idav i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HULLEY SC :    Perhaps we can cons ider  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  don ’ t  reca l l  tha t  I  have recent ly  read i t  

bu t  does he say –  does he say you to ld  about  th is  spec i f i c  

donat ion  o f  R1mi l l ion  or  does he say you ta lked to  h im in  

genera l  about  donat ions tha t  had been rece ived? 10 

MR MABUYAKHULE:    Le t ’s  go  to  parag raph –  to  page  

487.  

CHAIRPERSON:    487,  yes .  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    497,  th is  i s  an  a f f idav i t  o f  Dr  

Mkh ize .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  the  page?  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Page 497 Mr  Cha i r,  o f  Bund le  LUA27.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay,  yes .  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    Dr Mkh ize  ta lks  th is  dona t ion ,  he  

says I  am aware  tha t  Mr  Shaba la la  had requested  tha t  Dr  20 

. . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r t ion ]  make the  donat ion  to  the  A f r i can  

Nat iona l  Congress and I  am a lso  aware  tha t  a  donat ion  o f  

R1mi l l ion  was rece ived f rom Mr  Shaba la la  by  the  A f r i can 

Nat iona l  Congress.    These . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r t ion ]  i s  a  

consequence o f  the  repor t  I  rece ived f rom the  ve ry  fac t  
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tha t  the  ANC . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r t ion ]  a t  the  t ime Mr  

Mabuyakhu le ,   I t  i s  indeed so  tha t  when th is  donat ion  was  

requested when  i t  was rece ived I  have no persona l  

knowledge.    

 The ANC here  Mr  Cha i rman have  I  mean ce r ta in ly  

there  i s  another  in te rpre ta t ion  wh ich  I  am not  au fa i t  w i th  

tha t  comes f rom Mr  . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r t ion ]  and tha t  i s  to  

read,  because Mr  Mkh ize  does not  say  hear,  he  says he  

heard  i t  f rom me,  bu t  he  does no t  say  tha t  he  was aware  

tha t  we shou ld  have requested tha t  . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  10 

d is to r t ion ]  in fo rmat ion  to  the  A f r i can Nat iona l  Congress 

and tha t  a lso  came f rom me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    I  do  con f i rm tha t  w i th  donat ion  I  

have repor ted  the  donat ion  to  the  o f f i c ia ls  and o f  course  Mr  

Mkh ize  be ing  one  o f  the  o f f i c ia ls  he  wou ld  have known tha t  

I  had rece ived the  donat ion  . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d is to r t ion ] ,  okay.    

But  i f  there fore  there  is  any o the r  in fe rence beyond tha t ,  

tha t  I  wou ldn ’ t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  I  have  a l ready ind ica ted  there  

is  no  way I  wou ld  have known tha t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  has 20 

ac tua l l y  had pa id  money.    In  any  event  Mr  Cha i rman i t  i s  

now a  mat te r  o f  common cause  tha t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  o ther  

peop le ,  on  one s ide  we have tha t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  i t  was a l l  

u t i l i sed  fo r  the  benef i t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Mr  Trevor  Wh i te  says 

so ,  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  Mr  Shaba la la  and on one hand was 
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th is  amount  o f  R1mi l l ion ,  so  there  cou ldn ’ t  be  two amounts  

o f  money and the re  is  abso lu te ly  no  ev idence tha t  i t  wou ld  

have come f rom the  same source ,  so  I  am very  c lear  Mr  

Cha i rman tha t  Mr  Mkh ize  wou ld  have known f rom the  repor t  

tha t  I  wou ld  have  g iven to  the  o f f i c ia ls  because I  s ta r t  w i th  

the  o f f i c ia ls ,  bu t  I  wou ld  no t  have repor ted  to  the  o f f i c ia l  

about  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  because I  never  knew tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.    Now was the re  or  wasn ’ t  

there  a  p rocedure  in  the  ANC tha t  governed the  rece ip t  o f  

donat ions,  was i t  no t  compulsory  tha t  i f  anybody rece ived a  10 

donat ion  on  beha l f  o f  the  ANC they needed to  make sure  

tha t  i t  was put  in to  the  records ,  even i f  the  ident i ty  o f  the  

donor  wou ld  no t  be  g iven?  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    Yes Mr  Cha i rman i t  i s  a  po in t  tha t  I  

am dea l ing  w i th ,  i t  i s  in  my supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    I t  i s  a  po in t  tha t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  in  the 

prev ious appearance and tha t  we say . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  i f  I  keep on ask ing  you 

quest ions tha t  I  have asked you Mr  Mabuyakhu le .  20 

MR MABUYAKHULE:    Yes,  you d id  ask  me tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  I  th ink  dea l  w i th  tha t  b r ie f l y  

ja .  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    I  w i l l .    I  remember  c lea r ly  

Cha i rman a t  the  t ime when I  asked the  quest ion  tha t  w i th  
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the  benef i t  o f  h inds igh t  we cou ld  have hand led  the  

s i tua t ion  d i f fe ren t ly  o r  be t te r  i f  I  can  use tha t  te rm.   And I  

am not  say ing  a t  the  t ime there  were  no  procedures tha t  

the  ANC cou ld  have fo l lowed,  bu t  in  th is  par t i cu la r  ins tance  

we rece ived th is  donat ion  on  or  about  the  11 t h  o f  June 2008 

and we were  on ly  about  n ine  days away f rom,  in  fac t  

a lmost  e igh t  days away f rom the  conference i f  you  inc lude 

the  reg i s t ra t ion  day,  they s ta r ted  on  the  19 t h ,  so  a l ready we 

were  ac tua l l y  s lumped wi th  the  pressure  o f  hav ing  up f ron t  

payments  fo r  some o f  the  serv ices  tha t  we procured fo r  the  10 

conference.    I t  is  a t  tha t  po in t  then tha t  when there fore  I  

repor ted  to  the  leadersh ip  a t  the  t ime and tha t  was as  a  

t reasurer  tha t  i t  ac tua l l y  then sa id  to  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  why tha t  

we a re  ac tua l l y  a re  ab le  to  use the  donat ion  and  tha t  i s  

when then I  was  ab le  to  use the  donat ion  fo r  tha t  up f ron t  

payments ,  so  the  po in t  the  Cha i r  ra ised I  d id  ac tua l l y  

ind ica te  the  las t  t ime when I  appeared tha t  yes  Cha i r  we  

cou ld  have t rea ted  th is  d i f fe ren t  o r  be t te r  bu t  in  th is  

par t i cu la r  i ns tance we were  a l so  dea l ing  w i th  the  pressures  

a t  the  t ime o f  as  I  say  we a lmost  le f t  w i th  e igh t  days f rom 20 

the  s ta r t ing  o f  conference fo rmal ly  wh ich  is  mean ing  the  

reg i s t ra t ion  on  the  19 t h  o f  June.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  answer  to  th is  e f fec t ,  in  o ther  

words are  you say ing  the re  were  procedures tha t  governed  

what  must  happen when anybody rece ived dona t ions in  
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cash in  pa r t i cu la r  bu t  they were  no t  fo l lowed in  th is  case  

because o f  the  c i rcumstances tha t  you are  app ly ing ,  i s  tha t  

the  pos i t ion?  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    I  am not  say ing  tha t  they were  no t  

fo l lowed in  th is  case.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    I  am say ing  tha t  where  there  were  

ins tances where  you wou ld  have some d i f f i cu l t ies  and 

cha l lenges you wou ld  have . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  expected tha t  as  a  

Treasurer  you wou ld  go  and ac tua l l y  in fo rm the  o f f i c ia ls  so  10 

tha t  you are  pa r t  o f  the  co l lec t i ve ,  you are  no t  a  t reasury  

a lone,  when you were  e lec ted  you  were  e lec ted  as  par t  o f  

the  co l lec t i ve ,  tha t  se lec ted  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  o f  the  o f f i c ia l  

and tha t  i s  where  you wou ld  a l so  d i scuss i f  the  Cha i r  

remembers  tha t  is  where  I  sa id  you wou ld  then be  ab le  to  

p rov ide  the  de ta i l s  o f  donat ions and fund ra is ing  wh ich  you  

ord inar i l y  don ’ t  p rov ide  in  a  meet ing .   When you go to  a  

meet ing  you . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  then repor t  i t  in  a  g lobu la r  f igure  

because i t  wou ldn ’ t  ac tua l l y  be  repor ted  one by  one.    I f  

you  reca l l  Cha i r  I  even sa id  tha t  in  my ten  years  s t in t  as  a  20 

prov inc ia l  t reasurer  a t  no  s tage d id  we ac tua l l y  i temise  

ind iv idua l  donat ions one by  one,  because in  our  fo rmal  

repor ts  then to  the  fo rmal  s t ruc tu re ,  bu t  we wou ld  repor t  

tha t  and confer  tha t  w i th  the  o f f i c ia ls ,  because those are  

the  peop le  tha t  were  the  leadersh ip  tha t  you wou ld  ac tua l l y  
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take  in to  your  conf idence in  these  mat te rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i f  you  rece ived a  donat ion  d id  the  

procedures and the  ru les  o f  the  ANC a l low fo r  example  tha t  

you cou ld  –  or  anybody,  whethe r  i t  i s  you o r  anybody,  co ld  

take  i t  home fo r  t he  n igh t  and even i f  he  or  she rece ived i t  

in  the  o f f i ce  take  i t  home,  come back w i th  i t  the  fo l low ing 

day or  was there  an  ob l iga t ion  to  say i t  must  be  recorded  

in  the  reco rds  o f  the  ANC tha t  so  and so  rece ived so  much 

even i f  they  don ’ t  reco rd  who the  donor  was,  was there  no  

such ob l iga t ion  in  te rms o f  the  ru les  or  p rocedures.  10 

MR MABUYAKHULE:    Cha i r  we can go back to  the  ANC 

const i tu t ion  and tha t  const i tu t ion  s imp ly  confers  the  r igh t  

to  the  assets  and management  o f  assets  and the  r igh t  to  

the  t reasurer  o f  the  organ isa t ion ,  na t iona l  t reasury  leve l ,  

p rov inc ia l  leve l ,  be  i t  a t  wh ichever  leve l .  

 Now I  wou ldn ’ t  go  so  fa r  as  genera l i s ing  Mr  

Cha i rman and say any o f  th is ,  in  th is  par t i cu la r  ins tance 

you w i l l  then have a  pe rson in  te rms o f  the  ru les  and 

procedures and const i tu t ion  o f  the  ANC tha t  wou ld  have  

ac tua l l y  been the  one who author i sed and remember  Cha i r  20 

tha t  I  d id  say in  rece ip t  o f  the  donat ion  I  rece ived i t  in  the  

o f f i ces  o f  the  ANC and then I  sa id  I  logged i t  in to  the  cash,  

the  sa fe  in  tha t  o f f i ce ,  in  Treasury ’s  o f f i ce ,  so  in  o ther  

words i t  i s  no t  a  quest ion  tha t  I  took  the  money and I  went  

to  phone . . . [ in te rvenes]    
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no  tha t  was . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR MABUYAKHULE:    . . . I  don ’ t  be l ieve  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no  you d id  say you locked  i t  in  a 

sa fe  in  the  o f f i ce  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Okay,  bu t  to  c la r i f y  you are  say ing  

your  unders tand ing  is  tha t  the re  was  noth ing  in  the  

procedures o f  the  ANC or  any ins t ruments  wh ich  ob l iged 

tha t  donat ions  be  recorded in  the  records  o f  the 

organ isa t ion  even i f  the  ident i t y  o f  the  donor  was not  10 

d isc losed?  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    I  am now ta lk ing  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Cha i r  

back i n  2005,  2008,  and we . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  some o f  the  

th ings,  the  po in t  I  am not  say ing ,  I  am not  coming and say  

to  the  Commiss ion  there  was no procedura l  p rocess,  there  

was a  process.   And as  I  sa id  even as  I  s ta r t  w i th  the  

process you wou ld  have some o f  the  donors  tha t  wou ld  

want  to  donate  d i rec t l y  in to  the  ANC account ,  in to  the 

fundra is ing  account ,  tha t  wou ld  ac tua l l y  no t  become 

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  because i t  i s  w i l l  go  s t ra igh t  to  the  ANC 20 

account .  

 Some o f  the  donat ions,  donors  w i l l  donate  the  ANC 

in  cash but  they wou ld  ac tua l l y  s t i l l  want  us  to  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  tha t ,  in  tha t  ins tance  fu r ther  we w i l l  then go  

back and say here  is  the  donors  tha t  ac tua l l y  ra ised 
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money,  le t  them acknowledge tha t  donor  who wants  to  be 

acknowledged.    Now –  so  we were  then the  procedure  was  

there  so  tha t  we  do have to  dea l  w i th  donat ion   bu t  I  am 

s imply  say ing  to  the  Cha i r  tha t  you  wou ld  have f rom t ime to 

t ime except iona l  c i rcumstances tha t  may ac tua l l y  a l low you  

tha t  you wou ld  ac tua l l y  u t i l i se  the  fac t ,  in  case you d id  so  

a t  leas t  you . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  your  ob l iga t ion  to  repor t  to  the 

o f f i c ia ls  hence I  am say ing  to  you  Cha i r  and th is  i s  what  i s  

honoured by  Mr  Mkh ize ’s  a f f idav i t ,  Dr  Mkh ize ’s  a f f idav i t ,  

tha t  indeed I  gave the  repor t  to  the  o f f i c ia ls  tha t  we had 10 

rece ived th is  one  mi l l ion  donat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Hu l ley?  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you Mr  Cha i r.    Th i s  i s  what  Mr  

Mkh ize  says and I  don ’ t  unders tand the  d is t inc t ion  tha t  you 

draw,  Mr  Mkh ize  says I  am aware  tha t  Shaba la la  had 

requested,  Mr  Shaba la la  had requested tha t  Dr  Savoy 

make a  donat ion  to  the  A f r i can Nat iona l  Congress,  and I  

am a l so  aware  tha t  a  donat ion  o f  R1mi l l ion  was rece ived  

f rom Mr  Shaba la la  by  the  A f r i can Nat iona l  Congress.   Th is  

awareness,  in  o ther  words o f  a l l  these fac t s  i s  as  a 20 

consequence o f  repor ts  I  rece ived  f rom the  then Treasurer  

o f  the  ANC in  KwaZulu  Nata l ,  Mr  Mabuyakhu le ,  and you are  

say ing  tha t  he  go t  i t  f rom you.   Ms Ncuban i  i s  say ing  tha t  

she got  i t  f rom e i ther  you o r  Mr  Mz i la .   Mr  Mz i la  says i t  

de f in i te ly  d idn ’ t  come f rom h im.    You acknowledge  tha t  Mr  
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Mz i la  cou ld  no t  have not  known then,  so  tha t  leaves on ly  

one pe rson who cou ld  have g iven  tha t  in fo rmat ion  wh ich  i s  

what  Mr  –  Dr  Mkh ize  says,  i t  i s  you .  

MR MABUYAKHULE:    No Mr  Cha i rman I  am very  c lear  on  

th is  mat te r,  and I  am c lear  as  day l igh t ,  there  i s  no  way I  

wou ld  have known tha t  there  wou ld  have been a  donat ion  

tha t  wou ld  have come f rom a  Dr  Savoy.    Now i t  i s  a  po in t  I  

have ra i sed even  in  the  prev ious appearance.   We have a  

scenar io  where  in  the  case o f  the  en t i re  donat ion  o f  Dr  

Savoy ’s  donat ion  we now know f rom the  repor ts  be fore  t  he  10 

H igh  Cour t  and f rom Mr  Trevor  Whi te ’s  fo rens ic  aud i to r ’s  

repor t  tha t  tha t  money was depos i ted  in  the  account  o f  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  on  the  12 t h  o f  March 2007 and  tha t  i s  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  even before  the  money was depos i ted  

accord ing  to  tha t  repor t ,  the  d iscuss ions began on the  19 t h  

o f  February  and  a l l  o f  those funds they were  ac tua l l y  

u t i l i sed  in  i t s  en t i re ty  by  the  21 s t  o f  August  2007,  tha t  

amount  was . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d i s to r t ion ]  98  cents .  

CHAIRPERSON:    May I  in te r rup t  you?   May I  in te r rup t  

you Mr  Mabuyakhu le?    I  th ink  the  quest ion  tha t  Mr  Hu l ley  20 

is  pu t t ing  to  you when you go to  the paragraph in  Dr  

Mkhiza ’s aff idavi t  to  which you referred us in  that  a ff idavi t  –  

in  that  paragraph what  Dr  Mkhize  is  saying is  tha t  he is  

aware that  Mr Shabala la requested Dr Savoy to  make a 

donat ion to  the ANC and he is  aware that  the  ANC did 
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receive a donat ion of  R1 mi l l ion.   But  what  he does a lso say 

is  that  th is  awareness – he is  aware of  th is  in fo rmat ion 

because of  repor ts  that  you made to h im so Mr Hul ley ’s  

quest ion is  here is  a  s i tuat ion where Dr Mkhize says he got  

th is  in fo rmat ion about  connect ing  th is donat ion wi th  Dr 

Savoy f rom you and Dr – Mr Hul ley i s  saying Ms Ngubane 

a lso in  her  aff idavi t  sa id she got  th is  in format ion f rom you.   

A l though in  her  ora l  ev idence she then sa id she was not  

sure whether  she got  i t  f rom you or  f rom Mr Mzi la .   

 So the quest ion that  he  is  rea l l y  asking is ,  what  do 10 

you say about  the fact  that  Dr  Mkhize says he got  th is  

in format ion f rom you as wel l  which  is  the same as what  Ms 

Ngubane said in  her  aff idavi t  as opposed to what  she sa id 

in  ora l  ev idence.  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Wel l  I  th ink le t  us be  fa i r  Mr  

Chai rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MABUYAKHULU:    Let  me answer the quest ion  I  th ink 

le t  us be fa i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  am saying  le t  us be fa i r  because I  

th ink i t  would be  unfa i r  that  when a wi tness had appeared 

before the Chai r  and she recounted her  own par t  o f  the 

vers ion and that  vers ion is  s t i l l  to  become val id  to  be put  to  

me.   I  have a l ready ind icated tha t  I  d id  not  actual ly  gave 
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that  in format ion  because my own vers ion is  consistent  wi th  

the knowledge that  I  have ar t icu lated that  I  have no 

knowledge of  any other  person other  than Mr Shabala la who 

actual ly  pa id over  the funds to  me.   And I  never  asked Mr 

Shabala la about  the source of  the money.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   That  is  consistent  throughout .   Now 

in  th is  par t icu la r  instance of  Dr  Mkhize I  have ind ica ted that  

and i t  is  par t  o f  a ff idavi t  here Mr Chai rman and I  say i t  to  

the 00:02:40 in  the in te rpretat ion  i t  is  not  what  – that  10 

in terpretat ion is  00:03:50.   That  would be par t  o f  the  

awareness that  Mr Mkhize is  re fer r ing to  which I  do not  

d ispute.   The fact  that  I  would have repor ted to  the off ic ia ls  

about  the donat ions that  I  had received f rom Shabala la.   

But  I  would not  have known that  par t .   The only person that  

can answer that  fu l ly  would have been Dr Mkhize.   And I  

would not  want  to  p lace h im in  any other  p roximi ty  insofar  

as 00:03:15 concerned save that  the fact  I  have had for  

themselves as we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   20 

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  see we have gone beyond hal f  past  

seven.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   The – we understand that  there is  – we 

have a lso got  to  be concerned about  the support  s taff  as  
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wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes so … 

ADV HULLEY SC:   A lso the lockdown.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So – so  we need to g ive  them an 

opportuni ty.   What  – what  does –  what  e lse – do you st i l l  

have anyth ing other  than maybe what  Colonel  Du P looy 

adds?  I s  there – was there someth ing e lse that  … 

ADV HULLEY SC:   He – I  just  wanted to  t raverse cer ta in  

aspects of  the second aff idavi t  o f  Mr Mzi la .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV HULLEY SC:   And I  was inc l ined to  take h im through 

correspondence that  p receded the  le t ter  o f  the 2 February  

so that  we could  understand the context  o f  the le t ter  o f  2  

February of  2010.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Wel l  we cer ta in ly  should not  deny 

them the opportuni ty  to  cross-examine Mr Whi te.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Absolute ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   What  do you propose to do? 

ADV HULLEY SC:   Wel l  i t  is  now quarter  to  Mr Chai r  I  am 

not  sure how much t ime perhaps I  could be af forded 20 

perhaps ten or  f i f teen minutes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  me ta lk  to  Mr Dickson.   Mr Dickson.  

ADV DICKSON:    Yes Chai r  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you – do you have an idea of  how 

much t ime you would need to c ross-examine Mr Whi te?  



22 JUNE 2021 – DAY 414 
 

Page 275 of 319 
 

ADV DICKSON:   Wel l  Chai r  i t  is  very ( ta lk ing over  one 

another ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   A l l  –  a l l  I  can say is  that  in  the one t r ia l  

that  you and I  d id  against  each other  many,  many years ago 

you were very,  very much st ra ight  to  the point .   That  is  my 

recol lect ion but  I  am not  – I  am not  pressur is ing you to  – to  

do anyth ing other  than you know do a proper  job for  your  

c l ient .  

ADV DICKSON:   Yes.   Wel l  I  hope that  I  am st i l l  go ing to  be  

st ra ight  to  the point  but  i t  a lso depends on the answers I  10 

get  f rom Mr Whi te .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course.  

ADV DICKSON:   I t  is  go ing to  be very quick or  i t  can longer.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV DICKSON:   But  –  but  i f  we get t ing c lose to  t ime I  am 

not  too sure whether  Mr Hul ley i s  get t ing anywhere wi th  Mr 

Mabuyakhulu.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV DICKSON:   By cross-examin ing h im on ( inaudib le ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

ADV DICKSON:   He seems – he has g iven three aff idavi t s .  

His – wi th  ev idence of  length.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV DICKSON:   We – we have not  had a chance to  put  h is  

s ide of  the story to  Mr Whi te yet .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.   But  your  est imate assume you 

get  shor t  answers f rom Mr Whi te what  is  your  est imate of  

how much t ime you might  need? 

ADV DICKSON:   Wel l  I  would l ike to  th ink about  ha l f  an  

hour.  

CHAIRPERSON:   About  ha l f  an hour.  

ADV DICKSON:   But  i t  may be shor te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.   Let  me g ive Mr Hul ley ten  

minutes.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   And then – i f  there are any outs tanding  

quest ions they can be put  in  wr i t ing to  Mr Mabuyakhulu and 

he can respond in  an aff idavi t .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now Mr Mabuyakhulu i f  you cou ld turn  

wi th  me to Bundle  RR4 at  page 1846.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Mabuyakhulu  can you come back on 

the screen which I  understand you do by unmut ing yoursel f .  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Oh I  am st i l l  on the screen.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja you are back now – you were  not  but  

you are back now.  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Okay,  okay thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now he says th is  i s  Mr Conzela  th is  i s  
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h is  second aff idavi t  now.   He says that :  

“On the 20 – the 20 t h  to  the 22 n d June 2008 ANC Provinc ia l  

conference was held in  P ietermar i tzburg KwaZulu Nata l .  A 

whi le  af ter  the conference I  was approached by former –  

former Provinc ia l  Treasurer  Mr Michael  Mabuyakhu lu.   He 

asked whether  I  had not iced that  cer ta in  i tems of  the budget  

for  the conference have not  been paid for  by the ANC 

Provinc ia l  Treasurer ’s  off ice and fur ther  in formed me that  

these i tems had been paid for  donat ions money. ”  

 Is  that  an accurate account  of  what  t ranspi red 10 

between the two of  you? 

MR MABUYAKHULU:   My recol lect ion is  that  Mr Chai rman 

is  that  as we were work ing in  the lead up towards the  

conference I  as I  sa id ear l ier  that  there was a Preparatory 

Commit tee that  I  would at tend and i f  I  was not  there even i f  

I  was then in  00:08:21 that  Preparatory Commi t tee of  

conference because i t  was necessary that  a t  least  I  was 

appra ised that  what  was going  on wi th  regards to  the 

preparat ions of  conference because I  had other  

commitments because I  was a lso a  MEC at  the t ime.   So I  –  20 

I  would not  be ab le to  in terpret  i t  that  i t  d id  actual l y  a f ter  a  

whi le  – my understanding is  that  we would have worked wi th  

Mr Mzi la .   As I  have ind icated a l ready I  would have deal t  

wi th  the issues of  the fund ra is ing s ide and the donat ion 

s ide and therefore he would probably then g iven me the  
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in format ion wi th  regard to  what  would have needed to be  

paid out  which would not  ord inar i l y  been paid out  – out  o f  

the ANC account .   That  i s  my correct  recol lect ion  of  the 

events.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now I f  I  understand correct ly  he would 

have been responsib le fo r  paying  money out  o f  the ANC 

account ,  is  that  cor rect?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   No a bookkeeper does not  become 

responsib le.   The bookkeeper is  ab le to  do the requis i t ions  

to  the Provinc ia l  Treasurer.  10 

ADV HULLEY SC:   I  see.  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   And then the  off ic ia ls  in  the main the  

Provinc ia l  Treasurer  work ing wi th  the Provinc ia l  Secretary 

would be the one that  f ina l l y  i f  they  are paying money out  o f  

the ANC account  that  would be  the s ignator ies.   The 

Financia l  Manager is  not  a  s ignatory.   He or  she accounts to  

the Treasurer.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   So i f  I  understand cor rect l y  what  – what  

is  be ing  sa id over  here and what  you are saying  is  that  

these amounts  were not  pa id out  o f  the ANC’s bank 20 

account ,  is  that  cor rect?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  am saying that  these – there are  

expendi tu res that  we actual ly  as I  have a l ready ind icated 

that  we receive  donat ions at  the t ime when we have 

pressures of  conference upcoming conference that  we have 



22 JUNE 2021 – DAY 414 
 

Page 279 of 319 
 

to  pay those upf ront  so we actual l y  d id  not  wai t  because at  

the t ime when the ANC get  accounts in  anyway i f  my 

correct ion is  cor rect  we d id not  have suff i c ient  funds that  

would have actual ly  covered that .   That  is  why we were 

actual ly  fundra is ing.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   So in  other  words the amount  of  R1 

mi l l ion was not  pa id in to the – in to the bank account  but  

ra ther  was used –  as soon as i t  came i t  in  or  shor t l y  a f ter  i t  

came in  i t  was used to pay fo r  var ious i tems that  formed 

par t  o f  the – that  were requi red for  the Provinc ia l  10 

conference.   Is  that  cor rect?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Mr Chai rman i t  is  common cause that  

I  have ind icated that  in  my recol lect ion my statement  of  29 

October  2010 I  d id  ind icate so that  th is  R1 mi l l ion donat ion  

that  we received f rom Mr Shabala la  was par t  o f  the package 

of  donat ions that  we needed to actual l y  ra ise for  the  cost  o f  

the upcoming conference.   And tha t  is  what  I  have a l ready 

put  before th is  commission  that  because of  p ressure we 

actual ly  d id  not  actual l y  put  the money in to the bank 

account  and we were able use i t  to def ray the up – the cost  20 

of  upcoming conference.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now Is i t  correct  that  i f  I  understand 

correct ly  were you supposed to be  a wi tness for  the  SAPS?  

Were you supposed to assis t  the SAPS in th is  inves – in  the  

invest igat ion in to th is  R1 mi l l ion or  R1.053 mi l l ion? 
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MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  am not  sure what  are you saying  

( inaudib le ) .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   I  am asking you were you going  to  be a  

person who was going to  assis t  the SAPS – I  am ta lk ing 

about  the South Af r ican Pol ice Serv ice – were you going to  

assis t  in  the invest igat ion in  re la t ion to  th is  R1.053 or  in  

re la t ion to  the R1 mi l l ion that  had a l legedly been received 

as a donat ion? 

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Mr Chai r  I  th ink  that  journey we have 

t raversed because I  have made ment ion that  when I  was 10 

contacted of  th is  mat te r  and my recol lect ion is  that  i t  is  

ear ly  in  2010 I  then had the f i rs t  consul ta t ion wi th  Ngubane 

wi tness and in  par t i cu lar  wi th  Mr 00:12:33 where in  a le t ter  

that  was actual l y  craf ted on the 2 February 2010 was of  

course to  the SAPS and the invest igators in  response to the 

quest ions that  had been ra ised by them.   Then la te r  on  then 

I  then deposed an aff idavi t  dated – on the 29 i f  I  am not  

mistaken i t  was e i ther  19 October 2010 and that  that  

a ff idavi t  in  the way i t  was const ructed i t  was speci f ica l l y 

responding to  the quest ion that  i t  actual l y  come f rom the  20 

invest igators.  So I  am not  sure what  – what  e lse.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Wel l  what  I  am t ry ing  to  understand f rom 

you is  in  what  way were you going to  assis t  the SAPS? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Mr – I  do not  know whether  you do 

not  want  to  go  to  the point  that  you ment ioned about  
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Colonel  Du P looy because I  thought  there was a point  there.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink the – the  fact  o f  the mat te r  is  the  

SAPS were invest igat ion is  i t  not  and they wanted 

in format ion f rom – f rom the ANC about  i t .   I  am not  sure 

whether  you do not  want  to  look a t  that  po int  that  you say 

Colonel  Du P looy ra ised.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Can you turn wi th  me Si r  to  –  to  the 10 

le t ter  o f  –  which appears at  page 330 – sorry forg ive me not  

to  page 330 – i t  appears at  page 233.    

CHAIRPERSON:   233.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   That  i s  cor rect  Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Yes Mr Chai rman.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Now th is  is  a  le t ter  which is  addressed 

to Ngubane Wi l l s  Incorporated i t  is  dated the 7 September  

2009 and in  th is  le t ter  cer ta in  quest ions are posed to the  

at torneys pursuant  to  the receipt  o f  the aff idavi t  o f  Mr Mzi la  20 

in  which – the f i rs t  a ff idavi t  o f  Mr  Mzi la  and here you wi l l  

see that  they not  very happy wi th  the response.   They say:  

“ I  wi l l  send Super in tendent  Du P looy ’s  

te lephone conversat ion wi th  you on the 31 

August  2009 refers.   I  conf i rm that  the  
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invest igat ing off icer  Super in tendent  Du 

P looy has received a statement  of  your  

c l ient  Mr Delani  Mzi la  by the off ice of  

Commissioner  Brown.   The statement  was 

presented to  Advocate Wendy O’Br ien the  

senior  State Advocate who is  se ized wi th  the 

prosecut ion of  th is  mat te r. ”  

 And pursuant  to  that  they ra ised a ser ies o f  

quest ions.   Now i t  was subsequent  to  th is  le t te r  go ing out  

that  the – a response was received on page 241.  10 

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Yes Chai rman.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Do you have i t?   And in  paragraph 4 of  

that  le t te r  th is  i s  a  response now to Advocate 00:16:32 

O’Br ien i t  says:  

“Whi ls t  the ANC is  desi rous of  cooperat ing  

wi th  your  invest igat ions we are o f  the v iew 

that  the in format ion you seek is  beyond what  

is  reasonable in  the c i rcumstances.   The 

ANC has made i t  c lear  that  i t  received the  

R1 mi l l ion donat ion which or ig inated f rom Dr  20 

Savoy in  the statement  a l ready suppl ied  

under the name o f  Dr  – Mr D Mzi la . ”  

 Now that  is  the  statement  that  they were asking  

quest ions about .   But  on the  fo l lowing page at  page 242 

they say th ree paragraphs f rom the  bot tom. 
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“A lso of  concern to  both of  our  c l ients i s  the  

leaking of  conf ident ia l  in fo rmat ion to  the  

press.   Of  par t i cu la r  concern is  the Sunday 

Tr ibune lead ar t ic le  of  18 October 2009 

which says “Cops probe R1 mi l l ion ANC 

draf t . ”  

 Now i f  you look a t  that  le t ter  –  that  par t icu la r  a r t ic le  

and i f  I  could take you to  page 248.   You have i t?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Page? 

ADV HULLEY SC:   348.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  ment ion Mr Hul ley that  we have gone 

beyond ten minutes but  … 

ADV HULLEY SC:   I  w i l l  not  be very  long.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us f in ish here .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   I  w i l l  just  connect  th is  wi th  the 2  

February.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja and of  course whatever  has not  been 

covered.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   I t  can be. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  can be put  by way of  –  put  to  Mr 20 

Mabuyakhulu by  way of  00:18:10 quest ions and he can 

provide a wr i t ten aff idavi t .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   Have you got  i t  S i r?  
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MR MABUYAKHULU:   I  do have page 348.  

ADV HULLEY SC:   So th is  is  an ar t ic le  which was referred  

to  in  your  at torney’s le t te r.   So i f  you go to  the – page 348 

you wi l l  see the th i rd  paragraph i t  says  

“Shabala la in fo rmed Savoy that  In taka would  

be  sent  an invoice against  which he should  

make payment .   The document  sa id Savoy 

received an invoice f rom a Durban f i rm of  

a t torneys for  an  amount  of  R1 053 mi l l ion 

and that  th is  was paid to  In taka. ”  10 

 So i t  is  c lear  f rom the at torneys le t ter  that  they were  

aware that  the amount  that  was being sought  or  that  

in format ion was being sought  about  re la ted to  an amount  of  

R1 053 mi l l ion.   You accept  that?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Wel l  le t  us put  th is  mat ter  in to 

context  Mr Chai rman.   Let  us  sta r t  wi th  the le t ter  that  i s  

dated – the le t ter  that  you refer red  me to.   That  le t ter  a t  the  

beginning Chai rman i t  is  expl i c i t  i t  says:  

“We refer  to  the conversat ion wi th  the wr i ter  

yesterday. ”  20 

 And of  which that  conversat ion  now is  not  be 

00:19:26.   We act  for  both the ANC and Mr S ipho Shabala la.   

This le t te r  is  00:19:32 expl i c i t  tha t  i t  was not  necessar i l y   

act ing  on my inst ruct ions because as I  have p laced on 

record Mr Chai rman I  was no longer par t  o f  the Provinc ia l  
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leadership at  the t ime.   So I  would not  have had any 

knowledge of  th is  and secondly I  would not  have been able  

because as I  say i f  saying  we are act ing  on behal f  the ANC 

as wel l  as on behal f  o f  Mr Shabala la.   Now as for  the 

ar t i c les of  the media I  –  wi th  a l l  due respect  Mr Cha i rman I  

do not  th ink I  would actual ly  want  to  venture in to  

comment ing on media ar t i c les  that  I  rea l ly  have no 

knowledge of .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    

MR MABUYAKHULU:   So I  cannot  comment  on media  10 

ar t i c les I  th ink I  –  I  rea l l y  just  would not .  

ADV HULLEY SC:   So when on the 2 February  of  2010 

when your  at to rneys responded and said – and wrote to  

Advocate O’Br ien  they sa id the fo l lowing and th is  i s  a t  page 

1841 of  Bundle RR4.   This i s  the le t te r  that  you were  

referr ing to  ear l ie r  on.  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Yes Mr Chai rman.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    

“We refer  to  our  previous cor respondence 

regard ing the above and advise that  we have 20 

consul ted wi th  the senior  member  of  our  c l ient  

the ANC MEC Michael  Mabuyakhu lu who at  the  

mater ia l  t ime was the Provinc ia l  Treasurer  of  the 

ANC in KwaZulu  Nata l .   We are  inst ructed to  

convey to  you the  fo l lowing.  
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1 .  That  in  h is  capaci ty  as the Provinc ia l  

Treasurer  at  the t ime Mabuykhulu  

author ised the  receipt  o f  R1 mi l l ion  

donat ion f rom the ANC member Mr S ipho 

Shabala la.  

2 .  That  he wishes to  p lace on record that  such 

a donat ion  was received in  cash and was 

ver i f ied to  be R1 mi l l ion. ”  

And then – so they speaking about  the R1 mi l l ion that  

Advocate O’Br ien  was asking you about  – or  asking the 10 

at torney about .   You see that?  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   No Mr Chai rman.   We are rehashing 

the ground of  00:21:47.   Let  me once again for  purposes o f  

ass is t ing the commission fo r  work.   I  have actual l y  sa id th is  

and I  am repeat ing mysel f  I  th ink  for  the umpteen t ime Mr  

Chai rman.   As I  recal l  as ear ly  as somet ime ear ly  in  2010 I  

then was actual ly  –  i t  was brought  to  my at tent ion there 

were issues that  had occurred dur ing the t ime when I  was 

Provinc ia l  Treasurer.   Because I  was no longer par t  o f  the 

Provinc ia l  Execut ive Commit tee or  the leadership  20 

st ructures.   A l though I  am ANC but  I  was no longer  par t  o f  

the execut ive st ructure of  the ANC.   Now when that  was –  

as i t  is  correct ly  captured that  we have consul ted  wi th  a 

senior  member of  our  c l ient  ANC Michael  Mabuyakhulu.   

That  –  th is  le t ter  that  i t  became an outcome of  that  
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consul ta t ion.   That  i s  what  I  sa id the previous t ime I  

appeared before  th is  commission and I  have actual ly  

consistent ly  accepted that  the va lu ing of  the – the  c la r i ty  

that  is  actual l y  bet ter  there is  what  I  personal ly  then 

ind icated to  them insofar  as accept ing responsib i l i ty  o f  

receiv ing the money which is  now common cause which I  

received.  The only i ssue Mr Chai rman that  I  th ink we have 

to put  to  bed and possib ly  for  me i t  is  one mat ter  issue 

because there are two issues only Mr Chai rman and they 

are 00:23:21 issues.    10 

 The f i rs t  issue is  the R1 053 mi l l ion which was 

d ispersed and we d id not  put  in to the 00:23:31 t rust  

account .   That  means that  one can be R53 000.00 I  do not  

know anyth ing about  i t .   I  never  benef i t ted anyth ing i f  I  

benef i t ted so I  have absolute ly  noth ing to  do w i th  the 

R1 053mi l l ion.    

 Then there is  a  donat ion that  was ra ised through Mr  

Shabala la that  I  received of  R1 mi l l ion.   Now the issue here  

is  th is  one ( ind is t inct )?  I f  th is  i s  no t  one and the same then 

we actual ly  have one c lear  issue here.   That  is  the issue.   20 

We can f ight  the issue unt i l  the ch ickens come home roost  

but  I  th ink that  is  how far  c lear  the issues are.    

 The second issue Mr Chai rman as far  as I  am 

concerned is  the issue of  whether  the a l lega – the charges 

that  were wi thdrawn against  the ten accused inc lud ing one 
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Michael  Mabuyakhulu.   Whether  those charges were 

correct ly  and leg i t imate ly  wi thdrawn against  those ten 

accused and that  is  the issue because Colonel  Du P looy 

and others were  c la iming to  make an issue on behal f  o f  

Advocate Dunyu.  

 We now have got  for  c la r i ty  proof  o f  records of  the  

NPA before  th is  commission.   We a lso  have got  the  le t te r  

that  the then DPP Director  o f  Pub l ic  Prosecut ions of  Nata l  

Advocate Moipone Noko has actual  ( ind is t inct )  c lar i f y ing 

how those processes occur.   For  me Mr Chai rman these are 10 

the two issues here and therefore as I  sa id I  had noth ing to  

do wi th  R1 053mi l l ion that  went  in to the Cabone and Chezi .   

We now know for  a  fact  that  how i t  was d ispersed and fo r  

whose benef i t  i t  was d ispersed.   And the man I  am ta lk ing  

about  is  a  00:25:23 concerned and there is  no  substant ia l  

ev idence that  shows that  that  money had come f rom the 

same source.   So i t  is  as s imple as  that  and as they t ry  and 

f ight  th is  quest ion  i t  w i l l  not  be consuming the commission’s 

t ime wi th  a l l  due respect   Mr Chai rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We have to stop here.  20 

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr Chai rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We have to stop here.   The – you may 

receive quest ions – wr i t ten quest ions in  due course i f  Mr  

Hul ley has fu r ther  quest ions.   That  can be deal t  wi th  by way 

of  a  response in  an aff idavi t  but  I  th ink now we need to g ive  
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your  counsel  an opportuni ty  to  cross-examine Mr Whi te.    

ADV HULLEY SC:   Thank you Mr Chai rman.  

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Thank you Mr Chai rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes thank you Mr Mabuyakhulu thank you.    

MR MABUYAKHULU:   Thank you -   thank you S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Mr Whi te are you there? 

MR WHITE:   I  am Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  Okay where  is  Mr Whi te?  

MR WHITE:    Mr Chai r  I  am v i r tua l l y  –  I  am on the – I  

should be on the screen.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.   Okay now you are on –  on  the  

screen.   Thank you for  avai l ing yoursel f  even in  the evening  

to  t ry  and assis t  the commission and to avai l  yoursel f  for  

cross-examinat ion.   The Regist rar  wi l l  admin ister  the oath  

or  a ff i rmat ion to  you and thereaf ter  we wi l l  le t  Mr Dickson 

who represents Mr Mabuyakhulu pu t  quest ions to  you.   Okay 

p lease admin ister  the oath or  a ff i rmat ion.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your  fu l l  names fo r  the record.  

MR WHITE:   Trevor  Shaun Whi te.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  tak ing the  20 

prescr ibed oath? 

MR WHITE:    I  do  not .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you consider  the oath b ind ing on your  

conscience? 

MR WHITE:    I  do .  



22 JUNE 2021 – DAY 414 
 

Page 290 of 319 
 

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly swear that  the ev idence you 

wi l l  g ive wi l l  be the t ru th;  the who le t ru th and noth ing e lse  

but  the t ru th;  i f  so p lease ra ise your  r ight  hand and say,  so  

help me God.  

MR WHITE:     So help me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much Mr Whi te.   Mr  

Dickson.  

ADV DICKSON:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Whi te – Mr Whi te,  Mr Dickson appears 

before the commission v i r tua l l y  so he wi l l  conduct  h is  cross-10 

examinat ion v i r tua l ly.   Okay Mr Dickson.  

ADV DICKSON:   Thank you Chai r.   Mr Whi te I  do not  know 

i f  you can see me here I  can see you.    

MR WHITE:     Yes I  can.  

ADV DICKSON:   Yes and can you hear  me proper ly?  

MR WHITE:     Yes I  can.  

ADV DICKSON:   Okay.   Can we just  get  a  few th ings that  I  

am sure you wi l l  not  d isagree wi th  out  o f  the way.   You are 

a forensic audi to r,  is  that  cor rect?  

MR WHITE:     That  would be correct .  20 

ADV DICKSON:   So your  inst ruc t ion in  a case l i ke th is  

where you are doing repor ts  i s  to  invest igate f inancia l  

records,  bank accounts  and the k ind of  th ings that  fa l l  

w i th in  your  ambi t  and then draw cer ta in  conclus ions f rom 

those documents  and the facts that  you found in  those 
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documents.   Is  that  cor rect?  

MR WHITE:     That  would be correct .  

ADV DICKSON:   And you have done that  admirably  in  th is  

case in  re la t ion to  the Cobene – Cabone and Shezi  records.   

You agree:  

MR WHITE:     Yes I  wi l l  not  d ispute that  I  have done i t  

admirably yes.  

ADV DICKSON:   Okay wel l  the one th ing that  I  do not  th ink 

we wi l l  agree about  is  the assessment  of  ev idence is  not  in  

your  f ie ld .   The assessment  of  ev idence and legal  a rgument  10 

af ter  an analys is  of  ev idence is  someth ing that  Mr  Hul ley 

can do and I  can do and u l t imate ly  the Chai r  wi l l  make up 

h is  mind about  these th ings but  that  is  not  wi th in  your  f ie ld ,  

is  i t?  

MR WHITE:     That  is  correct .  

ADV DICKSON:   And f ina l ly  your  conclus ions a lso must  be  

susta inable,  not  so?  In  other  words ev idence.   I t  must  

po in t  to  one conc lus ion  on ly  and  not  a  who le  number  o f  

poss ib i l i t i es  where  you have been se lec ted  about  your  

cho ice .   Do you fo l low?  20 

MR WHITE :    I  do .    

ADV DICKSON :    Okay.   So,  can we s tar t  then w i th  TSW-19  

and TSW-21?  Do you have them ava i lab le  to  you?  They  

are  in  th is  bund le  a t  pages RR-7-MM-038 and 039.  

MR WHITE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  
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ADV DICKSON :    A re  you ab le  to  loca te  them the re ,  o r  do  

you have them independent ly?  

MR WHITE :    Yes,  I  have them.  

ADV DICKSON :    Okay,  now . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am so r ry,  Mr  D ickson.   Jus t  repeat  

where  they a re  to  be  found?  

ADV DICKSON :    Yes.   They are  to  be  found in  th is  bund le .   

That  i s  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  bund le  a t  RR-7 -MM-038 and 039.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Pages 38 and 39? 

ADV DICKSON :    Yes,  38  and 39  o f  TSW-19 and TSW-21  10 

wh ich  fo rmed the  bas is  o f  the  or ig ina l  o f  the  ev idence o f  

Mr  Whi te .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Hu l ley,  a re  you ab le  to  ass is t  me  

because I  am not  sure  whether  Mr  D ickson has the  same 

bund le .  

ADV DICKSON :    No,  I  have got  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .   I t  i s  

a t tached to  the  a f f idav i t  o f  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  [ speaker  unc lea r  –  

d is to r t ion  in  v ideo l ink ]  

ADV HULLEY SC :    I  be l ieve  i t  i s  in  Bund le  RR-4 and I  

be l ieve  he is  re fe r r ing  to  the  TSW ser ies .   I t  wou ld  be  in  20 

your  D-Sect ion ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Exh ib i t  RR-4  has go t  RR-40(?) ,  has go t  

Trevo r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV HULLEY SC :    So,  TSW-21 is  a t  page 1978,  I  be l ieve .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  what  i s  the  bund le  on  the  sp ine?   
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What  i s  i t  wr i t ten? 

ADV HULLEY SC :    I t  shou ld  be  Trevor  Whi te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    And then,  i t  wou ld  be  RR-4  and  you 

wou ld  have the  B  one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HULLEY SC :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  and what  page must  I  go  to?  

ADV HULLEY SC :    So,  TSW-21 is  a t  page 1978.  

CHAIRPERSON :    1978. . .  10 

[Background d i scuss ions be tween par t ies  –  unc lear ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    1978. . .   Oh,  TSW-21?  

ADV HULLEY SC :    That  i s  so ,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV HULLEY SC :    TSW-19 is  a t  page 1958.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  wh ich  is  TSW were  you. . .?  

ADV DICKSON :    I  am s t i l l . . .    

CHAIRPERSON :    31?  

ADV DICKSON :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  am s tar t ing  w i th  TSW-19.  

CHAIRPERSON :    19?  20 

ADV DICKSON :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    

ADV DICKSON :    A re  you on the  same page,  Mr  Whi te?  

MR WHITE :    I  have i t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV DICKSON :    Okay . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  –  I  see TSW-21,  bu t  no t  19 .    

MR WHITE :    Two  pages ear l ie r.  

ADV DICKSON :    Two pages ear l ie r,  p robab ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Two pages ea r l ie r.   I  have got  the  end o f  

somebody ’s  a f f idav i t .   I  do  no t  know whethe r  tha t  i s  

Mlo tshwa(? ) .   That  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV DICKSON :    Cha i r,  on  page 1958.  

CHAIRPERSON :    1958?  

ADV DICKSON :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Okay,  I  have got  i t .   Thank you.   10 

Thank you,  Mr  Whi te .  

ADV DICKSON :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV DICKSON :    So ,  Mr  Whi te ,  you gave ev idence  on the  

21 s t  o f  January  2020.   And I  can assure  you tha t  what  you  

are  say ing  –  I  am go ing  to  read you jus t  four  l ines .   I t  i s  

much eas ier  than  f ind ing  i t .   That ,  in  case you wanted to  

look  a t  i t ,  i t  i s  page 39 o f  your  ev idence and about  l ine  9 . . .   

Sor ry,  i t  s ta r ts  a t  l ine  8 .   You say:  

“ [ speaker  unc lea r  –  d is to r t ion  in  v ideo l ink ]  20 

. . .by  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  t rus ted(?)  fund(?)  [ speaker  

unc lea r  –  d is to r t i on  in  v ideo l ink ]  . . .was pa id  

f rom persona l  expenses o f  Mr  Shaba la ,  the  

Head o f  the  Depar tment  o f  Hea l th  in  KZN and 

subsequent ly  in  cash to  the  MEC o f  Trad i t iona l  
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A f fa i rs  and  Loca l  Government ,  

Mr  Mabuyakhu lu . . . ”  

Okay?  

MR WHITE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV DICKSON :    That  i s  you r  exp lanat ion  and to  quest ions 

as  to  what  you were  t ry ing  to  show about  TSW-19.   A re  you 

w i th  me so  fa r?  

MR WHITE :    I  am.  

ADV DICKSON :    Okay.   So,  the  par t  o f  tha t  concerns the  

issues here  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  ton igh t  a re  tha t  the  cent ra l  10 

character  in  th is  d iag ram is  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  and on the  r igh t -

hand s ide ,  m id  to  r igh t -hand s ide ,  roundabout ,  o r  cou ld  

tha t  be  about  one o ’c lock  on  the  c lock ,  there  is  record  o f  

an  amount  o f  R 1  053 000.00 pa id  on  the 

12 t h  o f  March 2007 and i t  has  go t  an  invo i ce  number  and  

tha t  i s  pa id  to  the  venue,  Khobone(?)  and Shez i  A t to rneys.    

MR WHITE :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV DICKSON :    And you gave ev idence tha t  a  f i c t i t ious  

account  was produced by  these a t to rneys to  ba lance  up,  on  

the  o the r  s ide  o f  the  page,  in  account ing  te rms fo r  the  20 

amount  be ing  pa id  to  them.   That  i s  co r rec t ,  hey?  

MR WHITE :    Not  qu i te ,  Cha i r.   I  mean,  they gave an  

invo i ce  fo r  serv ices  tha t  were  no t  rendered.  

ADV DICKSON :    Yes.   So . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR WHITE :    So ,  i t  was not  a  f i c t i t ious  account .   They  
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i ssued an invo i ce  fo r  serv ices  tha t  were  no t  rendered.   Now 

then a t  to  g ive  i t  jus t i f i ca t ion  fo r  the  donat ion  tha t  was  

be ing  pa id .  

ADV DICKSON :    Okay,  I  am so r ry.   You cor rec ted  me.   I t  i s  

a  fa lse  account .    

MR WHITE :    I t  is  an  invo ice .   I t  is  no t  an  account .   They  

issued an invo i ce .    

ADV DICKSON :    They issued an invo ice ,  and i t  was fo r  no 

work  done.  

MR WHITE :    Fo r  serv ices  tha t  were  no t  rendered .   Yes,  10 

tha t  i s  what  I  sa id .    

ADV DICKSON :    R igh t .   And tha t  money went  in to 

Khobone and Shez i ’s  accounts .   And then you have an  

ar row go ing  up to  S  D D Shaba la la  and you have got  a  

d i f fe ren t  amount .   I s  tha t  R 1  056 205,00 . . . [ ind is t inc t ]?    

MR WHITE :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t?  

ADV DICKSON :    And then you have got  an  ar row wh ich  

says f rom Mr  Shaba la la ,  one m i l l ion  cash to  Michae l  

Mabuyakhu lu  and  a  fu r ther  one mi l l ion  cash to  the  ANC.  

MR WHITE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  20 

ADV DICKSON :    I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR WHITE :    Wel l ,  Mr  D ickson,  you omi t ted  pa r t  o f  the  

desc r ip t ion  on  the  f i rs t  a r row.   The ar row been Khobone  

and Shez i  A t to rneys and S  D D Shaba la .   You must  read  

out  the  par t  tha t  says:   Pa id  va r ious persona l  expenses o f  
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S  D D Shaba la ,  19  February  2007 to  21  August  2007 .  

ADV DICKSON :    Yes.   No,  you a re  abso lu te ly  cor rec t .   I  

am g lad  you men t ioned tha t  because tha t  then can take  us  

to  TSW-21.   A re  you happy to  do  tha t?  

MR WHITE :    I  am.  

ADV DICKSON :    So ,  tha t  money  t ra in ,  as  i t  were ,  tha t  I  

have jus t  desc r ibed to  you on your  own d iagram,  i s  now 

h igh l igh ted  and en larged in  TSW-21,  bu t  i t  represents  the  

same course  o f  money.   I s  tha t  no t  t rue?  

MR WHITE :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  10 

ADV DICKSON :    Okay.   So,  you have got ,  fo r  examp le ,  the  

amount  f rom In taka to  Khobone  and Shez i  A t to rneys.   

When you got  an  amount  in  excess  o f  R 1  053 000.00 be ing  

pa id  to  the  Shaba la la ’s  to  pay the i r  debtors .   No,  the i r  

c red i to rs .   I  am sor ry.   I s  tha t  cor rec t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

MR WHITE :    Ja ,  the  ex ten t  was not  a l l  the i r  c red i to rs ,  

some o f  them are  the i r  own ent i t ies ,  bu t  yes  i t  was pa id  fo r  

the i r  benef i t .  

ADV DICKSON :    For  the i r  benef i t?   Okay,  then I  th ink  we 

can agree on tha t .   And then,  the  wr i t ing  i s  very,  very  20 

smal l ,  bu t  we have done a  b low-up  o f  a l l  o f  those expenses  

and fo r  example ,  le t  us  take  Mr  Shaba la la ’s  company,  B lue 

Seren i ty.   You know tha t  tha t  i s  Mr  Shaba la la ’s  company,  

do  you not?  

MR WHITE :    I  do .  
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ADV DICKSON :    And there  was more  or  less  th ree  

hundred thousand tha t  was taken  out  o f  tha t ,  jus t  over  a  

m i l l ion  rand,  and i t  was pa id  th rough Khobone and Shezi  to  

Mr  Shaba la la ’s  company,  B lue  Seren i ty,  no t  so?  

MR WHITE :    Cor rec t .   I t  was exac t ly  R 300 000,00.    

ADV DICKSON :    R igh t .   And then you have  var ious 

amounts  tha t  were  pa id  to  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  and those were  in  

respect  o f  invo i ces issued to  Odwandwene(? )  Fami ly  Trus t  

and the  payments  were  made by  Khobone and Shez i  

A t to rneys.   Am I  r igh t?  10 

MR WHITE :    Cha i r,  I  do  no t  reca l l  o f f  hand invo ices were  

issued fo r  o r  two,  bu t  I  do  reca l l  tha t  most  o f  these 

expenses were  re la t ing  to  fa rm ing mat te rs  on  Mr  

Shaba la la ’s  fa rm.  

ADV DICKSON :    Yes,  okay.   So,  I  th ink  we agree on tha t  

because Da i ry (?)  Qu ip(?)  appears  to  be  an  agr i cu l tu ra l  

concern .   So is  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  an  agency.   So,  i t  i s  Be l l (? )  

Equ ipment ,  Nata l  Aer ia l (? ) ,  UCL Bank,  wh ich  I  th ink  i s  a  

nu l l ,  and so  on .   But  I  th ink  tha t  we both  agree tha t  th is  

money was spen t  on  –  to  benef i t  the  two Shaba la la ’s  in  20 

B lue  Seren i ty,  a  company,  and  in  var ious agr icu l tu ra l  

concerns.   Do you agree w i th  tha t?  

MR WHITE :    I  do .  

ADV DICKSON :    Okay.   So,  you  are  no t  suggest ing  tha t  

the  money came back f rom those cred i to rs  o f  the  
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Shaba la la ’s ,  a re  you?  

MR WHITE :    I  am not?  

ADV DICKSON :    So ,  once the  money was expended,  i t  

was gone,  d isappeared?  I t  has  been used.   I s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR WHITE :    Wel l ,  i t  was used to  pay those  spec i f i c  

en t i t ies .   Cor rec t .  

ADV DICKSON :    Yes,  yes ,  bu t  i t  was not  pu t  in  

Mr  Shaba la la ’s  pocket .   I t  was used to  pay Mr  Shaba la la ’s  

c red i to rs  and va r ious o ther  en t i t ies .   So,  i t  was used up.   10 

That  i s  the  po in t  I  am ask ing  you about .  

MR WHITE :    The ones tha t  went  to  th i rd  par t ies ,  I  agree.   

What  happened to  the  money tha t  went  to  B lue  Seren i ty,  I  

do  no t  know.  

ADV DICKSON :    Yes.   Wel l ,  I  suppose,  once i t  went  to  

B lue  Seren i ty,  i t  was s t i l l  ava i lab le  to  Mr  Shaba la la ,  bu t  I  

th ink  the  quest ion ,  rea l l y,  a r ises  in  re la t ion  to  TSW-21,  i s  

tha t ,  where  you  have the  do t ted  l ine  o f  one m i l l ion  to  

Michae l  Mabuyakhu lu ,  tha t  cou ld  no t  have been,  on  your  

own in fo rmat ion ,  i t  cou ld  no t  have been the  money tha t  20 

was pa id  to  In taka to  Khobone and  Shez i  A t to rneys.  

MR WHITE :    So ,  Cha i r,  i f  we take ,  i t  cou ld  no t  have been  

the  exact  months .   I t  was –  there  was not  cash invo lved.   

So,  i t  –  the  or ig ina l  amount  was an  e lec t ron i c  t ransfer.   So,  

we are  no t  ta lk ing  about  the  same cash notes .   So,  i t  i s  
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obv ious ly  go ing  to  be  d i f fe ren t  cash notes  because the  

R 1  m i l l ion  payment  f rom Mr Shaba la la  to  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  

on  beha l f  o f  the  ANC is  a l leged to  have been made  in  cash  

and I  use  tha t  word  qu i te  care fu l l y.    

 Bu t ,  Cha i r,  f rom my invest iga t ion ,  i f  the  money was  

pa id  and fo r  a l l  in tense and purposes,  le t  us  assume i t  was 

pa id ,  because there  is  -  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  has gone to  g reat  

lengths  to  say he  d id  rece ive  i t .   The fac t  tha t  no  one e lse  

in  the  ANC ever  saw tha t  money is  a  separa te  d i scuss ion .   

I t  was never  rece ived.   I t  i s  no t  inc luded in  the  f i nanc ia l  10 

records .    

 So,  there  is  a  lo t  o f  reasons why  I  am scept ica l  

tha t  the  ANC ac tua l l y  rece ived the  money,  bu t  i f  i t  was 

in tended fo r  the  ANC as Dr  Savoy f rom In taka or ig ina l l y  

sa id ,  g rea t  lengths  to  have gone th rough by  Mr Shaba la la  

to  have i t  laundered th rough Khobone and Shez i  t rus t  

account .   And subsequent ly,  i f  we cont inue on tha t  b ra in  o f  

thought ,  he  laundered i t  th rough  h is  persona l  opera t ions  

and he then prov ided money up by  the  end.    

 The exact  source  o f  where  he  got  the  cash f rom,  I  20 

do  not  know.   And he then  prov ided cash  to  Mr  

Mabuyakhu lu .  

ADV DICKSON :    Wel l ,  Mr  Whi te ,  tha t  i s  very  in te res t ing  

because tha t  i s  what  I  have put  to  you jus t  now.   You a re  

ta lk ing  about  a  money launder ing  exe rc i se ,  bu t  what  I  am 
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see ing  here  on  TSW-21 is  Mr  Shaba la la  enr i ch ing  h imse l f  

and h i s  w i fe  by  pay ing  a  hundred(?)  peop le  tha t  they owed 

money to .  

MR WHITE :    Bu t  Mr  D ickson,  he  then takes the  m i l l ion  

rand out  o f  h is  own money and pays i t  across  to  the  ANC.   

I t  wou ld  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV DICKSON :    How do you make a  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]?   Have 

you spoken to  Mr  Shaba la la?  

MR WHITE :    I  have not .  

ADV DICKSON :    You see,  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  has to ld  us  10 

a l ready tha t  Mr  Shaba la la  was charged w i th  fundra i se r.   

So,  wou ld  you jus t  assume fo r  a  moment  tha t  Mr Shaba la la  

d id  do  fundra is ing  and pa id  tha t  money tha t  he  ra ised to  

Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  to  pay i t  to  the  ANC?  Would  you jus t  

cons ider  tha t  as  a  poss ib i l i t y?  

MR WHITE :    Mr  D ickson,  i t  i s  –  anyth ing  is  a  poss ib i l i t y,  

okay?  But  in  the  c i rcumstances,  where  anybody fo r  the  

en t i re  per iod  o f  th is  invest iga t ion  was ta lk ing  about  th is  

one spec i f i c  m i l l i on  rand.   There  a re  numerous documents ,  

and I  am happy to  s tay  as  long as  everybody e l se  is ,  and I  20 

can go th rough as  to  why I  have  come to  the  conc lus ion  

tha t  i t  i s  the  same money.   The  a f f idav i t  o f  Dr  G i l l i an(? )  

Keys(?)  i s  jus t  one example  o f  where  you wou ld  l ink  i t  to  

be  the  same money based  on Mr  Mabuyakhu lu ’s  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  Dr  Keys sa id  he  rece ived  f rom 
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Mr  Mabuyakhu lu .  

ADV DICKSON :    Okay.   Wel l ,  Mr  Whi te ,  I  w i l l  go  th rough 

those o the r  p ieces o f  ev idence tha t  you are  re ly ing  upon  

but  le t  us  jus t  to  be  abso lu te ly  c lear  fo r  a  s ta r t .   They are  

no t  f inanc ia l  records .   They a re  p ieces o f  ev idence on  

wh ich  o the r  peop le  are  fa r  be t te r  qua l i f ied  to  make 

s ta tements  than you.    

MR WHITE :    So . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV DICKSON :    I  w i l l  g ive  you the  examples  and then you  

can comment ,  a l r igh t?  10 

MR WHITE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV DICKSON :    F i r s t  o f  a l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR WHITE :    Maybe,  Mr  D ickson,  be fore  you  g ive  me 

examples ,  i f  I  cou ld  jus t  respond to  tha t  s ta tement?  

ADV DICKSON :    Okay.  

MR WHITE :    So ,  what  I  have done in  my repor ts  i s  to  

summar ise  a l l  the  ev idence f rom a l l  the  sources,  okay?   

Whether  i t  be  f rom a  bank s ta tement ,  f rom an a f f idav i t  o f  

Dr  Savoy to  the  var ious o f  a f f idav i t s  o f  Mr  Mz i la ,  var ious 

le t te rs  f rom Nkubane(?)  Wi l l s  A t to rneys.   To  pu t  a l l  tha t  20 

together  in  one p lace.   So,  I  d id  no t  jus t  t race  the  F low o f  

funds,  because o therwise  the  f low o f  funds wou ld  have 

s topped a t  Mr  Shaba la la .   So . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV DICKSON :    Okay.  

MR WHITE :    So  my job  was not  on ly  t o  summar i se  what  
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was in  the  bank  s ta tement .   I t  was to  do  a  comple te  

invest iga t ion  in  ass i s t ing  the  po l i ce  and put  i t  together  in  

such a  way tha t  every th ing  was in  one p lace  or  fo r  

somebody easy  to  unders tand.   The po in t  be ing  tha t  

ind iv idua l  w i tnesses wh ich  I  re fe r  to  in  my repor t  wou ld  

then,  u l t imate ly,  have to  come and tes t i f y  as  to  the  

spec i f i cs  th ings tha t  a re  made in  d ispute .  

ADV DICKSON :    Okay.   Wel l ,  le t  us  jus t  go  th rough the  

o ther  th ings.   We wi l l  ge t  back to  TSW-21 aga in .   We wi l l  

go  th rough the  o ther  th ings.   Ms S ibo(?)  Ngubane(?)  Zu lu  10 

changed her  ev idence when she gave i t .   A l r igh t?  

MR WHITE :    So ,  I  th ink  she sa id  she was not  sure .   I  do  

no t  know tha t  she  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV DICKSON :    [ laughs]  

MR WHITE :    . . . take  he r  ev idence together  w i th  tha t  o f  

Mr  Mz i la ,  who tes t i f ied  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV DICKSON :    Wel l . . .   Ja .  

MR WHITE :    . . .bu t  I  am sure  you –  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV DICKSON :    We wi l l  ge t  there  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR WHITE :    . . .bu t  you got  –  Mr  D ickson,  i f  I  can  comple te  20 

my answer.   You cannot  take  i t  in  i so la t ion  because  she is  

re fe r r i ng  to  what  –  i t  has  go t  to  be  –  you have got  to  match  

a l l  o f  i t  togethe r.   You cannot  jus t  take  one l i t t le  p iece  and  

another  l i t t le  p iece  and take  i t  on  i t s  own.    

ADV DICKSON :    Yes,  I  know,  bu t  Mr  Whi te ,  tha t  i s  what  I  
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was say ing  in  the  beg inn ing  when we f i rs t  s ta r ted .   When  

you want  to  make a  c i rcumstant ia l  case,  i t  a l l  has  go t  to  

po in t  in  one d i rec t ion  and i f  a  who le  lo t  o f  you r  

c i rcumstances fa l l s  to  p ieces because peop le  repen t  the i r  

ev idence,  then your  theory  i s  no  longer  va l id  and tha t  i s  

what  I  am put t ing  to  you.   

  And i f  you w i l l  g ive  me an oppor tun i ty,  I  w i l l  take  

you th rough each  o f  the  p ieces tha t  you re ly  upon,  to  show 

you tha t  your  ev idence and your  conc lus ions are  f lawed.   

Do you fo l low where  I  am go ing?  10 

MR WHITE :    I  do .    

ADV DICKSON :    Okay.   So,  we f i rs t  o f  a l l ,  we got  

Ms Ngubane-Zu lu .   I  d id  no t  hear  her  ev idence,  bu t  my  

c l ien t  te l l s  me she changed her  ev idence f rom her  a f f idav i t .   

Not  tha t  she cou ld  no t  remember  anymore .   She made an  

a f f idav i t  las t (? )  n igh t ,  okay?  

MR WHITE :    So  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  le t  me say . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV DICKSON :    [ speaker  unc lear  –  d is to r t ion  in  v ideo  

l ink ]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  D ickson. . .  

ADV DICKSON :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  [ speaker  unc lear  –  d i s to r t ion  

in  v ideo l ink ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry,  Mr  Whi te .   She sa id ,  Mr  D ickson,  

she was not  sure  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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ADV DICKSON :    Yes?  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .whether  she got  the  in fo rmat ion  f rom 

Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  or  f rom Mr  Mzi la ,  bu t  she sa id  she got  i t  

f rom one o f  them.    

ADV DICKSON :    Yes,  bu t  the  a f f idav i t  says  someth ing  

d i f fe ren t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  the  a f f idav i t  says  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV DICKSON :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  the  a f f idav i t  i s  more  de f in i te .    

ADV DICKSON :    Yes,  r igh t .   Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  you may cont inue.  

ADV DICKSON :    So ,  we have got  tha t ,  tha t  p iece  o f  

ev idence,  wh ich  I  wou ld  suggest  to  you,  f rom a  lega l  po in t  

o f  v iew is  sub jec t  to  doubt .   We then got  Mz i la  who 

re t rac ted  h is  a f f idav i t .   Now,  when you are  cons ider ing  

what  Mr  Mz i la  sa id ,  a re  you look ing  a t  the  f i rs t  one or  the  

second one or  a re  you,  l i ke  most  lawyers ,  have to  –  are  

fo rced to  the  conc lus ion  tha t  you cannot  look  a t  e i ther  o f  

them?  What  one are  you do ing?  

MR WHITE :    So ,  tha t  i s  no t  fo r  me to  make the  u l t imate  20 

dec is ion  on  wh ich  one can be re l ied  upon.    

ADV DICKSON :    Ja .    

MR WHITE :    You have the  fac ts  tha t  come f rom both ,  

okay?  

ADV DICKSON :    A l r igh t .    
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MR WHITE :    Because the  f i rs t  one –  i f  I  take  the  vers ion  

tha t  i s  se t  ou t  in  h is  second one,  i s  what  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  

a l leged ly  to ld  Nkubane Wi l l s  wh ich  was then  put  i n to  an  

a f f idav i t  tha t  was  dra f ted  fo r  Mr  Mz i la  to  s ign .   Mr  Mz i la ,  

when he subsequent ly  rea l i sed what  he  has go t  h imse l f  

invo l ved in ,  sa id :   I  do  no t  want  to  be  invo lved.   I  want  to  

w i thdraw tha t  s ta tement .   I  do  no t  have persona l  

knowledge o f  anyth ing  o f  i t .   And e f fec t i ve ly,  h is  second 

s ta tement  says:   I  have no knowledge o f  any o f  these 

issues.  10 

ADV DICKSON :    Yes,  tha t  i s  r igh t .   He re t rac ted  the  f i rs t  

one.  

MR WHITE :    Bu t  the  po in t  be ing ,  what  i s  c r i t i ca l ,  is  tha t  in  

h is  second a f f idav i t  and I  am not  –  I  can f ind  i t .   I  jus t  do  

no t  remember  the  exact  word ing ,  bu t  was tha t  in  h is  

second one,  he  sa id  i n fo rmat ion  to  the  f i rs t  one was not  

p repared by  h imse l f .    

ADV DICKSON :    Yes.  

MR WHITE :    Now,  i f  you  take  tha t  w i th  the  s ta tement ,  you 

have jus t  sa id ,  tha t  Ms Ngubane-Zu lu  was cont rad ic ted  or  20 

changed her  s ta tement  yesterday when she tes t i f ied .   She 

sa id  i t  was e i the r  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  or  Mr  Mz i la .   Mr  Mz i la  

sa id  i t  was not  h im.   So,  on  tha t  bas i s ,  the  on ly  o ther  

op t ion  cou ld  be  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu .  

MR WHITE :    We l l ,  tha t  i s  you r  answer,  bu t  I  am –  what  I  
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am put t ing  to  you is  tha t  ana lyses o f  ev idence  is  no t  

whethe r  i t  i s  the  one th ing  o r  the  o ther  and i t  leads to  the  

conc lus ion ,  i t  must  be  X  ins tead o f  Y.   I t  i s  rea l l y  

uncer ta in (? )  when you have heard  a l l  the  ev idence tha t  i t  

i s  there .   And what  I  am put t ing  to  you is  tha t  so  fa r  I  have 

dea l t  w i th  two peop le .   Both  o f  whom,  I  wou ld  say,  doubt fu l  

w i tnesses.   You do not  agree?  

MR WHITE :    I  w i l l  pu t  the  fac ts  and tha t  i s  fo r  the  Cha i r  in  

th is  ins tance to  dec ide  and . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV DICKSON :    Yes.  10 

MR WHITE :    . . . fo r  tha t  p roceed ing  to  dec ide .   I t  i s  no t  fo r  

me to  dec ide  whe ther  to  doubt  the  w i tness o r  no t .  

ADV DICKSON :    Cor rec t .   Okay.   Then we go on to  Dr  

Zwel i  Mkh ize ,  where  he  says tha t  he  has no  persona l  

knowledge.   We l l ,  he  is ,  obv ious ly,  pu t t ing  fo rward ing  

someth ing  tha t  he  heard  f rom someone e lse .  

MR WHITE :    Bu t ,  Mr  D ickson,  le t  us  –  d ispute  tha t  tha t  i s  

an  accura te  s ta tement  o f  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

ADV DICKSON :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   Wel l ,  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR WHITE :    I f  you  go to  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

ADV DICKSON :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  [ speaker  unc lear  –  d i s to r t ion  

in  v ideo l ink ]  

MR WHITE :    I f  we go to  Dr  Mkh ize ’s  s ta tement  wh ich  is  in  

RR-7 a t  page 497 .  

ADV DICKSON :    Yes?  
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MR WHITE :    Le t  me jus t  check tha t  the  Cha i r  has i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You can proceed .    

MR WHITE :    So ,  i f  we look a t  tha t  paragraph tha t  i t  i s  a t  

parag raph 27.  

ADV DICKSON :    Yes.    

MR WHITE :    Now I  know i t  has  been read out  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

th is  even ing  a l ready,  bu t  i f  you  look a t  the  Eng l i sh  and we 

in te rpre t  i t  as  i t  –  exact ly  as  i t  i s  wr i t ten ,  in  my v iew,  the re  

can be no doubt  tha t  Dr  Zwel i  Mkh ize  is  say ing  he  rece ived  

th is  in fo rmat ion  about  th is  donat ion .   He does not  say  10 

these donat ions.   He i s  no t  ta lk ing  about  a  number  o f  

donat ions.   He  is  ta lk ing  about  one donat ion  f rom 

Mr  Mabuyakhu lu .  

ADV DICKSON :    Yes.  

MR WHITE :    The on ly  th ing  he  says he  does not  know is ,  

when i t  was requested and when i t  was rece ived.   I t  i s  one 

donat ion .   The o r ig ina l  request  he  is  ta lk ing  abou t  i s  the 

request  to  In taka and the  f ina l  rece ip t  i s  the  rece ip t  by  the  

ANC.   So,  i t  i s  in  –  in  th is  parag raph,  my unders tand ing  i f  I  

read i t  exact ly  as  i t  i s  wr i t ten ,  i t  says  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  20 

donat ion .    

ADV DICKSON :    Okay.   Now,  are  you prepared to  

recommend tha t  a  c r im ina l  p rosecut ion  is  b rought  on  tha t  

parag raph 37?  

MR WHITE :    Mr  D ickson,  tha t  i s  no t  my job .    
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ADV DICKSON :    Okay . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR WHITE :    I  am here  to  p resent  the  fac ts .   You are  t ry ing  

to  say tha t  I  do  no t  have any fac ts .   I  am say ing ,  here  is  a  

fac t ,  and i t  i s  fo r  someone e l se  to  dec ide  what  they do  w i th  

i t .  

ADV DICKSON :    Okay.   Mov ing  on.   You have got  no  

vers ion  f rom Mr  Shaba la la?  

MR WHITE :    Mr  D ickson,  obv ious ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV DICKSON :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  

MR WHITE :    . . . in  the  mat te r.    10 

ADV DICKSON :    Yes . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

MR WHITE :    . . .based on –  he  e lec ted  to  remain  s i len t .  

ADV DICKSON :    R igh t .  

MR WHITE :    So  h is  award ing(?)  s ta tement  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

ADV DICKSON :    Yes.   When you got  the  le t te r  f rom 

Ngubane Wi l l s ,  the  f i rs t  one in  November  i s  qu i te  c lear ly,  

f rom the  ins t ruc t ions o f  Mr  Shaba la la ,  fo r  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

. . . the  s ta tement  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR WHITE :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV DICKSON :    The le t te r  o f  Ngubane Wi l l s  fo r  the  20 

2 n d  o f  February  2010 . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

MR WHITE :    Bu t  Mr  D ickson,  sor ry.   Jus t  –  I  do  no t  th ink  

we are  go ing  to  come back  to  the  le t te r  o f  the 

29 t h  o f  November  2009,  wh ich  I  made a  s ta tement  w i thout  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  
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ADV DICKSON :    Yes.  

MR WHITE :    . . .me to  comment .  

ADV DICKSON :    Okay,  comment .   Where  does th is  

in fo rmat ion  come f rom?  From the  le t te r  –  the  contex t  

i t se l f?  

MR WHITE :    We l l ,  i f  I  look  a t  the  le t te r,  i t  says :   We act  

fo r  bo th  the  ANC and Mr  S ipho Shaba la la .  

ADV DICKSON :    Yes.  

MR WHITE :    So,  my unders tand ing  wou ld  be ,  the  le t te r  

cannot  be  wr i t ten  on  beha l f  o f  on ly  Mr  S ipho Shaba la la .   I t  10 

must  be  wr i t ten  on  beha l f  o f  ANC as we l l .   And then in  the  

four th  paragraph ,  i t  says :   The ANC has made i t  c lea r.   

Now,  Mr  Shaba la la  cannot  make i t  c lea r.   I t  i s  the  ANC.    

 And f rom what  o ther  in fo rmat ion ,  and i t  i s  amongst  

a l l  the  d i f fe ren t  documents ,  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  sa id  he  is  the  

on ly  pe rson who  can comment  about  tha t  and i f  what  

Mr  Thu lu(?) ,  i f  what  Ms Ngubane-Zu lu  says is  cor rec t ,  a lso  

sa id ,  anyth ing  to  do  w i th  donat ions,  you have to  speak to  

the  Prov inc ia l  Treasure r,  wh ich  was Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  a t  the  

t ime.  20 

ADV DICKSON :    Yes.   Okay.   So,  you gave what  i s  in  tha t  

le t te r,  d id  you?  

MR WHITE :    Wel l ,  I  pu t  i t  as  par t  o f  the  puzz le .    

ADV DICKSON :    Ja ,  okay.   And then I  w i l l  take  you to  the  

next  paragraph(? ) ,  wh ich  does imp l ica te  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu 
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because i t  says  in  the  f i rs t  paragraph tha t  i t  was wr i t ten  on  

h is  ins t ruc t ions,  wh ich  RR -14,  i t  is  W-1841.   I t  i s  the  le t te r  

f rom Ngubane Wi l l s  on  the  2 n d  o f  February  2010.   Have you  

got  tha t  a t  hand?  

MR WHITE :    I  do .   I  have i t .  

ADV DICKSON :    Okay.   So tha t  –  I  th ink  i t  i s  a t tached to 

your  a f f idav i t  as  we l l .   I  am sor ry.   I  am not  there .   Okay.   

So,  you have got  tha t  le t te r?  

MR WHITE :    Yes.  

ADV DICKSON :    That  i s  the  one tha t  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  has  10 

t raversed th is  a f te rnoon.   I t  was wr i t ten  f rom in fo rmat ion  

tha t  he  gave Mr  Wi l l s (? ) ,  okay?   

MR WHITE :    Jus t  –  no t  the  en t i re  le t te r?   I  jus t  wan t  –  jus t  

on  tha t  contex t .  

ADV DICKSON :    Okay.    

MR WHITE :    No,  i s  i t  the  en t i re  l e t te r  o r  par t  –  I  mean,  i s  

i t  a l l  the  contents  s t ra igh t  f rom Mr  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  o r  jus t  

par t  o f  i t?  

ADV DICKSON :    Wel l ,  i t  i s  p robab ly  Mr  Wi l l s  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

as  we l l ,  bu t  the  in fo rmat ion  comes  f rom Mr Mabuyakhu lu .  20 

MR WHITE :    So  then some o f  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  you cannot  

be  cor rec t .  

ADV DICKSON :    L ike  what?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Mr  Whi te .   Mr  Whi te ,  I  th ink  le t  

Mr  D ickson put  h is  quest ion  in  regard  to  tha t  le t te r.   Then 
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you  can answer.   What  i s  your  quest ion  in  regard  to  the 

le t te r,  Mr  D ickson? 

ADV DICKSON :    My quest ion  is  tha t  in  re la t ion  to  the  

ins t ruc t ion  to  convey the  fo l low ing fac ts  to  you and i t  i s  

then got  one to  seven fac t s  tha t  a re  se t  ou t ,  okay?  Are  

there  any one o f  those fac ts  tha t  you can d i spute  w i th  

p roper  ev idence?  

MR WHITE :    I  wou ld  d i spute  the  las t  sentence o f  

parag raph 7 .   The las t  sentence o f  parag raph 7  says:   

Spec i f i ca l l y,  i t  was inc luded in  the  g lobu lar  amount  o f  10 

R 7  227 707,00 l i s ted  as  a  donat ion  in  the  income 

s ta tement .  

ADV DICKSON :    Okay.   On what  bas is  do  you  d ispute  

tha t?  

MR WHITE :    In  o rder  to  say tha t  i t  can  on ly  be  inc luded –  

on ly  –  the  numbers  tha t  they s ta r t  w i th  a re  f rom a f te r  a  

rece ip t  has been issued.   Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  has h imse l f  sa id  

in  h is  a f f idav i t s  and when he had tes t i f ied  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV DICKSON :    Yes.  

MR WHITE :    . . . tha t  no  rece ip t . . .   [ speaker  unc lea r  –  20 

d is to r t ion  in  v ideo l ink ]   So,  i t  wou ld  be  imposs ib le  fo r  i t  to  

have ended up in  these numbers  because  there  is  no  

s ta r t ing  po in t ,  there  is  no  reco rd  o f  i t .   So ,  i t  cannot  be  

inc luded in  the  amount  tha t  was  inc luded in  the  income 

s ta tement .   And second ly,  i f  a l l  these amounts  tha t  have 
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been re fe r red  to ,  to  da te ,  tha t  i t  was -  .  th is  i s  what  was  

used to  spend the  money on.  

ADV DICKSON SC:    Bu t  you  have been to ld  th is  

a f te rnoon.  

MR WHITE :   No,  we have not ,  w i th  respect .   Yes,  we have  

been to ld  bu t  i t  i s  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu ’s  ve rs ion  w i th  no  

suppor t  fo r  i t ,  no  documentary  suppor t .   The po in t  be ing  is  

i f  you  d id  no t  rece ip t  the  money then i t  i s  no t  in  the  income 

s ide  o f  you r  income s ta tement .   There fo re ,  you  cannot  

spend i t  on  expenses because your  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  10 

are  no t  go ing  to  ba lance i f  you do not  have an income 

o f fse t  by  an  expense.   So your  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  w i l l  no t  

ba lance i f  i t  was not  rece ip ted  but  i t  was subsequent ly  

used fo r  –  to  pay expenses.   Un less  a l l  th is  i s  happen ing  

outs ide  o f  the  account ing  records  o f  the  ANC which  means 

tha t  e f fec t i ve ly  the  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  are  jus t  a  fa rce .   I f  

tha t  i s  the  case then I  wou ld  have to  accept  tha t  tha t  i s  

what  happened.  

ADV DICKSON SC:    Okay,  tha t  i s  f ine  because tha t  i s  

rea l l y  the  po in t  tha t  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  has g iven you an 20 

exp lanat ion ,  he  has g i ven long exp lanat ions abou t  eve ry  

s ing le  quest ion  tha t  he  was asked by  Mr  Hu l ley  and what  

you do is  th is ,  you e i ther  have to  tack  together  a  who le  lo t  

o f ,  shou ld  I  say,  dub ious w i tnesses or  you have to  l i s ten  to  

h im and accept  h is  ev idence.   I f  you  accept  then i t  a l l  



22 JUNE 2021 – DAY 414 
 

Page 314 of 319 
 

makes sense,  does i t  no t?  

MR WHITE :   Mr  D ickson,  obv ious ly  i t  w i l l   make sense to  

h im but  whethe r  a l l  the  p ieces o f  the  puzz le ,  there  i s  so  

many p ieces tha t  d isc red i t  what  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  i s  say ing ,  

tha t  there  is  another  vers ion .   In  h is  ve rs ion  the re  i s  no t  a  

s ing le  person tha t  cor robora tes  h is  vers ion .   No one e lse  

ever  saw th is  m i l l i on  rand.   No one e lse  ever  coun ted the 

m i l l ion  rand.   A re  we say ing  the  Prov inc ia l  Treasure r  wou ld  

count  i t  h imse l f  when i t  was brought  to  the  o f f i ce?   Nobody  

has ever  seen th is  money.  10 

ADV DICKSON SC:    So  is  tha t  –  a re  those your  p rob lems 

wi th  i t?  

MR WHITE :   No,  Mr  D ickson,  there  is  –  I  th ink  in  amongst  

the  documents  tha t  I  have got ,  re fe r red  to  here ,  there  is  

hundreds o f  pages o f  in fo rmat ion  about  i t .   So  i t  i s  no t  fa i r  

to  say is  tha t  you r  p rob lem wi th  i t .   There  i s  –  i f  you  s t r ing  

together  the  who le  ch rono logy o f  what  happened f rom when  

the  m i l l ion  rand f i rs t  s ta r ted  ou t  to  Mr  Mz i la ’s  f i r s t  a f f idav i t ,  

the  va r ious quest ions f rom tha t ,  the  po l i ce ,  the  

prosecutors ,  e tce tera ,  to  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu ’s  subsequent  20 

s ta tements .    

I  mean,  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu  very  ca lm ly  sa id  to  today  

Ms Ngubane Zu lu  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  th is  mat te r,  she 

never  dea l t  w i th  i t .   I t  i s  funny tha t  the  po l i ce  wr i te  the i r  

le t te r  to  her,  they  do  not  wr i te  i t  to  John Wi l l s ,  they  wr i te  i t  
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to  her.   I  w i l l  show you the  page.  

MR WHITE :   That  i s  f ine ,  I  want  to  go  back to  TSW21.  

CHAIRPERSON :   Jus t  one second ,  Mr  D ickson,  I  am aware  

tha t  we have gone beyond ha l f  past  e igh t  in  te rms o f  th is  

s tu f f .   I  have been to ld  by  the  secre tary  tha t  the  s ta f f  have  

been g i ven some exempt ion  w i th  regard  to  the  cu r few but  I  

do  no t  want  to  keep them here  beyond a  ce r ta in  t ime.  

ADV DICKSON SC:    Yes,  bu t  Mr  Cha i r,  can I  ask  one las t  

quest ion?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Beyond a  cer ta in  t ime …[ in tervenes]  10 

ADV DICKSON SC:    Can I  ask?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry?  

ADV DICKSON SC:    Can I  jus t  ask  one las t  quest ion?  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  you may,  you may,  bu t  I  am a lso  

keen to  make su re  tha t  you have  had enough t ime.   So i f  

you  say i t  i s  you r  las t  quest ion  because o therwise  we can  

exp lore  whether  you can get  another  oppor tun i ty.   I f  you  

say i t  i s  the  las t  quest ion  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV DICKSON SC:    No,  no ,  I  th ink  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  no t  aggr ieved then tha t  i s  f ine .  20 

ADV DICKSON SC:    No,  i t  i s  jus t  one more  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV DICKSON SC:    I f  permi t ted ,  Mr  Cha i r,  then we can  

pack i t  up .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  
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ADV DICKSON SC:    TSW21,  back to  where  we were  jus t  

now.   I f ,  fo r  example ,  you took –  you see Mr  Shaba la la ’s  

name is  over  on  the  le f t  hand s ide  o f  the  page? 

MR WHITE :   Cor rec t .  

ADV DICKSON SC:    R igh t ,  i f  you  took an  ar row f rom Mr  

Shaba la la  w i th  R1 mi l l ion  in  i t  and  then the  a r row ended a t  

Michae l  Mabuyakhu lu .   In  o ther  words,  the  m i l l ion  rand 

came f rom Mr  Shaba la la  f rom independent  fund ra is ing  

ra the r  than money he had a l ready spent ,  wou ld  tha t  no t  

make more  sense? 10 

MR WHITE :   No,  i t  wou ld  no t ,  Cha i r ,  because I  mean a l l  

a long i t  i s  has been the  same money tha t  has been spoken  

about  in  th is  i nvest iga t ion .   So every  le t te r  tha t  has been  

wr i t ten  by  the  po l i ce  a l l  a long,  i t  has  been the  same money 

tha t  has been spoken about .   So no,  i t  wou ld  no t  make  

sense.  

ADV DICKSON SC:    Wel l ,  so  the  fo l low-up quest ion  is  tha t  

even though i t  i s  qu i te  c lear  to  me ,  and I  am hop ing  to  the  

Cha i r ,  tha t  th is  money,  the  1  053 mi l l ion  has been spent  by  

the  Shaba la las .   You ins i s t  s t i l l  tha t  i t  i s  the  same money.  20 

MR WHITE :   So  i f  the  money  was rece ived by  Mr  

Mabuyakhu lu  then my v iew is  tha t  i t  was laundered by  Mr  

Shaba la la  th rough var ious means ,  one o f  wh ich  was the  

Khubon i  and Shez i  t rus t  account .   The second one was h is  

own persona l  f inanc ia l  a f fa i rs  and  i t  was then pa id  across 
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and my unders tand ing  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV DICKSON SC:    For  example ,  he  pa id  Mar t ins  

P lumbing some money and do you th ink  he  was go ing  to  

ge t  i t  back f rom h im so  he cou ld  make the  donat ion? 

MR WHITE :   No,  Mr  D ickson,  I  have a l ready sa id  tha t  he 

d id  no t  ge t  the  money back.  

ADV DICKSON SC:    Okay.  

MR WHITE :   Bu t  I  sa id  he  l aundered th rough h i s  persona l  

f inanc ia l  a f fa i rs ,  i s  the  te rm ino logy  I  used.  

ADV DICKSON SC:    Okay,  f ine .   I  th ink  I  have taken i t  as 10 

fa r  as  I  can w i th  Mr  Whi te .   Thank  you ve ry  much.   Thank 

you,  Cha i r ,  those  are  ou r  quest ions fo r  the  w i tness.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine  bu t  you are  happy  

tha t  you have dea l t  w i th  the  issues or  wou ld  you l i ke  

another  oppor tun i ty  to  comple te  your  c ross-examina t ion?  

ADV DICKSON SC:    No,  Mr  Cha i r ,  I  th ink  tha t  we have 

dea l t  w i th  the  f inanc ia l  s ide  o f  Mr  Whi te ’s  ev idence and  

obv ious ly  Mr  Hu l l ey  and obv ious ly  you,  Mr  Cha i r ,  wou ld  be  

in  a  be t te r  pos i t ion  to  eva lua te  the  ev idence.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

ADV DICKSON SC:    Bu t  I  do  no t  want  to  pu rsue tha t  any 

fu r ther .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV DICKSON SC:    Been g i ven an oppor tun i ty  to  

comment  on  i t  bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  i s  necessary  f o r  me to  
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ask  any fu r ther  quest ions about  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Okay,  I  

th ink  tha t  we mus t  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV HULLEY SC:    That  conc ludes,  I  wou ld  th ink .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV HULLEY SC:    I  wou ld  th ink  t ha t  conc ludes the  

proceed ings fo r  today.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  we –  tha t  w i l l  conc lude the  

proceed ings fo r  th is  even ing .   Le t  me then thank Mr  

Mabuyakhu lu  and Mr  D ickson and Mr  Whi te  fo r  ava i l ing  10 

themse lves th is  even ing .   Le t  me thank you,  Mr  Hu l ley  and  

your  team.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me thank the  techn ic ians and the  

s ta f f ,  thank you to  everybody fo r  s tay ing  un t i l  th is  t ime so  

tha t  we can t r y  and cover  some ground and f in ish  the  

Commiss ion ’s  work  as  soon as  poss ib le .   So thank you  

very  much to  eve rybody.  

MR WHITE :   Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you ve ry  much.   For  the  benef i t  o f  20 

the  pub l i c  I  jus t  ment ion  tha t  tomorrow I  w i l l  hear  the  

ev idence o f  Mr  G igaba in  the  morn ing .   I  th ink  I  w i l l  a lso 

hear  the  ev idence o f  Ma jor  Genera l  Mnonop i  in  the  morn ing  

and then I  w i l l  have Mr  –  I  th ink  Agr izz i  la te r  in  the  day as  

we l l  as  Mr  Xaba.  
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ADV HULLEY SC:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Br igad ier  Xaba.  

ADV HULLEY SC:    B r igad ier  Xaba ,  my apo log ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  we are  go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  the  

even ing .   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 23 JUNE 2021  


